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PROPERTY INFORMATION FORM RR105c
Condominium, Co-op, PUD, and other Homeowner Organizations

Hawaii Association of REALTORS Standard Forms
Completion Date:
Name of Property: Unit/Lot #:

All references to the word "Property" shall refer to the above.

Property Address:
Property Tax Map Key:

This property is managed by a licensed real estate broker. If a licensed real estate broker, is managing agent
registered with the Real Estate Commission as a Condominium Managing Agent?

Name of Managing Agent:
Managed by this Managing Agent since: 
Managing Agent provides (check those services that apply):

 Administrative Managing Services
 Fiscal Management Services
 Physical Management Services
Other Management Services -

This Property is self-managed since:

A. GENERAL & LEGAL

Total number of apartments: Number of guest parking stalls available:
If applicable, what percentage of Condominium Apartments has been sold and conveyed (excluding to the Developer)?

If applicable, what approximate percentage of Condminium Apartments is owner-occupied?
Approximately how many foreclosures have been filed by the Board of Directors during the past twelve (12) months?

What approximate percentage of owners is more than one month delinquent in maintenance fees?
**If answer is “Yes”, using the SAME number below, describe in the space provided.**
Yes No NTMK (not to my knowledge)

(1) Within the past year, has the Board of Directors had discussions with the lessor
regarding the purchase of the leased fee interest in the land?

(2) Is this Property subject to phasing or development of additional increments?
(3) Has the Owners Association or Corporation been in control of the operations of the

Property for less than two (2) years?
(4) Are there any lawsuits, arbitration or mediation actions affecting this Property and/or

Association other than delinquent owner maintenance fees?
Attorney for Association of Apartment Owners: 
NOTE: Any attorney fees or other costs incurred for further answering this
inquiry shall not be at the expense of the Association of Apartment Owners,
nor of the Managing Agent.

(5) If property is a Condominium, does any single entity, individual or partnership own
more than 10 percent of the common interest of this property?

(6) Are any Association or Corporation approvals required for transfer of Ownership?
(7) Is a resident manager’s apartment a part of the common elements, or is one owned

by the Association or Corporation (does not apply to Planned Unit Development)?
(8) Is a time share operation existing at this Property?

Name of operator:
(9) Is there a hotel, transient vacation rental operation, or other organized rental program

at the Property?
Name of Operator:

(10) Have any of the following items been discovered by the Association or Corporation
at the Property?

(11) Are there commercial apartments, lots or commercial use of the common areas or
common elements at the Property?

Buyer’s Initials & Date Seller’s Initials & Date

Property Address:
Number of Question answered "YES" and Explain:

Yes No
Yes No

%
%

%

Formaldehyde Radon Gas Lead-Based PaintAsbestos
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See Comments

1850 Ala Moana Blvd Honolulu, HI. 96815

✔

✔
✔

Aqua-Aston Hospitality

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

1.12

3
100

268

✔

✔

✔

2005
Aqua Hotels & Resorts, LLC

✔

✔

1850 Ala Moana Blvd Honolulu, HI. 96815

324AOAO Palms At Waikiki
1966



B. INSURANCE
Name of Insurance Company: 
Name of Insurance Agent: Phone:

**If answer is “Yes”, using the SAME number below, describe in the space provided.**
Yes No NTMK Note: In case of Planned Unit Development, questions #14 to #17 apply to common areas only.

(12) Is the Property located in a designated Flood Hazard Zone?
(13) Is this Property covered by Flood Insurance?
(14) Is this Property located in a tsunami inundation area?
(15) Has there been any substantial damage to this Property due to earthquake, fire,

floods, winds, landslides, tsunami, or violence activity within the last five years?

Number of Questions answered "YES" and Explain:

C. FINANCIAL
1. What do the Apartment maintenance fees include?

Water & Sewer
Hot Water
Electricity
Gas
Air Conditioning
Cable TV Signal
Parking
Recreation/Community Association Dues
Lease Rent
Real Property Tax
Other:

2. Other:
There are master association dues. Check with listing broker

How frequently is a financial statement prepared? Quarterly
Specify:  Accrual Basis

Buyer’s Initials & Date Seller’s Initials & Date
Property Address:

**If answer is “Yes”, using the SAME number below, describe in the space provided.**

Yes No NTMK
(16) Has the Association or Corporation Board of Directors approved a maintenance fee

increase, special assessment, or loan?
(17) Are any special assessments or loans in effect at this time?
(18) Are any assessments required to be paid in full at the time of conveyance of

ownership?

Number of Questions answered "YES" and Explain:

D. PROPERTY CONDITION

**If answer is "Yes", using the SAME number below, describe in the space provided.**
Are there any major repairs required or planned within the next 12 months with respect to the following common
elements/common areas of the Property?

Yes NTMK
(19) Exterior Walls
(20) Plumbing
(21) Foundations
(22) Wall(s)/Fences
(23) Water Features
(24) Security Systems
(25) Elevators
(26) Slab(s)

(27) Trash Chutes
(28) Drainage
(29) Sauna
(30) Barbecue Facilities
(31) Lanai Decks/Railings

Cash Basis
Monthly

Yes NTMK

(32) Electrical Systems
(33) Walkways
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✔

✔

✔

✔

(16) In January 2016 maintenance fees will increase 6.91%

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔ Local phone service and PBX Equipment, High speed internet

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

See Comments 

✔

✔

✔

✔

Sue Savio 808-526-9271

Insurance Associates



(34) Swimming Pool
(35) Spas
(36) Pool Deck/Railings
(37) Sewage Treatment Plant

(40) Tennis Court
(41) Rec. Room Equipment
(42) Roofing
(43) Paint
(44) Other:Yes No NTMK

(45) Are lanai enclosures presently permitted by the Association or Corporation Board
of Directors?

(46) Do you know, within the past year, ofthe presence of live infestation, wood boring
insects/termites in the common elements/common areas of the Property?

(47) Do you know, within the past year, of leaks and/or water damage in the common
elements/common areas of the Property?

(48) Are you aware, within the past year , of any structural problems in the common
elements/common areas caused by water, settling, sliding, subsidence, filled land,etc.?

Number of Questions answered “YES" and Explain:

E. DISCLAIMER

While not guaranteed, the information contained in this Property Information Form is based on information reasonably
available to the Managing Agent at the time this form was completed. It has been provided by the Managing Agent at
Owner/Seller’s request and is believed to be current and co rrect to the best of the Managing Agent’s knowledge at the
time this form was completed. All persons relying upon the information contained herein are advised that the
information provided cannot be considered a substitute fo r a careful inspection of the Property and the Property’s
governing documents, meeting minutes, financial documents and other documentation; and that they should refer to
qualified experts in the various professional fields, includingbut not limited to attorneys, Certified Public Accountants,
architects, engineers, contractors and other appropriate professionals for detailed evaluation of areas where additional
clarification or information is desired. The person orentity completing the form is doing so only as an accommodation
to the parties and shall not be held liable for any errors or omissions whatsoever. The person or entity completing this
form is not required to and has not completed any special investigation, and is only reporting facts already known to that
person or entity or readily available. Specifically and without limitation, the person or entity completing the form has
not reviewed any records except official records of meetings in the possession of that person or entity and only for the
current and prior year. Where the answer to a question isnot applicable, unknown or is otherwise unanswerable, it has
been marked "NTMK". Where the Managing Agent has marked "NTMK" or "NO" in response to a question concerning
property condition, it must be recognized that this does not mean there may not be a defect which an expert could
discover or the passage of time would reveal. Likewise, a problem could be more serious than the Managing Agent, the
Association, the Corporation or its Board of Director s knows. All such persons having access to this Property
Information Form understand and acknowledge that this Property Information Form is not a warranty or guaranty of any
kind by the Managing Agent, the Association or its Board of Directors.

Person completing this form

 

Name: 

Title: 

Company: 

Address:

Phone No. Fax No. 

Buyer’s Initials & Date Seller’s Initials & Date

Property Address: :

Yes NTMK Yes NTMK
(39) Sprinkler System

(38) Driveways/Parking Areas
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808-947-7002808-952-8383

1850 Ala Moana Blvd., Honolulu, HI 96815

Palms at Waikiki

General Manager

Patty Maher, Property Manager, for  Palms at Waikiki

11-18-2015

See Comments

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔



ADDENDUM TO REQUEST FOR DOCUMENTS FORM RR105C
AND PROPERTY INFORMATION FORM RR105C

DATE OF FORMS:

The above-identified forms are modified as stated herein. I/We understand and agree that:

(i) the information requested is being provided as an accommodation only and that the Managing Agent and
the Association and their respective officers, directors, employees and agents shall have no liability
whatsoever for any errors or omissions with respect thereto;

(ii) the Managing Agent and the Association are not required to make any special investigations as to any
matters for which information is requested and shall report only facts already known or readily available to
the Managing Agent; and

(iii) the documents and information provided shall relate only to the community association for which
information is requested and shall not include documents or information related to other community
associations or master associations which may affect the property being sold.

I/We agree to indemnify and hold harmless the Association and the Managing Agent from All Costs for any Injury
consequent upon or arising from:

(i) the use or distribution of the documents or information provided by the Association or Managing Agent on
Forms RR105B and/or RR105C, as amended;

(ii) any allegation that said documents or information provided by the Association or Managing Agent
adversely affected any real estate transaction or violated any law, statute, ordinance or regulation now or
hereafter in force of the United States, the State of Hawaii or any city or county; and

(iii) any allegation that the documents or information provided by the Association or Managing Agent caused
damage to Me/Us or to any third party.

If any lawsuits, arbitration or other proceedings shall be brought against the Association or the Managing Agent for any
of the foregoing reasons, I/We will defend the same and will pay whatever judgements which may be recovered against
the Association or the Managing Agent. The obligation to defend shall include the obligation to pay all costs and
expenses of the lawsuit, arbitration or proceeding and any appeal thereof, including attorneys, fees, incurred by the
Association or the Managing Agent. As used herein:

All Costs shall include every and all cost, loss, damage, liability, expense, demand, penalty and fine whatsoever,
which may arise from or be claimed against the Association or the managing Agent, by any person or entity.

Injury shall include all injuries to person or property, or damage of whatever kind or character suffered or
sustained.

The acceptance of any of the documents or information as provided on form RR105B and/or RR105C and the use or
distribution of those documents or information to any third party for any purpose whatsoever, including without
limitation, compliance with Chapter 508D, Hawaii Revised Statutes, constitutes the agreement of the Seller (s) to all of
the terms and provisions of this Addendum including without limitation the obligation to defend and indemnify the
Association and the Managing Agent.

Buyers Initials & Date Sellers Initials & Date

Property Address:
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Comments Addendum Form RR105c

Buyer’s Initials & Date
Property Address: 

Seller’s Initials & Date

Page 5 of 6

(write comments, if any, below and refer to question number)

(write comments, if any, below and refer to question number)

A)  General & Legal

B)  Insurance

1850 Ala Moana Blvd Honolulu, HI. 96815

#19, 21, 31, 36 & 43 - Paint and spall repair of building, pool deck and lanai rails
#20 Annual Contingency Plumbing
#12 Grand Fathered Flod Zone B
#13-14 Flood Policy with Selective Insurance Co/National Flood Insurance Program
Policy number: FLD1298475
Coverage Period: 12/15/14-12/15/15
Coverage Amt.: $44,488,000



(write comments, if any, below and refer to question number)

(write comments, if any, below and refer to question number)

Buyer’s Initials & Date
Property Address: 

Seller’s Initials & Date

Page 6 of 6
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#8 Aqua Hotels & resorts, LLC manages an on-site rental program for over 85% of the units.
#9 Developer has completed remediation work to remove or otherwise deal with asbestos at the project in accordance with the
recommendatios of their consultants. Certain toxic molds have previously been detedted at the project and the seller has completed mold
remediation which included replacement of all drywalls in apartments and portion of hallways.
#10 back of the house storage areas, locker rooms and lunch room facilities are leased on an annual basis to the rental program operator. 
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ASSOCIATION OF APARTMENT OWNERS OF PALMS AT WAIKIKI
2014 ANNUAL MEETING MINUTES

TUESDAY I FEBRUARY 18, 2014 I 5:00PM (HST)
HAWAII PRINCE HOTEL WAIKIKI 1100 HOLOMOANA ST, HONOLULU, HAWAII 96815

A. CALL TO ORDER & ESTABLISH A QUORUM

The meeting of the AOAO Palms at Waikiki homeowners was called to order by President
Henry Perez at 5:00pm HST.

There being 59.2% of owners present in person or by proxy, a quorum was established.

B. PROOF OF NOTICE OF MEETING

Notice was mailed to owners of record on January 23, 2014.

C. INTRODUCTION & ROLL CALL

Board Directors Present: Henry Perez, President
Robert Hoevel, Vice President
Ernie Juan, Secretary
Aron Oshio, Treasurer
Virginia Grier, Director

Present by Invitation: Aciua Management
Patty Maher, General Manager
KeAlii Alexander, Director of Condominium Operations
Andrew Vocos, Association Controller
Laurie Sturges, Condominium Administration

Owners in attendance were asked to stand and introduce themselves.

D. CONDUCT OF MEETING

Special Meeting Rules were provided at registration. There being no objections the rules
were adopted as permanent standing rules. Among other stipulations, the rules recognize the
most recent edition of the Robert’s Rules of Order, Newly Revised as the governing authority
for the meeting.

E. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES

There being no objections, reading of the minutes for the Annual Meeting held on Thursday,
March 14, 2013 was waived and thereby approved.

F. REPORT OF OFFICERS

President Perez thanked the owners for attending today’s annual meeting and reviewed
some of the improvements accomplished in 2013. Among these are the completed
installation of the wi-fi system; upgraded cable TV system to HD; installation of new fire alarm
panel; installation of new hot water storage tanks; installation of hallway carpets; lobby
refurbishment (currently underway); retrofit of current chiller (ongoing).
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He also reviewed major projects to be completed in 2014 as indicated in our reserve study
such as; finishing the lobby refurbishment project; continue retrofit of current chiller system;
spall repairs and painting of the building’s exterior and lanais; and sealing / repairs to garage
parking structure.

Auditor’s Report — President Perez stated that Terry S.C. Wong, CPA, Inc. has audited the
books for the accounting year ending December 31, 2012, and a copy of the audit was provided
at registration. There were no objections and the auditor’s report was adopted.

G. PROPERTY MANAGER’S REPORT

Patty Maher presented a brief verbal report of the operations of the property.

H. APPOINTMENT OF TELLERS

None.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Owners were informed that in accordance with Article Ill, Section 4 of our bylaws, there were
three (3) director positions up for election. The terms of Henry Perez, Robert Hoevel and
Virginia Grier have expired. Remaining on the Board are Ernie Juan and Aron Oshio for their
remaining one year terms. The following nominations were submitted to the managing agent
prior to the meeting:

Henry Perez
Robert Hoevel
Virginia Grier

Nominations were open to the floor. There being no further nominations, the nominations
were closed.

MOTION (1): Bob Belmes (516) moved to waive the secret ballot process and elect Henry
Perez, Robert Hoevel and Virginia Grier by acclamation, each to a two (2)
year term.

The motion was approved by unanimous consent.

There will be a brief meeting of the new board to elect officers immediately following this
meeting.

J. NEW BUSINESS

a. TAX ROLLOVER RESOLUTION

President Perez read the tax resolution:

“Resolved by the owners of the Palms at Waikiki Association of Apartment Owners, that if
the amount by which member’s assessments in 2014 exceed the total expenses of the
Association for the purpose of managing, operating, maintaining and replacing the
common elements of the Association, that amount shall be applied against the 2015
Operating Expenses.”

Hearing no objections, the resolution was adopted as presented.
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K. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business before the Association, the meeting was adjourned at
5:27pm.

OWNER’S FORUM

None.

Respectfully submitted,

KeAlii Alexander
Director of Condominium Operations for Aqua Hotels & Resorts, LLC
As Agent for AOAO Palms at Waikiki

Signed: _______________________ Date:
Ernie

Juan,,ard
Secretary

MINUTES OF THE ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING OF THE
ASSOCIATION OF APARTMENT OWNERS OF PALMS AT WAIKIKI

FEBRUARY 18, 2014 — HAWAII PRINCE HOTEL

1. Election of Officers. Following the annual meeting of the AOAO Palms at Waikiki, the
new Board met to elect its officers for the 2014/2015 term. After a short discussion, the
officers were nominated and appointed unanimously as follows:

President — Henry Perez
Vice President — Robert Hoevel
Treasurer — Aron Oshio
Secretary — Ernie Juan
Director — Virginia Grier

2. Adjournment. There being no further business to come before the Board at this time, the
meeting was adjourned.

Respectfully submitted,

KeAlii Alexander
As Agent for AOAO Palms at Waikiki

Signed: th4-7-t4_a-- Date: ______________
Ernie Juan, B r Secretary
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TERRY S.C. WONG, CPA, INC.
1188 Bishop Street, Suite 808

Honolulu, Hawaii 96813
   

Tel: (808) 521-1522                  Fax: 1-888-928-3781

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of 
ASSOCIATION OF APARTMENT OWNERS OF PALMS AT WAIKIKI  

Report on the Financial Statements
I have audited the accompanying financial statements of  ASSOCIATION OF APARTMENT OWNERS OF
PALMS AT WAIKIKI, which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2014, and the related
statements  of revenues and expenses, changes in fund balances, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.
I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America.  Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The  procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, I express no such opinion.   An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of financial statements. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion
In my opinion, the  financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of ASSOCIATION OF APARTMENT OWNERS OF PALMS AT WAIKIKI as
of December 31, 2014, and the results of its operations and its cash flows  for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Disclaimer of Opinion on Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
information on future major repairs and replacements be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Financial Accounting Standard Board, who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. I have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to my inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge I obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements. I do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide me with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

                      
Honolulu, Hawaii
February 18, 2015

   -1-      

TERRY S.C. WONG, CPA, INC.
1188 Bishop Street, Suite 808

Honolulu, Hawaii 96813
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Report on the Financial Statements
I have audited the accompanying financial statements of ASSOCIATION OF APARTMENT OWNERS OF
PALMS AT WAIKIKI, which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2014, and the related
statements of revenues and expenses, changes in fund balances, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’ s Responsibility
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.
I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of financial statements. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion
In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of ASSOCIATION OF APARTMENT OWNERS OF PALMS AT WAIKIKI as
of December 31, 2014, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Disclaimer of Opinion on Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
information on future major repairs and replacements be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Financial Accounting Standard Board, who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. I have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to my inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge I obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements. I do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide me with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

C14, A

Honolulu, Hawaii
February 18, 2015

-1-



ASSOCIATION OF APARTMENT OWNERS OF PALMS AT WAIKIKI 

Balance Sheet 

December 31, 2014 
  

ASSETS 
               
                            Operating   Reserve    
                              Fund       Fund       Total   

   Current Assets
 Cash                      $122,211   $811,577  $  933,788
     Owners receivable             12,151       -         12,151
     Accounts receivable-other      4,122       -          4,122
     Due from Aqua Palms Hotel      1,702       -          1,702 
     Prepaid expenses - general       523       -            523
 Prepaid insurance             49,339       -         49,339
       Total current assets       190,048    811,577   1,001,625 
    
         Total Assets            $190,048   $811,577  $1,001,625 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

   Liabilities: 
  Accounts payable and
       accrued expenses          $144,656   $   -     $  144,656
   Advance owner payments        15,523       -         15,523

        Total Liabilities         160,179       -        160,179

   Fund Balances                   29,869    811,577     841,446

   Total Liabilities and 
     Fund Balances               $190,048   $811,577  $1,001,625 

           

 

          See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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ASSOCIATION OF APARTMENT OWNERS OF PALMS AT WAIKIKI

Balance Sheet

December 31, 2014

ASSETS

Operating
Fund

Reserve
Fund Total

Current Assets
Cash
Owners receivable
Accounts receivable-other
Due from Aqua Palms Hotel
Prepaid expenses - general
Prepaid insurance
Total current assets

$122,211
12 ,151
4 ,122
1,702

523
49,339
190,048

$811,577 $ 933,788
- 12,151
- 4,122
- 1,702
- 523

_______ 49,339
________ 1,001, 625811,577

Total Assets $190,048 $811,577 $1,001,625

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and
accrued expenses

Advance owner payments
$144,656
15,523

$ - $ 144,656
15,523

Total Liabilities 160,179 160,179

Total Liabilities and
Fund Balances $190,048 $811,577 $1 ,001 , 625

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Fund Balances 29,869 811,577 841,446
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ASSOCIATION OF APARTMENT OWNERS OF PALMS AT WAIKIKI  
                Statement of Revenues and Expenses, and
                        Changes in Fund Balance

Year Ended December 31, 2014 

                                Operating    Reserve    
                                  Fund        Fund        Total  
Revenues:  
  Maintenance fees             $1,328,114   $264,138   $1,592,252
  Laundry income                   25,348       -          25,348
  Rental income                    19,230       -          19,230 
  Soda vending & wifi income        8,870       -           8,870
  Interest income                     153      2,492        2,645
  Late fees & other                 1 487       -           1,487
  Telephone income                  1,384       -           1,384
    Total revenues              1,384,586    266,630    1,651,216

Expenses: 
  Utilities:
    Electricity                   431,109       -         431,109
    Water and sewer               147,533       -         147,533
    Gas                            59,809       -          59,809
    Tv cable                       51,735       -          51,735
    Telephone and internet         30,405       -          30,405
    Utilities reimbursement       (14,310)      -         (14,310)
  Administrative and professional:
    Management fees                69,864       -          69,864
    Administrative salary          63,192       -          63,192
    Legal fees                      3,847       -           3,847 
    Admin supplies & services       3,020       -           3,020
    Audit fee                       2,000       -           2,000
    Reserve study                     810       -             810
  Repairs and maintenance:
    A/C maintenance/chiller         7,986    289,365      297,351
    Maintenance handyman salary   167,573       -         167,573
    Janitorial/utility salary     128,820       -         128,820
    Lobby flooring                   -        80,100       80,100
    Misc. repairs & purchases      61,222      3,639       64,861
    Security services              64,765       -          64,765
    Waste removal                  22,990       -          22,990
    Elevator                       15,511       -          15,511
    Lobby furniture                  -        10,798       10,798
    Life/safety                     8,982       -           8,982
    Pest control                    6,281       -           6,281
    Laundry expense                 5,226       -           5,226
    Ice machines                     -         5,131        5,131
    Plumbing                         -         4,842        4,842
    Pool maintenance & supplies     3,516       -           3,516
  Other:
    Insurance                     110,035       -         110,035
    General excise tax              2,645       -           2,645
    Condo registration fee            310       -             310
      Total expenses            1,454,876    393,875    1,848,751 

Excess of expenses over revenue   (70,290)  (127,245)    (197,535)

Inter-fund transfer               (77,537)    77,537         -    
Prior period adjustments           (3,592)                 (3,592)

Beginning fund balance            181,288    861,285    1,042,573

Ending fund balance            $   29,869   $811,577    $ 841,446
        

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ASSOCIATION OF APARTMENT OWNERS OF PALMS AT WAIKIKI
Statement of Revenues and Expenses, and

Changes in Fund Balance
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Revenues:
Maintenance fees
Laundry income
Rental income
Soda vending & wifi income
Interest income
Late fees & other
Telephone income
Total revenues

Operating
Fund

$1,328,114
25,348
19,230
8,870

153
1 487
1,384

1,384,586

Reserve
Fund

$264,138

2,492

266,630

Total

$1,592,252
25,348
19,230
8,870
2,645
1,487
1,384

1,651,216

Expenses:
Utilities:
Electricity
Water and sewer
Gas
Tv cable
Telephone and internet
Utilities reimbursement

Reserve study
Repairs and maintenance:
A/C maintenance/chiller
Maintenance handyman salary
Janitorial/utility salary
Lobby flooring
Misc, repairs & purchases
Security services
Waste removal
Elevator
Lobby furniture
Life/safety
Pest control
Laundry expense
Ice machines
Plumbing
Pool maintenance & supplies

Other:
Insurance
General excise tax
Condo registration fee
Total expenses

431,109
147,533
59,809
51,735
30,405
(14 ,310)

69,864
63,192
3,847
3,020
2,000

810

110,035 -

2,645 -

310 -

1,454,876 393,875

431,109
147,533
59,809
51,735
30,405
(14,310)

69,864
63,192
3,847
3,020
2,000

810

297,351
167,573
128,820
80,100
64,861
64,765
22,990
15,511
10,798
8, 982
6,281
5,226
5,131
4,842
3,516

110,035
2,645

310
1,848,751

Excess of expenses over revenue (70,290) (127,245) (197,535)

Inter-fund transfer
Prior period adjustments

(77,537) 77,537
(3,592)

Beginning fund balance 181,288 861,285 1,042,573

Ending fund balance $ 29,869 $811,577 $ 841,446

See accompanying notes to financial statements,

Administrative and professional:
Management fees
Administrative salary
Legal fees
Admin supplies & services
Audit fee

7,986
167,573
128,820

61,222
64,765
22 ,990
15,511

8,982
6,281
5,226

3,516

289,365

80,100
3, 639

10,798

5,131
4,842

(3, 592)
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ASSOCIATION OF APARTMENT OWNERS OF PALMS AT WAIKIKI  

Statement of Cash Flows 
 

Year Ended December 31, 2014 

                                                        
                                     Operating   Reserve
                                       Fund       Fund       Total  

  Cash flows from operating activities:
    Excess of expenses over revenue  $(70,290) $(127,245) $ (197,535)

  Adjustments to reconcile excess 
    of revenue over expenses
    to net cash provided by (used in)
    operating activities:

  (Increase) decrease in current assets:
    Owners receivable                  11,568       -         11,568 
    Accounts receivable-other          24,872       -         24,872 
    Due from Aqua Palms Hotel              81       -             81 
    Due from Aqua Hotels & Resort         120       -            120 
    Prepaid expenses - general            648       -            648 
    Prepaid insurance                  (1,997)      -         (1,997)

  Increase (decrease) in current liabilities:
    Accounts payable/accrued expenses  52,019       -         52,019 
    Advance owner payments                183       -            183 

      Total adjustments                87,494       -         87,494 

    Cash provided by (used in)
      operating activities             17,204   (127,245)   (110,041)

  Prior period adjustments             (3,592)      -         (3,592)

    Net increase (decrease) in cash    13,612   (127,245)   (113,633)

  Inter-fund transfer                 (77,537)    77,537        -
 
  Cash - beginning of year            186,136    861,285   1,047,421 

  Cash - end of year                 $122,211   $811,577  $  933,788

          

             See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Operating Reserve
Fund Fund Total

Cash flows from operating activities:
Excess of expenses over revenue $(70,290) $(127,245) $ (197,535)

Adjustments to reconcile excess
of revenue over expenses
to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:

(Increase) decrease in current assets:
Owners receivable 11,568 - 11,568
Accounts receivable-other 24,872 - 24,872
Due from Aqua Palms Hotel 81 - 81
Due from Aqua Hotels & Resort 120 - 120
Prepaid expenses - general 648 - 648
Prepaid insurance (1,997) - (1,997)

Increase (decrease) in current liabilities:
Accounts payable/accrued expenses 52,019 - 52,019
Advance owner payments 183 - 183

Total adjustments 87,494 - 87,494

Cash provided by (used in)
operating activities 17,204 (127,245) (110,041)

Prior period adjustments (3,592) - (3,592)

Net increase (decrease) in cash 13,612 (127,245) (113,633)

Inter-fund transfer (77,537) 77,537 -

Cash - beginning of year 186,136 861,285 1,047,421

Cash - end of year $122,211 $811,577 $ 933,788

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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ASSOCIATION OF APARTMENT OWNERS OF PALMS AT WAIKIKI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2014

NOTE A - NATURE OF ASSOCIATION

The Association of Apartment Owners of PALMS AT WAIKIKI(“the
Association”) is formed to provide for the management, maintenance and
care of the common areas. The Association was formed as required by the
Hawaii Revised Statutes and the Declaration of Condominium Property
Regime filed with the State of Hawaii. The project consists of 262
Hotel Apartments and 6 Commercial Apartments.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Method of Accounting

The financial statements are presented on an accrual basis of
accounting. Accordingly, revenue is recognized when earned and expenses
are recognized when obligations are incurred.  

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could
differ from those estimates. 

Fund Accounting

The accounts of the Association are maintained in accordance with the
principles of fund accounting.  Under fund accounting, resources for
various purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes
into funds established according to their nature and purpose. 

  Operating Fund - The Operating Fund accounts for excess funds
accumulated from operations. The Association may return this money
to its members, apply it to subsequent year’s operating budgets,
or fund future major repairs and replacements.

   Reserve Fund - The Reserve Fund accounts for funds accumulated and
spent on future major repairs and replacements.

Income Taxes

Under current tax law, a condominium association may annually elect to
file its income tax returns as a homeowners association or as a
corporation.  The Association intends to elect the filing option that
is most beneficial to file.

NOTE C - DATE OF MANAGEMENT REVIEW    

In preparing the financial statements, the Association has evaluated
events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through
February 18, 2015, the date that the financial statements were
available to be issued.

          
5

ASSOCIATION OF APARTMENT OWNERS OF PALMS AT WAIKIKI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2014

NOTE A - NATURE OF ASSOCIATION

The Association of Apartment Owners of PALMS AT WAIKIKI(”the
Association”) is formed to provide for the management, maintenance and
care of the common areas. The Association was formed as required by the
Hawaii Revised Statutes and the Declaration of Condominium Property
Regime filed with the State of Hawaii. The project consists of 262
Hotel Apartments and 6 Commercial Apartments.

NOTE B - SUM4ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Method of Accounting

The financial statements are presented on an accrual basis of
accounting. Accordingly, revenue is recognized when earned and expenses
are recognized when obligations are incurred.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of .Pmerica requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Fund Accounting

The accounts of the Association are maintained in accordance with the
principles of fund accounting. Under fund accounting, resources for
various purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes
into funds established according to their nature and purpose.

Operating Fund - The Operating Fund accounts for excess funds
accumulated from operations. The Association may return this money
to its members, apply it to subsequent year’s operating budgets,
or fund future major repairs and replacements.

Reserve Fund - The Reserve Fund accounts for funds accumulated and
spent on future major repairs and replacements.

Income Taxes

Under current tax law, a condominium association may annually elect to
file its income tax returns as a homeowners association or as a
corporation. The Association intends to elect the filing option that
is most beneficial to file.

NOTE C - DATE OF MANAGEMENT REVIEW

In preparing the financial statements, the Association has evaluated
events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through
February 18, 2015, the date that the financial statements were
available to be issued.
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ASSOCIATION OF APARTMENT OWNERS OF PALMS AT WAIKIKI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

December 31, 2014
 
NOTE D - FUTURE MAJOR REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS

The Hawaii Condominium Property Regime Act requires condominium
associations to prepare a study of future major repairs and
replacements and to fund the estimated replacement reserves. The
Association's accumulated reserve fund, which aggregates $811,577 at
December 31, 2014, is held in a separate account and is generally not
available for operating purposes.

The Association engaged Barrera and Company to conduct a study in 2014
to estimate the remaining useful lives and the replacement costs of the
common property components.  The Association is funding for such major
repairs and replacements over the estimated useful lives of the
components based on the study's estimates of current replacement costs,
considering amounts previously designated for future repairs and
replacements. Actual expenditures, however, may vary from the estimated
amounts and the variations may be material.  Therefore, amounts
designated for future repairs and replacements may or may not be
adequate to meet future needs.  

          

6

ASSOCIATION OF APARTMENT OWNERS OF PALMS AT WAIKIKI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

December 31, 2014

NOTE D - FUTURE MAJOR REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS

The Hawaii Condominium Property Regime Act requires condominium
associations to prepare a study of future major repairs and
replacements and to fund the estimated replacement reserves. The
Association’s accumulated reserve fund, which aggregates $811,577 at
December 31, 2014, is held in a separate account and is generally not
available for operating purposes.

The Association engaged Barrera and Company to conduct a study in 2014
to estimate the remaining useful lives and the replacement costs of the
common property components. The Association is funding for such major
repairs and replacements over the estimated useful lives of the
components based on the study’s estimates of current replacement costs,
considering amounts previously designated for future repairs and
replacements. Actual expenditures, however, may vary from the estimated
amounts and the variations may be material. Therefore, amounts
designated for future repairs and replacements may or may not be
adequate to meet future needs.
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ASSOCIATION OF APARTMENT OWNERS OF PALMS AT WAIKIKI 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ON FUTURE MAJOR
REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS 

(UNAUDITED)

December 31, 2014

The following summary is based on the study conducted by Barrera and
Company in 2014.
                                        Estimated      Current
                                        Remaining    Replacement 
Component                                 Life           Cost     
Garage - concrete coating                   0        $    6,560
Garage - patch/repairs                      0             5,625
Garage - seal & repair                      0            14,892
Carpeting - Hallways                        9            92,250
Doors - lobby entry operator                0             5,125
Doors - locks                               1            80,500
Drop ceiling - Hallways                    14            36,050
Fitness equip. - Bioforce machine           5             3,075
Fitness - flooring                         11               350
Fitness equip. - step machine               3             4,100
Glass assemblies (by elevators)            11            30,750
Ice machines | (1)                         11             5,150
Ice machines || (4)                         6            24,600
Lobby - refurbish                           5            46,150
Lobby - tile Surfaces                      24            39,950
RR- refurbish (fitness)                     4             2,050
RR - refurbish (lobby)                      4            20,500
Washers/dryers - guests                     2             8,200
Elevators - refurbish cabs                  6            49,200
Elevators - upgrade systems                24           615,000
Entry cover (RAB) fixtures                 12             3,328
Garage fixtures - ceiling (no cover)        2             3,280
Garage fixtures - ceiling/wall              5            21,525
Garage fixtures - exit                      7             2,513
Garage fixtures - wall (sq)                 2             2,768
Hallway fixtures (PH floor)                 9             2,197
Hallway fixtures (recessed) - allowance     7             3,757
Air handler - Mezzanine/lobby               9            80,000
Air handler - roof/hallway                 14            16,900
Back flow preventer (4")                    0             8,200
Boilers (HW)                               18            61,500
Booster pump system (HW)’05                 2            17,700
Chiller #2 - 120 ton (A)                   13            65,500
Chiller #2 - 120 ton (B)                   14           164,000
Chiller #2 - 120 ton ©                     14           117,850
Chiller #3 (hallway)                        9            55,250
Dom. water pump #1                         13             5,625
Dom. Water pump #2                          2             5,625
Emergency generator (120KVA)                3            87,200
Fire booster pump (P2)- 1.5hp               3             2,050
Fire booster pump (P2) - 40hp              16            28,200
Risers - chill water                       14           794,000
Rooftop exhaust fans - large               16            20,500

(Continued)
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ASSOCIATION OF APARTMENT OWNERS OF PALMS AT WAIKIKI

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ON FUTURE MAJOR
REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)

December 31, 2014

The following summary is based on the study conducted by Barrera and
Company in 2014.

Estimated Current
Remaining Replacement

Component Life Cost
Garage - concrete coating 0 $ 6,560
Garage - patch/repairs 0 5,625
Garage - seal & repair 0 14,892
Carpeting - Hallways 9 92,250
Doors - lobby entry operator 0 5,125
Doors - locks 1 80,500
Drop ceiling - Hallways 14 36,050
Fitness equip. - Bioforce machine 5 3,075
Fitness - flooring 11 350
Fitness equip. - step machine 3 4,100
Glass assemblies (by elevators) 11 30,750
Ice machines I (1) 11 5,150
Ice machines II (4) 6 24,600
Lobby - refurbish 5 46,150
Lobby - tile Surfaces 24 39,950
RR- refurbish (fitness) 4 2,050
RR - refurbish (lobby) 4 20,500
Washers/dryers - guests 2 8,200
Elevators - refurbish cabs 6 49,200
Elevators - upgrade systems 24 615,000
Entry cover (RAB) fixtures 12 3,328
Garage fixtures - ceiling (no cover) 2 3,280
Garage fixtures - ceiling/wall 5 21,525
Garage fixtures - exit 7 2,513
Garage fixtures - wall (sq) 2 2,768
Hallway fixtures (PH floor) 9 2,197
Hallway fixtures (recessed) - allowance 7 3,757
Air handler - Mezzanine/lobby 9 80,000
Air handler - roof/hallway 14 16,900
Back flow preventer (4”) 0 8,200
Boilers (HW) 18 61,500
Booster pump system (HW)’OS 2 17,700
Chiller #2 - 120 ton (A) 13 65,500
Chiller #2 - 120 ton (B) 14 164,000
Chiller #2 - 120 ton © 14 117,850
Chiller #3 (hallway) 9 55,250
Dom. water pump #1 13 5,625
Dom. Water pump #2 2 5,625
Emergency generator (12OKVA) 3 87,200
Fire booster pump (P2)- 1.Shp 3 2,050
Fire booster pump (P2) - 4Ohp 16 28,200
Risers - chill water 14 794,000
Rooftop exhaust fans - large 16 20,500

(Continued)
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ASSOCIATION OF APARTMENT OWNERS OF PALMS AT WAIKIKI 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ON FUTURE MAJOR
REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS (Continued)

(UNAUDITED)

December 31, 2014

                                        Estimated      Current
                                        Remaining    Replacement 
Component                                 Life           Cost     
Rooftop exhaust fans - medium              16             6,150
Storage tank (2/3) to 5 tanks              11            35,300
Transfer switch                             5            24,100
PBX system                                  9            59,400
Plumbing repairs - annual contingency       0             7,675
Exterior surfaces - paint                   0           432,500
Interior surfaces - paint                   2            15,900
Spalling repairs - contingency |            3             6,250
Spalling repairs - contingency ||           0            70,500
Pool - ADA chair lift                      12             5,950
Pool - deck coating                         0             3,075
Pool - filter                               8             2,200
Pool - furnishings                          1            10,750
Pool - resurface (tile/coping)             13            16,400
Pool - safety vacuum                        4             3,275
Lanai rails - annual contingency            0             5,125
Pool railings (4")                         14             7,735
Vehicle entry gates (roll up)              14            17,400
Vehicle gate - operator #1                  1             4,100
Vehicle gate - operator #2                  2             4,100
Roofing (rubberized)                        8           266,500
Fire alarm control system                  19            28,200
Fire door assemblies                        4             4,775
Security - cameras                          0             5,725
Security - cameras/monitors                 5             5,225
Security - entry system                    11             6,150

  Total                                       $3,714,004
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ASSOCIATION OF APARTMENT OWNERS OF PALMS AT WAIKIKI

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION ON FUTURE MAJOR
REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS (Continued)

(UNAUDITED)

December 31, 2014

Estimated Current
Remaining Replacement

Component Life Cost
Rooftop exhaust fans - medium 16 6,150
Storage tank (2/3) to 5 tanks 11 35,300
Transfer switch 5 24,100
PBX system 9 59,400
Plumbing repairs - annual contingency 0 7,675
Exterior surfaces - paint 0 432,500
Interior surfaces - paint 2 15,900
Spalling repairs - contingency I 3 6,250
Spalling repairs - contingency II 0 70,500
Pool - ADA chair lift 12 5,950
Pool - deck coating 0 3,075
Pool - filter 8 2,200
Pool - furnishings 1 10,750
Pool - resurface (tile/coping) 13 16,400
Pool - safety vacuum 4 3,275
Lanai rails - annual contingency 0 5,125
Pool railings (4”) 14 7,735
Vehicle entry gates (roll up) 14 17,400
Vehicle gate - operator #1 1 4,100
Vehicle gate - operator #2 2 4,100
Roofing (rubberized) 8 266,500
Fire alarm control system 19 28,200
Fire door assemblies 4 4,775
Security - cameras 0 5,725
Security - cameras/monitors 5 5,225
Security - entry system 11 6,150

Total $3,714,004
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AOAO PAW BOO REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 150423
APPROVED — JULY 16, 2015
Page 1 of 2

AOAO PALMS AT WAIKIKI
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
APRIL 23, 2015 - 3:00 P.M. (HST)

PALMS AT WAIKIKI - MEZZANINE CONFERENCE ROOM

CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 3:30 p.m.

ESTABLISH A QUORUM

A quorum was established.

Board Members Present: Henry Perez, Ernie Juan, Bob Belmes (in person) and Ginny
Grier (Via teleconference)

Board Members Absent: Bob Hoevel

Owners Present: Mike Tave

By Invitation: AOAO Manager (Aqua Hotels& Resorts, LLC):
Patty Maher, General Manager
Jimmy Recolan, Chief Engineer
Renette Carpio, Director of Owner Services

III. APPROVE MINUTES OF LAST MEETING

MOTION (1): Ernie Juan moved to approve the minutes of the February 26, 2015 regular
board meeting as submitted; seconded by Henry Perez.

The motion was approved by majority consent; Bob Belmes and Ginny Grier
abstained.

IV. TREASURER’S REPORT

a) February and March 2015 Financial Reports — Patty Maher reviewed the financial
summary for February and March, including revenues and expenses, and any variances,
including a positive variance for electricity.

V. SITE MANAGER’S REPORT

Patty Maher provided an update of the property’s operations; a copy of this written site
manager’s report will be kept on file with the managing agent. She advised the Board of
elevator #3 condition and presented proposals for consideration.

MOTION (2): Ernie Juan moved to approve the Kone proposal to replace the entrance frame
of elevator #3 for $18,888 and Kawika’s concrete repair proposal of $6,800, as
submitted; seconded by Ginny Grier.

The motion was approved by unanimous consent.



AOAO PAW SOD REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 150423
APPROVED — JULY 16, 2015
Page 2 of 2

VI. COMMITTEE REPORTS

a) House Rules Committee Update

Patty provided an update on the first revision of the House Rules document and asked
the Board for comments.

VII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

a) Request for Approval — Painting and spall repairs.

VIII. NEW BUSINESS

a) Consent Calendar -

None.

b) Request for Approval — Mezzanine renovation

MOTION (3): Ernie Juan moved to approve the renovation proposal of the Mezzanine
offices as submitted; seconded by Ginny Grier.

The motion was approved by unanimous consent.

c) Request for Approval — Painting and spall repairs

MOTION (4): Bob Belmes moved to approve Kawika’s proposal contingent upon its
provisions be included on an AlA contract form and reviewed by the
Association’s counsel; seconded by Ernie Juan.

The motion was approved by unanimous consent.

d) Request for Approval — Concrete repairs to elevator door (2 floor, P3)

Discussed and approved under Site Manager’s Report discussion.

IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION

None.

X. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 4:08pm.

Xl. OWNER’S FORUM
None.

Respectfully submitted,

of Owner Services for Aqua Hotels & Resorts, LLC
for AOAO Palms at Waikiki

Signed: __________________________ Date: __________
(4.wti9 ?ti2’tj...._— Bob Belmes, Board Secretary

Di,
As



AOAO PAW BOD REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 150226
APPROVED — APRIL 23, 2015
Page 1 of 2

AOAO PALMS AT WAIKIKI
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
FEBRUARY 26, 2015 - 3:30 P.M. (HST)

HAWAII PRINCE HOTEL WAIKIKI, CAPTAIN’S MEETING ROOM

I. CALLTO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 3:31 p.m.

II. ESTABLISH A QUORUM

A quorum was established.

Board Members Present: Henry Perez, Bob Hoevel, and Ernie Juan (in person)

Board Members Absent: Aron Oshio, Virginia Grier

Owners Present: Marie Keir, Fred Hawryliw

By Invitation: AOAO Manager (Aqua Hotels& Resorts, LLC):
Patty Maher, General Manager
Jimmy Recolan, Chief Engineer
Renette Carpio, Sr Owner Relations Manager

III. APPROVE MINUTES OF LAST MEETING

MOTION (1): Ernie Juan moved to approve the minutes of the December 4, 2014 regular
board meeting as submitted; seconded by Henry Perez.

The motion was approved by majority consent; Bob Hoevel abstained.

IV. TREASURER’S REPORT

a) November/December 2014 and January 2015 Financial Reports — Patty Maher reviewed
the financial summary for November 2014, December 2014 and January 2015, including
revenues and expenses, explaining any major variances.

V. SITE MANAGER’S REPORT

Patty Maher provided an update of the property’s operations; a copy of this written site
manager’s report will be kept on file with the managing agent.

VI. COMMIUEE REPORTS

a) House Rules Committee Update

The committee will meet to begin the preliminary review process.

VII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

a) None.



IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION

None.

X. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 3:59pm.

XI. OWNER’S FORUM
Marie Keir and Fred Hawryliw addressed the Board with various concerns.

Respectfully submitted,

Ren e
Sr 0 er Relations Manager for Aqua Hotels & Resorts, LLC
As Age t for AOAO Palms at Waikiki

Signed: ___________
Ernie Juan,

Date: __________

AOAO PAW BOD REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 150226
APPROVED — APRIL 23, 2015
Page 2 of 2

VIII. NEW BUSINESS

a) Consent Calendar -

1. Ratify email approval of 12/19/14 — Hawaii Energy chiller plant incentive application

MOTION (2): Ernie Juan moved to ratify the consent calendar as submitted;
seconded by Henry Perez.

The motion was approved by unanimous consent.
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AOAO PALMS AT WAIKIKI
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
DECEMBER 4, 2014 - 3:00 P.M. (HST)
MEZZANINE CONFERENCE ROOM

CALLTO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m.

ESTABLISH A QUORUM

A quorum was established.

Board Members Present: Henry Perez, Aron Oshio, Ernie Juan (in person) and Ginny
Grier (via teleconference)

Board Members Absent: Bob Hoevel

Owners Present: Noel Kelley, Miae Mm

By Invitation: AOAO Manager (Aqua Hotels& Resorts, LLC):
Patty Maher, General Manager
Jimmy Recolan, Chief Engineer
KeAIii Alexander, Director of Condominium Operations
Blair Cole, Kone Inc.

III. APPROVE MINUTES OF LAST MEETING

MOTION (1): Aron Oshio moved to approve the minutes of the October 16, 2014 regular
board meeting as submitted; seconded by Ernie Juan.

The motion was approved by unanimous consent.

IV. ELEVATOR SPALL REPAIRS

The Board allowed Blair Cole from Kone, Inc. to discuss and address questions regarding
the proposed repair work to P2 & P3 of the parking garage.

MOTION (2): Aron Oshiro moved to approve the proposal by Kone, Inc. dated 11/19/14 to
repair the sill in Elevator #3 for $30,898.

The motion was approved by unanimous consent.

V. TREASURER’S REPORT

a) September/October 2014 Financial Reports — Patty Maher reviewed the financial
summary including revenues and expenses, explaining any major variances.

The Board discussed the high variance in electricity costs for both October & November.

ACTION ITEM (1): The Board asked Aqua to provide the electricity bills for
October & November to the Board.
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b) 2014 Auditor Selection

MOTION (3): Aron Oshio moved to approve Terry Wong to perform the 2014 audit;
seconded by Ernie Juan.

The motion was approved by unanimous consent.

VI. SITE MANAGER’S REPORT

Patty Maher provided an update of the property’s operations; a copy of this written site
manager’s report will be kept on file with the managing agent.

ACTION ITEM (2): In discussing the potential impending painting and spall project, the
Board directed Aqua to ask for a cost to prepare a “boiler” service
agreement template proposal from Attorney Milton Motooka to be
used for all future service agreements.

VII. COMMITTEE REPORTS

a) House Rules Committee Update

No update.

VIII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

a) None.

VIII. NEW BUSINESS

a) Consent Calendar

None.

b) 2015 Management Plan

MOTION (4): Ernie Juan moved to adopt the 2015 Management Plan as presented;
seconded by Aron Oshiro.

The motion was approved by unanimous consent.

c) 2015 Insurance

MOTION (5): Aron Oshio moved to approve the 2015 Insurance renewal as
presented; seconded by Ernie Juan.

The motion was approved by unanimous consent.

d) Request for Approval — Water Treatment for Cooling Tower

MOTION (6): Aron Oshio moved to approve the proposal by Water Treatment
Solutions to provide water treatment for the cooling towers at a cost of
$476.55/month; seconded by Ernie Juan.

The motion was approved by unanimous consent.
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e) Request for Approval — Repair Elevator #2

MOTION (7): Aron Oshio moved to approve the proposal by Kone, Inc. dated
12/04/14 to repair passenger elevator #2 for $3,148; seconded by
Ernie Juan.

The motion was approved by unanimous consent.

IX. EXECUTIVE SESSION

None.

X. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 4:21pm.

XI. OWNER’S FORUM
Noel Kelley addressed the Board with comments.

Respectfully submitted,

Date: cç7__/r’

Sr
As

Carpio
r Relations Manager for Aqua Hotels & Resorts, LLC
for AOAO Palms at Waikiki

Signed:
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AOAO Palms at Waikiki
2015 Owners Maintenance Fee Schedule

218 211
577

1,271
881
434
402

560
1,233
855
421
390

516 501
466
436
514
402
500
434
466
434
505
402
503
434
875

452
423
499
390
485
421
452
421
490
390
488
421
849

575 558
362
495

351

394
480

391
382

434
379

457
421

402
518

Adjusted
2015 Monthly 2014 Monthly %

________ Maint. Fees Maint. Fees
0.001 528730 218 211 3.07% 0103
0.001056620 151 146 3.07% 0104
0.001 528730 ________________ _____________ 3.07% 0105
0.004046630 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0202
0.00891 3820 ________________ _____________ 3.07% 0205
0.006182350 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0206
0.003046210 ________________ _____________ 3.07% 0207
0.002821400 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0209
0.003630720 518 502 3.07% 0210
0.00305745w 436 423 3.07% 0211
0.003619480 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0212
0.003271020 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0214
0.003057450 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0215
0.003608240 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0216
0.002821400 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0217
0.003507080 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0218
0.003046210 _____________ 3.07% 0219
0.003271 020 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0220
0.003046210 ________________ _____________ 3.07% 0221
0.003540800 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0222
0.002821400 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0223
0.003529560 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0224
0.003046210 ________________ _____________ 3.07% 0225
0.0061 37380 ________________ _____________ 3.07% 0227
0.003349710 477 463 3.07% 0301
0.004035390 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0302
0.002540380 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0303
0.003473350 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0304
0.0027651 90 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0305
0.002742710 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0306
0.003046210 ________________ _____________ 3.07% 0307
0.003203580 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0308
0.002821400 _____________ 3.07% 0309
0.003630720 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0310
0.003057450 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0311
0.003619480 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0312
0.003271020 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0314
0.003057450 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0315
0.003608240 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0316
0.002821400 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0317
0.003507080 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0318
0.003046210 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0319
0.003271 020 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0320
0.003046210 ________________ _____________ 3.07% 0321
0.003540800 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0322
0.002821400 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0323
0.003529560 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0324
0.003046210 ________________ _____________ 3.07% 0325
0.003046210 _____________ 3.07% 0327
O.&UL!O!IL 3.07% 0329
0.003349710 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0401
0.004035390 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0402
0.002540380 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0403
0.003473350 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0404
0.002765190 ________________ _____________ 3.07% 0405
0.002742710 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0406
0.003046210 _____________ 3.07% 0407
0.003203580 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0408
0.002821400 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0409
0.003630720 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0410
0.003057450 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0411
0.003619480 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0412
0.003271020 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0414
0.003057450 _________________ _____________ 3.07% 0415
0.003608240 _____________ 3.07% 0416
0.002821400 402 390 3.07% 0417
0.003507080 500 485 3.07% 0418

443
390
502

436
516

423

466
501

436
452

514
423

402
499

500
390

434
485

466
421

434
452

505
421

402
490

503
390

434
488

434
425

421
421
412

477
575

463

362
558

495
351

394
480

391
382

434
457

379
421
443

402
518

390

436
502

516
423

466
501

436
452

514
423
499



434 421
466 452
434 421
505 490
402 390
503 488
434 421
434
425

421
412

477 463
575 558
362 351
495 480
394 382
881 855
434 421
402 390
518 502
436 423
516 501
466 452
436 423
514 499
402 390
500 485
434 421
466 452
434 421
505 490
402 390
503 488
434 421
434 421
425 412
477 463
575 558
362 351
495 480

419
420
421
422
423
424
425
427
429
501
502
503
504
505
506
507
509
510
511
512
514
515
516
517
518
519
520
521
522
523
524
525
527
529
601
602
603
604
605
606
607
609
610
611
612
614
615
616
617
618
619
620
621
622
623
624
625
627
629
701
702
703
704
705
706
707
708
709
710
711
712
714
715

0.003046210
0.003271020
0.003046210
0.003540800
0.002821400
0.003529560
0.003046210
0.003046210
0.002978770
O.oo34t1 0
0.004035390
0.002540380
0.003473350
0.002765190
0.006182350
0.003046210
0.002821400
0.003630720
0.003057450
0.003619480
0.003271020
0.003057450
0.003608240
0.002821400
0.003507080
0.003046210
0.003271020
0.003046210
0.003540800
0.002821400
0.003529560
0.003046210
0.003046210
0.002978770
0.003349710
0.004035390
0.002540380
0.003473350
0.002765190
0.006182350
0.003046210
0.002821400
0.003630720
0.003057450
0.003619480
0.003271020
0.003057450
0.003608240
0.002821400
0.003507080
0.003046210
0.003271020
0.003046210
0.003540800
0.002821400
0.003529560
0.003046210
0.003046210
0.002978770
0.003349710
0.004046630
0.002540380
0.003473350
0.0027651 9U
0.002742710
0.003046210
0.003203580
0.002821400
0.003630720
0.003057450
0.003619480
0.003271020
0.003057450

394

3.07% 0419
3.07% 0420
3.07% 0421
3.07% 0422
3.07% 0423
3.07% 0424
3.07% 0425
3.07% 0427
3.07% 0429
3.07% 0501
3.07% 0502
3.07% 0503
3.07% 0504
3.07% 0505
3.07% 0506
3.07% 0507
3.07% 0509
3.07% 0510
3.07% 0511
3.07% 0512
3.07% 0514
3.07% 0515
3.07% 0516
3.07% 0517
3.07% 0518
3.07% 0519
3.07% 0520
3.07% 0521
3.07% 0522
3.07% 0523
3.07% 0524
3.07% 0525
3.07% 0527
3.07% 0529
3.07% 0601
3.07% 0602
3.07% 0603
3.07% 0604
3.07% 0605
3.07% 0606
3.07% 0607
3.07% 0609
3.07% 0610
3.07% 0611
3.07% 0612
3.07% 0614
3.07% 0615
3.07% 0616
3.07% 0617
3.07% 0618
3.07% 0619
3.07% 0620
3.07% 0621
3.07% 0622
3.07% 0623
3.07% 0624
3.07% 0625
3.07% 0627
3.07% 0629
3.07% 0701
3.07% 0702
3.07% 0703
3.07% 0704
3.07% 0705
3.07% 0706
3.07% 0707
3.07% 0708
3.07% 0709
3.07% 0710
3.07% 0711
3.07% 0712
3.07% 0714
3.07% 0715

881
382
855

434 421
402 390
518 502
436 423
516 501
466 452
436 423
514 499
402 390
500 485
434 421
466 452
434 421
505 490
402 390
503 488
434 421
434 421
425 412
477 463
577 560
362 351
495
394

480
382

391 379
434 421
457 443
402 390
518 502
436 423
516 501
466 452
436 423



514 499
402 390
500 485
434 421
466 452
434 421
505 490
402 390
503 488
434 421
434 421
425 412
477 463
577 560
362 351

716
717
718
719
720
721
722
723
724
725
727
729
801
802
803
804
805
806
807
808
809
810
811
812
814
815
816
817
818
819
820
821
822
823
824
825
827
829
901
902
903
904
905
906
907
908
909
910
911
912
914
915
916
917
918
919
920
921
922
923
924
925
927
929
1001
1002
1003
1004
1005
1006
1007
1008
1009

0.003608240
0.002821400
0.003507080
0.003046210
0.003271020
0.003046210
0.003540800
0.002821400
0.003529560
0.003046210
0.003046210
0.002978770
0.003349710
0.004046630
0.002540380
0.003473350
0.002765190
0.002742710
0.003046210
0.003203580
0.002821400
0.003630720
0.003057450
0.003619480
0.003271020
0.003057450
0.003608240
0.002821400
0.003507080
0.003046210
0.003271020
0.003046210
0.003540800
0.002821400
0.003529560
0.003046210
0.003046210
0.002978770
0.003349710
0.004046630
0.002540380
0.003473350
0.002765190
0.002742710
0.003046210
0.003203580
0.002821400
0.003630720
0.003057450
0.003619480
0.003271020
0.003057450
0.003608240
0.002821400
0.003507080
0.003046210
0.003271020
0.003046210
0.003540800
0.002821400
0.003529560
0.003046210
0.003046210
O.(JUL7!O! ItJ
0.003349710
0.004046630
0.002540380
0.003473350
0.002765190
0.002742710
0.003046210
0.003203580
0.002821400

3.07% 0716
3.07% 0717
3.07% 0718
3.07% 0719
3.07% 0720
3.07% 0721
3.07% 0722
3.07% 0723
3.07% 0724
3.07% 0725
3.07% 0727
3.07% 0729
3.07% 0801
3.07% 0802
3.07% 0803
3.07% 0804
3.07% 0805
3.07% 0806
3.07% 0807
3.07% 0808
3.07% 0809
3.07% 0810
3.07% 0811
3.07% 0812
3.07% 0814
3.07% 0815
3.07% 0816
3.07% 0817
3.07% 0818
3.07% 0819
3.07% 0820
3.07% 0821
3.07% 0822
3.07% 0823
3.07% 0824
3.07% 0825
3.07% 0827
3.07% 0829
3.07% 0901
3.07% 0902
3.07% 0903
3.07% 0904
3.07% 0905
3.07% 0906
3.07% 0907
3.07% 0908
3.07% 0909
3.07% 0910
3.07% 0911
3.07% 0912
3.07% 0914
3.07% 0915
3.07% 0916
3.07% 0917
3.07% 0918
3.07% 0919
3.07% 0920
3.07% 0921
3.07% 0922
3.07% 0923
3.07% 0924
3.07% 0925
3.07% 0927
3.07% 0929
3.07% 1001
3.07% 1002
3.07% 1003
3.07% 1004
3.07% 1005
3.07% 1006
3.07% 1007
3.07% 1008
3.07% 1009

495 480
394 382
391 379
434 421
457 443
402 390
518 502
436 423
516 501
466 452
436 423
514 499
402 390
500 485
434 421
466 452
434 421
505 490
402 390
503 488
434 421
434 421
425 412
477 463
577 560
362 351
495 480
394 382
391 379
434 421
457 443
402 390
518 502
436 423
516 501
466 452
436 423
514 499
402 390
500 485
434 421
466 452
434 421
505 490
402 390
503 488
434 421
434 421
425 412
477 463
577 560
362 351
495 480
394 382
391 379
434 421
457
402

443
390



518 502
436 423
516 501
466 452
436 423
514 499
402 390
500 485
434 421
466 452
434 421
505 490
402 390
503 488
434 421
434
425

421
412

1010
1011
1012
1014
1015
1016
1017
1018
1019
1020
1021
1022
1023
1024
1025
1027
1029
1101
1102
1103
1104
1105
1106
1107
1108
1109
1110
1111
1112
1114
1115
1116
1117
1118
1119
1120
1121
1122
1123
1124
1125
1127
1129
1201
1202
1203
1204
1205
1207
1208
1209
1210
Ml 01

0.003630720
0.003057450
0.003619480
0.003271020
0.003057450
0.003608240
0.002821400
0.003507080
0.003046210
i.003Z71 020
0.003046210
0.003540800
0.002821400
0.003529560
0.003046210
0.003046210
0.002978770
0.003349710
0.004046630
0.002540380
0.003473350
0.002765190
0.002742710
0.003046210
0.003203580
0.002821400
0.003630720
0.003057450
0.003619480
0.003271020
0.003057450
0.003608240
0.002821400
0.003507080
0.003046210
0.003271020
0.003046210
0.003540800
0.002821400
0.003529560
0.003046210
0.003046210
0.002978770
0.008441710
0.003698170
0.003664440
0.005238130
0.007283930
0.007688590
0.006283510
0.005923810
0.006047460
0.025145270

3.07% 1010
3.07% 1011
3.07% 1012
3.07% 1014
3.07% 1015
3.07% 1016
3.07% 1017
3.07% 1018
3.07% 1019
3.07% 1020
3.07% 1021
3.07% 1022
3.07% 1023
3.07% 1024
3.07% 1025
3.07% 1027
3.07% 1029
3.07% 1101
3.07% 1102
3.07% 1103
3.07% 1104
3.07% 1105
3.07% 1106
3.07% 1107
3.07% 1108
3.07% 1109
3.07% 1110
3.07% 1111
3.07% 1112
3.07% 1114
3.07% 1115
3.07% 1116
3.07% 1117
3.07% 1118
3.07% 1119
3.07% 1120
3.07% 1121
3.07% 1122
3.07% 1123
3.07% 1124
3.07% 1125
3.07% 1127
3.07% 1129
3.07% 1201
3.07% 1202
3.07% 1203
3.07% 1204
3.07% 1205
3.07% 1207
3.07% 1208
3.07% 1209
3.07% 1210
3.07% MiOl

477 463
577 560
362 351
495 480
394 382
391 379
434 421
457 443
402 390
518 502
436 423
516 501
466 452
436 423
514 499
402 390
500 485
434 421
466 452
434 421
505 490
402 390
503 488
434 421
434 421
425 412

1,203 1,168
527 511
522 507
747

1.038
724

1,096 1,063
896

1.007

869
844 819
862

3,584
836

3,478

136,753 132,6891.000000000 3.06%



AOAU Palms at Waikiki
2015 Budget

Planned Revenue & Expenditures
Revenue

Subtotal

2015 BUDGET J

433,529

Utilities
Electricity

-

Water
Sewer
Gas
Diesel Fuel
TV a CabLe
TeLephone Repairs
TeLephone Expense
TeLephone Expense-ELevator
TeLephone Expense-Long Distance
Internet WebSite
High-Speed Internet

Subtotal

386,846
43,336
104,998
70,564

600
51,678
7,322
8,169

0
0

1,150
14,349

689,013

Maintenance Fees
—

1,376,896
625

0
—

668
2,768

Late fees
Owner Admin Fees
Owner Interest
Interest Earned Reserve Account
Space Rental 20,136
Long Distance Telephone 1,881

2,166
27,975

152

Vending
Laundry
Operating Interest Income

Total Revenue 1,433,267

General & Administrative
Management Fee 49,421
Accounting Fee 22,189
Audit Fees 2,000
Legal Fees 6,973
Prof Fees - Reserve Study 810
Bank Charges 0
Postage a Mail 1,371
Insurance 116,401
Office Equipment a Supplies 924
Meetings 500
General Excise Tax (GET) 2,862
Other Taxes a Fees 2,236
Training a Education 0
Bad Debt Expense 0
MisceLLaneous G a A 0

Subtotal 205,688

PayroLL & Benefits
Administrative Salary 64,784
Maintenance/Handyman SaLary 171,789
JanitoriaL/UtiLity Salary 132,058
Security Services 64,898



Building Maintenance
Elevator Maintenance 15,977
Lighting Repairs a Supplies 6,000
Life a Safety 10,845

General Maintenance a Repair 3,037
Asphalt Repair 0
Painting Supplies 3,479
Pool Maintenance a Supplies 2,002
Air conditioning Supplies 13,709
Ice Machine Repairs

—

997

Window cLeaning 350
common Area-Plumbing Repairs _________ 0
JanitonaL SuppLies 8,998

Laundry Expense 2,734
HaLLway 0
Maintenance Supplies :
Locks, Keys a Repairs
Door Repairs

-

Security Equipment Repairs 600
MisceLLaneous Maintenance a Repairs 0

Subtotal 1 76,064

Contract Services
Grounds Maint. a Landscaping 600
Door Mat cLeaning 0
chiller Maintenance 13,788
UtiLity Reimbursement -14,552
Trash & Refuse RemovaL

-
22,856

Pest control 6,281
Subtotal 28,973

TOTALS

Monthly Planned Revenue
—

1,433,267
Monthly Planned Expenditures

—
1,433,267

YTD Planned Expenditures 1,433,267
Planned Net Operation Surplus/(Deficit) 0
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BYLAWS OF
THE ASSOCIATION OF APARTMENT OWNERS

OF

PALMS AT WAIKIKI

LAEROC WAIKIKI PARKSIDE, LLC, a Hawaii limited liability company (the “Developer”), owner of
the land described in Exhibit “A” to the Declaration of Condominium Property Regime of Palms at Waikiki of even
date herewith, which Declaration is recorded in the Office of the Registrar of the Land Court of the State of Hawaii
as Document No. I 5L2LQ1I with Condominium Map No. I (J7 4 , and duly noted on Land Court
Certificate of Title No. 589,819, as the same may be amended from time to time (“Declaration”), hereby submits the
condominium property regime described in said Declaration to the following Bylaws of the Association of
Apartment Owners ofPalms at Waikiki (“Bylaws”).

ARTICLE I

iNTRODUCTORY PROVISIONS

Section 1. AUTHORITY FOR BYLAWS. The Developer, acting as the present Association of
Apartment Owners of the Project, hereby approves and adopts these Bylaws pursuant to the Act. The Bylaws of the
Project are subject to the laws of the State of Hawaii, including but not limited to: Chapter 5 14A, Hawaii Revised
Statutes (“Act”), and the Hawaii Administrative Rules, Title 16, Chapter 107, as the same are amended.

Section 2. PURPOSE OF BYLAWS; COVENANTS TO RUN WITH THE LAND. The Land
and the Improvements are held and shall be held, conveyed, hypothecated, encumbered, leased, rented, used,
occupied and improved subject to the following Bylaws, all of which are declared and agreed to be in furtherance of
the plan set forth in the Declaration, to constitute a condominium property regime under the Act and for the
purposes of enhancing and perfecting the value, desirability and attractiveness of the Project. These Bylaws shall
run with the Land and Apartments, shall constitute equitable servitudes and liens, and shall be binding upon all
parties having or acquiring any right, title or interest therein.

Section 3. DEFINITIONS. The terms used herein with initial capital letters shall have the
meanings given to them in Article I of the foregoing Declaration, except as expressly otherwise provided herein.

Section 4. CONFLICTS These Bylaws are set forth to comply with the requirements of the Act.
In any case where any of these Bylaws conflicts with the provisions of the Act or the Declaration, the provisions of
the Act or the Declaration, as the case may be, shall control.

Section 5. BINDING EFFECT OF BYLAWS ON OWNERS, MORTGAGEES AND
LESSEES. All present and future Owners, mortgagees, vendors and vendees under Agreements of Sale, tenants
and occupants of Apartments and their employees, business invitees and any other persons who may use any part of
the Project in any manner are subject to these Bylaws, the Declaration and the House Rules. The acceptance of an
Apartment Deed, or conveyance or mortgage or Agreement of Sale or the entering into of a lease or the act of
occupancy of an Apartment shall constitute an acceptance, ratification and agreement to comply with the provisions
of these Bylaws, the House Rules and the Declaration, as the same may be amended from time to time.

ARTICLE II

ASSOCIATION OF OWNERS

Section 1. PURPOSE AND VOTING. The Association shall be organized and operated for the
purposes of managing, maintaining, acquiring, constructing and caring for the Association property, which includes
the Common Elements, funds and other property held by the Association or the nominee of the Association,
property owned in common by one (1) or more Apartment Owners, but held by the Association, property within or
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forming part of the Project privately held by one (1) or more Apartment Owners, but which may be subject to a
common maintenance assessment by the Association for such purposes as insurance, and property owned by a
government agency, public utility or other third party and used for the benefit of the Association or one (1) or more
Apartment Owners. Each Apartment Owner shall be a member of the Association and shall be entitled to that
percentage of the total vote of all of the Apartment Owners which equals the percentage of the Common Interest
appurtenant to such Apartment as set forth in the Declaration. Votes may be cast in person or by proxy by the
respective Apartment Owners. The vendee of an Apartment pursuant to an Agreement of Sale recorded at the Office
of the Assistant Registrar of the Land Court of the State of Hawaii shall have the right to vote unless the vote is
retained by the vendor as may be provided in said Agreement of Sale pursuant to Section 514A-83 of the Act. An
executor, administrator, personal representative, guardian or trustee may vote in person or by proxy at any meeting
of the Association the percentage of vote for any Apartment owned or controlled by him in such capacity, provided
that he shall first present evidence satisfactory to the Secretary that he owns or controls such Apartment in such
capacity not later than the commencement of the meeting. The vote for any Apartment owned of record by two (2)
or more persons may be exercised by any one of them present at any meeting in the absence of protest by the other
or others, and in case of protest each co-tenant shall be entitled to only a share of such vote in proportion to his share
of ownership in such Apartment. Corporations, general partnerships, limited partnerships and limited liability
companies which are Owners shall designate a general partner, officer, member or manager, as appropriate, for the
purpose of exercising the vote; and such representative of an Owner which is a corporation, general partnership,
limited partnership or limited liability company shall present satisfactory written evidence to the Secretary of their
designation as representative not later than the commencement of the meeting.

Section 2. QUORUM. Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the presence in person or by
proxy of a Majority of Apartment Owners (defmed in Section 4. below) shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of
the Apartment Owners; provided that unless one-third (1/3) or more of the voting power is present in person or by
proxy, the only matters that may be voted upon at an annual or regular meeting are those matters described in the
meeting notice.

Section 3. MAJORITY VOTE. The vote of a majority of the Common Interest present or
represented at a meeting at which a quorum shall be present shall be binding upon all Apartment Owners for all
purposes, except where a higher percentage vote is required in the Declaration or these Bylaws or by law.

Section 4. MAJORITY OF APARTMENT OWNERS. As used in these Bylaws, the term
“Majority of Apartment Owners” shall mean the Owners of Apartments to which are appurtenant more than fifty
percent (50%) of the total Common Interest, and any specified percentage of the Owners means Owners of
Apartments to which are appurtenant such percentage of the Common Interest.

Section 5. CUMULATIVE VOTING. Election of Directors shall be by cumulative voting and
each Owner may cast for any one or more nominees to the Board a vote equivalent to the votes which such Owner is
entitled to multiplied by the number of Directors to be elected. Each Owner shall be entitled to cumulate his votes
and give all thereof to one nominee or to distribute his votes in such manner as he shall determine among any or all
of the nominees, and the nominees receiving the highest number of votes on the foregoing basis, up to the total
number of Directors to be elected, shall be deemed elected. Meeting notices must specify whether cumulative
voting will be exercised at the meeting.

Section 6. PROXIES AND PLEDGES. The authority given by any Apartment Owner to another
person to represent said Owner at meetings of the Association shall be in writing, signed by the Owner, and must be
delivered to the Secretary of the Association or the Managing Agent, if any, no later than 4:30 p.m. on the second
business day prior to the date of the meeting to which it pertains. The proxy must contain at least (i) the name of the
Association, (ii) the date of the meeting of the Association, (iii) the printed name and signature of the Owner giving
the proxy, (iv) the Apartment or Apartments for which the proxy is given, and (v) the date that the proxy is given.

The proxy shall also contain a checkbox wherein the Owner may indicate that the proxy is either (i) given
for quorum purposes only, (ii) given to an individual whose name is printed on a line next to the box, (iii) given to
the Board as a whole and that the vote be made on the basis of the majority of the Board, or (iv) given to those
Directors present at the meeting and that the vote is to be shared with each Board member receiving an equal
percentage. Proxy forms given to the Board which are not so marked shall be considered a choice by the Owner that
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the vote may be made on a basis of the preference of the majority of the Board. All proxies shall only be valid for
the meeting to which the proxy pertains and its adjoumments, may designate any person as proxy and may be
limited as the Apartment Owner desires and indicates; provided that no proxy shall be irrevocable unless coupled
with a financial interest in the Apartment. Voting rights transferred or pledged by mortgage, deed of trust,
agreement of sale or lease of any Apartment or interest therein, a true copy of which is filed with the Board through
the Secretary or Managing Agent, shall be exercised only by the person designated in such instrument until the
written release or other termination thereof is filed with the Board in like manner. Nothing in this Section shall
affect the holder of any proxy under a first mortgage of record encumbering an Apartment or under an Agreement of
Sale affecting an Apartment. The Managing Agent shall not solicit, for use by such Managing Agent, any proxies
from any Apartment Owner, nor shall the Managing Agent cast any proxy vote at any Association meeting except
for the purpose of establishing a quorum. No board of directors or member of the Board shall use Association funds
to solicit proxies except for the distribution ofproxies as set forth in Section 5 14A-84(b)(4) of the Act, provided that
this shall not prevent an individual member of the Board from soliciting proxies as an apartment owner under
Section 5 14A-82(b)(4) of the Act.

Proxies shall be revoked by writing filed with the Secretary or by the attendance of an Owner at the
meeting. Any one of two or more persons and/or entities owning any Apartment may give or revoke a proxy for the
entire vote of such Apartment or, if so specified in the proxy, for a share of such vote in proportion to the share of
ownership of the person and/or entities giving such proxy. Any proxy given by a cotenant or cotenants for only a
share of an Apartment’s vote in proportion to the share of ownership of such cotenant or cotenants shall be revocable
only by such cotenant or cotenants. Any proxy given by a cotenant or cotenants for only a share of an Apartment’s
vote may be exercised to cast the entire vote for such Apartment in the absence of protest by another cotenant or the
holder of a proxy from another cotenant, and, in case of such protest, each cotenant or holder of a proxy from a
cotenant, as the case may be, shall be entitled to only a share of such Apartment’s vote in proportion to the
respective shares of ownership in such Apartment.

A copy, facsimile telecommunication or other reliable reproduction of a proxy may be used in lieu of the
original proxy for any and all purposes for which the original proxy could be used; provided that any copy, facsimile
telecommunication or other reproduction shall be a complete reproduction of the entire original proxy.

Section 7. PLACE OF MEETINGS. All meetings of the Association shall be held at such place
within the Project, or elsewhere within the State, as may be designated by the Board.

Section 8. ANNUAL MEETINGS. The first annual meeting of the Apartment Owners shall be
held not later than one hundred eighty (180) days after recordation of the first Apartment Deed, provided that
Apartment Deeds for not less than forty percent (40%) of the Apartments in the Project have been recorded at said
Land Court. If Apartment Deeds for -less than forty percent (40%) of the Apartments in the Project shall not have
been recorded within one (1) year of the recordation of the first Apartment Deed, an annual meeting shall be called
upon the written request of ten percent (10%) of the Apartment Owners. The terms “recorded” and “recordation”
shall mean and refer to the recordation of Apartment Deeds transferring the Apartments to an Owner. At such
meeting the Apartment Owners shall elect a Board. Prior to that time, the Association shall consist solely of the
Developer which shall have authority to act in all matters as the Association. Thereafter, the annual meetings of the
Association shall be held within ninety (90) days following the close of the fiscal year as selected by the Board or
the Association or at such other time as the Board shall from time to time determine. At such meetings the Board
shall be elected by the Apartment Owners in accordance with the requirements of Article III, Section 1. of these
Bylaws. The Apartment Owners may transact such other business at such meetings as may properly come before
them.

Section 9. REGULAR MEETiNGS. In addition to annual meetings as provided in Section 8. of
this Article II, the Board by resolution or a Majority of the Apartment Owners by petition may establish regular
meetings at semi-annual, quarter-annual, or other regular intervals.

Section 10. SPECIAL MEETINGS. Special meetings of the Owners of the Apartments may be
held at any time upon the call of the President or of any three (3) Directors, or by a petition to the Secretary signed
by not less than twenty-five percent (25%) of Owners as shown on the Association’s record of ownership, and
except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws or by law, the business considered shall be limited to that stated in the
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notice of the special meeting. Upon receipt of such call or petition, the Secretary shall send written notice of the
meeting to all Apartment Owners in the manner provided in Section 11. below. In the event that the Secretary shall
fail to send out notices for the specific meeting within fourteen (14) days of receipt of any petition to have such
meeting, the petitioner(s) calling for the meeting may send them in accordance with the provisions for such notice
contained in these Bylaws. The meeting shall be held at the time and place specified in such call, or if unspecified,
at any reasonable time within forty-five (45) days from the date the call was received. A special meeting and
procedures adopted for the removal and replacement of Directors shall be conducted in accordance with Article III,
Section 5. of these Bylaws pertaining to the removal, replacement and election ofDirectors.

Section 11. NOTICE OF MEETINGS AND OTHER NOTICES. Written notice of all meetings,
annual or special, stating the date, time and place of the meeting and whether it is annual or special, and stating
briefly the business proposed to be transacted thereat and items on the agenda for such meeting, together with a
standard proxy form authorized by the Association, if any, and any other notices permitted or required to be
delivered by these Bylaws, shall be given by mailing such notice(s) and form, postage prepaid, or by facsimile,
electronic mail or in person, at least fourteen (14) days but not more than thirty (30) days before the date assigned
for the meeting, to the Owners of the Apartments at their address at the Project or at the address given to the Board
for the purpose of service of such notices. Upon written request for notices delivered to the Board, the holder of any
duly recorded mortgage or deed of trust from any Owner of an Apartment may obtain a copy of any and all notices
permitted or required to be given to the Owner of an Apartment, whose interest is subject to said mortgage or deed
of trust. Upon notice being given in accordance with the provisions hereof, the failure of any Owner of an
Apartment to receive actual notice of any meeting shall not in any way invalidate the meeting or proceedings
thereat. The presence of any Apartment Owner or mortgagee in person or by proxy at any meeting shall be deemed
a waiver of any required notice to such Owner unless he shall at the opening thereof object to the holding of such
meeting because of the failure to give notice in accordance with the provisions hereof. Each such Owner shall keep
the Board informed of any changes in address.

Section 12. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETINGS. If any meeting of Apartment Owners cannot be
held because a quorum is not present, a majority in Common Interest of those Apartment Owners who are present at
such meeting, either in person or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting to a time not less than forty-eight (48) hours
from the time the original meeting was called as may be determined by majority vote of the Apartment Owners
present, without notice other than the announcement at such meeting. At any such adjourned meeting at which a
quorum is present, any business may be transacted which might have been transacted by a quorum at the meeting as
originally called.

Section 13. CONDUCT OF MEETINGS AN]) ORDER OF BUSINESS. All meetings of the
Association shall be conducted in accordance with the most current edition ofRobert’s Rules of Order. The order of
business at all regular meetings of theApartment Owners shall be as follows:

(a) Roll call;

(b) Proof ofnotice ofmeeting;

(c) Reading ofminutes ofpreceding meeting;

(d) Reports ofOfficers;

(e) Report ofBoard;

(f) Reports of committees;

(g) Election of inspectors of election (when so required);

(h) Election ofmembers of the Board (when so required);

(i) Unfmished business; and
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(j) New business.

ARTICLE III

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. NUMBER AND QUALIFICATION. The affairs of the Project shall be governed by a
Board of Directors who shall owe a fiduciary duty to the Association. There shall be an initial Board of Directors
consisting of three (3) initial Directors appointed by the Developer. The initial Board shall be replaced by a Board
comprised of five (5) persons elected at the first annual meeting of the Apartment Owners. Each member of the
Board shall be an Owner, co-Owner, a spouse of an Owner, a vendee under Agreement of Sale, designated general
partner, officer, member or manager, or trustee, of an Owner which is a corporation, general partnership or limited
partnership, limited liability company, or a trust, respectively, or a designated agent of the Developer. There shall
not be more than one representative on the Board from any one Apartment. No employee of the Managing Agent
shall serve on the Board. So long as the Developer owns at least one (1) Apartment in the Project, to the extent
permitted by applicable law, Developer has the right, but not the obligation, to appoint one (1) Director to the Board.

Section 2. POWERS AND DUTIES. The Board shall have the powers and duties necessary for the
administration of the affairs of the Project in compliance with all governmental requirements and the Declaration,
and for the maintenance, upkeep and repair of the Project in good order and condition, and may do all such acts and
things except as by law or by the Declaration or by these Bylaws may not be delegated to the Board by the
Apartment Owners. The Board shall have all rights set forth in the Act subject to any and all approval requirements
as set forth in the Act, the Declaration and these Bylaws. A Director shall not cast any proxy vote at any Board
meeting, nor shall a Director vote at any Board meeting on any issue in which the Director has a conflict of interest.
The Director shall disclose the nature of the conflict of interest prior to a vote at the Board meeting, and the minutes
of the meeting shall record the fact that a disclosure was made. Ownership and use of an Apartment by a Director
for the purposes permitted by the Declaration and these Bylaws do not, by themselves, create a conflict of interest.
Subject to the terms of the Declaration, the powers and duties of the Board shall include, but shall not be limited to,
the following:

(a) Enforcing the provisions of the Declaration, these Bylaws and the House Rules;

(b) Payment of any amount necessary to discharge any lien or encumbrance levied
against the entire Project or any part thereof which may in the opinion of the Board constitute a lien against the
Project or against the Common Elements or Limited Common Elements rather than merely against the interest
therein ofparticular Owners. If one or more Owners are responsible for the existence of any such lien, they shall be

severally liable for the cost of discharging it and for the costs incurred by the Board by reason of such -

lien;

(c) Delegating its powers to committees, agents, officers, representatives and
employees; provided that such committees are not allowed to I) authorize distributions; 2) approve or recommend to
members dissolution, merger or the sale, pledge or transfer of all or substantially all of the Association’s assets; 3)
elect or appoint or remove directors or fill vacancies on the Board or any of its committees; or 4) adopt, amend, or
repeal the articles of incorporation or Bylaws.

(d) Purchasing materials, supplies, furniture, labor and services, making repairs and
structural alterations, and payment of all insurance premiums, taxes and assessments and other Common Expenses
which the Board is required to secure, make or pay pursuant to these Bylaws or by law or which in its opinion shall
be necessary or proper for the operation of the buildings in which the Apartments are located as apartment buildings
or the enforcement of these Bylaws, provided that if any such materials, supplies, furniture, labor, services, repairs,
structural alterations, insurance, taxes or assessments are required because of the particular actions or negligence of
the Owners ofparticular Apartments, the cost thereof shall be specially assessed to the Owners of such Apartments;

(e) Contracting for fire, casualty, liability and other insurance on behalf of the
Association, pursuant to the provisions of Article VII hereof
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(f) Operation, care, upkeep, maintenance and repair of the Common Elements and
any additions or alterations thereto;

(g) Preparation and adoption annually of a budget of the Common Expenses
required for the affairs of the Association in compliance with Section 5 14A-83.6 of the Act and Chapter 107, Hawaii
Administrative Rules (including, without limitation, the operation and maintenance of the Project in accordance with
the Declaration and these Bylaws), and determination of the amounts of regular and special assessments;

(h) Custody and control of all funds of the Association, maintenance of full and
accurate books of account and records of such funds and preparation of regular financial reports thereof;

(i) Exercising a right of entry in or upon any privately owned Apartment at any
time and from time to time during reasonable hours and without liability to any Owner for trespass, damage or
otherwise, but only where necessary (in connection with construction, maintenance or repair) to protect the Common
Elements, Limited Common Elements, or any Apartment or Apartments; provided that the Board shall have a right
of entry in the event of emergencies pursuant to Section 5 14A-1 3(f) of the Act;

(j) Maintenance and repair of any Apartment when such maintenance or repair is
necessary, in the discretion of the Board, to protect the Common Elements and Limited Common Elements or any
other portion of the buildings and the Owner or Owners of said Apartment shall have failed or refused to perform
said maintenance or repair within a reasonable time after written notice of the necessity of said maintenance or
repair is delivered by the Board to said Owner or Owners; provided that the Board shall levy a special assessment
against such Apartment for the cost of such maintenance or repair and any attorneys’ fees and other expenses
incurred in levying or collecting such special assessment;

(k) Making a determination of the Common Expenses and special assessments
required for the affairs of the Project, including, without limitation, the operation and maintenance of the Project;

(I) Levy and collection of regular and special assessments of the Common
Expenses and other charges payable by the Apartment Owners;

(m) Employment and dismissal of the personnel necessary for the maintenance,
operation, repair and replacement of the Common Elements, provided that an Owner shall not act as an officer of an
association and an employee of the Managing Agent employed by the Association;

(n) Subject to the provisions of Article X, Section 1. of these Bylaws, adoption and
amendment of House Rules covering the details of the operation and useof the Common Elements of the Project
and the enforcement of those House Rules;

(o) Opening bank accounts on behalf of the Association and designating the
signatories required therefor;

(p) To the extent permitted by law, purchasing or leasing or otherwise acquiring in
the name of the Board or its designee, corporate or otherwise, on behalf of all Apartment Owners, Apartments
offered for sale or lease for use by a person or persons engaged in the operation, repair or maintenance of the
Project, but only with prior approval of Apartment Owners owning not less than sixty-five percent (65%) of the
Common Interests provided, however, that the purchase of the first such Apartment by the Association shall require
only Board approval. The expense of any leasing, acquiring, maintaining or operation of any such Apartment by the
Board shall be a Common Expense;

(q) To the extent permitted by law, purchasing Apartments at foreclosure or other
judicial sales in the name of the Board or its designee, corporate or otherwise, on behalf of all Apartment Owners;

(r) To the extent permitted by law, selling (including entering into listing
agreements with real estate brokers), leasing, subleasing, mortgaging, voting the votes appurtenant to (other than for
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the election of members of the Board), or otherwise dealing with Apartments acquired by the Board or its designee,
corporate or otherwise, on behalf of all Apartment Owners;

(s) Organizing corporations to act as designees of the Board in acquiring title to or
leasing of Apartments on behalf of all Apartment Owners;

(t) Making additions and improvements to or alterations of the Project and repairs
to and restoration of the Project in accordance with the other provisions of these Bylaws and the Declaration;

(u) To the extent permitted by law, the Board may borrow funds from time to time
on behalf of the Association for (i) the repair, replacement, maintenance, operation or administration of the Common
Elements of the Project, (ii) the purchase of property, (iii) the making of repairs, additions, alterations or
improvements to the Project, or (iv) for such other purpose or purposes as the Board may determine in its reasonable
discretion;

(v) Procuring legal, financial consulting, real estate brokerage, and accounting
services, including opinions of counsel necessary or proper in the operation of the Project or enforcement or
implementation of the Declaration, these Bylaws, the House Rules and any other material documents affecting the
Project;

(w) Representing the Apartment Owners in any proceedings, negotiations,
settlements or agreements related to the allocation of any losses, awards or proceeds from the condemnation,
destruction or liquidation of all or part of the Project, or from the termination of the Project;

(x) Paying for all Common Expenses which the Board is required to pay for
pursuant to the terms of these Bylaws or by law, or which in the Board’s opinion shall be necessary or proper for the
operation of the Project or for the enforcement of these Bylaws, provided that if any such payment is required
because of the particular actions or negligence of the Owners of particular Apartments, the cost thereof shall be
specially assessed to the Owners of such Apartments;

(y) Appointing a Managing Agent and delegating to it such of its powers as it deems
necessary or appropriate, delegation of which is not otherwise prohibited herein or in the Declaration or by law;

(z) Keeping, or causing the Managing Agent to keep, an accurate and current list of
members of the Association and their current addresses, and the names and addresses of the vendees under

- -
Agreements of Sale, if any, as provided in Article X, Section 18. of these Bylaws;

(aa) Maintaining an accurate and current file of all Apartment Deeds and
Agreements of Sale for resolution of such questions as ownership and voting rights;

(bb) Reviewing for the purpose of approval or disapproval of any Apartment Owner’s
requests to alter their respective Apartments;

(cc) Appointing an administrator, who shall have the authority to receive mail,
including oversized parcels, for and on behalf of Apartment Owners and occupants of Apartments in the Project;

(dd) Giving to all persons having any interest in any Apartment according to the
Association’s record of ownership or book of mortgages on Apartments, notice of delinquency exceeding thirty (30)
days in the payment of any assessment against such Apartment;

(ee) Establishment of such penalties and fmes as it deems appropriate with respect to
enforcement of the provisions of the Declaration, these Bylaws and the House Rules, including penalties and fmes
for failure or refusal to pay to the Association on demand all costs and expenses required to be paid hereunder;
provided such penalties and fines are not inconsistent with the law or the provisions herein. The unpaid amount of
such penalties and fmes against any Apartment Owner shall constitute a lien against its Apartment which may be
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foreclosed by the Board or Managing Agent in the same manner as provided herein and in the Act for Common
Expenses; provided, however, that the said lien for such penalties and fmes shall be subordinate to liens for taxes
and assessments lawfully imposed by governmental authority against the Apartment and to all sums unpaid on
mortgages of record;

(fi) Granting permits and licenses for, and easements for utility, roadway and other
purposes over, under or upon the Common Elements, as necessary for the operation of the Project; and

(gg) Receiving easements in favor of the Association as necessary for the operation
of the Project.

Section 3. MANAGING AGENT.

(a) The Board shall employ a responsible Managing Agent duly qualified to act as a
Managing Agent under the requirements of the Act to manage and operate the Project, subject at all times to
direction by the Board, with such administrative functions and powers as shall be delegated to said Managing Agent
by the Board; provided that if the Developer or an affiliate of the Developer acts as the first Managing Agent, the
term of any such management contract shall be limited to a duration of one (1) year, and such management contract
shall be subject to termination by either party thereto on not more than sixty (60) days’ written notice and shall not
require the payment of any termination penalty by the Association. No Association employee shall engage in selling
or renting Apartments in the Project unless approved by an affirmative vote of sixty-five percent (65%) of the
membership.

(b) The Managing Agent shall have such powers and duties as may be necessary or
proper in connection with (i) supervision of the immediate management and operation of the Project, (ii)
maintenance, repair, replacement and restoration of the Common Elements and any additions or alteration thereto;
(iii) purchase, maintenance and replacement of any equipment, (iv) employment, supervision and dismissal of such
personnel as it deems necessary for the maintenance and operation of the Project, (v) contracting with others for the
furnishing of such services as it deems proper for the Project, (vi) preparation of a proposed budget and schedule of
assessments, (vii) collection of assessments, and payment of bills to third parties, (viii) overseeing the purchase of
such insurance as is contemplated by these Bylaws and/or by the Declaration, (ix) custody and control of all funds of
the Association and the maintenance of books and records with respect thereto, and (x) the preparation and filing of
financial reports (y) filing of any other applications or reports that may be required by governmental and nongovernmental

entities.

(c) The Board may, in its discretion, limit any of the powers herein granted to the
Managing Agent or grant additional powers to the Managing Agent.

(d) Upon written request of any Apartment Owner or the holder, insurer or
guarantor of a mortgage of an interest in any Apartment and upon payment of a reasonable charge therefor, the
Managing Agent shall deliver to such party a certified statement of the status of the account of such Apartment.

(e) The Managing Agent, subject to the direction of the Board, may represent the
Apartment Owners or any two or more Apartment Owners similarly situated, as a class, in any action, suit, hearing,
or other proceeding concerning the Apartment Owners, the Common Elements, or more than one (1) Apartment, or
the Association, and on its or their behalf may institute, defend, intervene in, prosecute and settle any such actions,
suits and proceedings, without prejudice to the rights of any Apartment Owner individually to appear, sue or be
sued.

(f) The Managing Agent shall be required to maintain fidelity bond coverage for its
officers, employees and agents handling or responsible for funds of, or administered on behalf of, the Association.
Such fidelity bonds shall name the Association as an obligee. The bonds shall contain waivers by the issuers of the
bonds of all defenses based upon the exclusion of persons serving without compensation from the definition of
“employees,” or similar terms or expressions. The bonds shall provide that they may not be canceled or
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substantially modified (including cancellation for non-payment of premium) without at least ten (10) days’ prior
written notice to the Association.

(g) The Managing Agent shall also maintain at its office a current and accurate copy
of the Declaration, Bylaws, House Rules and all public reports for the Project as well as a copy of the form of the
first conveyance document from the Developer. Copies of these documents will be made available to Owners,
prospective buyers and their respective agents during normal business hours, upon payment to the Managing Agent
of a reasonable charge to defray any administrative or duplication costs. If the Project at any time is not managed by
a Managing Agent, the foregoing requirements shall be undertaken by a person or entity, if any, employed by the
Association, to whom this function shall be delegated.

Section 4. ELECTION AND TERM OF OFFICE. At the first annual meeting of Apartment
Owners five (5) Directors shall be elected for a term of two (2) years and four (4) Directors shall be elected for a
term of one (1) year. At the expiration of the term of office of each initial Director, his successor shall be elected to
serve a term of two (2) years. Each Director shall continue to exercise the powers and duties of the office until his
successor shall have been elected by the Apartment Owners in case of delay in the election of a successor. No
Director who uses Association funds to solicit proxies shall cast any of these proxy votes for the election or
reelection of Directors at any Association meetings unless the proxy form specifically authorizes the Director to vote
for the election or reelection of Directors and the Board first posts notice of its intent to solicit proxies in prominent
locations within the Project at least thirty (30) days prior to its solicitation of proxies; provided that if the Board
receives within seven (7) days of the posted notice a request by any Owner for use of Association funds to solicit
proxies accompanied by a statement, which shall not exceed one hundred (100) words and indicating the Owner’s
qualifications to serve on the Board and the reasons for wanting to receive proxies, the Board shall either:

(a) Mail to all Owners a proxy form containing either the names of all Owners who
have requested the use of Association funds for soliciting proxies accompanied by their statements; or

(b) Mail to all Owners a proxy form containing no names, but accompanied by a list
ofnames of all Owners who have requested the use of Association funds for soliciting proxies and their statements.

Section 5. REMOVAL OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD. Directors may be removed at any
time with or without cause upon a vote of the Apartment Owners at any regular or special meeting at which a
quorum shall be present, called for such purpose; provided, however that upon any such removal, at the same
meeting at which the removal occurs, the Association shall elect a successor for the remainder of the term of the
Director who was removed. If such removal and replacement is to occur at a special Association meeting, the call
for such meeting shall be as set forth in Section 10. of Article II; provided, however, that if the Secretary or
Managing Agent shall fail to send out the notices for the special meeting as set forth therein, then the petitioners
therein shall have the authority to set the time, date and place for the special meeting for the purpose of said removal
and replacement and to send out notices in accordance with Section 11. of Article II above. Except as otherwise
provided in this paragraph, any such meeting and the procedure adopted for the removal and replacement of
Directors shall be conducted in accordance with all applicable requirements and procedures contained in these
Bylaws for the removal and replacement of Directors including, but not limited to, the provisions contained herein
regarding cumulative voting. Any Director whose removal is proposed by the Apartment Owners shall be given an
opportunity to be heard at the meeting. In addition, if any Director shall fail to attend four (4) consecutive regular
meetings of the Board for any reason, the Board by a vote of a majority of the other Directors may remove him and
select a replacement to serve for the remainder of his unexpired term.

Section 6. VACANCIES. Vacancies in the Board caused by any reason other than the natural
expiration of the term of any Director, or the removal of a Board member by a vote of the Apartment Owners, shall
be filled by a vote of a majority of the remaining Directors at a special meeting of the Board held for that purpose
promptly after the occurrence of any such vacancy, or at the next regular meeting, even though the Directors present
at such meeting may constitute less than a quorum, and each person so elected shall be a Director for the remainder
of the term of the member whose vacancy he filled (unless sooner removed) and until a successor shall be elected at
the next annual meeting of Apartment Owners. A vacancy will be deemed to occur upon the death, mental
incapacity, or voluntary resignation of any Director, or upon such person ceasing to have the qualifications for a
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Director as defmed in Article III, Section 1., or, at the discretion of the Board, as provided in Article III, Section 5.
above.

Section 7. ORGANIZATIONAL MEETiNG AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS. The first
meeting of the Board shall be held immediately after the first annual meeting of the Apartment Owners and no
notice shall be necessary to the newly elected members of the Board in order legally to constitute such meeting,
provided that a majority of the whole Board shall be present thereat. At such meeting, the Board shall elect the
officers of the Association for the ensuing year.

All meetings of the Board (whether organizational, regular or special) shall be conducted in accordance
with the most current edition of Robert’s Rules of Order. The Association shall provide each Director with a current
copy of the Declaration, Bylaws, House Rules and the Act. Minutes of all meetings shall include the recorded vote
of each Director on all motions, except motions voted on in executive session.

Section 8. REGULAR MEETINGS. Regular meetings of the Board may be held at such time and
place as shall be determined from time to time by a majority of the Directors of the Board, but at least one (1) such
meeting shall be held during each calendar year. Notice of regular meetings of the Board shall be given to each
Director of the Board personally or by first class mail, facsimile or electronic mail at least fourteen (14) business
days, if practicable, prior to the day named for such meeting. Notice of all meetings of the Board shall be posted at
two (2) or more prominent locations by the Managing Agent or a member of the Board within the Project seventy-
two (72) hours prior to the meeting or, at the same time that notice is given to Directors.

Section 9. BOARD MEETINGS OPEN TO OWNERS. With the exception of executive sessions,
all meetings of the Board shall be open to all members of the Association, and Association members who are not on
the Board may participate in any deliberation or discussion unless a majority of a quorum of the Board determines
that such non-Directors shall not so participate in the meeting.

Section 10. EXECUTIVE SESSION. The Board, with the approval of a majority of a quorum of
the Directors, may adjourn a meeting and reconvene in private in executive session to discuss and vote upon
personnel matters, collection actions contemplated or ongoing, individual rule enforcement against an Apartment
Owner, response to claims or contemplated or ongoing litigation in which the Association is or may become
involved. The nature of any and all business to be considered in executive session shall first be announced in open
session.

Section 11. SPECIAL MEETINGS. Special meetings of the Board may be called by the President
on three (3) business days’ notice to each Director of the Board, given personally or by mail, facsimile transmission
or electronic mail transmission (which notice shall state the time, place and purpose of the meeting), and on posting

- -

of notice, if practicable, as provided in Section 8. of this Article III. Special meetings of the Board shall be called by
the President or Secretary in like manner and on like notice, if practicable, on the written request of at least two (2)
Directors of the Board. Notwithstanding anything in these Bylaws to the contrary, to the extent permitted by
applicable law, the Developer, when acting as the Board as provided in Article I, Section 1., may act without a
formal meeting and without call or notice.

Section 12. WAIVER OF NOTICE. Any Director of the Board may at any time waive notice of
any meeting of the Board in writing, and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.
Attendance by a Director at any meeting of the Board shall constitute a waiver of notice by him of the time and
place thereof. If all the Directors of the Board are present at any meeting of the Board, no notice shall be required
and any business may be transacted at such meeting.

Section 13. MEETINGS BY PRONE OR WRITTEN CONSENT. Provided that all requirements
of notice as provided herein have been complied with (or that the same have been waived or provided herein) and
provided further that the provisions contained herein for meetings of the Board to be open to Apartment Owners
have been complied with, the Board may conduct meetings by telephone or by unanimous decision in writing signed
by all Board members.
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Section 14. QUORUM OF BOARD. At all meetings of the Board, a majority of the members
thereof shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the votes of a majority of the members of the
Board present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the decision of the Board. If at any meeting
of the Board there shall be less than a quorum present, a majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from
time to time. At any such adjourned meeting at which a quorum is present, any business which might have been
transacted at the meeting originally called, may be transacted without further notice.

Section 15. FIDELITY BONDS. The Board shall obtain a fidelity bond covering the acts of the
Managing Agent and all members of the Board, trustees, officers, employees and volunteers of the Association
handling or responsible for handling funds belonging to or administered by the Association, naming the Association
as obligee and providing coverage in an amount not less than one and one half times the estimated operating
expenses and reserve of the Association or the minimum amount required under the Act (i.e., $500.00 multiplied by
the number of Apartments in the Project), whichever is greater; provided that the amount of any such bond shall not
be less than $20,000.00 nor greater than $100,000.00. The Association shall provide evidence of the fidelity bond to
the Real Estate Commission of the State of Hawaii upon request. The premiums on such bond shall constitute a
Common Expense. The Managing Agent shall likewise obtain a fidelity bond in the amount required by the Act and
shall provide evidence of the same to the Association. The bond shall contain a provision that the bond cannot be
canceled or substantially modified except by giving the Association, each Owner and each mortgagee or servicer of
a mortgage on each Apartment notice of such cancellation ormodification.

Section 16. COMPENSATION. No Director shall receive any compensation from the Association
for acting as such, provided that Directors shall be entitled to reimbursement for expenses actually incurred in
serving as a Director, except that no reimbursement shall be permitted for travel expenses, Directors’ fees and per
diem expenses, unless Owners are informed and a majority of Owners approve such expenses. The Directors may,
however, expend Association funds, which shall not be deemed to be compensation to the Directors, to educate and
train themselves in subject areas directly related to their duties and responsibilities as Directors; provided that the
approved annual operating budget shall include these expenses as separate line items.

Section 17. LIABILITY AND INDEMNITY OF THE BOARD AND OFFICERS. The members
of the Board and Officers shall not be liable to the Apartment Owners for any mistake of judgment or otherwise
except for their own individual gross negligence or willful misconduct. The Association shall obtain and maintain at
the Association’s expense a policy of directors’ and officers’ errors and omissions insurance covering the Board and
Officers of the Association with minimum coverage in such amount as shall be determined by the Board and shall
defend and indemnify each Director and Officer of the Association against all costs, expenses and liabilities,
including the amount of judgments, amounts paid in compromise settlements and amounts paid for reasonable
attorneys’ fees and other related expenses which may be incurred by or imposed on the Directors and Officers in
connection with any claim, action, suit, proceeding, investigation or inquiry hereafler made, instituted, or threatened
in which he may be involved as a party or otherwise by reason of his being or having been such Director or Officer,
or by reason of any past or future action taken or authorized or approved by him or any omission to act as such
Director or Officer, whether or not he continues to be such Director or Officer at the time of the incurring or
imposition of such costs, expenses or liabilities, except such costs, expenses or liabilities as shall relate to matters as
to which he is liable by reason of his gross negligence or willful misconduct toward the Association in the
performance of his duties as such Director or Officer. As to whether or not a Director or Officer was liable by
reason of gross negligence or willful misconduct toward the Association in the performance of his duties as such
Director or Officer, in the absence of such final adjudication of the existence of such liability, each Director and
Officer may conclusively rely upon an Opinion obtained by the Board’s attorney. The foregoing right of
indemnification shall not be exclusive of other rights to which any such Director or Officer may be entitled as a
matter of law or otherwise, and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, administrators and assigns of each
such Director and Officer. Any policy of Director’s and Officer’s liability insurance shall require the insurer, at the
inception of the policy and on each anniversary date thereof, to provide the Board with a written summary of the
policy, in layman’s terms. The summary shall include the type ofpolicy, a description of the coverage and the limits
thereof, the amount of annual premium, and renewal dates. The Board shall provide this information to each
Apartment Owner.

Section 18. CONFLICT OF INTEREST. A Director shall not vote at any Board meeting on any
issue in which the Director has a conflict of interest. A member of the Board who has a conflict of interest on any
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issue before the Board shall disclose the nature of the conflict of interest prior to a vote on that issue at the Board
meeting, and the minutes of the meeting shall record the fact that a disclosure was made.

Section 19. EMPLOYEES; BACKGROUND CHECK. The Board and/or the Managing Agent is
empowered to conduct a background check on an applicant for employment as a security guard or manager or for
any position which allows the employee keys to or entry into the Apartments or Common Elements of the Project or
access to Association funds upon the written authorization of the applicant. Before initiating or requesting such
check, the Board or Managing Agent shall first certify that the signature on the authorization is authentic and that
the person is an applicant for employment. The background check, at a minimum, shall require the applicant to
disclose whether the applicant has been convicted, in any jurisdiction, of a crime, judgment from which has not been
vacated, which would tend to indicate that the applicant may be unsuitable for employment as an employee of the
Association with access to Association funds or the keys of or entry into the Apartments in the Project. The criminal
history disclosure made by the applicant may be verified by the Board or Managing Agent by means of information
obtained through the Hawaii Criminal Justice Data Center or any successor organization. The failure of the
Association, Board or Managing Agent to conduct or verify a background check shall not give rise to a private cause
of action against the Board or Managing Agent for acts and omissions of the employee or vendor hired.

ARTICLE IV

OFFICERS

Section 1. DESIGNATION. The principal officers of the Association shall be the President, the
Vice President, the Secretary, and the Treasurer, all of whom shall be elected by the Board. The Board may appoint
an Assistant Treasurer, an Assistant Secretary, and such other officers as in its judgment may be necessary. The
President and Vice President shall be, but no other officers need be, Directors. The Secretary and the Treasurer may
be the same person, and the Assistant Secretary and Assistant Treasurer may also be the same person. No employee
of the Managing Agent shall be designated as an officer.

Section 2. ELECTION OF OFFICERS. The officers of the Association shall be elected annually
at the annual meeting of each new Board and shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board.

Section 3. REMOVAL OF OFFICERS. Upon the affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors
of the Board, any officer of the Association may be removed, either with or without cause, and his successor may be
elected at any regular meeting of the Board, or at any special meeting of the Board, called for such purpose.

Section 4. PRESIDENT. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association. He
shall preside at all meetingsof the Association and of the Board. He shall have all of the general powers and duties
which are incident to the office of a president of a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of
Hawaii, including but not limited to the power to appoint committees from among the Apartment Owners from time
to time as he may in his discretion decide is appropriate to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the Association. He
shall also have such other powers and duties as may be provided by these Bylaws or assigned to him from time to
time by the Board.

Section 5. VICE PRESIDENT. The Vice President shall take the place of the President and
perform his duties whenever the President shall be absent or unable to act. If neither the President nor the Vice
President is able to act, the Board shall appoint some other member of the Board to act in the place of the President,
on an interim basis. The Vice President shall also perform such other powers and duties as shall from time to time
be imposed upon him by the Board or by the President.

Section 6. SECRETARY. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Apartment
Owners and of the Board by using whatever method, media or program selected by the Board (i.e., a particular
computer program, etc.) (“Program”) which shall be the property of the Association to be kept for that purpose at the
office of the Association. The Secretary shall also have charge of such documents, books, records and/or the
Program as the Board may direct and shall keep the minute book wherein resolutions shall be recorded; and shall, in
general, perform all the duties incident to the office of secretary of a non-profit corporation organized under the laws
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of the State of Hawaii. The duties of the Secretary may be delegated to and performed by the Managing Agent
under the Secretary’s supervision.

Section 7. TREASURER. The Treasurer shall be responsible for the keeping of full and accurate
financial records and books of account showing all receipts and disbursements, and for the preparation of all
required fmancial data and reports by using whatever Program selected by the Board. He shall be responsible for
the deposit of all moneys and other valuable effects in such depositories as may from time to time be designated by
the Board; and he shall, in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer of a non-profit
corporation organized under the laws of the State of Hawaii. The duties of the Treasurer may be delegated to the
Managing Agent under the Treasurer’s supervision.

Section 8. AUDIT. The Association shall require an annual audit of the books of the Association
and no less than one yearly unannounced verification of the Association’s cash balances by a public accountant. The
Association shall engage a public accountant or accounting firm as auditor, who shall not be a Director or officer or
own any interest in any Apartment, to audit the books and financial records of the Association. A copy of the annual
audit shall be made available to each Apartment Owner at least thirty (30) days prior to the annual meeting which
follows the end of the fiscal year. Requests to obtain either a summary of the annual report, or an unabridged copy
of the annual audit report shall be made upon all official proxy forms. If the annual audit is not completed by the
date of the annual Association meeting, the Board shall make available an unaudited year end fmancial statement
until the audit is completed.

Section 9. NOTIFICATION OF MAINTENANCE FEE INCREASES OR SPECIAL
ASSESSMENTS. The Managing Agent or the Board shall notify the Apartment Owners in writing of increases in
any maintenance fee or of special assessments at least ninety (90) days prior to such increase or assessment.

Section 10. EXECUTION OF AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS, DEEDS, CHECKS, ETC. All
agreements, contracts, deeds, leases, checks, and other instruments of the Association shall be executed by any two
of the President, Vice President, Secretary or Treasurer, or by such other person or persons (including the Managing
Agent) as may be designated in writing by the Board.

Section 11. COMPENSATION OF OFFICERS. Except as specifically authorized by the adopted
Association budget or a Majority of Apartment Owners at a regular or special meeting, no officer shall receive any
compensation from the Association for acting as such.

ARTICLE V

REPAIR MAINTENA CE, AND USE
-

Section 1. REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE.

(a) Every Owner from time to time and at all times shall perform promptly all
repair, maintenance and alteration work within his Apartment the omission of which, as determined by the Board,
would adversely affect any Common Element, any other Apartment, or the exterior appearance of the Project, and
shall be responsible for all loss and damage caused by his failure to do so.

(b) All repairs of internal installations within each Apartment such as water, light,
gas (if any), power, sewage, telephone, sanitation, doors, windows, lamps, and all other appliances, equipment,
fixtures and accessories belonging to such Apartment, including interior walls and partitions, the inner decorated or
finished surfaces of the perimeter walls, floors, and ceilings of such Apartment, and the Limited Common Elements
appurtenant to the Apartment, shall be at the responsibility of the Owner of such Apartment and Owner’s sole cost
and expense.

(c) Any repair, maintenance or alteration work which may affect the Common
Elements in a material way shall be performed by a licensed contractor, unless such requirement is waived by the
Board.
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(d) Every Owner shall reimburse the Association for any expenditures incurred in
repairing damage to, or in preventing or attempting to prevent damage to the Common Elements or to another
Apartment, or to furniture, furnishings, or other property of any other Apartment Owner damaged or lost through the
fault of such Owner or any person using the Project under him, and such Owner shall give prompt notice to the
Managing Agent of any such damage, loss, or other defect when discovered.

(e) Except as permitted in the Declaration, no Owner shall make any addition or
alteration in or to his Apartment.

(f) No Owner shall use or keep anything on the grounds or any Common Element
(excluding all Limited Common Elements) not located within his Apartment which would in any way hinder the full
use and enjoyment thereofby any other Owner or occupant.

(g) Except to the extent provided in the Declaration with respect to the maintenance
and repair of certain Limited Common Elements, all maintenance, repairs and replacements to the Common
Elements shall be made by, or caused to be made by the Managing Agent, under the supervision of the Board, and
shall be charged, subject to the provisions of the Declaration, to all Owners or to all affected Owners, as appropriate,
as a Common Expense, unless necessitated by the negligence, misuse or neglect of an Apartment Owner, in which
case such expense shall be charged to such Apartment Owner as a special assessment enforceable under Section 4.,
Article VI of these Bylaws. Maintenance of the landscaping of the Project is also the responsibility of the Managing
Agent, under the supervision of the Board, and no Owner shall alter or affect the appearance thereof.

(h) Subject to the provisions of the Declaration, including, without limitation, those
provisions regarding the maintenance of Limited Common Elements, whenever in the judgment of the Board or the
Managing Agent the Common Elements shall require additions or alterations, the Board or the Managing Agent may
proceed with such additions or alterations and shall assess all Owners for the cost thereof as a Common Expense.

Section 2. USE. The Apartments of the Project shall be used only for the purposes set forth in the
Declaration, these Bylaws and the House Rules and for no other purpose.

The following provisions regarding use and occupancy shall also apply:

(a) Except as permitted by the Declaration, no Owner or occupant of an Apartment
shall post any advertisement, bill, poster, or other sign on or about the Project, except as authorized by the Board.

(b) All Owners and occupants shall exercise extreme care about causing or
-- — permitting excessive noises that may disturb other occupants. -

(c) No Owner or occupant shall permit any guest visiting with him to loiter in any
common areas of the Project.

(d) No garbage, refuse, or trash of any kind shall be thrown, placed or kept on any
Common Element other than within disposal facilities provided for such purposes.

(e) Except as otherwise permitted by the Declaration, no Owner or occupant shall
install any wiring or other device for electrical or telephone installations, television, antenna, machines, or other
equipment or appurtenances on the exterior of the buildings or protruding through the perimeter walls, windows, or
roof thereof, without the prior written consent of the Board.

(f) Nothing shall be allowed, done, or kept in any Apartment which will overload or
impair the floors, walls, or roofs of the buildings in which the Apartment is located, or cause any increase in the
ordinary premium rates or the cancellation or invalidation of any insurance maintained by or for the Board with
respect thereto, nor shall any noxious or offensive activity or nuisance be made or suffered thereon.
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(g) In furtherance of a uniform exterior appearance of the Apartments, except as
permitted by the Declaration, no Owner or occupant of an Apartment shall do anything to change the external
appearance of the buildings in which such Apartment is located, without the prior written consent of the Board.

(h) All items of equipment belonging to the Project, shall be subject to rules and
regulations adopted from time to time by the Board, in the Board’s discretion.

(i) Except for certified assistance animals or as otherwise approved by the Board,
no animals shall be permitted to be kept in any Apartment, in the Limited Common Elements or in the Common
Elements of the Project. Further, nothing herein shall hinder full access to the Apartments or other portions of the
Project by physically challenged persons.

Section 3. EXEMPTIONS FOR PERSONS WITh DISABILITIES. Notwithstanding anything
to the contrary contained in these Bylaws, the Declaration or the House Rules, Owners with disabilities shall be
permitted to make reasonable modifications to their Apartments and/or Common Elements, at their expense
(including the cost of obtaining any bonds required by the Declaration, these Bylaws or the Act), if such
modifications are necessary to enable them to use and enjoy their Apartments and/or the Common Elements, as the
case may be, provided that any Owner with a disability desiring to make such modifications shall make such
request, in writing, to the Board ofDirectors. That request shall set forth, with specificity and in detail, the nature of
the request and the reason that the requesting party needs to make such modifications. The Board ofDirectors shall
not unreasonably withhold or delay their consent to such request, and any such request shall be deemed to be
granted if not denied in writing, within forty-five (45) days of the Board’s receipt thereof, or within forty-five (45)
days of the Board’s receipt of additional information reasonably required in order to consider such request,
whichever shall last occur. Nothing contained in this Section shall exempt an Owner from making all amendments
to these Bylaws, the Declaration or the Condominium Map necessitated by any changes under this Section.

ARTICLE VI

COMMON EXPENSES, APARTMENT EXPENSES AND TAXES

Section 1. COMMON EXPENSES.

(a) As provided in the Declaration, the Owner of each Apartment shall be liable for
and pay a share of the Common Expenses in an amount equal to his proportionate share of the Common Interest.
No Owner may exempt himself from liability for contribution towards the common expenses by waiver of the use or
enjoyment of any of the common elements or by abandonment of the Apartment. In the event that the Owner shall
be a vendee titideh Agreement of Sale, the vend& shall also be responsible, along with vendóe fo the panent of
a share of the Common Expenses. In addition to the provisions for Common Expenses contained in the Declaration,
Common Expenses shall include all charges, costs and expenses whatsoever incurred by the Association for and in
connection with the administration, management, maintenance, renovation and operation of the Project, including
without limitation all charges for taxes (except real property taxes and other such taxes which are or may hereafter
be assessed separately on each Apartment and the Common Interest in the Common Elements appertaining thereto
or the personal property or any other interest of the Owner), assessments, insurance, including property, casualty and
Director’s and Officer’s errors and omissions policies, and other casualty and liability insurance, any liability
whatsoever for loss or damage arising out of or in connection with the Common Elements or any fire, accident or
nuisance thereon, cost of repair, reinstatement, rebuilding and replacement of the premises, systems, furniture,
fixtures, equipment, yard and landscaping, janitorial, and other similar services, wages, accounting and legal fees,
management fees, start-up fees, recreational, and other necessary expenses of upkeep, maintenance, management
and operation actually incurred on or for the Common Elements, including Limited Common Elements, any resort-
related assessments (to the extent required by the Board) and the cost of all utility services, including water,
electricity, gas, garbage disposal, telephone, and any other similar services, unless separately metered or otherwise
separately attributable to an Apartment or group of Apartments, in which case the amounts charged or attributable to
each Apartment or group of Apartments, as determined by the Board with the advice of an engineer or a public
accountant, or other such consultant shall be payable by the Owner of such Apartment or Owners of Apartments as
the case may be as a surcharge or special assessment or shall be payable directly to the utility company if a separate
bill is rendered. The Common Expenses may also include such amounts as may be required, by special assessment,

347367.2 16



for the purchase or lease of any Apartment by the Board or its designee, corporate or otherwise, on behalf of the
Association, as permitted under the laws of the State of Hawaii or these Bylaws; provided, however, that the Board
may not acquire and hold by way of lease or purchase more than one (1) Apartment, without first obtaining the
approval of the Owners having at least sixty-five percent (65%) of the Common Interests.

(b) The Board shall establish and maintain a General Operating Reserve by monthly
assessment against (and payment by) all Owners in proportion to their respective Common Interests in such
additional amount as the Board determines to be adequate to provide fmancial stability in the administration of the
Project, which additional amount shall be deemed conclusively to be savings of the Owners held for their benefit for
Common Expenses not payable from monthly assessments. The funds in the General Operating Reserve shall not be
commingled with funds of other activities such as lease rent collections and rental operations, nor shall the
Managing Agent commingle any Association funds with the Managing Agent’s own funds. The Board shall deposit
the General Operating Reserve in an account with a safe and responsible depository as required by Section 9. of this
Article VI. At the discretion of the Board, the General Operating Reserve may be used to meet any deficiencies in
operating funds from time to time resulting from delinquency by Owners in the payment of assessments for
Common Expenses but shall not operate to exempt any Owner from liability to contribute his proportionate share of
such expenses or to pay any such assessments therefor, and any funds withdrawn from the General Operating
Reserve for that purpose shall be reimbursed upon the payment of such delinquent assessments. The General
Operating Reserve may also be used to replace Common Elements as determined by the Board from time to time.
The proportionate interest of each Owner in the General Operating Reserve shall not be withdrawn, partitioned or
assigned separately but shall be deemed to be transferred with each Apartment even though not mentioned or
described expressly in the instrument of transfer. If the condominium property regime established by the
Declaration is terminated, the General Operating Reserve remaining after payment of all Common Expenses shall be
distributed to all Owners in proportion to their respective Common Interests, provided that in the event the
condominium property regime shall be reconstituted after termination as a condominium property regime as to less
than the entire original Project, the share of the Apartment Owners who will become Apartment Owners under the
reconstituted condominium property regime shall be paid to the Association for the reconstituted condominium
property regime.

(c) From time to time, as specifically directed by the Association at any annual or
special meeting, the Board may establish and maintain a Capital Improvements Reserve Fund and one (1) or more
subparts thereof, by the monthly assessment against and payment by all the Owners in proportion to their respective
Common Interests. Each subpart of the Capital Improvements Reserve Fund shall be earmarked for specific new
improvements or additions to the Project which shall have been specifically authorized by the Association at any
annual or special meeting, and the amount of each such subpart of the Capital Improvements Reserve Fund shall be
such annual amount as the Association determines to be adequate (but no more) to provide for specific new

or addition to the Project The assessments foreach such subpart of the Capital Improvements
Reserve Fund shall be deemed conclusively to be savings of the Owners held for their benefit for Common
Expenses of a capital nature. Disbursements from said Capital Improvements Reserve Fund shall be made only
upon authorization of the Board. The proportionate interests of each Owner in said Capital Improvements Reserve
Fund and all interest earned thereon shall not be withdrawn, partitioned or assigned separately but shall be deemed
to be transferred with each Apartment even though not mentioned or described expressly in the instrument of
transfer. If the Condominium property regime established hereby is terminated, or if the Capital Improvements
Reserve Fund or subpart thereof exceeds the cost of the particular new improvement or addition to the Project, or if
the planned improvement is for any reason not implemented within a reasonable time (in any event not more than
ten (10) years) after creation of said Capital Improvements Reserve Fund or subpart thereof, said Capital
Improvements Reserve Fund remaining shall be distributed to all Owners in proportion to their respective Common
Interests, provided that in the event the Condominium property regime shall be reconstituted after termination as a
Condominium property regime as to less than the entire original Project, the share of the Apartment Owners who
will become Apartment Owners under the reconstituted Condominium property regime shall be paid to the
Association for the reconstituted Condominium property regime.

(d) At the end of any year, if there shall be any excess assessments or General
Operating Reserve or Capital Improvements Reserve Fund on hand, and if such funds shall be qualified to be treated
as “exempt function income,” as that term is defined by Internal Revenue Code Section 528, then the Association
may file such documents as may be required to have such income treated as tax exempt.
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Section 2. COLLECTION AND PAYMENT OF COMMON EXPENSES. All Owners shall pay
to the Association or the Managing Agent all monthly and special assessments of the Common Expenses against
their respective Apartments as the Board from time to time may approve as being necessary or advisable for the
payment of or other provision for the Common Expenses of the Project. Except as otherwise provided in these
Bylaws or the Declaration, all of such assessments shall be assessed among and against the Apartments in
proportion to their respective Common Interests. Regular monthly assessments shall be payable in advance on or
before the first day of each and every month and without notice or demand. Special assessments for Common
Expenses and costs, expenses and fees recoverable by the Association under Section 5 l4A-94 of the Act and the
provisions of these Bylaws, and any penalties and late charges shall be payable upon request therefor as from time to
time rendered by the Board or the Managing Agent. Special assessments may be made, without limitation, to cover
shortfalls in the budget or to cover an expense directly attributable to a particular Owner or the activities of such
Owner or his guests or visitors. The Association will pay or cause to be paid, for and on behalf of the Owners, all
Common Expenses. The Board will annually render or cause to be rendered a statement to each Owner of all
receipts and disbursements during the preceding year. Members of the Board and the Managing Agent shall not be
liable as principals to third persons for the obligations of the Association or of any Owner or Owners. No Owner
shall withhold any assessments claimed by the Association. An Owner who disputes the amount of an assessment
may request a written statement clearly indicating 1) the amount of common expenses included in the assessments,
including the due date of each amount claimed; 2) the amount of any penalty, late fee, lien filing fee, any other
charge included in the assessment; 3) the amount of attorneys’ fees and costs, if any, included in the assessments;
4) that under Hawaii law, an Owner has no right to withhold assessments for any reason; 5) that an Owner has a
right to demand mediation or arbitration to resolve disputes about the amount or validity of an Associations
assessment, provided the Owner immediately pays the assessment in full and keeps assessments current; and 6) that
payment in full of the assessment does not prevent the Owner from contesting the assessment or reclaiming a refund
of amounts not owed.

Section 3. TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS. Except as may be otherwise provided in the
Declaration, each Owner of an Apartment shall be obligated to have the real property taxes for his own Apartment
and its appurtenant interest in the Common Elements assessed separately by the proper governmental authority and
to pay the amount of all such real property taxes so determined. The foregoing sentence shall apply to all types of
taxes which now are or may hereafter be assessed separately by law on each Apartment and the Common Interest in
the Common Elements appertaining thereto or the personal property or any other interest of the Owner. Each Owner
shall execute such documents and take such action as may be reasonably specified by the Board to facilitate dealing
with the proper governmental authority regarding such taxes, other taxes and assessments. Each Owner shall be
obligated to pay to the Board his proportionate share of any assessment by the Board for any portion of taxes or
assessments, if any, assessed against the entire premises or any part of the Common Elements as a whole and not
separately, such payment to be made as directed by the Board. If, in the opinion of the Board, any taxes or
assessments may be a lien on the entire premises or any part ofthe Common Elements, the Board may pay such
taxes or assessments and shall assess the same to the Owners in their proportionate share as determined by the
Board. Such assessments by the Board shall be secured by the lien created by Section 4. of this Article VI.

Section 4. DEFAULT IN PAYMENT OF ASSESSMENTS; LIEN. Each monthly assessment,
each special assessment and each obligation of an Owner under these Bylaws, Declaration and House Rules, which
is enforceable as a special assessment shall be separate, distinct and personal debts and obligations of the Owner
against whom the same are assessed. All sums chargeable to an Apartment for Common Expenses which have been
assessed but which are unpaid shall constitute a lien against the Apartment; the priority of such lien shall be as set
forth in the Act. If the Owner shall fail to pay his assessment when due, then he shall pay an additional assessment
of Fifty and No/l00 Dollars ($50.00) for each such failure and all delinquent assessments shall bear interest at the
rate of one percent (1%) per month from the assessment due date, provided that this Fifty and No/l00 Dollar
($50.00) limit and applied interest rate may be adjusted from time to time by the Board at its discretion. In the event
of a default or defaults in payment of any such assessment or assessments, in addition to any other remedies herein
or by law provided hereof, the Board may enforce each such obligation as follows:

(a) By suit or suits at law to enforce each such assessment obligation. Each such
action must be authorized by a majority of the Board at a regular or special meeting thereof and any such suit may
be instituted on behalf of the Association, by the Board or by the Managing Agent, if the latter is so authorized by
the Board in writing. Each such action shall be brought in the name of the Association by its Board and the Board
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shall be deemed to be acting on behalf of all the Owners. Any judgment rendered in any such action shall include,
where permissible under any law, interest and a sum for reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs in such amount as the
Court may adjudge against such defaulting Owner. Upon full satisfaction of any such judgment, it shall be the duty
of the Board to authorize any two (2) Directors thereof, acting in the name of the Board, to execute and deliver to
the judgment debtor an appropriate satisfaction thereof. An Owner who pays the Association the full amount
claimed by the Association may file an action in small claims court or require the Association to mediate. If unable
to resolve the dispute through mediation, either party may file for arbitration under Part VII of the Act. The Owner
shall be entitled to a refund of any amounts paid to the Association not owed.

(b) At any time after the occurrence of any such default, the Board (acting upon the
authorization of the majority thereof at any regular or special meeting) may give a notice to the defaulting Owner,
with a copy to the mortgagee of such Owner, if such mortgagee has furnished its name and address to the Board,
which said notice shall state the date of the delinquency, the amount of the delinquency and make a demand for
payment thereof. Any Owner and any holder, insurer or guarantor of a mortgage on any Apartment may file a
written demand for notice with the Board; upon filing such demand, such party will be entitled to receive written
notice from the Board of any delinquency in the payment of assessments with respect to the Apartment in excess of
sixty (60) days. If such delinquency is not paid within ten (10) days after delivery of such notice, the Board may
elect to record at said Land Court a notice of lien against the Apartment of such delinquent Owner. Such notice of
lien shall state (1) the name of the delinquent Owner or reputed Owner, (2) a description of the Apartment against
which claim of lien is made, (3) the amount claimed to be due and owing (including any applicable fees, charges and
penalties)(with any proper offset allowed), (4) that the claim of lien is made by the Board pursuant to the terms of
these Bylaws and the Act, and (5) that a lien is claimed against said described Apartment in an amount equal to the
amount of the stated delinquency. Any such notice of lien (or the release thereof) shall be signed and acknowledged
by any two (2) members of the Board or by the Managing Agent acting on the direction of the Board and shall be
dated as of the date of the execution by the last such Board member (or Managing Agent) to execute said notice of
lien. Upon recording of a duly executed original or copy of such notice of lien at said Land Court, the Board shall
have all remedies provided in the Act. Each default shall constitute a separate basis for a notice of lien or a lien.
Such lien may be enforced by the Association in any manner permitted by law, including nonjudicial or power of
sale foreclosure procedures authorized by Chapter 667 of the Hawaii Revised Statutes, as amended, and the
Association shall be entitled to all such fees and expenses as may be allowed by law. The Managing Agent or the
Board, acting on behalf of the Association, may bid on the Apartment at the foreclosure sale, and acquire and hold,
lease, mortgage, and convey the Apartment. Action to recover a money judgment for unpaid common expenses
shall be maintained without foreclosing or waiving the lien securing the same.

(c) As an alternative to foreclosure proceedings, where an Apartment is owner-
occupied, the Association may authorize its Managing Agent or Board to, after sixty (60) days’ written notice to the
Owner and the first mortgagee of such non-payment, terminate the delinquent Apartment’s access to the common
elements and cease supplying a delinquent Apartment Owner with any and all services normally supplied or paid for
by the Association. Any terminated services and privileges shall be restored upon payment of all delinquent
assessments.

(d) For the purposes of this Section 4., a certificate executed by any two (2)
members of the Board or by the Managing Agent shall be conclusive upon the Board and the Owners in favor of any
and all persons who rely thereon in good faith as to the matters therein contained, and any Owner shall be entitled to
such a certificate setting forth the amount of any due and unpaid assessments with respect to his Apartment (or the
fact that all assessments due are paid if such is the case) within fifteen (15) days after demand therefor and upon
payment of a reasonable fee not to exceed Fifty and No/I 00 Dollars ($50.00), provided that this Fifty and No/i 00
Dollar ($50.00) limit may be adjusted from time to time at the discretion of the Board.

(e) In a voluntary conveyance, the grantee of an Apartment is jointly and severally
liable with the grantor for all unpaid assessments against the grantor for the grantor’s share of the common expenses.
Any grantor or grantee is entitled to a statement of the unpaid assessments. The grantee is not liable for any unpaid
assessments against the grantor in excess of the amount on the statement, except as to the amount of subsequently
dishonored checks received within the thirty (30) day period immediately preceding the statement date noted in the
statement.
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(f) The acquirer of title and the acquirer’s successors and assigns pursuant to
foreclosure of the mortgage shall not be liable for the share of common expenses or assessments by the Association
for the apartment. The unpaid share of common expenses or assessments shall be deemed collectible from all the
Apartment Owners including the acquirer and the acquirer’s successors and assigns.

Section 5. COLLECTION FROM TENANT. If the Owner shall at any time rent or lease his
Apartment and shall default for a period of thirty (30) days or more in the payment of the Owner’s monthly or
special assessments, the Board may, at its option, so long as such default shall continue, demand and receive from
any renter or lessee (hereinafter in this paragraph referred to as “lessee”) of the Owner occupying the Apartment, the
rent due or becoming due from such lessee to the Owner up to an amount sufficient to pay all sums due from the
Owner, including interest, if any, and any such payment of such rent to the Board by the lessee shall be sufficient
discharge of such lessee, as between such lessee and the Owner to the extent of the amount so paid; but any such
demand or acceptance of rent from any lessee shall not be deemed to be a consent to or approval of any lease by the
Owner or a release or discharge of any of the obligations of the Owner hereunder or an acknowledgment of
surrender of any rights or duties hereunder. If the Board makes demand upon the lessee as aforesaid, the lessee shall
not have the right to question the right of the Board to make such demand, but shall be obligated to make the said
payments to the Board as demanded by the Board with the effect as aforesaid, provided, however, that the Board
may not exercise this right if a receiver has been appointed to take charge of the premises pending a mortgage
foreclosure or if a mortgagee is in possession pending a mortgage foreclosure.

Section 6. ATTORNEYS FEES AND EXPENSES OF ENFORCEMENT.

(a) All costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, incurred
by or on behalf of the Association by the Board for:

(1) Collecting any delinquent assessments against any Owner’s Apartment;

(2) Foreclosing any lien thereon;

(3) Enforcing any provision of the Declaration, Bylaws, House Rules
and/or the Act; or

(4) Enforcing the Rules of the Real Estate Commission;

against an Owner, occupant, tenant, employee of an owner, or any person who may in any manner use the Project
shall be promptly paid on demand to the Board by such person or persons; provided that if the claims upon which
the Board takes any action are not substantiated, all csts and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees
costs, incurred by any such person or persons as a result of the action of the Board, shall be promptly paid on
demand to such person or persons by the Board on behalf of the Association, as a Common Expense.

(b) If any claim by an Owner is substantiated in any action against the Association,
any of its officers or Directors, or its Board to enforce any provision of the Declaration, these Bylaws, the House
Rules, or the Act, then all reasonable and necessary expenses, costs and attorneys’ fees incurred by such Owner shall
be awarded to such Owner; provided that no such award shall be made in any derivative action unless the
requirements of Section 5 l4A-94, Hawaii Revised Statutes are complied with.

(c) Any holder, insurer or guarantor of a mortgage on any Apartment may file a
written demand for notice with the Board through the Secretary of the Association or the Managing Agent; upon
filing such demand, such party shall be entitled to receive written notice from the Board of any default by the Owner
of such Apartment arising under the Declaration, Bylaws or House Rules, which default has continued for not less
than sixty (60) days.

(d) Any person who embezzles or knowingly misapplies Association funds received
by a Managing Agent or Association shall be guilty of a Class C felony.
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Section 7. WAIVER. The failure of the Board to insist in any one or more instances upon a strict
performance of or compliance with any of the covenants of an Owner hereunder or to exercise any right or option
herein contained, or to serve any notice, or to institute any action or summary proceeding, shall not be construed as a
waiver, or a relinquishment for the future, of such covenant or option or right, but such covenant or option or right
shall continue and remain in full force and effect. The receipt by the Board of any sum paid by the Owner
hereunder, with or without knowledge by the Board of the breach of any covenant hereof, shall not be deemed a
waiver of such breach, and no waiver, express or implied by the Board of any provision hereof, shall be deemed to
have been made unless expressed in writing and signed by an authorized signatory pursuant to authority contained in
a general or specific resolution of the Board.

Section 8. FiNANCIAL RECORDS.

(a) The Board, or the Managing Agent at the direction and under the supervision of
the Board, shall maintain, at the Project or at such other place within the State of Hawaii as may be designated by
the Board, accurate and detailed books of account and other financial records, including the receipts and
expenditures affecting the common elements, in chronological order specifying and itemizing the maintenance and
repair expenses of the common elements and any other expenses incurred. The Board or Managing Agent shall also
keep monthly statements indicating the total and current delinquent dollar amount of any unpaid assessments for
Common Expenses. The fmancial records of the Association, including such records, invoices, correspondence,
vouchers and statements, shall be available at all reasonable and convenient hours of business weekdays for
examination and copying by any Owner at his cost, all as is more fully set forth in Section 17. of Article X.

(b) Neither the Board nor Managing Agent shall transfer by telephone any
Association funds between accounts including, but not limited to, the general operating account and General
Operating Reserve and Capital Improvements Reserve Fund accounts.

(c) The funds in the General Operating Account of the Association shall not be
commingled with funds of other activities, such as rental operations, nor shall the Managing Agent commingle any
Association funds with its own funds. The Managing Agent shall keep and disburse funds collected on behalf of the
Owners in strict compliance with any agreement made with the Owners, Chapter 467 of the Hawaii Revised
Statutes, and other applicable laws.

(d) Upon written request from any gove-nmental agency, holder, insurer or
guarantor of any first mortgage that is secured by an Apartment in the Project, person or entity which has a current
or prospective interest in the Project, the Association shall prepare and furnish, within one hundred twenty (120)
days of the Association’s fiscal year-end, an audited fmancial statement of the Association for the immediately
preceding year. - - - - -

Section 9. DEPOSITS IN FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS. All funds collected by the Managing
Agent shall be:

(a) deposited in financial institutions located in the State whose deposits are insured
by an agency of the United States government; or

(b) held by a corporation authorized to do business as a trust company under Hawaii
Revised Statutes Chapter 406; or

(c) held by the United States Treasury; or

(d) purchased in the name of and held for the benefit of the Association through a
securities broker that is registered with the Securities Exchange Commission, has an office in the State of Hawaii,
and the accounts of which are held by member firms of the New York Stock Exchange or National Association of
Securities Dealers and insured by the Securities Insurance Protection Corporation or their respective successor
entities.
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ARTICLE VII

INSURANCE AND RESTORATION

Section 1. PROPERTY INSURANCE. The Association acting through the Board shall procure,
purchase, and at all times maintain, insurance from an insurance carrier which has at least a B general policyholder’s
rating and a “6” or better financial performance index rating in Best’s Insurance Reports, an “A” or better general
policyholder’s rating and a fmancial size category of “VIII” or better in Best’s Insurance Reports International
Edition, an “A” or better rating in Demotech’s Hazard Insurance Financial Stability Ratings, a “BBBq” qualified
solvency rating or a “BBB” or better claims-paying ability rating in Standard and Poor’s Insurer Solvency Review,
or a “BBB” or better claims-paying ability rating in Standard and Poor’s International Confidential Rating Service,
and which covers the Project, including, without limitation, the fixtures, equipment, and Common Elements and,
whether or not part of the Common Elements, all exterior and interior walls, floors, and ceilings, and, at the option
of the Association, all exterior glass, in accordance with the as-built condominium plans and specifications, together
with all air conditioning, heating, boiler and machinery and other service type equipment contained in the Project,
against loss or damage by fire, with endorsements, to the extent available, for extended coverage, inflation,
construction code (if there is a construction code provision that would require changes to undamaged portions of the
Project even where only part of a building or structure is destroyed by an insured hazard), vandalism and malicious
mischief and, during time of war, to the extent that the same is reasonably available, against war risks (from any
source), sufficient to provide for the repair or replacement thereof in the event of such loss or damages. The
insurance policy or policies (“Policy”):

(a) shall contain no provision limiting or prohibiting other insurance by the Owner
of any Apartment, such right being provided by statute but, if obtainable, shall provide that the liability of the
insurer shall not be affected by, nor shall the insurer claim any right of set-off, counterclaim, apportionment,
proration, or contribution by reason of any such other insurance. If any loss intended to be covered by insurance
carried by the Board shall occur and the proceeds payable thereunder shall be reduced by reason of any insurance
carried by any Apartment Owner, such Apartment Owner shall assign the proceeds of such insurance carried by it,
to the extent of such reduction to the Board for application to the same purposes as the reduced proceeds are to be
applied;

(b) shall contain no provision relieving the insurer from liability because of loss
occurring while the hazard is increased in the building(s), whether or not within the control or knowledge of the
Association or Board or, if obtainable, shall contain no provision relieving the insurer from liability by reason of any
breach of warranty or condition caused by the Association or the Board or the Owner or tenant of any Apartment or
any other person under any of them, or by reason of any act or neglect of the Association or the Board or the Owner
or tenant of any Apartment or any other person under any of them;

(c) shall provide that the Policy may not be cancelled or substantially modified
(whether or not requested by the Association) except by giving to the Association and the Board and to the Owner
and mortgagee of each Apartment who shall have requested such notice of the insurer in writing thirty (30) days’
written notice of such cancellation;

(d) shall contain a provision waiving any right of subrogation by the insurer to any
right of the Association, Board, or Owner against any of them or any other persons under them;

(e) shall contain a provision waiving any right of the insurer to repair, rebuild or
replace if a decision is made pursuant to Section 5. of this Article VII not to repair, reinstate, rebuild or restore the
damage or destruction;

(f) shall provide that any loss shall be adjusted with the Association and the
mortgagee of any Apartment directly affected by the loss;

(g) shall contain a standard mortgage clause which:
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(1) shall name the holder of any mortgage affecting any Apartment whose
name shall have been furnished to the Board;

(2) shall provide that the insurance as to the interest of the mortgagee shall
not be invalidated by any act or neglect of the Association, Board, or the Owner or tenant of any Apartment or any
person under any of them;

(3) shall waive any requirement invalidating such mortgagee clause by
reason of the failure of the mortgagee to notify the insurer of any hazardous use or vacancy, any requirement that the
mortgagee pay any premium (provided, however, in case the Association shall fail to pay the premium due or to
become due under the policy, the mortgagee may pay the same prior to the effective date of the termination of the
policy), any contribution clause, and any right to be subrogated to the right of any mortgagee against the Owner or
lessee of any Apartment or the Association or the Board or to require an assignment of any mortgage to the insurer;

(4) shall provide that without affecting the protection afforded to the
mortgagee by such mortgagee clause, any proceeds payable under such clause shall be payable to a corporate trustee
selected by the Board who shall be a substantial bank or trust company doing business in Hawaii, herein referred to
as the “Insurance Trustee” or “Trustee;”

(5) shall provide that any reference to a mortgagee in the Policy shall
include all mortgagees on any Apartment, in order ofpreference whether or not named therein;

(h) shall provide for payment of the proceeds to the Insurance Trustee and that any
Insurance Trust Agreement will be recognized;

(i) shall contain a provision requiring the insurance carrier, at the inception of the
Policy and on each anniversary date thereof, to provide the Board with a written summary, in layman’s terms, of the
Policy. The summary shall include the type ofPolicy, a description of the coverage and the limits thereof, amount
of annual premium, and renewal dates. The Board shall provide this information to each Apartment Owner;

shall have a maximum deductible amount of the lesser of TEN THOUSAND
AND NO/i 00 dollars ($10,000.00) or one percent (1%) of the policy face amount; funds to cover these deductible
amounts shall be included in the Association’s General Operating Reserve;

(k) shall have a “loss payable” clause showing the Association or the Insurance
Trustee as trustee for each Owner and the holder of each Apartment’s mortgage.

Section 2. GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE. The Association shall procure and maintain
from a reputable company or companies a policy or policies (herein called the “Policy”) of Public Liability
Insurance to insure the Association, the Board, the officers, each Apartment Owner, and the Managing Agent and
other employees of the Association against claims for personal injury, death and property damage arising out of the
condition of the Project or activities thereon or on sidewalks or contractors of construction work under a
Commercial General Liability form to include but not to be limited to (1) Water Damage Legal Liability and (2) Fire
Damage Legal Liability. Premiums shall be common expenses. The Policy:

(a) shall contain no provision relieving the insurer from liability because of loss
occurring while the hazard is increased in the buildings, whether or not within the control or knowledge of the
Association or the Board, or by any breach of warranty or condition caused by the Owner of any Apartment, or by
any act or neglect of the Association, the Board, or the Owner of any Apartment or any persons under any of them;

(b) shall contain minimum limits of not less than ONE MILLION AND NO/I00
dollars ($1,000,000.00) for injury to one or more persons in any one accident or occurrence and THREE
HUNDRED THOUSAND AND NO/iOO dollars ($300,000.00) for property damage, or such higher limits as the
Board may from time to time establish with due regard to then prevailing prudent business practice;
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(c) to the extent reasonably obtainable, shall contain a waiver by the insurer of any
right of subrogation to any right of the Association, the Board, or the Owner of any Apartment against any of them
or any other persons under them;

(d) contain a “severability of interest” endorsement which shall preclude the insurer
from denying the claim of the Apartment Owner because of the negligent act of the Association or any other
Apartment Owner;

(e) shall include, without limitation, legal liability coverage arising out of lawsuits
related to employment contracts of the Association; and

(f) shall provide that the Policy may not be canceled or substantially modified
(whether or not requested by the Association) except by giving to the Association and the Board and to the Owner
and mortgagee of each Apartment who shall have requested such notice of the insurer, in writing, thirty (30) days’
written notice of such cancellation or modification.

Section 3. FLOOD INSURANCE AND INSURANCE AGAINST ADDITIONAL RISKS. If
the Project is located in an identified flood hazard area as designated by the federal Department of Housing and
Urban Development, the Association shall procure, purchase and at all times maintain flood insurance under the
provisions of the federal Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 with the same coverage and terms as required for
property insurance under Section 1. of this Article VII, in an amount equal to at least the lesser of one hundred
percent (100%) of the insurable value of the Project or the maximum coverage available under the appropriate
National Flood Insurance Administration program; provided, however, that the maximum deductible amount shall
be the lesser of FIVE THOUSAND AND NO/100 dollars ($5,000.00) or one percent (1%) of the policy’s face
amount. The Association may also procure insurance against such additional risks as the Association may deem
advisable for the protection of the Apartment Owners of a character normally carried with respect to properties of
comparable character and use in the State ofHawaii.

Section 4. MISCELLANEOUS INSURANCE PROVISIONS. The Association acting through
the Board shall use its best efforts to obtain and maintain all insurance required hereunder. The Board shall review
not less frequently than annually the adequacy of its insurance program and shall report in writing the Board’s
conclusions and action taken on such review to the Owner of each Apartment, and to the holder, insurer or guarantor
of any mortgage on any Apartment who shall have requested a copy of such report. At the written request of the
holder, insurer or guarantor of any mortgage of any Apartment, statingboth its name and address and the number of
the Apartment on which it has (or insures or guarantees) the mortgage, and at the expense of such holder, insurer or
guarantor, the Board shall furnish to such party a copy of the Policy described in Section 1. of this Article VII and of
any other Policy to which a mortgagee endorsement shall have been attached, and proof satisfactory to such
mortgagee that’payment of premiums on such policy has been made for the period for which the party may request
such proof. Copies of every policy of insurance procured by the Association and any summary of such policies in
layman’s terms provided by insurance carriers shall be available for inspection by any Apartment Owner (or
purchaser holding a contract to purchase an interest in an Apartment) at the office of the Managing Agent. Any
holder, insurer, or guarantor of a mortgage on any Apartment may file a written demand for notice with the Board;
upon filing such demand, the party will be entitled to receive notice of any casualty loss to the Apartment or to the
Project. Any coverage procured by the Association shall be without prejudice to the right of the Owners of
Apartments to insure such Apartments and the contents thereof for their own benefit at their own expense. A holder,
insurer or guarantor of a first mortgage, upon written request to the Association, which request must state the name
and address of such holder, insurer or guarantor and the apartment number, will be entitled to timely written notice
of any lapse, cancellation or material modification of any insurance policy maintained by the Association pursuant
to these Bylaws.

Section 5. DAMAGE AND DESTRUCTION. If the buildings are damaged by fire or other
casualty which is insured against and said damage is limited to a single Apartment, the insurance proceeds shall be
used by the Trustee for payment of the contractor employed by the Board to rebuild or repair such Apartment,
including paint, floor covering and fixtures, in accordance with the original plans and specifications therefor (and
including improvements of the Apartment Owner but only if such improvements are covered by insurance carried by
the Board pursuant to Paragraph (a) of Section 1. of this Article and then only to the extent made possible by actual
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recovery of the insurance proceeds thereunder). If such damage extends to two or more Apartments or extends to
any part of the Limited Common Elements or to the Common Elements:

(a) The Board shall thereupon contract to repair or rebuild the damaged portions of
the building or buildings, including all Apartments so damaged, as well as the Common Elements, in accordance
with plans and specifications therefor, (and including improvements of the Apartment Owner but only if such
improvements are covered by insurance carried by the Board pursuant to Paragraph (a) of Section 1. of this Article
VII and then only to the extent made possible by actual recovery of the insurance proceeds thereunder), which will
restore the same to the design immediately prior to destruction, or if reconstruction in accordance with said design is
not permissible under the laws then in force, in accordance with such modified plan as shall be previously approved
by the Board as provided in the Declaration; provided that in the event said modified plan or any decision not to
rebuild made pursuant to the Declaration eliminates any Apartment and such Apartment is not reconstructed, the
Insurance Trustee shall pay to the Owner of said Apartment and/or said Owner’s mortgagee, if any, the portion of
said insurance proceeds allocable to said Apartment (less the proportionate share of said Apartment in the cost of
debris removal) and shall disburse the balance of insurance proceeds as hereinafter provided for the disbursement of
insurance proceeds. The insurance proceeds shall be paid by the Trustee to the contractor employed for such work,
in accordance with the terms of the contract for such construction and in accordance with the terms of this Section 5.
If the insurance proceeds are insufficient to pay all the costs of repairing and/or rebuilding such Common Elements,
the Board is expressly authorized to pay such costs in excess of the insurance proceeds from the General Operating
Reserve and the Capital Improvements Reserve Fund and, if such funds are insufficient for this purpose, the Board
shall levy a special assessment on the Owners of Apartments in proportion to their respective Common Interests.
Any costs in excess of the insurance proceeds for the repairing and/or rebuilding of any Apartment shall be specially
assessed against such Apartment and said special assessment shall be secured by the lien created under Section 4. of
Article VI hereof.

(b) The cost of the work (as estimated by the Board) shall be paid out from time to
time or at the direction of the Board as the work progresses, but subject to the following conditions:

(1) An architect or engineer (who may be an employee of the Board) shall
be in charge of the work.

(2) Each request for payment shall be made on seven (7) days’ prior notice
to the Trustee and shall be accompanied by a certificate to be made by such architect or engineer stating that all of
the work completed has been done in compliance with the approved plans and specifications and that the sum
requested is justly required to reimburse the Board for payments by the Board to, or is justly due to, the contractor,
subcontractors, materialmen, laborers, engineers, architects or other persons rendering services or materials for the
work (giving a brief description of such services and materials), and that when added to all sums previously paid out
by the Trustee the sum requested does not exceed the value of the work done to the date of such certificate.

(3) Each request shall be accompanied by waivers of liens satisfactory to
the Trustee, covering that part of the work for which payment or reimbursement is being requested and by a search
prepared by a title company or licensed abstractor or by other evidence satisfactory to the Trustee, that there has not
been recorded with respect to the premises any mechanics’ or other lien or instrument for the retention of title in
respect of any part of the work not discharged of record.

(4) The request for any payment after the work has been completed shall
be accompanied by a copy of any certificate or certificates required by law to render occupancy of the premises
legal.

(5) The fees and expenses of the Trustee as determined by the Board and
the Trustee shall be paid by the Association as Common Expenses, and such fees and expenses may be deducted
from any proceeds at any time in the hands of the Trustee.

(6) Such other conditions not inconsistent with the foregoing as the Trustee
may reasonably request.
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(c) Upon the completion of the work and payment in full therefor, any remaining
proceeds of insurance then or thereafter in the hands of the Board or the Trustee shall be paid or credited to the
Owners of the Apartments (or to the holder of any mortgage on an Apartment if there be a mortgage) in proportion
to their respective Common Interests.

(d) To the extent that any loss, damage or destruction to the building(s) or other
property is covered by insurance procured by the Association, the Association shall have no claim or cause of action
for such loss, damage or destruction against any Apartment Owner or lessee. To the extent that any loss, damage or
destruction to the property of any Apartment Owner or lessee is covered by insurance procured by such Owner or
lessee, such Owner or lessee shall have no claim or cause of action for such loss, damage or destruction against the
Board, the Managing Agent, any other Apartment Owner, or the Association. All policies of insurance referred to in
this paragraph (d) shall contain appropriate waivers of subrogation.

ARTICLE VIII

MORTGAGES

Section 1. NOTICE TO BOARD. An Apartment Owner who mortgages his interest in an
Apartment shall notify the Board of the name and address of his mortgagee and within ten (10) days after the
execution of the same shall file a copy of the mortgage with the Board; the Board shall maintain such information in
a book entitled “Mortgages of Apartments,” provided that the Board shall have no affirmative obligation to monitor
the mortgaging of Apartments.

Section 2. NOTICE OF UNPAID COMMON EXPENSES. The Board, whenever so requested in
writing by an Owner or the holder, insurer or guarantor of any mortgage of an interest in an Apartment, shall, upon
receipt of payment of a reasonable charge therefor, promptly report any then unpaid assessments for Common
Expenses due from the Owner of the Apartment involved.

Section 3. NOTICE OF DEFAULT. The Board, when giving notice to an Apartment Owner of a
default in paying Common Expenses or other default, shall send a copy of such notice to each holder, insurer or
guarantor of a mortgage covering such Apartment or interest therein who has requested such notice in writing.

Section 4. EXAMINATION OF BOOKS. Each Owner and each holder, insurer or guarantor of
any mortgage of an interest in an Apartment shall be permitted to examine the books of account of the Association
at reasonable times, on business days. Upon written request, each Owner and each holder, insurer or guarantor of
any mortgage of an interest in an Apartment shall be entitled to a copy of budgets, audited financial statements
(including those for the preceding fiscal year) and other such reports prepared in connection with the Project upon • - -

payment of a reasonable charge therefor.

Section 5. MORTGAGEE PROTECTION. Notwithstanding all other provisions hereof:

(a) Except to the extent that a notice of lien is recorded prior to the recording of any
mortgage as otherwise provided in the Act, the liens created hereunder upon any Apartment and its appurtenant
interests in the Common Elements shall be subject and subordinate to, and shall not affect the rights of, the holder of
any indebtedness secured by any recorded mortgage under such interests made for value, provided that after the
foreclosure of any such mortgage there shall be a lien upon the interests of the purchaser at such foreclosure sale to
secure all assessments, whether regular or special, assessed hereunder to such Apartment if falling due after the date
of such foreclosure sale, which lien shall have the same effect and be enforced in the same manner as provided in
Section 4 of Article VI hereof;

(b) No amendment to this Section 5. shall affect the rights of the holder of any such
mortgage recorded at said Land Court prior to the recording of such amendment who does not join in the execution
thereof.
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Section 6. REQUEST FOR NOTICE. Upon written request to the Association, any holder,
insurer, or guarantor of a first mortgages on an Apartment shall be provided written notice of any proposed action
which requires the consent of a specified percentage of eligible mortgage holders; provided that said request shall
state the name and address of said holder, insurer, or guarantor, and the Apartment number or address upon which it
has, insures or guarantees a mortgage.

Section 7. RELEASE OF INFORMATION. The Board may provide any information available to
it pertaining to an Apartment or the Project to the first mortgagee of such Apartment and such mortgagee may
provide any information to the Board regarding the mortgagor, the mortgagor’s loan and the status of such loan.

ARTICLE IX

CONDEMNATION

Section 1. CONDEMNATION. If there is a taking in condemnation or by eminent domain of part
or all of the Project, all compensation payable for or on account thereof shall be payable to a condemnation trustee,
who shall be designated by the Board and who shall be a substantial bank or trust company doing business in Hawaii
(“Condemnation Trustee”). If the entire Project is taken or a substantial portion thereof, the condominium property
regime may be tenninated by the agreement of Apartment Owners of the Project who represent at least sixty-five
percent (65%) of the total Common Interests, and by eligible mortgage holders who represent at least fifty-one
percent (5 1%) of the votes of the Apartments in the Project that are subject to mortgages held by eligible holders. In
such event the Condemnation Trustee shall pay to each Apartment Owner and mortgagee, as their interests may
appear, the portion of the condemnation proceeds allocable to the Owner’s Apartment. Otherwise, the Board shall
arrange for the repair and restoration of the building(s) and improvements in accordance with the design thereof
immediately prior to such condemnation or if such repair and restoration in accordance with said design are not
permissible under the laws then in force, in accordance with such modified plan as shall be previously approved by
the Board. In the event of a partial taking in which any Apartment is eliminated or not restored, the Condemnation
Trustee shall disburse the portion of the proceeds of such award allocable to said Apartment (exclusive of such
portion thereof as shall be allocable to the interest of said Apartment in the land), less the proportionate share of said
Apartment in the cost of debris removal, to the Owner of said Apartment and his mortgagee, if any, as their interests
may appear, in satisfaction of their interests in said Apartment. The Condemnation Trustee shall disburse the
remainder of the proceeds of such award to the contractor engaged in such repair and restoration in appropriate
progress payments and in the event such proceeds are insufficient to pay the costs thereof the Board is expressly
authorized to pay such excess costs from the General Operating Reserve and Capital Improvements Reserve Fund
and if the General Operating Reserve and Capital Improvements Reserve Fund are insufficient for this purpose the
Board shall levy a special assessment on the Owners of the Apartments in proportion to their Common Interests. In
the event - sums are received in excess of the - cost of repairing--and restoring the remaining buildings and
improvements, such excess proceeds shall be divided among the Owners of the Apartments in accordance with their
interests in the Common Elements. In the event all or any of the Apartments are taken and there is no final judicial
determination of the amount of condemnation proceeds allocable to each Apartment so taken, the amount allocable
to each Apartment (including the Apartment’s appurtenant interest in the Common Elements) shall be determined by
a real estate appraiser who shall be a member of the American Institute of Real Estate Appraisers or any successor
association and who shall have acted on behalf of the Association in the condemnation proceedings; or, if no such
appraiser shall have acted on behalf of the Association, or if more than one (1) appraiser shall have so acted, then the
Board shall select the appraiser; provided, however, if the Owners of the Apartments taken, within fifteen (15) days
after all of such Owners have received notice of the appointment of such appraiser, shall elect, by a majority vote, to
have the allocation determined by a panel of three (3) appraisers, then the Board shall select three (3) qualified
appraisers and the decision of any two of them shall determine the allocation of the condemnation proceeds.

Section 2. NOTICE TO MORTGAGEES: Any holder, insurer or guarantor of any mortgage of an
interest in any Apartment may file a written demand for notice with the Board stating both its name and address and
the number of the Apartment on which it has (or insures or guarantees) the mortgage; upon filing such notice, such
Party shall be entitled to receive notice of any condemnation proceeding.
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ARTICLE X

GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 1. ROUSE RULES. Each Owner recognizes the right of the Board from time to time to
establish and amend such uniform rules and regulations as the Board may deem necessary for the management and
control of the Project, including the Common Elements and Limited Common Elements and, as may be necessary
for the protection of the Project and the Apartments (“House Rules”). Each Owner agrees that the Owner’s rights
under the Declaration and Bylaws shall be in all respects subject to appropriate House Rules consistent with the
foregoing, which shall be taken to be a part hereof; and the Owner agrees to obey all such House Rules as the same
now are or may from time to time be amended, and see that the same are faithfully observed by the invitees, guests,
contractors, vendors, suppliers, employees and tenants of the Owner. The House Rules shall uniformly apply to and
be binding upon all occupants of the Apartments. The following provisions shall govern the promulgation of the
House Rules authorized herein, which shall include the establishment of a system of fines and penalties:

(a) The Board shall have the power to adopt such House Rules, including any
amendments thereof, as are consistent with and in furtherance of existing law, these Bylaws and the Declaration,
together with a list of specific fines and penalties for the violation of a rule or rules by any Owner. Upon the vote or
written consent of a majority of the Board, such House Rules or amendments shall take effect thirty (30) days after
mailing a copy of such House Rules and fmes and penalties to the Owners.

(b) Any House Rules promulgated pursuant to this Section shall provide that no fme
or penalty shall be levied without following specified procedures, which procedures shall include providing the
Owner notice and a cure period.

Section 2. ABATEMENT AND ENJOINMENT OF VIOLATIONS BY APARTMENT
OWNERS. The violation of any House Rules, or the breach of any Bylaw contained herein, or the breach of any
provision of the Declaration shall give the Board the right, in addition to any other rights set forth in these Bylaws:

(a) to enter the Apartment in which, or as to which, such violation or breach exists
and to summarily abate and remove, at the expense of the defaulting Apartment Owner, any structure, thing or
condition that may exist therein contrary to the intent and meaning of the provisions hereof, and the Board shall not
thereby be deemed guilty in any manner of trespass; or

(b) to enjoin, abate or remedy by appropriate legal proceedings, either at law or in
equity, the continuance of any such breach, and all costs thereof, including attorneys’ fees and costs, shall be borne
by the defaulting Apartment Owner; provided, however, that the Board shall notsummarily altet or demolish any
improvements constructed by an Owner without first initiating judicial proceedings.

Section 3. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR OF APARTMENTS. Except as otherwise provided
in the Declaration, each Owner, at such Owner’s expense, shall be responsible for the maintenance of and repairs to
said Owner’s Apartment, and the Limited Common Elements appurtenant thereto, other than maintenance and
repairs of any Common Elements contained in an Apartment. Any maintenance or repairs to the Common Elements
contained in an Apartment necessitated by the negligence, misuse or neglect of the Owner of said Apartment shall
be charged to the Owner of such Apartment.

Section 4. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR OF COMMON ELEMENTS AND CERTAIN
OTHER AREAS. Except as provided to in the Declaration to the contrary with respect to certain Limited Common
Element areas, all maintenance, repairs and replacements to the Common Elements, whether located inside or
outside of the Apartments shall be made by the Board and shall be charged, subject to the provisions of the
Declaration, to all the Owners as a Common Expense, unless necessitated by the negligence, misuse or neglect of an
Apartment Owner in which case such expense shall be charged to such Apartment Owner as a special assessment
enforceable under Section 4., Article VI of these Bylaws.
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Section 5. ADDITIONS OR ALTERATIONS BY BOARD. Whenever in the judgment of the
Board the Common Elements shall require additions or alterations, the Board may proceed with such additions or
alterations and shall assess all Owners for the cost thereof as a Common Expense subject to the provisions of the
Declaration.

Section 6. ADDITIONS OR ALTERATIONS BY APARTMENT OWNERS. Except as set
forth in the Declaration, no Owner shall make any addition or alteration in or to his Apartment.

(a) WRITTEN SUBMISSION OF REQUEST FOR APPROVAL AND
REQUIREMENT OF BOARD ACTION. Except as set forth in the Declaration, no Owner shall commence work
on any alterations or additions within an Apartment until the Owner has submitted to the Board a written request
(which may include plans and specifications if the Board requires) and a quorum of the Board (or a subcommittee of
the Board) approves the request in writing or the Board is deemed to have approved the request as provided in
Section 6.(b) below.

(b) TiME LIMIT FOR BOARD RESPONSE. The Board must respond to the
submission of a request within sixty (60) days of the receipt thereof by the Board; if the Board shall fail to
disapprove the request or to request revisions or amendments by the Owner, the request shall be deemed to be
approved, provided that nothing contained in this section shall authorize or permit any work affecting the Common
Elements, the exterior appearance of the Project or the rights of any other Owner.

(c) BOARD MAY IMPOSE REASONABLE CONDITIONS. The Board may
impose reasonable conditions on its approval of any such request including, without limitation, requiring (i) changes
or amendments to the request, (ii) supervision of the work by an architect, or engineer, or other construction
professional, or (iii) performance of the work by a licensed contractor in cases where the work may affect the
Common Elements, the exterior of the Project, or the rights of any other Apartment Owners.

(d) BOARD MAY REQUIRE A HALT IN CONSTRUCTION OR REMOVAL
OF UNAUTHORIZED WORK. The Board may inspect the work from time to time and direct a halt in
construction for any reason and the Board may require the removal or correction of any work which was (i) not
authorized by the Board, or (ii) which may adversely affect the Common Elements, the exterior of the Project or the
rights of any other Apartment Owner.

(e) RIGHT OF ACCESS. The Association, acting through its Board, shall have
the right of access to each Apartment from time to time, with notice, during reasonable hours as may be necessary
for the operation of the Project, or at any time, without notice, for making emergency repairs in the Apartment
necessary to prevent damage to the Common Elements or to another Apartment or Apartments.

Section 7. OWNERS MAY INCORPORATE. All of the rights, powers, obligations and duties of
the Owners set forth hereunder may be exercised and enforced by a non-profit, membership corporation, formed
under applicable laws for the purposes herein set forth by the Association. Said corporation shall be formed upon
approval of the Board. The formation of said corporation shall in no way alter the terms, covenants and conditions
set forth herein and the Articles and Bylaws of said corporation shall be subordinated hereto and controlled hereby.
Any action taken by said corporation which said action is in violation of any or all of the terms, covenants or
conditions contained herein shall be void and of no effect. Nothing contained herein shall prohibit the Board on
behalf of the Association from forming a non-profit corporation for the purpose of holding title to real property.

Section 8. SALES OR RENTAL ACTIVITIES BY EMPLOYEES OF THE ASSOCIATION.
Unless authorized by a vote of the Apartment Owners owning not less than sixty-five percent (6 5%) of the Common
Interests, employees of the Association shall not, except as to any Apartment owned by the Association, act as sales
or rental agents with respect to Apartments in the Project.

Section 9. NOTICES. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, all notices hereunder shall be
sent by first class mail, postage prepaid. Notices to the Board shall be sent in care of the Managing Agent. Notices
to any Owner shall be sent to the Project or to such other address as may have been designated by him from time to
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time, in writing, to the Board. Notices to mortgagees of Apartments shall be sent to their respective addresses, as
designated by them from time to time, in writing, to the Board. All notices shall be deemed to have been given
when mailed, except notices of change of address which shall be deemed to have been given when received.

Section 10. CAPTIONS. The captions herein are inserted only as a matter of convenience and for
reference, and in no way defme, limit or describe the scope of these Bylaws, or the intent of any provisions thereof.

Section 11. GENDER. The use of any gender in these Bylaws shall be deemed to include either or
both genders and the use of the singular shall be deemed to include the plural whenever the context so requires.

Section 12. WAIVER. No restriction, condition, obligation or provision contained in these Bylaws
shall be deemed to have been abrogated or waived by reason of any failure to enforce the same, irrespective of the
number of violations or breaches thereof which may occur.

Section 13. INTERPRETATION. The provisions of these Bylaws shall be liberally construed to
effectuate the purpose of creating a uniform condominium property regime whereby the Owners of Apartments shall
carry out and pay for the operation and maintenance of the Project as a mutually beneficial and efficient
establishment.

Section 14. AMENDMENT. The provisions of these Bylaws, other than this paragraph, may be
amended at any time by the vote or written consent of the Owners of Apartments to which are appurtenant at least
sixty-five percent (65%) of the total Common Interests, which amendment shall be effective upon the recording at
said Land Court of an instrument in writing, signed and acknowledged by such Owners or by two (2) officers of the
Association; provided, however, that each one of the particulars set forth in Section 5 14A-82(b) of the Act shall
always be embodied in these Bylaws; and provided further that the Developer shall have the reserved right to
unilaterally amend these Bylaws for the purpose of complying with any applicable State, Federal or County law, or
for the purpose of incorporating requirements imposed by any institutional mortgage lender or by the Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation, Federal National Mortgage Association, U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development or Veterans Administration, or for the purpose of bringing the Project and/or these Bylaws into
compliance with the laws and rules of any other jurisdiction in which the Developer intends to register, market or
sell Apartments. Each and every party acquiring an interest in the Project, by such acquisition, consents to such
amendments as described in the preceding sentence and agrees to execute and deliver such documents and
instruments and do such other things as may be necessary or convenient to effect the same; and appoints the
Developer and its assigns his attorney-in-fact with full power of substitution to execute and deliver such documents
and instruments and to do such things on his behalf, which grant of such power, being coupled with an interest, is
irrevocable for the term of said reserved rights, and shall not be effected by the disability of such party or parties.
Further, no amendment to the Declaration or these Bylaws that affects the Developer’s reserved rights contained
within the Declaration shall be valid, unless consented to by the Developer in writing.

Section 15. RESTATEMENT OF BYLAWS. Any other provision of these Bylaws
notwithstanding, the Board, upon resolution duly adopted, shall have the authority as set forth in the Act to restate
these Bylaws from time to time to set forth any prior amendments hereto, or to amend these Bylaws as required to
conform with the provisions of the Act or any other statute, ordinance, rule or regulation enacted by any
governmental authority.

Section 16. SEVERABILITY. The provisions hereof shall be deemed independent and severable,
and the invalidity or partial invalidity or enforceability of any one provision shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision hereof.

Section 17. EXAMINATION OF DOCUMENTS OF THE ASSOCIATION. The minutes of
meetings of the Board (except for any executive session thereof) and Association and the Association’s financial
records, including, without limitation, audit reports and budgets, shall be available for examination by Apartment
Owners or by the holder, insurer or guarantor of any mortgage pertaining to any Apartment. Copies of such minutes
of meetings and financial records shall be provided to any Owner and to the holder, insurer or guarantor of any
mortgage pertaining to any Apartment upon such party’s written request and upon payment of a reasonable charge
for duplicating, postage, stationery and other administrative charges. No person shall knowingly make any false
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certificate, entry, or memorandum upon any of the books or records. No person shall knowingly alter, destroy,
mutilate or conceal any such books or records. Such Association documents shall be kept and maintained at the
address of the Project, or elsewhere within the State of Hawaii as determined by the Board and shall be made
available as follows:

(a) The Association’s most current fmancial statement and minutes of the most
current regular Board meeting, once approved, shall be available to any Owner at no cost or on twenty-four hour
loan, at a convenient location designated by the Board.

(b) The following documents shall be available for inspection at convenient hours at
a place designated by the Board:

(1) Minutes of regular meetings of the Board and the Association for the
current and prior year; such minutes of meetings shall include the recorded vote of each Director on all motions
except motions voted on in executive session.

(2) Financial statements, general ledgers, the accounts receivable ledger,
accounts payable ledgers, check ledgers, insurance policies, contracts, invoices of the Association and the list of
delinquent assessment accounts ofninety (90) days or more for the current and prior year.

(c) Proxies, tally sheets, ballots, Owners’ check-in lists, and the certificate of
election shall be available for inspection for a period of thirty (30) days following any Association meeting, after
which time proxies and ballots may be destroyed. Tally sheets, Owners’ check-in lists, and the certificate of election
shall be retained as Association records.

(d) An Owner may file a written request with the Board to examine other
documents of the Association. The Board shall give written authorization for inspection or written refusal with an
explanation of the refusal within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of the request.

(e) As to any request for inspection under the above Sections 17.b, c or d, the Board
may require the party requesting inspection to furnish to the Association a duly executed and acknowledged
affidavit stating that the information is requested in good faith and that in the event that the administrative time to
respond to such request exceeds eight (8) hours in any calendar year, the party requesting inspection shall pay for
administrative time in excess of eight (8) hours per year.

(f) The Managing Agent may dispose of Association records which are more than
- five (5) years old without liability if the Managing Agent first provides the Board with written notice of the

Management Agent’s intent to dispose of the records if not retrieved by the Board within sixty (60) days which
notice shall include an itemized list of the records which the Managing Agent intends to dispose of.

Section 18. MEMBERSHIP LIST. Each Owner shall promptly file with the Board a true and
complete copy, as recorded at said Land Court, of each Apartment Deed, recordable lease, mortgage, Agreement of
Sale, condominium conveyance document, or other instrument whereby such Owner acquires, encumbers or
disposes of an interest in his Apartment. The Board orManaging Agent, under the direction of the Board shall keep
an accurate and current list of members of the Association and their current addresses and the names and addresses
of the vendees under Agreements of Sale, if any. The list shall be maintained at a place designated by the Board and
a copy shall be available, at a reasonable charge, to any Owner who furnishes to the Managing Agent or Board a
duly executed and acknowledged affidavit stating that the list (a) will be used by such Owner personally and only
for the purpose of soliciting votes or proxies or providing information to other Owners with respect to Association
matters and (b) shall not be used by such Owner or furnished to anyone else for any other purpose.

Section 19. PROJECT DOCUMENTS. The Managing Agent shall maintain at its office accurate
copies of the Declaration, these Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation of the Association, if any, annual report,
names and addresses of the Board and officers, all minutes and resolutions, a current list of all Apartment Owners,
the House Rules, a sample original Apartment Deed, and all public reports issued for the Project and any
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amendments thereto. The Managing Agent shall provide copies of those documents to Apartment Owners, holders,
insurers and guarantors of first mortgages, prospective purchasers and their agents during normal business hours,
upon payment to the Managing Agent of a reasonable charge to defray any administrative or duplicating costs. Each
Owner shall give copies of the Project Documents to their lender and buyers, as may be required.

Section 20. TERMINATION. Except as provided in Section 514A-21 of the Act, the Project shall
not be abandoned, terminated or removed from the condominium property regime created by the Declaration and the
Act without the prior written approval of all mortgagees.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank)
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Developer, for and on behalf of the Association of Apartment Owners of
the Project, has executed these presents this ( day of ____________________, 2004, adopting these
Bylaws pursuant to the Act as the Bylaws of the Association.

LAEROC WAIKIKI PARKSIDE, LLC
a Hawaii limited liability company

By LAEROC PARTNERS, INC.,
a California corporation
Its Manager

By 4’-

Kim Alan Benjamin I
Its President

“Developer”

STATE OF
SS:

COUNTY OF )-...os A
On this j day of ;1fl‘- , 2004, before me appeared KIM ALAN BENJAMIN, to

me personally known, who being by me dulVsworn or affinned, did say that such person(s) executed the foregoing
instrument as the free act and deed of such person(s), and if applicable, in the capacities shown, having been duly
authorized to execute such instrument in such capacities.

Notary blic, Sta e of . - -

My commission expires: £W ‘4 op

— Commission #1319988 1
Notary Public - California

Los Angeles County





































































































































































































AOAO Palms at Waikiki
Financial Statement
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Pending Audit and Review of a CerLificd Public Accountant



AOAO Palms at Waikiki Page: ‘1
Balance Sheet
As of 05/31/15

Account Description Operatiig Reserves Other fotsts 4

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Mutual Of Omaha Bank-Operating 155,140.09 155,140.09
Cash Checking Pending Transfer (20,388.97) (20,388.97)

Total Cash & Mkt. Securities 134,751.12 .00 .00 134,751.12

Reserves

MOOB-Insured Cash Sweep Acct 356,950.48 356,950.48
Mutual Of Omaha Bank-Reserves 139,154.50 139,154.50
MOOB-CDARS Reserve Account 300,999.06 300,999.06
MOOB-Certificates of Deposit 101,691.78 101691.78
Cash Savings Pending Transfer 20,388.97 20,388.97

Total Cash Reserves .00 919,184.79 .00 919,184.79

Total Cash & Reserves 134,751.12 919,184.79 .00 1,053,935.91

Receivables

Owner Receivable 453.09 453.09
Late Fees Receivable 22.20 22.20
Owner Admin. Fees Receiv. 10.00 10.00
Owner Interest Receivable 90.21 90.21
Accou nts Receivable-Other 7,875.79 7,875.79

Total Receivables 8,451.29 .00 .00 8,451.29

OTHER ASSETS
Prepaid Expenses-General 5,567.52 5,567.52
Prepaid Insurance 43,382.79 43,382.79

Total Other Assets 48,950.31 .00 .00 48,950.31

TOTAL ASSETS 192,152.72 919184.79 .00 1,111,337.51
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Balance Sheet
As of 05/31/15

Account Descnption Operatirg Reerves Other Totals

LIABILITIES & EQLJFFY

CURRENT LFABILITIES:
AccountsPayable 119,11473 119,114.73
Due to/ From Aqua Palms Hotel (6,526.70) (6526.70)
General Excise Taxes Collected 160.10 160.10
Accrued Audft Fees 531.35 531.38
Accrued Other 4,504.94 4,50494
Accrued Utilities 22,324.39 22,324.39
Advance Owner Payments 16,209.10 16,209.10

Subtotal Current Liab, 156,317.94 .00 .00 156,317.94

EQUITY.
PriorYoar Net Surplus(Deuicit) 393,898.07 393,898.07
Start-Up Assessments 173,379.74 173,379.74
Start-Up Reserves 286,000.00 266,000.00
Current Net Surplus/(Deficit) 16,664.56 105,077.20 .00 121,741.76

Subtotal Equity 410,562.63 544,456.94 .00 955,019.57

TOTALLIABILITIES&EQUITY 566,880.57 544,456.94 .00 1,111,337.51



AOAO Palms at Waikiki
Income and Expense Statement
Period: 05/01/15 to 05/31/15

Current Period
Budget Variance ActualDescription

REVENUES
Maintenance Fees
Late Fee Income
Owner Admin. Fees Income
Owner Interest Inconie
Interest Earned Reserve Acot
Space Rental
Long Dist Telephone Revenue
Vendng Income
Laundry Income
Interest Income

114,723.00 114,741.00

Year To Date
Budget Variance

Page: 1

Budge!

573,615.00 573,705.00
25.00

.00
10.50
97.25

1,678.01
.00
.00

1,724.76
13.14

52.00
.00

56,00
231.00

1,678.00
157.00
181.00

2331.00
13.00

(18.00)
(27.00)

.00
(45.50)

(133.75)
.01

(157.00)
(181.00)
(606.24)

.14

90.30
50.00
194.19
444.31

8390.03
448.39
665 .36

8,464.28
62.84

260.00
.00

280.00
1,155.00
8,390.00
785.00
905.00

11,655.00
65.00

(90.00)
(169.70)

50.00
(85.81)

(710.69)
.03

(336.61)
(239.64)

(3,190.72)
(2.16)

1,376,896.00
625.00

.00
668.09

2,768.00
20,136.00
1,881.00
2,166.00
27,975.00

152.00

TOTALREVENUES 118,271.66 119,440.00 (1,168.34) 592,424.70 597,200.00 (4,775.30) 1,433,267.00
EXPENSES
GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Management Fee .00 49,421.00
Accounting Fee .00 22,189.00
Audit Fees .00 2,000.00
Legal Fees 2,462.47 6,973.00
ProtFees- Reserve Study .00 810.00
Postage & Mail 256.36 1,371.00
Insurance 3,828.75 116,401.00
Office Equipment& Supplies (108 69) 924.00
Meetings (185.94) 500.00
GETS General Excise Tax 318.55 2,862.00
Licenses&Fees (1,810.00) 2,237.00

Total G & A Expenses 18,034.94 17140.08 (894.86) 80,938.90 85,700.40 4,761.50 205,688.00
PAYROLL & BENEFITS
Admrnistrative Salary 5,332.00 5332.00 .00 26,690.00 26,660.00 .00 64,784.00
Ma’ntenance Handyman Salary 14139.00 14,139.00 .00 70,695.00 70,695.00 .00 171,789.00
Janiorial I Utility Salary 10,869.00 10,809.00 .00 54,345.00 54,345.00 .00 132,058.00
Security Services 4,734.66 5,408.00 673.34 24,501.11 27,040.00 2,538.89 64,898.00

4,118.00
1,849.00
167.00

.00
67.00

.00
8,934.25

.00

.00
159.69

2,740.00

4,118.00
1,949.00
167.00
581.08
67.00
114.00

9700.00
77.00
42.00
239.00
186.00

20,590.00
9,245.00
835.00
442.93
335.00
313.64

44,671.25
493.69

.00

.00

.00
581.08

.00
114.00
765.75
77.00
42.00
79.31

(2,554.00)

20,590.00
9,245.00
835.00

2,905.40
335.00
570.00

48,500.00
385.00

395.94
876.45

2,740.00

210.00
1,195.00
930.00

Total Payroll & Benefits 35,074.66 35,748.00 673.34 176,291.11 178,740.00 2,538.89 433,529.00
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Y.artyi ,H
Budget

Period: 05/01/15 to 05/31/15
Current Period Year To Date

Description Actual tudget Variance 4ctual Budget Variance
UTILITIES
Electricly 31548.32 32237,00 688.68 153,961.08 161,185.00 7,193.91 386,846.00
Water 4,606.94 3,611.00 (995.94) 22,332.17 18,055.00 (4,277.17) 43,336.00
Sewer 9,695.82 8,750.00 (945.82) 47,414.55 43,750.00 (3,664.55) 104,998.00
Gas 735.24 5,880.00 5,144.76 14,880.31 29,400.00 14,599.69 70,564.00
Diesel Fuel .00 50.00 50.00 .00 250.00 250.00 600.00
TV&Cable 4,306.54 4,307.00 .46 21,273.44 21,535.00 261.56 51,678.00
Telephone Repairs 680.63 610.00 (70.63) 3,120.42 3,050.00 (70.42) 7,322.00
TelephoneExpense-t.ocal 1,319.22 681.00 (638.22) 3,478.38 3,405.00 (73.38) 8,169.00
Internet Website .00 96.00 95.00 539.70 480.00 (59.70) 1,151.00
Hi-speed Internet 1,171.95 1,196.00 24.05 5,896.57 5,980.00 83.43 14,349.00

Total Utilities 54,064.66 57,418.00 3,353.34 2/2,846.63 287,090.00 14,243.37
BUILDING MAINTENANCE
Elevator Ma ntenance
Lighting Repa r & Supplies
Life & Safety
Gen, Maintenance & Repair
Peinting Supplies
Pool Maintenance & Suppi es
Air Cond /Chillar Repair
Ice Machine Repairs
Window Cleaning
Janitorial Supplies
Laundry Expense
Maintenance Supplies
Locks, Keys & Repairs
Door Repairs
Security Equip. Repairs

8,783.17 6,338.00 (2,445.17) 30,734.16 31,690.00 955.84

689,013.00

1,100.00
.00

891.63
.00

204.19
.00

1,247.54
142.83

.00
531.69
242.35

.00
758.02

3,664.92
.00

1,331.00
500.00
904.00
253.00
290.00
167.00

1,142.00
83.00
29.00
750.00
228.00
41.00
237.00
333.00
50.00

231.00
500.00
12.37

253.00
85.81
167.00

(105.54)
(59.83)
29.00

218.31
(14.35)
41.00

(521.02)
(3,331.92)

50.00

6,632.47
946.80

3,586.50
651.77

1,084.82
860.96

6,075.86
671.63

.00
3,030.20
1,045.41

66.53
1,290.23
4,790.98

.00

6,655.00
2,500.00
4,520.00
1,265.00
1,450.00
835.00

5,710.00
415.00
145.00

3,750.00
1,140.00
205.00

1,185.00
1,665.00
250.00

22.53
1,553.20
933.50
613.23
365.18
(25.96)

(365.86)
(256.63)
145.00
719.90
94.59

138.47
(105.23)

(3,125.98)
250.00

15,977.00
6,000.00

10,845.00
3,037.00
3,479.00
2,002.00
13,709.00

997.00
350.00

8,998.00
2,734.00
495.00

2,841.00
4,000.00
600.00

Total Building Maintenance 76,064.00



Oper Net Before Capital Resrv

CAP rIAL EXPENSES

(1,324.20) 381.92 (1,706.12) 16,664.55 1,909.60 14,754.96 .00

Net Reserve Expenses (20,666.98) 25,445.00 46,111 98 (105,077.20) 127,225.00 232,302.20 305,337.00

Acttát,

AOAO Palms at Waikiki Page: 3
income and Expense Statement
Period: 05101/15 to 05/31/15

Current Period YeayTo Date Y$dy
Budget Variance Actual Bpdget Variance BtidgtDescriptiot

CONTRACT SERVLCES
Grounds Ma ot & L.andscapng .00 50.00 50.00 278.53 250.00 (28.53) 600.00
Chiller Maintenance 2,085.13 1,149.00 (936.13) 7,700.99 5,745.00 (1,955.99) 13,788.00
Utility Reimbursement (891.57) (1,213.00) (321.43) (4,944.65) (6,065.00) (1,120.35) (14,552.00)
Trash and Retuse Removal 1,900.52 1,905.00 4.48 9,262.72 9,525.00 242.28 22,856.00
PestControl 544.35 523.00 (21.35) 2,721.75 2,615.00 (106.75) 6,281.00

TotalContractServices 3,638.43 2,414.00 (1,224.43) 15,039.34 12,070,00 (2,969.34) 28,973.00

TOTALEXPENSES 119,595.86 119,058.08 (537.78) 575,760.14 595,290.40 19,530.26 1,433,267.00

Reserves Fees Collected (22,012.00) (22,012.00) .00 (110,060.00) (110,060.00) .00 (264,138.00)
Resrve-Reseal,Strip&Repeir .00 1,720.00 1,720.00 .00 8,600.00 8,600.00 20,637.00
ReservesBacktow Preventer 4’ .00 687.00 687.00 .03 3,435.00 3,435.00 8,240.00
Reserves-Spell Repaim-Cont. .00 6,438.00 6,438.00 .03 32,190.00 32,190.00 77,250.00
Reserves-DoorOperatorLobby .00 429.00 429.00 .03 2,145.00 2,145.00 5,150.00
Resvs -Sec CamerasMonitors 445.02 481.00 35.98 445.02 2,405.00 1,959.98 5,768.00
Reserves Pool .00 257.00 257.00 .03 1,285.00 1,285.00 3,090.00
Reserves - Garage Concrete Ctg .00 549.00 549.00 .00 2,745.00 2,745.00 6,592.00
Reserves-Fitness Equipment 900.00 .00 (900.00) 930.00 .00 (900.00) .00
Reserves- Plumbing Annual Ctg .00 644.00 644.00 3,637.78 3,220.00 (417.78) 7,725.00
Reserves - Ext Sutaces Paint .00 36,252.00 36,252.00 .00 181,260.00 181,260.00 435,023.00

Current Net Surplusf(Defcit) 19,342.78 (25,063.08) 44,405.86 121,741.76 (125,315.40) 247,057.16 (305,337.00)
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•:fl:qScniptlon
RESERVE FUNDING
Reserves Fees Collected

AOAO Palms at Waikiki
STATEMENT OF RESERVE ANALYSIS

Period: 05101/15 to 05/31/15
Current Period Year To Date

Rctual Budget Varlanae Actual Budget Variance

22,012.00 22,012.00 .00 110,060.00 110,060.00

• ‘ .YearIy
Budget

.00 264,138.00

Total Reserve Funding 22,012.00 22,012.00 .00 110,060.00 110,060.00 00 264,138.00

Total Reserve Projects 1,345.02 47,457.00 46,111.98 4,982.80 237,285.00 232,302.20 569,475.00

RESERVE PROJECTS
Resrve- Reseal,Strip& Repafr .00 1,720,00
Reserves-Baokf low Preventer 4” .00 667.00
Reserves-Spall Repairs-Coit .00 6,438.00
Reserves - Door Operator Lobby .00 429.00
Resvs - Sec. Cameras-Monitors 445.02 481.00
Reserves - Pool .00 257.00
Reserves - Garage Concrete Ctg .00 549.00
Reserves-Fitness Equipment 900.00 .00
Reserves- Plumbing Annual Ctg .00 644.00
Reserves - Ext. Sufaces Paint

1720.00 .00 8,600.00 8,600.00 20,637.00
667.00 .00 3,435.00 3,435.00 8,240.00

6,436.00 .00 32,190.00 32,190.00 77,250.00
429.00 .00 2,145.00 2,145.00 5,150.00
35.98 445.02 2,405.00 1,959.68 5,768.00
257.00 .00 1,285.00 1,285.00 3,090.00
549.00 .00 2,745.00 2,745.00 6,59200

(900.00) 900.00 .00 (900.00) 00
644.00 3,637.78 3,220.00 (417.78) 7,725.00

.00 36,252.00 36,252.00 .00 181,260.00 161,260.00 436,023.00

Total Reserve Surplss(Defic]t 20,666.96 (25,445.00) 46,111.98 105077.20 (127,225.00) 232,302.20 (305,337.00)
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ASSOCIATION OF APARTMENT OWNERS  

OF PALMS AT WAIKIKI  

 
HOUSE RULES 

 
The primary purpose of these House Rules is to protect all Owners and occupants from annoyance and 

nuisance caused by improper use of the Apartments and Common Elements of Palms at Waikiki condominium 

project (the "Project"). The full authority and responsibility for enforcing these House Rules may be delegated to a 
Managing Agent by the Board.  All Owners and occupants and their tenants, guests and visitors shall be bound by 
these House Rules and by standards of reasonable conduct whether covered by these House Rules or not; provided, 

however, that neither the Board nor the Managing Agent shall be responsible for any noncompliance or violation of 
these House Rules by said Owners, occupants, tenants, guests or visitors.  These House Rules may be amended by 
the Board of the Association as provided in the Bylaws of the Association, and as provided herein at Article XI. 

The terms used herein with initial capital letters shall have the meanings given to them in the Declaration of 
Condominium Property Regime of Palms at Waikiki, as the same may be amended from time to time (the 
“Declaration”), except as expressly otherwise provided herein. 

If inconsistent with these House Rules, the Declaration and the Bylaws shall prevail. 

I. OCCUPANCY. 

1. USE OF APARTMENTS .  All Apartments shall be occupied and used by the respective Owners thereof, 

their tenants, visitors and guests only for those purposes permitted under the Declaration.  Hotel and commercial 
operations, and transient vacation rental use are expressly permitted in the Project.  Such permitted uses include 
ingress and egress over the Common Elements of the Project. 

2. REGISTRATION REQUIRED.  All Owners are required to register themselves and their tenants 
(excluding hotel guests) with the Managing Agent.  Such registration shall include contact information in the event 
of any emergency, including phone numbers, addresses and such other contact information as may be reasonably 

required for notice to the Owners, their tenants, relatives and physicians. 

3. PETS AND OTHER ANIMALS.  No pets or animals shall be allowed in any Apartment or in the Common 
Elements of the Project, except that visually impaired persons, hearing impaired persons and physically impaired 

persons shall be allowed to keep certified seeing-eye dogs, certified signal dogs and certified service dogs, 
respectively, in their Apartments.  Further, nothing herein shall hinder access to the Apartments or other portions of 
the Project by physically-challenged persons. 

4. EQUAL RIGHTS OF ALL OWNERS.  All Owners and tenants of Apartments in the Project and those 
who are guests of such Owners and tenants, shall have the equal right to use, occupy and enjoy their respective 
Apartments and to utilize the Common Elements that are not also designated Limited Common Elements, except as 

otherwise permitted in the Declaration. 

II. TEMPORARY OCCUPANCY. 

1. USE BY OWNER'S LESSEES , TENANTS AND GUESTS .  Subject to the terms of these House Rules, the 

Bylaws and the Declaration, an Owner may lease his Apartment, but the person or persons leasing, renting or 
occupying the Apartment shall abide by these House Rules, the Bylaws and the Declaration, and the Owner shall 
assume responsibility for the conduct of all occupants of his Apartment. 

2. CONDUCT OF OWNER'S LESSEES , TENANTS AND GUESTS .  An Apartment Owner shall be responsible 
for the conduct of its employees, agents, customers, lessees, tenants, visitors and guests, as appropriate, and shall, 
upon the request of the Board or the Managing Agent, immediately abate and remove, at said Owner's expense, any 

structure, thing or condition that may exist with regard to the occupancy of said Owner's Apartment by its 
employees, agents, customers, lessees, tenants, visitors or guests contrary to the intent and meaning of the provisions 
of these House Rules, the Bylaws and the Declaration; or, if the Owner is unable to control the conduct of said 

employees, agents, customers, lessees, tenants, visitors or guests to conform with the intent and meaning of the 

ASSOCIATION OF APARTMENT OWNERS
OF PALMS AT WAIKIKI

HOUSE RULES

The primary purpose of these House Rules is to protect all Owners and occupants from annoyance and
nuisance caused by improper use of the Apartments and Common Elements of Palms at Waikiki condominium
project (the “Project”). The full authority and responsibility for enforcing these House Rules may be delegated to a
Managing Agent by the Board. All Owners and occupants and their tenants, guests and visitors shall be bound by
these House Rules and by standards of reasonable conduct whether covered by these House Rules or not; provided,
however, that neither the Board nor the Managing Agent shall be responsible for any noncompliance or violation of
these House Rules by said Owners, occupants, tenants, guests or visitors. These House Rules may be amended by
the Board of the Association as provided in the Bylaws of the Association, and as provided herein at Article XI.

The terms used herein with initial capital letters shall have the meanings given to them in the Declaration of
Condominium Property Regime of Palms at Waikiki, as the same may be amended from time to time (the
“Declaration”), except as expressly otherwise provided herein.

If inconsistent with these House Rules, the Declaration and the Bylaws shall prevail.

I. OCCUPANCY.

1. USE OF APARTMENTS. All Apartments shall be occupied and used by the respective Owners thereof,
their tenants, visitors and guests only for those purposes permitted under the Declaration. Hotel and commercial
operations, and transient vacation rental use are expressly permitted in the Project. Such permitted uses include
ingress and egress over the Common Elements of the Project.

2. REGISTRATION REQUIRED. All Owners are required to register themselves and their tenants
(excluding hotel guests) with the Managing Agent. Such registration shall include contact information in the event
of any emergency, including phone numbers, addresses and such other contact information as may be reasonably
required for notice to the Owners, their tenants, relatives and physicians.

3. PETS AND OTHER ANIMALS. No pets or animals shall be allowed in any Apartment or in the Common
Elements of the Project, except that visually impaired persons, hearing impaired persons and physically impaired
persons shall be allowed to keep certified seeing-eye dogs, certified signal dogs and certified service dogs,
respectively, in their Apartments. Further, nothing herein shall hinder access to the Apartments or other portions of
the Project by physically-challenged persons.

4. EQUAL RIGHTS OF ALL OWNERS. All Owners and tenants of Apartments in the Project and those
who are guests of such Owners and tenants, shall have the equal right to use, occupy and enjoy their respective
Apartments and to utilize the Common Elements that are not also designated Limited Common Elements, except as
otherwise permitted in the Declaration.

II. TEMPORARY OCCUPANCY.

1. USE BY OWNER’S LESSEES, TENANTS AND GUESTS. Subject to the terms of these House Rules, the
Bylaws and the Declaration, an Owner may lease his Apartment, but the person or persons leasing, renting or
occupying the Apartment shall abide by these House Rules, the Bylaws and the Declaration, and the Owner shall
assume responsibility for the conduct of all occupants of his Apartnrnt.

2. CONDUCT OF OWNER’S LESSEES, TENANTS AND GUESTS. An Apartment Owner shall be responsible
for the conduct of its employees, agents, customers, lessees, tenants, visitors and guests, as appropriate, and shall,
upon the request of the Board or the Managing Agent, immediately abate and remove, at said Owner’s expense, any
structure, thing or condition that may exist with regard to the occupancy of said Owner’s Apartment by its
employees, agents, customers, lessees, tenants, visitors or guests contrary to the intent and meaning of the provisions
of these House Rules, the Bylaws and the Declaration; or, if the Owner is unable to control the conduct of said
employees, agents, customers, lessees, tenants, visitors or guests to conform with the intent and meaning of the
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provisions of these House Rules, the Bylaws and the Declaration, said Owner shall, upon request of the Board or 

Managing Agent, immediately remove such employees, agents, customers, lessees, tenants, visitors or guests from 
the Project premises, without compensation for lost rentals or income or any other damage resulting therefrom. 

III. COMMON ELEMENTS , LIMITED COMMON ELEMENTS , ENTRANCES AND LANAIS . 

1. PLANTS AND LANDSCAPING.  Unless growing in the ground within a Common Element or Limited 
Common Element of the Project, all plants shall be placed in containers so as to prevent the dripping of water or soil 
onto other Apartments or the Common Elements.  None of the Project's landscaping is to be removed, picked or 

transplanted by any owner, tenant or guest. 

2. THROWING OBJECTS FROM THE BUILDING.  Nothing shall be thrown from windows or lanais. 

3. GARBAGE DISPOSAL.  Owners and tenants are responsible for disposing of their own garbage in the 

trash receptacle(s) located on Parking Level P-3.  Garbage shall be disposed of only in areas provided therefor and 
shall not be left in any other part of the Project.  Garbage containing food shall be thoroughly drained and secured in 
a leak-proof receptacles.   

4. AESTHETICS.  No unsightliness within the public view is permitted on the Project premises.  Any 
unsightly or disturbing items shall be removed upon the request of the Managing Agent.  Nothing shall be placed in 
an Apartment's windows so as to be visible from the exterior of the Project, except window coverings approved by 

the Board, the Developer or its assignee, and signs posted by the Owners of any Commercial Apartments or their 
respective licensees, as provided in the Declaration.  Shoes, slippers and other personal items shall not be allowed to 
remain in view at Apartment entryways.  Only furniture and small plants approved by the Board may be placed on 

lanais.  Screens, clothing, towels or other items that are deemed unsightly by the Managing Agent, at the Managing 
Agent's discretion, shall be removed from the lanais upon written request of the Managing Agent.  

5. PERSONAL PROPERTY.  No items of personal property, including, but not limited to, mopeds, bicycles 

or other items, shall be left or allowed in any of the Common Element areas or visible from lanais, except in areas 
designated therefor, if any.  Articles of any kind left in any of the Common Elements will be removed at the Owner's 
or occupant's risk and expense at the direction of the Board or in the discretion of the Managing Agent. 

6. PROTECTION OF COMMON AREAS.  Furniture, furnishings and equipment for the Common Elements 
have been provided for the safety, comfort and convenience of all residents and guests of the Apartments and, 
therefore, shall not be altered, removed or transferred to other areas without permission from the Managing Agent or 

the Board.  Each Owner or tenant shall be held personally responsible for any damage or destruction to any 
Common or Limited Common Elements caused by such owner or tenant or the owner's or tenant's guests, children, 
employees or invitees. 

7. ATTIRE.  Owners, tenants and guests shall wear shirts and footwear when in any of the Project's 
common areas, including corridors, hallways, lobbies, elevators and the parking garage. 

8. RECREATIONAL FACILITIES .  Each Owner, tenant and guest will abide by any and all regulations 

promulgated by the Board or the Managing Agent from time to time as to any recreational facilities, including, but 
not limited to the swimming pool and Fitness Room.   

9. FIRE SPRINKLERS.  Nothing shall be hung from or otherwise attached to any fire sprinkler located 

within an Apartment or anywhere else at the Project, and no fire sprinkler shall be tampered with in any way 
whatsoever.  Each Owner shall be responsible for any and all damage, including water damage, caused by such 
Owner, its tenants and each of their guests, children, employees and invitees in violation of this rule. 

10. ACCESS.  The grounds, walkways, passages, lobbies, stairways, corridors and all other similar 
Common Elements shall be used strictly for ingress and egress from the public street, parking area and apartment 
areas, and must be at all times kept free from obstructions. 

11. CLOTHING AND LAUNDRY.  Clothing or laundry shall not be hung in doorways, windows or lanais and 
shall not be visible in any manner from outside the Apartment.  

provisions of these House Rules, the Bylaws and the Declaration, said Owner shall, upon request of the Board or
Managing Agent, immediately remove such employees, agents, customers, lessees, tenants, visitors or guests from
the Project premises, without compensation for lost rentals or income or any other damage resulting therefrom.

III. COMMON ELEMENTS, LIMITED COMMON ELEMENTS, ENTRANCES AND LANAIS.

1. PLANTS AND LANDSCAPING. Unless growing in the ground within a Common Element or Limited
Common Element of the Project, all plants shall be placed in containers so as to prevent the dripping of water or soil
onto other Apartments or the Common Elements. None of the Project’s landscaping is to be removed, picked or
transplanted by any owner, tenant or guest.

2. THROWING OBJECTS FROM THE BUILDING. Nothing shall be thrown from windows or lanais.

3. GARBAGE DISPOSAL. Owners and tenants are responsible for disposing of their own garbage in the
trash receptacle(s) located on Parking Level P-3. Garbage shall be disposed of only in areas provided therefor and
shall not be left in any other part of the Project. Garbage containing food shall be thoroughly drained and secured in
a leak-proof receptacles.

4. AESTHETICS. No unsightliness within the public view is permitted on the Project premises. Any
unsightly or disturbing items shall be removed upon the request of the Managing Agent. Nothing shall be placed in
an Apartment’s windows so as to be visible from the exterior of the Project, except window coverings approved by
the Board, the Developer or its assignee, and signs posted by the Owners of any Commercial Apartments or their
respective licensees, as provided in the Declaration. Shoes, slippers and other personal items shall not be allowed to
remain in view at Apartment entryways. Only furniture and small plants approved by the Board may be placed on
lanais. Screens, clothing, towels or other items that are deemed unsightly by the Managing Agent, at the Managing
Agent’s discretion, shall be removed from the lanais upon written request of the Managing Agent.

5. PERSONAL PROPERTY. No items of personal property, including, but not limited to, mopeds, bicycles
or other items, shall be left or allowed in any of the Common Element areas or visible from lanais, except in aieas
designated therefor, if any. Articles of any kind left in any of the Common Elements will be removed at the Owner’s
or occupant’s risk and expense at the direction of the Board or in the discretion of the Managing Agent.

6. PROTECTION OF COMMON AREAS. Furniture, furnishings and equipment for the Common Elements
have been provided for the safety, comfort and convenience of all residents and guests of the Apartments and,
therefore, shall not be altered, removed or transferred to other areas without permission from the Managing Agent or
the Board. Each Owner or tenant shall be held personally responsible for any damage or destruction to any
Common or Limited Common Elements caused by such owner or tenant or the owner’s or tenant’s guests, children,
employees or invitees.

7. ATTIRE Owners, tenants and guests shall wear shirts and footwear when in any of the Project’s
common areas, including corridors, hallways, lobbies, elevators and the parking garage.

8. RECREATIONAL FACILiTIES. Each Owner; tenant and guest will abide by any and all regulations
promulgated by the Board or the Managing Agent from time to time as to any recreational facilities, including, but
not limited to the swimming pool and Fitness Room

9. FIRE SPRINKLERS. Nothing shall be hung from or otherwise attached to any fire sprinkler located
within an Apartment or anywhere else at the Project, and no fire sprinkler shall be tampered with in any way
whatsoever. Each Owner shall be responsible for any and all damage, including water damage, caused by such
Owner, its tenants and each of their guests, children, employees and invitees in violation of this rule.

10. ACCESS. The grounds, walkways, passages, lobbies, stairways, corridors and all other similar
Common Elements shall be used strictly for ingress and egress from the public street, parking area and apartment
areas, and must be at all times kept free from obstructions.

11. CLOTHING AND LAUNDRY. Clothing or laundry shall not be hung in doorways, windows or lanais and
shall not be visible in any manner from outside the Apartment.
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12. USE OF LAUNDRY FACILITIES .  Laundry facilities are currently provided on Parking Level P-3 of the 

building for the convenience of Owners and occupants of the Project.  If clothes are left in the washers or dryers 
after a cycle is  completed, the clothes may be removed by the next person waiting to use the machines.  Additional 
rules may be posted in the laundry areas respecting use of the machines. 

IV.  PARKING AREAS. 

1. OBSTRUCTIONS ; USES .  The porte cochere and driveways of the Project must not be obstructed or used 
for any purpose other than ingress and egress.  Obstructions, pallets or other loading gear or machinery shall not be 

left in any parking area or Common Element area so as to interfere with the normal flow of traffic or so as to create 
a nuisance to other Owners or occupants. 

2. WORKMEN AND DELIVERIES .  When workmen are performing work on an Apartment or if any 

occupant orders deliveries of any kind, the Owner or occupant shall advise them to use a parking stall in appropriate 
Project parking areas, if any, or to find parking outside of the Project. 

3. VIOLATIONS .  Violators of parking regulations shall have their cars, trucks or other vehicles or gear 

towed away or removed at their own expense.  If the violator is an employee, agent, lessee, tenant, visitor or guest of 
an Owner, the Owner shall be held responsible for payment of the towing or removal charge. 

4. STORAGE OF PROPERTY.  No storage of personal property shall be permitted within any of the 

parking areas. 

5. ACCESS.  No vehicle shall be parked in such a manner as to impede or prevent ready access to any 

entrance to or to any exit from the Project by another vehicle.  IN THE EVENT THAT AN OWNER OF A HOTEL 

APARTMENT HAVING A PARKING STALL APPURTENANT TO SUCH HOTEL APARTMENT, OWNING 
A PARKING APARTMENT OR THE RIGHT TO OTHERWISE UTILIZE A PARKING STALL IN 
CONNECTION WITH SUCH HOTEL APARTMENT EITHER RENTS HIS/HER HOTEL APARTMENT OR 

SUBMITS HIS/HER HOTEL APARTMENT TO A RENTAL PROGRAM, SUCH OWNER SHALL NOT BE 
PERMITTED TO PARK AN AUTOMOBILE IN SUCH PARKING STALL OR ANYWHERE IN THE PROJECT  
UNLESS SUCH OWNER IS ACTUALLY OCCUPYING HIS/HER HOTEL APARTMENT.  UPON RENTAL, 

THE USE OF THE PARKING STALL SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE OCCUPANT 
OF THE OWNER’S HOTEL APARTMENT. 

V. NOISE AND NUISANCES . 

1. GENERALLY.  Subject to the provisions of the Declaration, no nuisances shall be allowed in the Project 
nor shall any use or practice be allowed which is improper or offensive in the opinion of the Board or in violation of 
the Declaration, the Bylaws or these House Rules or which unreasonably interferes with or is an unreasonable 

annoyance to the peaceful possession or proper use of the Project by other Owners or occupants. 

2. EXCESSIVE NOISE/OBJECTIONABLE ODORS .  All Owners and occupants shall avoid excessive noise 
of any kind at any time and shall consider the quiet enjoyment of other Owners and occupants of the Project at all 

times.  Owners and occupants shall not cause or permit any disturbing noise or objectionable odors to emanate from 
their respective Apartments.  Excessive noise at any time should be reported to the Managing Agent who will take 
appropriate action.  Should noise transmission create a disturbance or a nuisance, it is the responsibility of the 

Owner, not the Developer, the Association or the Managing Agent, to abate the noise transmission.  In order to 
ensure the comfort of all Owners, radios, stereo and television sets, and any and all other such audio equipment shall 
be turned down to a minimum volume so as not to disturb other occupants between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 8:00 

a.m.  All other unnecessary noises between these hours should be avoided. Violations will be promptly referred to 
the Managing Agent for enforcement.  Notwithstanding the provisions of this paragraph, the Owner of Commercial 
Apartment 101 located on the Lobby Floor, shall have the right to provide music within such Apartment during its 

business hours . 

3. SPORTS EQUIPMENT.    Use of sports equipment, including, but not limited to bicycles, skate boards, 
skates and scooters, is prohibited in the Common Elements of the Project.  Infant strollers and wheel chairs are 

12. USE OF LAUNDRY FACILiTIES. Laundry facilities are currently provided on Parking Level P-3 of the
building for the convenience of Owners and occupants of the Project. If clothes are left in the washers or dryers
after a cycle is completed, the clothes may be removed by the next person waiting to use the machines. Additional
rules may be posted in the laundry areas respecting use of the machines.

lv. PARKING AREAS.

1. OBSTRUCTIONS; USES. The porte cochere and driveways of the Project mast not be obstructed or used
for any purpose other than ingress and egress. Obstructions, pallets or other loading gear or machinery shall not be
left in any parking area or Common Element area so as to interfere with the normal flow of traffic or so as to create
a nuisance to other Owners or occupants.

2. WORKMEN AND DELiVERIES. When workmen are performing work on an Apartment or if any
occupant orders deliveries of any kind, the Owner or occupant shall advise them to use a parking stall in appropriate
Project parking areas, if any, or to find parking outside of the Project.

3. VIOLATIONS. Violators of parking regulations shall have their cars, trucks or other vehicles or gear
towed away or removed at their own expense. If the violator is an employee, agent, lessee, tenant, visitor or guest of
an Owner, the Owner shall be held responsible for payment of the towing or removal charge.

4. STORAGE OF PROPERTY. No storage of personal property shall be permitted within any of the
parking areas.

5. ACCESS. No vehicle shall be parked in such a manner as to impede or prevent ready access to any
entrance to or to any exit from the Project by another vehicle. IN THE EVENT THAT AN OWNER OF A HOTEL
APARTMENT HAVING A PARKING STALL APPURTENANT TO SUCH HOTEL APARTMENT, OWNING
A PARKING APARTMENT OR THE RIGHT TO OTHERWISE UTILIZE A PARKING STALL IN
CONNECTION WITH SUCH HOTEL APARTMENT EITHER RENTS HIS/HER HOTEL APARTMENT OR
SUBMITS HIS/HER HOTEL APARTMENT TO A RENTAL PROGRAM, SUCH OWNER SHALL NOT BE
PERMITTED TO PARK AN AUTOMOBILE IN SUCH PARKING STALL OR ANYWHERE IN THE PROJECT
UNLESS SUCH OWNER IS ACTUALLY OCCUPYING HIS/HER HOTEL APARTMENT. UPON RENTAL,
THE USE OF THE PARKING STALL SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE OCCUPANT
OF THE OWNER’S HOTEL APARTMENT.

V. NOISE AND NUISANCES.

1. GENERALLY. Subject to the provisions of the Declaration, no nuisances shall be allowed in the Project
nor shall any use or practice be allowed which is improper or offensive in the opinion of the Board or in violation of
the Declaration, the Bylaws or these House Rules or which unreasonably interferes with or is an unreasonable
annoyance to the peaceful possession or proper use of the Project by other Owners or occupants.

2. EXCESSIVE NOISE/OBJECTIONABLE ODORS. All Owners and occupants shall avoid excessive noise
of any kind at any time and shall consider the quiet enjoyment of other Owners and occupants of the Project at all
times. Owners and occupants shall not cause or permit any disturbing noise or objectionable odors to emanate from
their respective Apartments. Excessive noise at any time should be reported to the Managing Agent who will take
appropriate action. Should noise transmission create a disturbance or a nuisance, it is the responsibility of the
Owner, not the Developer, the Association or the Managing Agent, to abate the noise transmission. In order to
ensure the comfort of all Owners, radios, stereo and television sets, and any and all other such audio equipment shall
be turned down to a minimum volume so as not to disturb other occupants between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 8:00
a.m. All other unnecessary noises between these hours should be avoided. Violations will be promptly referred to
the Managing Agent for enforcement. Notwithstanding the provisions of this paragraph, the Owner of Commercial
Apartment 101 located on the Lobby Floor shall have the right to provide music within such Apartment during its
business hours.

3. SPORTS EQUIPMENT. Use of sports equipment, including, but not limited to bicycles, skate boards,
skates and scooters, is prohibited in the Common Elements of the Project. Infant strollers and wheel chairs are
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allowed provided that infant strollers are attended at all times.  Surfboards, boogie boards, diving equipment, 

paddles, balls, swim fins and similar equipment and paraphernalia are prohibited in the pool and pool area.   

4. ADVERTISING AND SOLICITATION.  With the exception of any Commercial Apartment in the Project 
and as otherwise permitted in the Declaration, there shall be no advertising or solicitation by any person anywhere 

within the Project for any cause, charity, or purpose, whatsoever, unless specifically authorized in writing by the 
Managing Agent. 

VI. BUILDING MODIFICATIONS . 

1. STRUCTURAL CHANGES .  Structural changes either within or without an Apartment shall only be made 
in the manner provided in the Declaration. 

2. SIGNS .  Except for the Owner of Commercial Apartments or their licensees, no Owner will erect, affix 

or place any signs, electrical or otherwise, nor post or suffer to be posted any handbills or other advertising matter, 
in front of or on the Common Elements or which shall be visible from any point outside of said Owner's Apartment 
except in accordance with the Declaration, Bylaws, these House Rules and/or other determinations of the Managing 

Agent.  No signs, signals or lettering shall be inscribed or exposed on any part of the building including within the 
Common Elements and/or Limited Common Elements except with the prior written approval of the Managing Agent 
or as otherwise permitted under the Declaration with respect to such signs, signals or lettering utilized by the Owner 

of any Commercial or their Apartment licensees.  The Managing Agent shall have the right to consult with a design 
professional prior to making its decision, and the cost thereof shall be borne by the Owner or Owner's lessee or 
tenant requesting the sign, signal or lettering.  No Owner shall make any use of any servicemarks or trademarks of 

Developer, or any lessee or licensee thereof, without the prior written approval of the Developer, lessee or licensee. 

3. PREVENTIVE REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE.  Each Owner from time to time and at all times shall 
perform promptly all repair, maintenance and alteration work within such Owner's Apartment, the omission of 

which would adversely affect any Common Element or any other Apartment, and shall be responsible for all loss 
and damage caused by such Owner's failure to do so. 

4. REPAIRS OF INTERNAL INSTALLATIONS .  All repairs of internal installations within each Apartment 

such as water, light, gas, power, plumbing, telephone, sewage disposal, electricity, sanitation, doors, lamps and all 
other fixtures and accessories belonging to such Apartment, including interior walls and partitions and the inner 
decorated or finished surfaces of the perimeter walls, floors and ceilings of such Apartment shall be the 

responsibility of, and performed at the expense of, each Owner as set forth in the Declaration and Bylaws.  Before 
commencing any construction or repairs that are likely to cause noise or any other inconvenience to other owners, 
tenants or guests, an Apartment Owner must notify the Managing Agent.  Such activities shall be limited to the 

hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., except for emergencies. 

5. OVERLOADING STRUCTURE.  Nothing shall be allowed, done, or kept in any Apartment or Common 
Element which will overload or impair the floors, walls or ceilings of any structure within the Project, or cause any 

increase in the ordinary premium rates or the cancellation or invalidation of any insurance maintained by or for the 
Board with respect thereto, nor shall any noxious or offensive activity or nuisance be made or suffered thereon. 

6. INSTALLATION OF EQUIPMENT.  No Owner, except as otherwise permitted by the Managing Agent, 

shall install any wiring or other device for electrical or telephone installations, television, radio, antenna, machines, 
satellite dishes or other equipment or appurtenances on the exterior of the building or protruding through the walls, 
windows or ceilings thereof. 

7. EXTERNAL ADDITIONS AND ANTENNAS.  Except as permitted in the Declaration or Bylaws, no 
awnings or other projections shall be attached to the outside walls of the building or the exterior portion of any door, 
nor shall any private radio, television, or other outdoor antenna, be erected or installed on or anywhere within the 

Project. 

8. EXTERNAL APPEARANCE.  The exterior of the Project shall not be painted, decorated, or modified by 
an Owner in any manner without prior written consent of the Association, the Developer or its assignee, which 

consent may be withheld on purely aesthetic grounds within the sole discretion of the Managing Agent on behalf of 

allowed provided that infant strollers are attended at all times. Surfboards, boogie boards, diving equipment,
paddles, balls, swim fins and similar equipment and paraphernalia are prohibited in the pool and pool area.

4. ADVERTISING AND SOLICITATION. With the exception of any Commercial Apartment in the Project
and as otherwise permitted in the Declaration, there shall be no advertising or solicitation by any person anywhere
within the Project for any cause, charity, or purpose, whatsoever, unless specifically authorized in writing by the
Managing Agent.

VI. BUILDING MODIFICATIONS.

1. STRUCTURAL CHANGES. Structural changes either within or without an Apartment shall only be made
in the manner provided in the Declaration.

2. SIGNS. Except for the Owner of Commercial Apartments or their licensees, no Owner will erect, affix
or place any signs, electrical or otherwise, nor post or suffer to be posted any handbills or other advertising matter,
in front of or on the Common Elements or which shall be visible from any point outside of said Owner’s Apartment
except in accordance with the Declaration, Bylaws, these House Rules and/or other determinations of the Managing
Agent. No signs, signals or lettering shall be inscribed or exposed on any part of the building including within the
Common Elements and/or Limited Common Elements except with the prior written approval of the Managing Agent
or as otherwise permitted under the Declaration with respect to such signs, signals or lettering utilized by the Owner
of any Commercial or their Apartment licensees. The Managing Agent shall have the right to consult with a design
professional prior to making its decision, and the cost thereof shall be borne by the Owner or Owner’s lessee or
tenant requesting the sign, signal or lettering. No Owner shall make any use of any servicemarks or trademarks of
Developer, or any lessee or licensee thereof, without the prior written approval of the Developer, lessee or licensee.

3. PREVENTIVE REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE Each Owner from time to time and at all times shall
perfom promptly all repair, maintenance and alteration work within such Owner’s Apartment, the omission of
which would adversely affect any Common Element or any other Apartment, and shall be responsible for all loss
and damage caused by such Owner’s failure to do so.

4. REPAIRS OF INTERNAL INSTALLATIONS. All repairs of internal installations within each Apartment
such as water, light, gas, power, plumbing, telephone, sewage disposal, electricity, sanitation, doors, lamps and all
other fixtures and accessories belonging to such Apartment, including interior walls and partitions and the inner
decorated or finished surfaces of the perimeter walls, floors and ceilings of such Apartment shall be the
responsibility of, and performed at the expense of, each Owner as set forth in the Declaration and Bylaws. Before
commencing any construction or repairs that are likely to cause noise or any other inconvenience to other owners,
tenants or guests, an Apartment Owner must notify the Managing Agent. Such activities shall be limited to the
hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., except for emergencies.

5. OVERLOADING STRUCTURE Nothing shall be allowed, done, or kept in any Apartment or Common
Element which will overload or impair the floors, walls or ceilings of any structure within the Project, or cause any
increase in the ordinary premium rates or the cancellation or invalidation of any insurance maintained by or for the
Board with respect thereto, nor shall any noxious or offensive activity or nuisance be made or suffered thereon.

6. INSTALLATION OF EQUIPMENT. No Owner, except as otherwise permitted by the Managing Agent,
shall install any wiring or other device for electrical or telephone installations, television, radio, antenna, machines,
satellite dishes or other equipment or appurtenances on the exterior of the building or protruding through the walls,
windows or ceilings thereof

7. EXTERNAL ADDITIONS AND ANTENNAS. Except as permitted in the Declaration or Bylaws, no
awnings or other projections shall be attached to the outside walls of the building or the exterior portion of any door,
nor shall any private radio, television, or other outdoor antenna, be erected or installed on or anywhere within the
Project.

8. EXTERNAL APPEARANCE The exterior of the Project shall not be painted, decorated, or modified by
an Owner in any manner without prior written consent of the Association, the Developer or its assignee, which
consent may be withheld on purely aesthetic grounds within the sole discretion of the Managing Agent on behalf of
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the Association, the Developer or its assignee.  No awnings, window guards, light reflective materials, hurricane, or 

storm shutters, ventilator, fans, or air conditioning devices shall be used in or about the Project, except as shall have 
been approved as aforesaid, which approval may also be withheld on purely aesthetic grounds within the sole 
discretion of the Managing Agent on behalf of the Association, the Developer or its assignee.  Any costs incurred 

due to damages resulting from exterior additions, whether authorized or unauthorized, shall be paid by the Owner. 

9. ROOF.  Owners are not permitted on the roof of the building within the Project for any purpose without 
the express approval of the Board or Managing Agent, except as permitted in the Declaration. 

VII. EMPLOYEES OF THE ASSOCIATION. 

1. MANAGING AGENT.  The Board shall have the authority to hire the Managing Agent according to the 
provisions of the Bylaws; provided, however, that the Developer may hire the first Managing Agent. 

2. LIMITATION ON DUTIES .  Maintenance employees of the Association are under the sole direction of 
the Managing Agent, and, during the prescribed hours of work they shall in no case be diverted to the private 
business or employment of any occupant, unless arrangements therefor have been made with the Managing Agent.  

3. EMPLOYEES MAY NOT BE ASKED TO LEAVE.  No employee of the Association or Managing Agent 
shall be asked by an Owner or occupant to leave the Common Elements. 

VIII. HAZARDS. 

1. FLAMMABLE MATERIAL.  Unless the Board gives advance written consent in each and every instance, 
occupants shall not use any illumination other than electric lights, or use or permit to be brought into the building 
any flammable oils or fluids such as gasoline, kerosene, naphtha or benzene, or other explosives or other articles 

deemed extra hazardous to life, limb or property; provided that this rule shall not prohibit the maintenance of 
gasoline in gas tanks of vehicles upon the Project premises or, with respect to any Commercial Apartment, the 
temporary storage of flammable fluids in suitable containers which are needed for the normal conduct of business. 

2. EXPLOSIVES .  The use of firecrackers and the explosion of any fireworks or other explosives anywhere 
on the Project premises, including within any Apartment, is expressly prohibited unless expressly authorized by the 
Board. 

3. VIOLATION OF LAW .  No activity shall be engaged in and no substance introduced into or 
manufactured within the Project that might result in violation of the law. 

4. CANCELLATION OF INSURANCE.  No activity shall be engaged in and no substance shall be introduced 

into or manufactured within the Project that might result in the cancellation of insurance or increase in the insurance 
rate on the Project (unless in case of such increase, the Apartment Owner or occupant responsible for such increase 
shall pay the same). 

5. SPILLAGE.  Spillage of any kind shall be cleaned immediately so as to prevent encroachment upon the 
Common Elements or any Apartment or Limited Common Elements or harm to persons. 

6. WASTE MATERIALS.  Waste fluids or materials shall be properly discarded in suitable containers or by 

recycling services or as recommended by the manufacturer.  Dumping in plumbing or storm drain lines or in the 
surrounding landscaping is prohibited.   

7. COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS.  Each Owner, his employees, agents, customers, lessees, tenants, 

visitors and guests, as appropriate, shall at all times observe and maintain all laws, ordinances, rules and regulations 
now and hereafter made by any governmental authority, the Association, or the Board applicable to the use of the 
Project. 

8. COOPERATION.  All Owners and occupants shall cooperate with the reasonable requests of the 
Managing Agent with respect to matters of conduct in and about the Project over which they have jurisdiction. 

the Association, the Developer or its assignee. No awnings, window guards, light reflective materials, hurricane, or
storm shutters, ventilator, fans, or air conditioning devices shall be used in or about the Project, except as shall have
been approved as aforesaid, which approval may also be withheld on purely aesthetic grounds within the sole
discretion of the Managing Agent on behalf of the Association, the Developer or its assignee. Any costs incurred
due to damages resulting from exterior additions, whether authorized or unauthorized, shall be paid by the Owner.

9. ROOF. Owners are not permitted on the roof of the building within the Project for any purpose without
the express approval of the Board or Managing Agent, except as permitted in the Declaration.

VII. EMPLOYEES OF THE ASSOCIATION.

1. MANAGING AGENT. The Board shall have the authority to hire the Managing Agent according to the
provisions of the Bylaws; provided, however, that the Developer may hire the first Managing Agent.

2. LIMITATION ON DImES. Maintenance employees of the Association are under the sole direction of
the Managing Agent, and, during the prescribed hours of work they shall in no case be diverted to the private
business or employment of any occupant, unless arrangements therefor have been made with the Managing Agent.

3. EMPLOYEES MAY NOT BE ASKED TO LEAVE No employee of the Association or Managing Agent
shall be asked by an Owner or occupant to leave the Common Elements.

VIII. HAZARDS.

1. FLAIVIMABLE MATERIAL. Unless the Board gives advance written consent in each and every instance,
occupants shall not use any illumination other than electric lights, or use or permit to be brought into the building
any flammable oils or fluids such as gasoline, kerosene, naphtha or benzene, or other explosives or other articles
deemed extra hazardous to life, limb or property; provided that this rule shall not prohibit the maintenance of
gasoline h gas tanks of vehicles upon the Project premises or, with respect to any Commercial Apartment, the
temporary storage of flammable fluids in suitable containers which are needed for the normal conduct of business.

2. EXPLOSiVES. The use of firecrackers and the explosion of any fireworks or other explosives anywhere
on the Project premises, including within any Apartment, is expressly prohibited unless expressly authorized by the
Board.

3. VIOLATION OF LAW. No activity shall be engaged in and no substance introduced into or
manufactured within the Project that might result in violation of the law.

4. CANCELLATION OF INSURANCE No activity shall be engaged in and no substance shall be introduced
into or manufactured within the Project that might result in the cancellation of insurance or increase in the insurance
rate on the Project (unless in case of such increase, the Apartment Owner or occupant responsible for such increase
shall pay the same).

5. SPILLAGE Spillage of any kind shall be cleaned immediately so as to prevent encroachment upon the
Common Elements or any Apartment or Limited Common Elements or harm to persons.

6. WASTE MATERIALS. Waste fluids or materials shall be properly discarded in suitable containers or by
recycling services or as recommended by the imnufacturer. Dumping in plumbing or storm drain lines or in the
surrounding landscaping is prohibited.

7. COMPLiANCE WITH ALL LAWS. Each Owner, his employees, agents, customers, lessees, tenants,
visitors and guests, as appropriate, shall at all times observe and maintain all laws, ordinances, rules and regulations
now and hereafter made by any governmental authority, the Association, or the Board applicable to the use of the
Project.

8. COOPERATION. All Owners and occupants shall cooperate with the reasonable requests of the
Managing Agent with respect to matters of conduct in and about the Project over which they have jurisdiction.
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IX. GENERAL HOUSE RULES . 

1. FACILITIES .  The recreational and other facilities, if any, which are part of the Common Elements or 
leased to the Association, are for the exclusive use of the Owners, Owners' lessees, occupants, tenants, guests, or 
visitors accompanied by an Owner, unless otherwise provided that such use shall not be exclusive.  

2. BUILDING BUSINESS HOURS ; POOL AND FITNESS ROOM HOURS .  The Project will be operated as a 
hotel and resort destination.  Accordingly, it shall be open to the public on a twenty-four (24) hour basis.  Some 
amenities and other facilities of the Project may be open during limited business hours.  Pool hours are from 7:00 

a.m. to 10:00 p.m.   Fitness Room hours are from 5:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. 

3. DELIVERIES AND SERVICE AREA.  Only hand trucks equipped with rubber tires and slide guards will 
be permitted in the building of the Project.  All deliveries shall only be brought through areas designated by the 

Managing Agent.  All persons making deliveries to any Owner or occupant shall sign a delivery log in the office of 
the Managing Agent, or any other place designated by the Managing Agent.  

4. USE OF ELEVATORS .  The elevators may not be used for transporting furniture, appliances and other 

items without the prior approval of the Managing Agent.  Moving in or out of an Apartment is limited to the hours 
between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, except for small items, clothing and suitcases.  Elevators 
must be reserved at least 24 hours in advance by notice to the Managing Agent.  No wet equipment or other items 

are permitted in the elevators.  No wet bathing suits are permitted in the elevators. 

5. HEAVY ITEMS.  All transportation of freight, packages or bulky matter of any description must take 
place only during hours designated by the Board or the Managing Agent and then only with prior notice to and 

approval by the Managing Agent.  The Board or the Managing Agent shall have the right to prescribe the location of 
heavy objects and if considered necessary, the means to distribute the weight thereof.  All costs incurred will be 
charged to the Owner.  Any damage to the Project caused by an Owner or its contractors, delivery or moving service 

will be repaired at such Owner's expense. 

6. ENTRY TO APARTMENTS .  The Managing Agent is not required to give access to Apartments or the 
building without the written permission of a responsible Owner. 

7. OBSERVANCE AND PERFORMANCE OF HOUSE RULES .  Each Owner shall observe and perform these 
House Rules and ensure that its employees, agents, customers, lessees, tenants, visitors, licensees, guests and 
invitees also observe and perform these House Rules.  Owners will be responsible for their employees', agents', 

customers', lessees', tenants', visitors', licensees', guests' or invitees' observance of all House Rules as set forth 
herein.  In the event expenses are incurred due to violations of these House Rules by employees, agents, customers, 
lessees, tenants, visitors, guests or licensees of an Owner, said Owner shall be responsible for payment of the same, 

including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs. 

8. WATER FACILITIES .  Toilets, sinks and other water apparatus in the Project shall not be used for any 
purpose other than those for which they were designed, nor shall any sweepings, garbage or other articles be thrown 

into them.  Any damage resulting from misuse of any toilets, sinks or other water apparatus in an Apartment shall be 
repaired and paid for by the Owner of such Apartment as set forth in the Bylaws. 

9. SUGGESTIONS AND/OR COMPLAINTS .  Suggestions and/or complaints regarding the Project shall be 

made in writing to the Managing Agent. 

10. DELINQUENT ACCOUNTS .  All delinquent accounts for the payment of common area maintenance fees 
and assessments shall be charged a late fee of $25.00 for every month the delinquency remains or as otherwise 

established under the Bylaws. 

11. OPEN HOUSE SIGNS .  Except as otherwise permitted in the Declaration, open house signs shall be 
placed only in areas and as directed by the Managing Agent. 

X. VIOLATIONS OF THESE HOUSE RULES . 

LX. GENERAL HOUSE RuLES.

1. FACILiTIES. The recreational and other facilities, if any, which are part of the Common Elements or
leased to the Association, are for the exclusive use of the Owners, Owners’ lessees, occupants, tenants, guests, or
visitors accompanied by an Owner, unless otherwise provided that such use shall not be exclusive.

2. BUILDING BUSINESS HOURS; POOL AN]) FITNESS ROOM HOURS. The Project will be operated as a
hotel and resort destination. Accordingly, it shall be open to the public on a twenty-four (24) hour basis. Some
amenities and other facilities of the Project may be open during limited business hours. Pool hours are from 7:00
a.m. to 10:00 p.m. Fitness Room hours are from 5:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.

3. DELiVERIES AND SERVICE AREA. Only hand trucks equipped with rubber tires and slide guards will
be permitted in the building of the Project. All deliveries shall only be brought through areas designated by the
Managing Agent. All persons making deliveries to any Owner or occupant shall sign a delivery log in the office of
the Managing Agent, or any other place designated by the Managing Agent.

4. USE OF ELEVATORS. The elevators may not be used for transporting furniture, appliances and other
items without the prior approval of the Managing Agent. Moving in or out of an Apartment is limited to the hours
between 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, except for small items, clothing and suitcases. Elevators
must be reserved at least 24 hours in advance by notice to the Managing Agent. No wet equipment or other items
are permitted in the elevators. No wet bathing suits are permitted in the elevators.

5. HEAVY ITEMS. All transportation of freight, packages or bulky matter of any description must take
place only during hours designated by the Board or the Managing Agent and then only with prior notice to and
approval by the Managing Agent. The Board or the Managing Agent shall have the right to prescribe the location of
heavy objects and if considered necessary, the means to distribute the weight thereof. All costs incurred will be
charged to the Owner. Any damage to the Project caused by an Owner or its contractors, delivery or moving service
will be repaired at such Owner’s expense.

6. ENTRY TO APARTMENTS. The Managing Agent is not required to give access to Apartments or the
building without the written permission of a responsible Owner.

7. OBSERVANCE AND PERFORMANCEOF 11USE RuLES. Each Owner shall observe and perform these
House Rules and ensure that its employees, agents, customers, lessees, tenants, visitors, licensees, guests and
invitees also observe and perform these House Rules. Owners will be responsible for their employees’, agents’,
customers’, lessees’, tenants’, visitors’, licensees’, guests’ or invitees’ observance of all House Rules as set forth
herein. In the event expenses are incurred due to violations of these House Rules by employees, agents, customers,
lessees, tenants, visitors, guests or licensees of an Owner, said Owner shall be responsible for payment of the same,
including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs.

8. WATER FACILITIES. Toilets, sinks and other water apparatus in the Project shall not be used for any
purpose other than those for which they were designed, nor shall any sweepings, garbage or other articles be thrown
into them. Any damage resulting from misuse of any toilets, sinks or other water apparatus in an Apartment shall be
repaired and paid for by the Owner of such Apartment as set forth in the Bylaws.

9. SUGGESTIONS AND/OR COMPLAINTS. Suggestions and/or complaints regarding the Project shall be
made in writing to the Managing Agent.

10. DELINQUENT ACCOUNTS. All delinquent accounts for the payment of common area maintenance fees
and assessments shall be charged a late fee of $25.00 for every month the delinquency remains or as otherwise
established under the Bylaws.

11. OPEN HOUSE SIGNS. Except as otherwise permitted in the Declaration, open house signs shall be
placed only in areas and as directed by the Managing Agent.

X. VIOLATIONSOF THESE HOUSE RuLES.
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1. REPORTING VIOLATIONS AND DAMAGES . 

a. Whenever possible, violations of these House Rules should be reported to the Managing 
Agent.  The Managing Agent will keep the identity of the complainant confidential. 

b. All corrective actions regarding violations of the House Rules and damages to the 

Common Elements will be enforced by the Board or the Managing Agent and should be reported promptly to the 
Managing Agent or the Board. 

c. Damage to Common Elements shall be surveyed by the Board or the Managing Agent, 

and the cost of repair or replacement and any legal fees incurred may be assessed by the Board against the person or 
persons responsible, including, but not limited to, against Owners for damage caused directly or indirectly by their 
tenants or guests. 

2. THE VIOLATION OF ANY HOUSE RULES ADOPTED BY THE ASSOCIATION SHALL GIVE THE BOARD 

OF DIRECTORS OR ITS AGENTS THE RIGHT TO : 

a. ENTER THE APARTMENT (INCLUDING THE LIMITED COMMON ELEMENT) IN 

WHICH, OR AS TO WHICH, SUCH VIOLATION OR BREACH EXISTS AND TO SUMMARILY ABATE 
AND REMOVE, AT THE EXPENSE OF THE DEFAULTING OWNER, ANY STRUCTURE, THING OR 
CONDITION THAT MAY EXIST THEREIN CONTRARY TO THE INTENT AND MEANING OF THE 

PROVISIONS HEREOF, AND THE BOARD OR THE MANAGING AGENT SHALL NOT THEREBY BE 
DEEMED LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGES OR GUILTY IN ANY MANNER OF TRESPASS; AND/OR 

b. ENJOIN, ABATE OR REMEDY BY APPROPRIATE LEGAL PROCEEDINGS, 

EITHER AT LAW OR IN EQUITY, THE CONTINUANCE OF ANY SUCH BREACH; AND ALL COSTS 
THEREOF, INCLUDING ATTORNEYS' FEES AND COSTS, SHALL BE BORNE BY THE DEFAULTING 
OWNER; AND/OR 

c. LEVY FINES, IN THE DISCRETION OF THE BOARD. 

XI. AMENDMENTS . 

These House Rules may be amended by a vote of the Owners of at least sixty-five percent (65%) of the 

Apartments in the Project at a meeting of Owners duly called and held in the manner provided for in the Bylaws or 
by a majority vote of the Board of Directors at a duly called meeting of the Board. 

 

 
(The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.) 

1. REPORTING VIOLATIONS AND DAMAGES.

a. Whenever possible, violations of these House Rules should be reported to the Managing
Agent. The Managing Agent will keep the identity of the complainant confidential.

b. All corrective actions regarding violations of the House Rules and damages to the
Common Elements will be enforced by the Board or the Managing Agent and should be reported promptly to the
Managing Agent or the Board.

c. Damage to Common Elements shall be surveyed by the Board or the Managing Agent,
and the cost of repair or replacement and any legal fees incurred may be assessed by the Board against the person or
persons responsible, including, but not limited to, against Owners for damage caused directly or indirectly by their
tenants or guests.

2. THE VIOLATION OF ANY HOUSE RULES ADOPTED BY THE ASSOCIATION SHALL GIVE THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS OR ITS AGENTS THE RIGHT To:

a. ENTER THE APARTMENT (INCLUDING THE LIMITED COMMON ELEMENT) IN
WHICH, OR AS TO WHICH, SUCH VIOLATION OR BREACH EXISTS AND TO SUMMARILY ABATE
AND REMOVE, AT THE EXPENSE OF THE DEFAULTING OWNER, ANY STRUCTURE, THING OR
CONDITION THAT MAY EXIST THEREIN CONTRARY TO THE INTENT AND MEANING OF THE
PROVISIONS HEREOF, AND THE BOARD OR THE MANAGING AGENT SHALL NOT THEREBY BE
DEEMED LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGES OR GUILTY IN ANY MANNER OF TRESPASS; AND/OR

b. ENJOIN, ABATE OR REMEDY BY APPROPRIATE LEGAL PROCEEDINGS,
EITHER AT LAW OR IN EQUITY, THE CONTINUANCE OF ANY SUCH BREACH; AND ALL COSTS
THEREOF, INCLUDING ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS, SHALL BE BORNE BY THE DEFAULTING
OWNER; AND/OR

c. LEVY FINES, IN THE DISCRETION OF THE BOARD.

XI. AMENDMENTS.

These House Rules may be amended by a vote of the Owners of at least sixty-five percent (65%) of the
Apartments in the Project at a meeting of Owners duly called and held in the manner provided for in the Bylaws or
by a majority vote of the Board of Directors at a duly called meeting of the Board.

(The remainder of this page intentionally left blank.)
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The Developer, acting as the initial Association, hereby adopts the foregoing as the House Rules of the
Association of Apartment Owners of the Project on behalf of the Association this ( .kt... day of

LAEROC WAIKIKI PARKSIDE, LLC
a Hawaii limited liability company

By LAFROC PARTNERS, INC.,
a California corporation
Its Manager

By
I(M (JiM.
Kim Alan Benjamin
Its President



 

This summary has been prepared for the convenience of the Insured and is not an exact and binding analysis of the coverages. This summary is for your use as a reference only and is not intended to be inclusive of all 
policy terms, conditions and exclusions. Even though care has been taken in the preparation of this summary, in the event there is a discrepancy, the original policies will prevail as the sole binding documents. 

 
 
 

Palms at Waikiki AOAO 
Insurance Summary  
Date Prepared: December 3, 2014 

 Insurance Associates, Inc. 
800 Bethel Street, Suite #200 

Honolulu, HI  96813 
www.insuringhawaii.com 

 Agent: Sue Savio 
Direct Line: 808-526-9271 
Toll Free: 1-888-867-7671  

E-mail: sue@insuringhawaii.com 
 

Coverage Limits of 
Liability 

Term Policy 
Period 

Annual 
Premium 

Insurance 
Company 

Comments 

Commercial Property w/ Equipment Breakdown 
  Building Replacement Cost 
  Business Personal Property 
  Business Income 
  Equipment Breakdown (Boiler & Machinery) 
  Backup of Sewers & Drains 
  Building Ordinance and Law 
  Deductible (all other perils excluding hurricane) 
  Hurricane Deductible (2% of the building value) 

 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

 
44,448,000

200,000
120,000
Included
Included

2,000,000
5,000

888,960

 
Annual 

 
12/15/14 – 
12/15/15 

 
$ 53,619  

 
Fireman’s Fund 
Insurance Company  
 

  Rated A (Excellent) by 
A.M. Best  

Commercial General Liability 
  General Aggregate   
  Personal & Advertising Injury 
  Each Occurrence 
  Damage to Premises Rented to You 
  Medical Expense (any one person) 
  Hired/Non-Owned Automobile (occurrence) 

 
$ 
$ 
$
$
$
$ 

2,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

100,000
5,000

1,000,000

 
Annual 

 
12/15/14 – 
12/15/15 

 
$ 12,939 

 
Fireman’s Fund 
Insurance Company  
 

 

Commercial Umbrella 
  Each Occurrence 
  Liability Aggregate Limit 
  Retained Limit 

 
$ 
$ 
$ 

10,000,000
10,000,000

0

 
Annual 

 
12/15/14 – 
12/15/15 

 
$ 3,955 

 
Fireman’s Fund 
Insurance Company  
 

  Provides coverage above 
the D&O policy 

Directors’ and Officers’ (D&O Liability)   
  Each Claim 
  Annual Aggregate 
  Deductible 

 
$   
$ 
$ 

1,000,000
1,000,000

25,000 

 
Annual 

 
12/15/14 – 
12/15/15 

 
$ 4,546 

 
Travelers Insurance 
Company 
 

  Includes coverage for the 
Management Company    

Fidelity Bond  
  Crime/Employee Dishonesty Limit 
  Deductible 

 
$ 
$ 

200,000
1,000

 
Annual 

 
12/15/14 – 
12/15/15 

 
$ 427 

 
Fireman’s Fund 
Insurance Company 

 

Flood Insurance 
  Building 
  Contents 
  Deductible 

 
$ 
$ 
$ 

44,488,000
100,000

1,250

 
Annual 

 
12/15/14 – 
12/15/15 

 
$ 31,725 

 
Selective Insurance 
Company 

 

Workers’ Compensation 
 

      

Palms at Waikiki AOAO Insurance Associates, Inc. Agent: Sue Savio
Insurance Summary 800 Bethel Street, Suite #200 Direct Line: 808-526-9271
Date Prepared: December 3, 2014 Honolulu, HI 96813 Toll Free: 1-888-867-7671

turin _j.&m E-mail: sue@insuringhawaii.com
coverage Limits of

Liability
Term Policy

Period
Annual
Premium

Insurance
company

comments

commercial Property wI Equipment Breakdown
Building Replacement Cost
Business Personal Property
Business Income
Equipment Breakdown (Boiler & Machinery)
Backup of Sewers & Drains
Building Ordinance and Law
Deductible (all other perils excluding hurricane)
Hurricane Deductible (2% of the building value)

$ 44,448,000
$ 200,000
$ 120,000
$ Included
$ Included
$ 2,000,000
$ 5,000
$ 888,960

Annual 12/15/14 —

12/15/15
$53,619 Fireman’s Fund

Insurance Company
• RatedA(Excellent)by

A.M. Best

Commercial General Liability
General Aggregate
Personal & Advertising Injury
Each Occurrence
Damage to Premises Rented to You
Medical Expense (any one person)
Hired/Non-Owned Automobile (occurrence)

$ 2,000,000
$ 1,000,000
$ 1,000,000
$ 100,000
$ 5,000
$ 1,000,000

Annual 12/15/14 —

12/15/15
$ 12,939 Fireman’s Fund

Insurance Company

Commercial Umbrella
Each Occurrence
Liability Aggregate Limit
Retained Limit

$ 10,000,000
$ 10,000,000
$ 0

Annual 12/15/14 —

12/15/15
$3,955 Fireman’s Fund

Insurance Company
• Provides coverage above

the D&O policy

Directors’ and Officers’ (D&O Liability)
Each Claim
Annual Aggregate
Deductible

$ 1,000,000
$ 1,000,000
$ 25,000

Annual 12/15/14—
12/15/15

$4,546 Travelers Insurance
Company

• Includescoverageforthe
Management Company

Fidelity Bond
Crime/Employee Dishonesty Limit
Deductible

$ 200,000
$ 1,000

Annual 12/15/14 —

12/15/15
$427 Fireman’s Fund

Insurance Company
Flood Insurance
Building
Contents
Deductible

$ 44,488,000
$ 100,000
$ 1,250

Annual 12/15/14—
12/15/15

$31,725 Selective Insurance
Company

Workers’ Compensation

This summary has been prepared for the convenience of the Insured and is not an exact and binding analysis of the coverages. This summary is for your use as a reference only and is not intended to be inclusive of all
policy terms, conditions and exclusions. Even though care has been taken in the preparation of this summary, in the event there is a discrepancy, the original policies will prevail as the sole binding documents.
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RECEIPT OF PROJECT INFORMATION FORM
Hawaii Association of REALTORS® Standard Form

Revised 12/10 (NC)  For Release 5/14

COPYRIGHT AND TRADEMARK NOTICE: This copyrighted Hawaii Association of REALTORS® Standard Form is licensed for use by the entire real estate industry 
on condition that there shall be no alteration of the printed portions, pagination, or paragraph numbers or breaks. The use of this form is not intended to identify 
the real estate licensee as a REALTOR®. REALTOR® is a registered collective membership mark which may be used only by real estate licensees who are 
members of the National Association of REALTORS® and who subscribe to its Code of Ethics.

Property Reference or Address:
("Project")

/Zone /Sec. /Plat /Parcel /CPRTax Map Key: Division (if applicable).

By signing below, I acknowledge and agree that:

1. I received a copy of the Project Information Form RR105c dated .

2. The information contained in this form is being provided by the Managing Agent at the Seller's request and is based only upon the 
knowledge and information available to the Managing Agent.

3. The information provided on the form cannot be considered to be a substitute for a careful inspection of the Project and the 
Project's governing documents, minutes of meetings, financial documents, and the like.

4. I am advised that I should refer to qualified experts in the various fields, including but not limited to attorneys, accountants,
engineers and contractors for detailed evaluation of areas where additional information is desired.

5. If the Managing Agent has marked "NTMK" in response to any questions, I recognize that this does not mean there may not be a 
defect which an expert could discover, or the passage of time would reveal. Likewise, I recognize that a problem may be more 
serious than the Managing Agent knows.

6. This form is not a warranty of any kind by Seller, the Managing Agent, or any Brokerage Firm and all of its licensees representing
Seller or Buyer.

Buyer Date Buyer Date

NOTE: THERE IS NO WARRANTY ON PLAIN LANGUAGE. An effort has been made to put this agreement into plain language. But 
there is no promise that it is in plain language. In legal terms, THERE IS NO WARRANTY, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, THAT THIS 
AGREEMENT COMPLIES WITH CHAPTER 487A OF THE HAWAII REVISED STATUTES, AS AMENDED. This means that the Hawaii 
Association of REALTORS® is not liable to any Buyer or other person who uses this form for any damages or penalty because of any
violation of Chapter 487A.  People are cautioned to see their own attorneys about Chapter 487A (and other laws that may apply).

©Hawaii Association of REALTORS®
Receipt of Project Information Form
RR108   Rev. 12/10

Phone: Fax:
Produced with zipForm® by zipLogix  18070 Fifteen Mile Road, Fraser, Michigan 48026    www.zipLogix.com

Hawaii Home and Commercial LLC 1019 Waimanu St Honolulu, HI 96814
808.358.1774 866.925.1467 Robin Glass Forms

1850 Ala Moana Blvd, Palms at Waikiki 324, Honolulu HI 96815

1 2 6 12 3 50

11/18/2015



PROPERTY INFORMATION FORM RR105c
Condominium, Co-op, PUD, and other Homeowner Organizations

Hawaii Association of REALTORS Standard Forms
Completion Date:
Name of Property: Unit/Lot #:

All references to the word "Property" shall refer to the above.

Property Address:
Property Tax Map Key:

This property is managed by a licensed real estate broker. If a licensed real estate broker, is managing agent
registered with the Real Estate Commission as a Condominium Managing Agent?

Name of Managing Agent:
Managed by this Managing Agent since: 
Managing Agent provides (check those services that apply):

 Administrative Managing Services
 Fiscal Management Services
 Physical Management Services
Other Management Services -

This Property is self-managed since:

A. GENERAL & LEGAL

Total number of apartments: Number of guest parking stalls available:
If applicable, what percentage of Condominium Apartments has been sold and conveyed (excluding to the Developer)?

If applicable, what approximate percentage of Condminium Apartments is owner-occupied?
Approximately how many foreclosures have been filed by the Board of Directors during the past twelve (12) months?

What approximate percentage of owners is more than one month delinquent in maintenance fees?
**If answer is “Yes”, using the SAME number below, describe in the space provided.**
Yes No NTMK (not to my knowledge)

(1) Within the past year, has the Board of Directors had discussions with the lessor
regarding the purchase of the leased fee interest in the land?

(2) Is this Property subject to phasing or development of additional increments?
(3) Has the Owners Association or Corporation been in control of the operations of the

Property for less than two (2) years?
(4) Are there any lawsuits, arbitration or mediation actions affecting this Property and/or

Association other than delinquent owner maintenance fees?
Attorney for Association of Apartment Owners: 
NOTE: Any attorney fees or other costs incurred for further answering this
inquiry shall not be at the expense of the Association of Apartment Owners,
nor of the Managing Agent.

(5) If property is a Condominium, does any single entity, individual or partnership own
more than 10 percent of the common interest of this property?

(6) Are any Association or Corporation approvals required for transfer of Ownership?
(7) Is a resident manager’s apartment a part of the common elements, or is one owned

by the Association or Corporation (does not apply to Planned Unit Development)?
(8) Is a time share operation existing at this Property?

Name of operator:
(9) Is there a hotel, transient vacation rental operation, or other organized rental program

at the Property?
Name of Operator:

(10) Have any of the following items been discovered by the Association or Corporation
at the Property?

(11) Are there commercial apartments, lots or commercial use of the common areas or
common elements at the Property?

Buyer’s Initials & Date Seller’s Initials & Date

Property Address:
Number of Question answered "YES" and Explain:

Yes No
Yes No

%
%

%

Formaldehyde Radon Gas Lead-Based PaintAsbestos

Page 1 of 6

See Comments

1850 Ala Moana Blvd Honolulu, HI. 96815

✔

✔
✔

Aqua-Aston Hospitality

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

1.12

3
100

268

✔

✔

✔

2005
Aqua Hotels & Resorts, LLC

✔

✔

1850 Ala Moana Blvd Honolulu, HI. 96815

324AOAO Palms At Waikiki
1966



B. INSURANCE
Name of Insurance Company: 
Name of Insurance Agent: Phone:

**If answer is “Yes”, using the SAME number below, describe in the space provided.**
Yes No NTMK Note: In case of Planned Unit Development, questions #14 to #17 apply to common areas only.

(12) Is the Property located in a designated Flood Hazard Zone?
(13) Is this Property covered by Flood Insurance?
(14) Is this Property located in a tsunami inundation area?
(15) Has there been any substantial damage to this Property due to earthquake, fire,

floods, winds, landslides, tsunami, or violence activity within the last five years?

Number of Questions answered "YES" and Explain:

C. FINANCIAL
1. What do the Apartment maintenance fees include?

Water & Sewer
Hot Water
Electricity
Gas
Air Conditioning
Cable TV Signal
Parking
Recreation/Community Association Dues
Lease Rent
Real Property Tax
Other:

2. Other:
There are master association dues. Check with listing broker

How frequently is a financial statement prepared? Quarterly
Specify:  Accrual Basis

Buyer’s Initials & Date Seller’s Initials & Date
Property Address:

**If answer is “Yes”, using the SAME number below, describe in the space provided.**

Yes No NTMK
(16) Has the Association or Corporation Board of Directors approved a maintenance fee

increase, special assessment, or loan?
(17) Are any special assessments or loans in effect at this time?
(18) Are any assessments required to be paid in full at the time of conveyance of

ownership?

Number of Questions answered "YES" and Explain:

D. PROPERTY CONDITION

**If answer is "Yes", using the SAME number below, describe in the space provided.**
Are there any major repairs required or planned within the next 12 months with respect to the following common
elements/common areas of the Property?

Yes NTMK
(19) Exterior Walls
(20) Plumbing
(21) Foundations
(22) Wall(s)/Fences
(23) Water Features
(24) Security Systems
(25) Elevators
(26) Slab(s)

(27) Trash Chutes
(28) Drainage
(29) Sauna
(30) Barbecue Facilities
(31) Lanai Decks/Railings

Cash Basis
Monthly

Yes NTMK

(32) Electrical Systems
(33) Walkways

Page 2 of 6
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✔

✔

✔

✔

(16) In January 2016 maintenance fees will increase 6.91%

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔ Local phone service and PBX Equipment, High speed internet

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

See Comments 

✔

✔

✔

✔

Sue Savio 808-526-9271

Insurance Associates



(34) Swimming Pool
(35) Spas
(36) Pool Deck/Railings
(37) Sewage Treatment Plant

(40) Tennis Court
(41) Rec. Room Equipment
(42) Roofing
(43) Paint
(44) Other:Yes No NTMK

(45) Are lanai enclosures presently permitted by the Association or Corporation Board
of Directors?

(46) Do you know, within the past year, ofthe presence of live infestation, wood boring
insects/termites in the common elements/common areas of the Property?

(47) Do you know, within the past year, of leaks and/or water damage in the common
elements/common areas of the Property?

(48) Are you aware, within the past year , of any structural problems in the common
elements/common areas caused by water, settling, sliding, subsidence, filled land,etc.?

Number of Questions answered “YES" and Explain:

E. DISCLAIMER

While not guaranteed, the information contained in this Property Information Form is based on information reasonably
available to the Managing Agent at the time this form was completed. It has been provided by the Managing Agent at
Owner/Seller’s request and is believed to be current and co rrect to the best of the Managing Agent’s knowledge at the
time this form was completed. All persons relying upon the information contained herein are advised that the
information provided cannot be considered a substitute fo r a careful inspection of the Property and the Property’s
governing documents, meeting minutes, financial documents and other documentation; and that they should refer to
qualified experts in the various professional fields, includingbut not limited to attorneys, Certified Public Accountants,
architects, engineers, contractors and other appropriate professionals for detailed evaluation of areas where additional
clarification or information is desired. The person orentity completing the form is doing so only as an accommodation
to the parties and shall not be held liable for any errors or omissions whatsoever. The person or entity completing this
form is not required to and has not completed any special investigation, and is only reporting facts already known to that
person or entity or readily available. Specifically and without limitation, the person or entity completing the form has
not reviewed any records except official records of meetings in the possession of that person or entity and only for the
current and prior year. Where the answer to a question isnot applicable, unknown or is otherwise unanswerable, it has
been marked "NTMK". Where the Managing Agent has marked "NTMK" or "NO" in response to a question concerning
property condition, it must be recognized that this does not mean there may not be a defect which an expert could
discover or the passage of time would reveal. Likewise, a problem could be more serious than the Managing Agent, the
Association, the Corporation or its Board of Director s knows. All such persons having access to this Property
Information Form understand and acknowledge that this Property Information Form is not a warranty or guaranty of any
kind by the Managing Agent, the Association or its Board of Directors.

Person completing this form

 

Name: 

Title: 

Company: 

Address:

Phone No. Fax No. 

Buyer’s Initials & Date Seller’s Initials & Date

Property Address: :

Yes NTMK Yes NTMK
(39) Sprinkler System

(38) Driveways/Parking Areas

Page 3 of 6
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808-947-7002808-952-8383

1850 Ala Moana Blvd., Honolulu, HI 96815

Palms at Waikiki

General Manager

Patty Maher, Property Manager, for  Palms at Waikiki

11-18-2015

See Comments

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔



ADDENDUM TO REQUEST FOR DOCUMENTS FORM RR105C
AND PROPERTY INFORMATION FORM RR105C

DATE OF FORMS:

The above-identified forms are modified as stated herein. I/We understand and agree that:

(i) the information requested is being provided as an accommodation only and that the Managing Agent and
the Association and their respective officers, directors, employees and agents shall have no liability
whatsoever for any errors or omissions with respect thereto;

(ii) the Managing Agent and the Association are not required to make any special investigations as to any
matters for which information is requested and shall report only facts already known or readily available to
the Managing Agent; and

(iii) the documents and information provided shall relate only to the community association for which
information is requested and shall not include documents or information related to other community
associations or master associations which may affect the property being sold.

I/We agree to indemnify and hold harmless the Association and the Managing Agent from All Costs for any Injury
consequent upon or arising from:

(i) the use or distribution of the documents or information provided by the Association or Managing Agent on
Forms RR105B and/or RR105C, as amended;

(ii) any allegation that said documents or information provided by the Association or Managing Agent
adversely affected any real estate transaction or violated any law, statute, ordinance or regulation now or
hereafter in force of the United States, the State of Hawaii or any city or county; and

(iii) any allegation that the documents or information provided by the Association or Managing Agent caused
damage to Me/Us or to any third party.

If any lawsuits, arbitration or other proceedings shall be brought against the Association or the Managing Agent for any
of the foregoing reasons, I/We will defend the same and will pay whatever judgements which may be recovered against
the Association or the Managing Agent. The obligation to defend shall include the obligation to pay all costs and
expenses of the lawsuit, arbitration or proceeding and any appeal thereof, including attorneys, fees, incurred by the
Association or the Managing Agent. As used herein:

All Costs shall include every and all cost, loss, damage, liability, expense, demand, penalty and fine whatsoever,
which may arise from or be claimed against the Association or the managing Agent, by any person or entity.

Injury shall include all injuries to person or property, or damage of whatever kind or character suffered or
sustained.

The acceptance of any of the documents or information as provided on form RR105B and/or RR105C and the use or
distribution of those documents or information to any third party for any purpose whatsoever, including without
limitation, compliance with Chapter 508D, Hawaii Revised Statutes, constitutes the agreement of the Seller (s) to all of
the terms and provisions of this Addendum including without limitation the obligation to defend and indemnify the
Association and the Managing Agent.

Buyers Initials & Date Sellers Initials & Date

Property Address:

Page 4 of 6

1850 Ala Moana Blvd Honolulu, HI. 96815

11-18-2015



Comments Addendum Form RR105c

Buyer’s Initials & Date
Property Address: 

Seller’s Initials & Date

Page 5 of 6

(write comments, if any, below and refer to question number)

(write comments, if any, below and refer to question number)

A)  General & Legal

B)  Insurance

1850 Ala Moana Blvd Honolulu, HI. 96815

#19, 21, 31, 36 & 43 - Paint and spall repair of building, pool deck and lanai rails
#20 Annual Contingency Plumbing
#12 Grand Fathered Flod Zone B
#13-14 Flood Policy with Selective Insurance Co/National Flood Insurance Program
Policy number: FLD1298475
Coverage Period: 12/15/14-12/15/15
Coverage Amt.: $44,488,000



(write comments, if any, below and refer to question number)

(write comments, if any, below and refer to question number)

Buyer’s Initials & Date
Property Address: 

Seller’s Initials & Date

Page 6 of 6

1850 Ala Moana Blvd Honolulu, HI. 96815

#8 Aqua Hotels & resorts, LLC manages an on-site rental program for over 85% of the units.
#9 Developer has completed remediation work to remove or otherwise deal with asbestos at the project in accordance with the
recommendatios of their consultants. Certain toxic molds have previously been detedted at the project and the seller has completed mold
remediation which included replacement of all drywalls in apartments and portion of hallways.
#10 back of the house storage areas, locker rooms and lunch room facilities are leased on an annual basis to the rental program operator. 
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Project Information  
 Palms at Waikiki AOAO

Honolulu, HI

  Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

  

  

Reserve Study - Step by Step Process

Step One (1): Review the common area component listing to assure all components are incorporated into the report accurately.

Step Two (2): Percent Funded Report - This report indicates the current funded status of the association. This report details by

component the Fully Funded Reserve or the amount needed to be 100% funded.

Step Three (3): Funding Models: The report provides 4 individual funding reports that provide the Board different scenarios in which to

review prior to setting the annual reserve contribution for the next fiscal year.

Step Four (4): Once the Board has made a decision on the level of funding they will be incorporating into the reserve funded the final

budget is to be forwarded to the provider so they can finalize the reserve study report and complete the reserve disclosure form.

Project Description

Name of Association: Palms at Waikiki AOAO

City and State: 1850 Ala Moana Blvd., Honolulu, HI

Type of Project: High-rise

Number of Units: 262

Unit Break Down: (262) High-rise

Age of Project: 46 Years

Fiscal Year-End: Dec 31, 2014

Level of Reserve Study: Level 3: Update (without site visit)

Management Company: Aqua Hotels & Resorts

Date of Inspection (if applicable): Oct 12, 2013

Property Notes

N/A  

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)
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Reserve Study - Step by Step Process
Step One (1): Review the common area component listing to assure all components are incorporated into the report accurately.

Step Two (2): Percent Funded Report - This report indicates the current funded status of the association. This report details by
component the Fully Funded Reserve or the amount needed to be 100% funded.

Step Three (3): Funding Models: The report provides 4 individual funding reports that provide the Board different scenarios in which to
review prior to setting the annual reserve contribution for the next fiscal year.

Step Four (4): Once the Board has made a decision on the level of funding they will be incorporating into the reserve funded the final
budget is to be forwarded to the provider so they can finalize the reserve study report and complete the reserve disclosure form.

Project Description
Name of Association:
City and State:
Type of Project:
Number of Units:
Unit Break Down:
Age of Project:
Fiscal Year-End:
Level of Reserve Study:
Management Company:
Date of Inspection (if applicable):

Property Notes
N/A

Palms at Waikiki AOAO
1850 Ala Moana Blvd., Honolulu, HI
High-rise
262
(262) High-rise
46 Years
Dec 31,2014
Level 3: Update (without site visit)
Aqua Hotels & Resorts
Oct 12, 2013
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Information  
 Palms at Waikiki AOAO

Honolulu, HI

  Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

Reserve Study Information

Reserve Study (Definition): A budget planning tool which identifies the current status of the reserve fund and a stable and equitable

Funding Plan to offset the anticipated future major capital expenditures. The Reserve Study consists of two parts: the Physical

Analysis and the Financial Analysis.

Included in the Reserve Study:

Component Worksheet Report: Includes the quantity, estimated current replacement cost, projected future cost, service life the projected

remaining life of each major component.

Percentage Funded Report: Includes the total replacement cost, current reserve balance, fully funded reserve balance (to be 100%) and the

percentage to which the association is fully funded.

Funding Plans: One or more of the following plans may be included in the Reserve Analysis:

Current Funding: The funding level equal to the Association's current assessments for reserve assets.

100% Funding (10-Year Plan): Funding designed to reduce the current deficit and reach the fully funded level (100%) in 10 Yrs.

Threshold Funding: Funding Plan designed to meet all projected disbursement requirements as they occur over the projected 20-30

years while never allowing the reserve balance to go below the designated threshold level.

Recommended Funding: Funding plan recommended by the reserve provider.

Compliance Funding - 50% (Hawaii Only): Funding Plan designed to meet all projected disbursement requirements as they occur over

the projected 20 years while also maintaining a minimum percentage funded rate of 50% for years 1-20.

Cash Flow Plan (Hawaii Only): Funding Plan designed to meet all projected disbursement requirements as they occur over the projected

20 years while never allowing the reserve balance to go below the designated threshold level.

Category Summary: Summary of reserve study by category totals.

Executive Summary: For homeowners distribution (if applicable). General summary of the reserve report based on statute requirements.

Reserve Funding Disclosure Summary - California State Statute 5570 – (California Only)

The purpose of this report is to provide information about the existing condition, life expectancy and estimated cost for maintenance

and replacement of the physical elements that the Association is responsible for maintaining. This evaluation is designed to comply

with all current state requirements.

A level 1 or 2 report is based on a diligent visual inspection of the reserve components and may rely on information supplied by the

management company, Board of Directors, associated vendors, contractors and published replacement guides modified for local

conditions related to reconstruction. A level-3 reserve study report does not include an on-site visual evaluation but is updated

accordingly based on a previous years on-site evaluation.

Future-cost figures include an annual inflationary factor (see inflation rate), which should be updated and reincorporated into the

reserve budget when deemed appropriate. Funding and disbursement projections presented have been computed with a Time Value

of Money approach. An annual inflation rate and average interest rate were assumed. Inflation was applied to the projected

disbursements, and annual average interest to the ending cash balance values. A straight-line method of calculation was employed for

both time value rates.

Adjustments to the component service lives and listed costs should be made whenever the rate of deterioration has changed or when

there have been significant changes in the cost of materials and/or labor. Some assumptions have been made about costs, conditions,

and future events and circumstances that may occur. Some assumptions inevitably will not materialize and unanticipated events and

circumstances may occur subsequent to the date of this report. Therefore, the actual replacement costs and remaining lives may vary

from this report and the variations could be material.

It is imperative that these assets be reviewed annually to consider the impact of changing conditions. The findings in the following

report are applicable as of the study's completion date, and those items, which are not expected to undergo major repair or

replacement within a thirty-year time frame, have been defined as 'life of the project' and may not be included. The report is to be used

only for the purpose stated herein, any use or reliance for any other purpose is invalid.

The contents of the Reserve Study Report are based on estimates of the most probable reserve component replacement costs and

remaining useful lives. Accordingly, the funding plans reflect consultant judgments based on circumstances at the time of inspection of

the most likely costs, regular maintenance, service and remaining lives. The Association may elect to implement any of the funding

plans presented, or may implement some variation developed from this information. An annual increase (based on listed inflation %)

has been assumed in the funding plans provided (for future projections). Because the compilation of the reserve funding plans and

related projections is limited as described above, no conclusion or any other form of assurance on the funding options or projections is

provided. No responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report is assumed.
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Date: Oct 8, 2014
Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec31, 2014
Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

Reserve Study Information
Reserve Study (Definition): A budget planning tool which identifies the current status of the reserve fund and a stable and equitable
Funding Plan to offset the anticipated future major capital expenditures. The Reserve Study consists of two parts: the Physical
Analysis and the Financial Analysis.

Included in the Reserve Study:

• Component Worksheet Report: Includes the quantity, estimated current replacement cost, projected future cost, service life the projected
remaining life of each major component.

• Percentage Funded Report: Includes the total replacement cost, current reserve balance, fully funded reserve balance (to be 100%) and the
percentage to which the association is fully funded.

• Funding Plans: One or more of the following plans may be included in the Reserve Analysis:
o Current Funding: The funding level equal to the Associations current assessments for reserve assets.
o 100% Funding (10-Year Plan): Funding designed to reduce the current deficit and reach the fully funded level (100%) in 10 Yrs.
o Threshold Funding: Funding Plan designed to meet all projected disbursement requirements as they occur over the projected 20-30
years while never allowing the reserve balance to go below the designated threshold level.

o Recommended Funding: Funding plan recommended by the reserve provider.
o Compliance Funding - 50% (Hawaii Only): Funding Plan designed to meet all projected disbursement requirements as they occur over
the projected 20 years while also maintaining a minimum percentage funded rate of 50% for years 1-20.

o Cash Flow Plan (Hawaii Only): Funding Plan designed to meet all projected disbursement requirements as they occur over the projected
20 years while never allowing the reserve balance to go below the designated threshold level.

• Category Summary: Summary of reserve study by category totals.
• Executive Summary: For homeowners distribution (if applicable). General summary of the reserve report based on statute requirements.
• Reserve Funding Disclosure Summary - California State Statute 5570 — (California Only)

The purpose of this report is to provide information about the existing condition, life expectancy and estimated cost for maintenance
and replacement of the physical elements that the Association is responsible for maintaining. This evaluation is designed to comply
with all current state requirements.

A level 1 or 2 report is based on a diligent visual inspection of the reserve components and may rely on information supplied by the
management company, Board of Directors, associated vendors, contractors and published replacement guides modified for local
conditions related to reconstruction. A level-3 reserve study report does not include an on-site visual evaluation but is updated
accordingly based on a previous years on-site evaluation.

Future-cost figures include an annual inflationary factor (see inflation rate), which should be updated and reincorporated into the
reserve budget when deemed appropriate. Funding and disbursement projections presented have been computed with a Time Value
of Money approach. An annual inflation rate and average interest rate were assumed. Inflation was applied to the projected
disbursements, and annual average interest to the ending cash balance values. A straight-line method of calculation was employed for
both time value rates.

Adjustments to the component service lives and listed costs should be made whenever the rate of deterioration has changed or when
there have been significant changes in the cost of materials and/or labor. Some assumptions have been made about costs, conditions,
and future events and circumstances that may occur. Some assumptions inevitably will not materialize and unanticipated events and
circumstances may occur subsequent to the date of this report. Therefore, the actual replacement costs and remaining lives may vary
from this report and the variations could be material.

It is imperative that these assets be reviewed annually to consider the impact of changing conditions. The findings in the following
report are applicable as of the studys completion date, and those items, which are not expected to undergo major repair or
replacement within a thirty-year time frame, have been defined as life of the project and may not be included. The report is to be used
only for the purpose stated herein, any use or reliance for any other purpose is invalid.

The contents of the Reserve Study Report are based on estimates of the most probable reserve component replacement costs and
remaining useful lives. Accordingly, the funding plans reflect consultant judgments based on circumstances at the time of inspection of
the most likely costs, regular maintenance, service and remaining lives. The Association may elect to implement any of the funding
plans presented, or may implement some variation developed from this information. An annual increase (based on listed inflation %)
has been assumed in the funding plans provided (for future projections). Because the compilation of the reserve funding plans and
related projections is limited as described above, no conclusion or any other form of assurance on the funding options or projections is
provided. No responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report is assumed.
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Financial Overview  
 Palms at Waikiki AOAO

Honolulu, HI

  Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

Financial Information - As of 2014-Dec-31

Projected Reserve Fund Balance: $855,151

Projected Fully Funded Reserve: $1,714,240

Percentage Funded: 50%

Current Replacement Cost: $3,714,004

Inflation, Interest & Contribution Rates

Funding and disbursement projections presented have been computed with a Time Value of Money approach. Inflation

was applied to the projected disbursements, and average interest to the ending cash balance values.  

Assumed Annual Inflation Rate: 3.00%

Assumed Annual Interest Rate: 1.00%

Assumed Annual Contribution Rate: 3.00%

5-Year Current Funding Plan

Year Annual Funding

Amount

Average Monthly

Fee Per Unit

Projected

Annual

Disbursements

Year-End

Balance

Fully Funded

Reserve

Percent Funded

2015 $264,138.00 $84.01 $565,002 $561,335 $1,459,929 38%

2016 $272,062.14 $86.53 $111,395 $728,419 $1,673,487 44%

2017 $280,224.00 $89.13 $77,920 $939,018 $1,936,469 48%

2018 $288,630.72 $91.80 $122,823 $1,115,046 $2,169,870 51%

2019 $297,289.65 $94.56 $137,425 $1,286,861 $2,404,299 54%

  

20-Year Current Funding Chart
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Financial Overview

OBARRERAAND

Palms at Waikiki AOAO
COMPANY Honolulu, HIRIESEkVJ 5PIECIALIT5

Date: Oct 8, 2014
Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec31, 2014
Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

Financial Information - As of 201 4-Dec-31
Projected Reserve Fund Balance:
Projected Fully Funded Reserve:
Percentage Funded:
Current Replacement Cost:

$855,151
$1,714,240
50%
$3,714,004

Assumed Annual Inflation Rate:
Assumed Annual Interest Rate:
Assumed Annual Contribution Rate:

3.00%
1.00%
3.00%

20-Year Current Funding Chart
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Inflation, Interest & Contribution Rates
Funding and disbursement projections presented have been computed with a Time Value of Money approach. Inflation
was applied to the projected disbursements, and average interest to the ending cash balance values.

5-Year Current Funding Plan
Annual Funding Average Monthly

Amount Fee Per Unit
Year

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

$264,138.00
$272,062.14

Projected
Annual

Disbursements
$565,002$84.01

Year-End
Balance

$280,224.00

Fully Funded
Reserve

$288,630.72

Percent Funded

$561 335

$297,289.65

$1 ,459,929
$86.53 $111,395 $728,419 $1,673,487 44%
$89.13 $77,920 $939,018 $1,936,469 48%

38%

$91.80 $122,823 $1,115,046 $2,169,870
$94.56 $137,425 $1 286,861 $2,404,299
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Financial Overview  
 Palms at Waikiki AOAO

Honolulu, HI

  Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

Category Summary

 

Category UL RL Current

Replacement

Cost

Projected

Reserve

Balance

Required

Reserve

Funding

Projected

Fully Funded

Reserve

Current Funding

Allocation

(Year 1)

Asphalt & Concrete Surfaces 5 0-1 $27,077 $13,507 $5,415 $27,077 $5,334

Common Interior 4-25 0-24 $398,800 $79,850 $37,116 $160,068 $36,558

Elevators 12-30 6-24 $664,200 $73,630 $24,600 $147,600 $24,230

Lighting 10-25 2-12 $39,367 $13,179 $2,190 $26,419 $2,157

Mechanical Equipment 5-30 0-18 $1,595,650 $302,015 $78,803 $605,420 $77,619

Miscellaneous 1-12 0-9 $67,075 $11,237 $12,625 $22,525 $12,435

Painting & Repairs 4-8 0-3 $525,150 $256,461 $76,430 $514,103 $75,282

Pool 2-15 0-13 $41,650 $8,717 $5,395 $17,475 $5,314

Rails & Gates 1-25 0-14 $38,460 $10,937 $7,770 $21,924 $7,654

Roofing 20 8 $266,500 $79,766 $13,325 $159,900 $13,125

Security Systems 5-20 0-19 $50,075 $5,851 $4,498 $11,729 $4,430

Totals $3,714,004 $855,151 $268,166 $1,714,240 $264,138
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Financial Overview
BARRERAAND Palms at Waikiki AOAO Date: Oct 8, 2014

‘ COMPANY Units: 262
FlIESLIvJ 5PIECIAIJT5 nQflQiUiU, fli Fiscal Year End: Dec31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

Category Summary

Expr hsf Cat9ory Prcertag

Miscellaneous (2%
Painting & Repairs (14%)

i— fooling (7%
Mechanroal EqLIpment 43%—

—Security Svslems (1%)
‘-Asphaif & Doncrete Surfaces 1%)

iDommcn nIeror11%)

Li9htirg (1% EIevaors (18%

Category UL RL Current Projected Required Projected Current Funding
Replacement Reserve Reserve Fully Funded Allocation

Cost Balance Funding Reserve (Year 1)

Asphalt & Concrete Surfaces
Common Interior
Elevators
Lighting
Mechanical Equipment
Miscellaneous
Painting & Repairs
Pool
Rails & Gates
Roofing

5 0-1 $27,077
4-25 0-24 $398,800
12-30 6-24 $664,200
10-25 2-12 $39,367
5-30 0-18 $1,595,650
1-12 0-9 $67,075
4-8 0-3 $525,150
2-15 0-13 $41,650
1-25 0-14 $38,460
20 8 $266,500
5-20 0-19 $50,075
Totals

$13,507
$79,850
$73,630
$13,179

$302,015
$1 1,237

$256,461
$8,717
$10,937

_________
$79,766

___________
$5,851

$3,714,004 $855,151
Security Systems

$5,415
$37,116
$24,600
$2,190
$78,803
$12,625
$76,430
$5,395
$7,770
$13,325
$4,498

$268,166

$27,077
$1 60,068
$147,600
$26,419

$605,420
$22,525

$514,103
$17,475

$21 ,924
$1 59,900
$1 1,729

$1,714,240

$5,334
$36,558
$24,230
$2,157
$77,619
$12,435
$75,282
$5,314
$7,654
$13,125
$4,430

$264,138
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Detail Component Report  
 Palms at Waikiki AOAO

Honolulu, HI

  Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

 Current Replacement Cost: $3,714,004

Component UL RL Cost Per Unit Qty Current Cost Future Cost Source

Asphalt & Concrete Surfaces

Garage - Concrete Coating 5 0 $0.82/SF 8,000 $6,560 $6,560 Inspector

Garage - Patch/Repairs 5 0 $5,625.00/Total 1 $5,625 $5,625 Inspector

    Allowance for repairs and patching for the garage surfaces. Amount and cycle may vary. To be reviewed annually and adjusted as needed to

assure all future requirements will be met.

Garage - Seal & Repair 5 0 $0.94/SF 15,800 $14,892 $14,892 Inspector

Garage - Stripe (In-house) Maintenance / Operating Management

Garage Deck - Drains (1-Time) Other Management

    Considered a 1-time needed expense. Not to be included in reserve funding plan.

Totals $27,077 $27,077

Common Interior

Carpeting - Hallways 10 9 $92,250.00/Total 1 $92,250 $120,365 Inspector

    Completed in 2013.

Doors - Lobby Entry Other Management

    Considered to have an extended life cycle. Time exempt component. Remianing life +20 years.

Doors - Lobby Entry Operator 4 0 $5,125.00/Total 1 $5,125 $5,125 Inspector

Doors - Locks (Safelok System) 10 1 $80,500.00/Total 1 $80,500 $82,915 Inspector

Drop Ceiling - Hallways 20 14 $36,050.00/Total 1 $36,050 $54,529 Inspector

Fitness - Bioforce Machine 10 5 $3,075.00/EA 1 $3,075 $3,565 Inspector

Fitness - Flooring 12 11 $350.00/Total 1 $350 $484 Management

Fitness - Step Machine 7 3 $4,100.00/EA 1 $4,100 $4,480 Inspector

Glass Assemblies (by elevators) 20 11 $30,750.00/Total 1 $30,750 $42,565 Management

Ice Machines I (1) 12 11 $5,150.00/EA 1 $5,150 $7,129 Management

Ice Machines II (4) 12 6 $6,150.00/EA 4 $24,600 $29,374 Inspector

Lobby - Refurbish 6 5 $46,150.00/Total 1 $46,150 $53,500 Management

    Completed in 2013.

Lobby - Tile Surfaces 25 24 $39,950.00/Total 1 $39,950 $81,210 Management

    Due to flooding the tile surfaces may be replaced outside of reserves. Awaiting additional information.

RR - Hand Dryers Maintenance / Operating Management

RR - Refurbish (Fitness) 15 4 $2,050.00/EA 1 $2,050 $2,307 Inspector

RR - Refurbish (Lobby) 15 4 $10,250.00/EA 2 $20,500 $23,073 Inspector

Washers/Dryers - Guests 8 2 $1,025.00/EA 8 $8,200 $8,699 Inspector

Totals $398,800 $519,322

Elevators

Elevators - Cab Refurbish 12 6 $16,400.00/EA 3 $49,200 $58,747 Inspector

Elevators - Testing/Maint. Maintenance / Operating Management

Elevators - Upgrade Systems 30 24 $205,000.00/Total 3 $615,000 $1,250,168 Inspector

Totals $664,200 $1,308,916

Lighting

Entry Cover (RAB) Fixtures 15 12 $256.00/EA 13 $3,328 $4,745 Inspector

    To Be repaired and or replaced on an as needed basis. Current allowance calls for 20% every 10 years. Amount and cycle to be addressed

annually.
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RR - Hand Dryers
RR - Refurbish (Fitness)
RR - Refurbish (Lobby)
Washers/Dryers - Guests

Elevators
Elevators - Cab Refurbish
Elevators - Testing/Maint.
Elevators - Upgrade Systems

Maintenance / Operating
15 4 $2,050.00/EA
15 4 $10,250.00/EA
8 2 $1,025.00/EA

12 6 $16,400.00/EA
Maintenance / Operating
30 24 $205,000.00/Total

1 $2,050
_______

2 $20,500
________

8 $8,200
Totals $398,800 ___________

3 $615,000 $1,250,168
Totals $664,200 11,308,916

Management
Inspector
Inspector
Inspector

Inspector

Detail Comnent Rert
BARRERAAND Palms at Waikiki AOAO Date: Oct 8, 2014

COMPANY
Units: 262Honolulu, HI Fiscal Year End: Dec31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

I Current Replacement Cost: $3,714,004 I
Component UL RL Cost Per Unit Qty Current Cost Future Cost Source
Asphalt & Concrete Surfaces
Garage - Concrete Coating 5 0 $0.82/SF 8,000 $6,560 $6,560 Inspector
Garage - Patch/Repairs 5 0 $5,625.00/Total 1 $5,625 $5,625 Inspector
Allowance for repairs and patching for the garage surfaces. Amount and cycle may vary. To be reviewed annually and adjusted as needed to

assure all future requirements will be met.

Garage - Seal & Repair 5 0 $0.94/SF 15,800 $14,892 $14,892 Inspector
Garage - Stripe (In-house) Maintenance / Operating Management
Garage Deck - Drains (1-Time) Other Management
Considered a 1-time needed expense. Not to be included in reserve funding plan.

Totals $27,077 $27,077
Common Interior

— —

Carpeting - Hallways 10 9 $92,250.00/Total 1 $92,250 $120,365 Inspector
Completed in 2013.

Doors - Lobby Entry Other Management
Considered to have an extended life cycle. Time exempt component. Remianing life +20 years.

Doors - Lobby Entry Operator 4 0 $5,125.00/Total 1 $5,125 $5,125 Inspector
Doors - Locks (Safelok System) 10 1 $80,500.00/Total 1 $80,500 $82,915 Inspector
Drop Ceiling - Hallways 20 14 $36,050.00/Total 1 $36,050 $54,529 Inspector
Fitness - Bioforce Machine 10 5 $3,075.00/EA 1 $3,075 $3,565 Inspector
Fitness - Flooring 12 11 $350.00/Total 1

1
1
1

$350 $484 Management
Fitness - Step Machine 7 3 $4,100.00/EA $4,100 $4,480 Inspector
Glass Assemblies (by elevators) 20 11 $30,750.00/Total $30,750 $42,565 Management
Ice Machines 1(1) 12 11 $5,150.00/EA $5,150 $7,129 Management
Ice Machines 11(4) 12 6 $6,150.00/EA 4 $24,600 $29,374 Inspector
Lobby - Refurbish 6 5 $46,150.00/Total 1 $46,150 $53,500 Management
Completed in 2013.

25 24 $39,950.00/Total 1 $39,950 $81,210 ManagementLobby - Tile Surfaces
Due to flooding the tile surfaces may be replaced outside of reserves. Awaiting additional information.

$2,307
$23,073
$8,699

3 $49,200

$519,322

$58,747 Inspector
Management

Lighting
_________________________

Entry Cover (RAB) Fixtures 15 12 $256.00/EA 13 $3,328 $4,745 Inspector
To Be repaired and or replaced on an as needed basis. Current allowance calls for 20% every 10 years. Amount and cycle to be addressed

annually.
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Detail Component Report  
 Palms at Waikiki AOAO

Honolulu, HI

  Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

Component UL RL Cost Per Unit Qty Current Cost Future Cost Source

Garage Fixtures - Ceiling (No

Cover)

20 2 $205.00/EA 16 $3,280 $3,480 Inspector

Garage Fixtures - Ceiling/Wall 20 5 $205.00/EA 105 $21,525 $24,953 Inspector

Garage Fixtures - Exit 20 7 $179.50/EA 14 $2,513 $3,091 Inspector

Garage Fixtures - Wall (Sq) 20 2 $102.50/EA 27 $2,768 $2,936 Inspector

Hallway Fixtures (PH Flr.) 25 9 $169.00/EA 13 $2,197 $2,867 Inspector

Hallway Fixtures (Recessed) -

Allowance

10 7 $46.15/EA 407 $3,757 $4,620 Inspector

    To Be repaired and or replaced on an as needed basis. Current allowance calls for 20% every 10 years. Amount and cycle to be addressed

annually.

Totals $39,367 $46,692

Mechanical Equipment

Air Handler (Mezzanine/Lobby) 20 9 $80,000.00/Total 1 $80,000 $104,382 On File

Air Handler - Roof/Hallway 20 14 $16,900.00/Total 1 $16,900 $25,563 On File

Backflow Preventer (4") 15 0 $8,200.00/EA 1 $8,200 $8,200 On File

Boilers (HW) 25 18 $30,750.00/EA 2 $61,500 $104,700 On File

Booster Pump System (HW) '05 15 2 $8,850.00/EA 2 $17,700 $18,778 On File

Chiller #1 (Back-up) - 120 Ton Other Management

    Back-up System. Not to be included in reserve funding plan.

Chiller #2 - 120 Ton (A) 15 13 $65,500.00/EA 1 $65,500 $96,189 On File

    Deposit payment for chiller #2 (new) in 2012.

Chiller #2 - 120 Ton (B) 15 14 $164,000.00/EA 1 $164,000 $248,065 Management

    Remaining work and payment to be made in 2014.

Chiller #2 - 120 Ton (C) 15 14 $117,850.00/EA 1 $117,850 $178,259 Bid

    Required Screen System. Additional Bids being gathered.

Chiller #3 (Hallway) 15 9 $55,250.00/EA 1 $55,250 $72,089 On File

Dom. Water Pump #1 15 13 $5,625.00/EA 1 $5,625 $8,261 On File

Dom. Water Pump #2 15 2 $5,625.00/EA 1 $5,625 $5,968 On File

Emerg. Generator (120KVA) 25 3 $87,200.00/EA 1 $87,200 $95,286 On File

Fire Booster Pump (P2) - 1.5hp 5 3 $2,050.00/EA 1 $2,050 $2,240 On File

Fire Booster Pump (P2) - 40hp 18 16 $28,200.00/EA 1 $28,200 $45,253 On File

Risers - Chill Water 25 14 $794,000.00/Total 1 $794,000 $1,200,996 Previous Study

Rooftop Exhaust Fans - Lg. 22 16 $4,100.00/EA 5 $20,500 $32,896 On File

Rooftop Exhaust Fans - Med. 22 16 $3,075.00/EA 2 $6,150 $9,869 On File

Storage Tanks (2/3) to 5 Tanks 12 11 $35,300.00/Total 1 $35,300 $48,863 Management

    Storage Tanks 2 & 3 to be replaced in 2013 with 5 119 gal. tanks.

Transfer Switch 30 5 $24,100.00/Total 1 $24,100 $27,939 On File

Totals $1,595,650 $2,333,794

Miscellaneous

BBQ Maintenance / Operating Management

Canopy - Entry Maintenance / Operating Awaiting

Information

Garage Planter Boxes Maintenance / Operating Management

    To be handled on an as needed basis and funded from the operating budget.
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Detail Comnent Rert

OBARRERAAND
COMPANY

Palms at Waikiki AOAO
Honolulu, HI

Date: Oct 8, 2014
Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec31, 2014
Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

RIESEkVJ 5PIECIALIT5

Cost Per Unit
$205.00/EA

Qty Current Cost
16 $3,280

Future Cost
$3,480

Component UL RL
Garage Fixtures - Ceiling (No 20 2
Cover) ____________________________________________________
Garage Fixtures - Ceiling/Wall 20 5 $205.00/EA 105
Garage Fixtures - Exit 20 7 $179.50/EA 14
Garage Fixtures - Wall (Sq) 20 2 $1 02.50/EA 27
Hallway Fixtures (PH FIr.) 25 9 $169.00/EA 13
Hallway Fixtures (Recessed) - 10 7 $46.15/EA 407
Allowance

To Be repaired and or replaced on an as needed basis. Current allowance calls for 20% every 10 years. Amount and cycle to be addressed

Source
Inspector

$21,525
$2,513
$2,768
$2,197
$3,757

$24,953
$3,091
$2,936
$2,867
$4,620

Inspector
Inspector
Inspector
Inspector
Inspector

annually.

Mechanical Equipment _____________________________________
Air Handler (Mezzanine/Lobby) 20 9
Air Handler - Roof/Hallway 20 14
Backf low Preventer (4) 15 0
Boilers (HW) 25 18
Booster Pump System (HW) 05 15 2
Chiller #1 (Back-up) - 120 Ton Other
Back-up System. Not to be included in reserve funding plan.

Totals $39,367 $46,692

$80,000.00/Total 1
1

$80,000 $104,382 On File
$16,900.00/Total $16,900 $25,563 On File
$8,200.00/EA 1 $8,200 $8,200 On File
$30,750.00/EA 2 $61,500 $104,700 On File
$8,850.00/EA 2 $17,700 $18,778 On File

Management

Chiller #2 - 120 Ton (A) 15
Deposit payment for chiller #2 (new) in 2012.

13 $65,500.00/EA

$164,000.00/EAChiller #2-120 Ton (B) 15 14
Remaining work and payment to be made in 2014.

Chiller #2-120 Ton (C) 15 14 $117,850.00/EA
Required Screen System. Additional Bids being gathered.

1 $65,500 $96,189 On File

1 $164,000 $248,065 Management

1 $117,850 $178,259 Bid

Chiller #3 (Hallway) 15 9 $55,250.00/EA 1 $55,250 $72,089 On File
Dom. Water Pump #1 15 13 $5,625.00/EA 1 $5,625 $8,261 On File
Dom. Water Pump #2 15 2 $5,625.00/EA 1 $5,625 $5,968 On File
Emerg. Generator (12OKVA) 25 3 $87,200.00/EA 1 $87,200 $95,286 On File
Fire Booster Pump (P2) - 1 .Shp 5 3 $2,050.00/EA 1 $2,050 $2,240 On File
Fire Booster Pump (P2) - 4Ohp 18 16 $28,200.00/EA 1 $28,200 $45,253 On File
Risers - Chill Water 25 14 $794,000.00/Total 1 $794,000 $1,200,996 Previous Study
Rooftop Exhaust Fans - Lg. 22 16 $4,100.00/EA 5 $20,500 $32,896 On File
Rooftop Exhaust Fans - Med. 22 16 $3,075.00/EA 2 $6,150 $9,869 On File
Storage Tanks (2/3) to 5 Tanks 12 11 $35,300.00/Total 1 $35,300 $48,863 Management
Storage Tanks 2 & 3 to be replaced in 2013 with 5 119 gal. tanks.

1 $24,100 $27,939 On FileTransfer Switch 30 5 $24,100.00/Total

Miscellaneous
BBQ
Canopy - Entry

Maintenance / Operating
Maintenance / Operating

Totals $1,595,650 $2,333,794

Garage Planter Boxes Maintenance / Operating
To be handled on an as needed basis and funded from the operating budget.

Management
Awaiting
Information
Management
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Detail Component Report  
 Palms at Waikiki AOAO

Honolulu, HI

  Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

Component UL RL Cost Per Unit Qty Current Cost Future Cost Source

PBX System 12 9 $59,400.00/Total 1 $59,400 $77,504 Management

Plumbing Repairs - Annual

Contingency

1 0 $7,675.00/Total 1 $7,675 $7,675 Management

    Annual contingency for plumbing repairs and replacements. Amount to be reviewed every year and adjusted accordingly to assure future

requirements will be met.

Safe Boxes Maintenance / Operating Management

Unit Slide Doors (Incl. Frame) TBD To be Determined Awaiting

Information

    Awaiting additional information regarding timing and costs.

Utilities - Electrical Maintenance / Operating Management

Windows (Common Area) Maintenance / Operating Management

    To be handled on an as needed basis and funded from the operating budget.

Totals $67,075 $85,179

Painting & Repairs

Ext. Surfaces - Paint/Waterproof 8 0 $432,500.00/Total 1 $432,500 $432,500 Inspector

    Includes lanai and exterior building surfaces.

Int. Surfaces (In-House) - Paint 5 2 $15,900.00/Total 1 $15,900 $16,868 Inspector

Spalling Repairs - Contingency I 4 3 $6,250.00/Total 1 $6,250 $6,830 Management

Spalling Repairs - Contingency II 4 0 $70,500.00/Total 1 $70,500 $70,500 Inspector

    Contingency for spalling repairs. Costs may vary. For budgeting purposes only. To be reviewed and adjusted annually.

Spalling Repairs - Gar. Major

(1-Time)

Other Management

    Considered a 1-time needed expense. Not to be included in reserve funding plan.

Totals $525,150 $526,698

Pool

Pool - ADA Chair Lift 14 12 $5,950.00/EA 1 $5,950 $8,483 Inspector

Pool - Chlorinator Maintenance / Operating Management

Pool - Deck Coating/Repairs 2 0 $3,075.00/Total 1 $3,075 $3,075 Inspector

Pool - Deck Leak (1-Time) Other Management

    Considered a 1-time needed expense. Not to be included in reserve funding plan.

Pool - Filter 10 8 $2,200.00/EA 1 $2,200 $2,787 Inspector

Pool - Furnishings 6 1 $10,750.00/Total 1 $10,750 $11,073 Inspector

Pool - Pump/Motor Maintenance / Operating Management

Pool - Resurface (Tile/Coping) 15 13 $16,400.00/Total 1 $16,400 $24,084 Inspector

Pool - Safety Vacuum 10 4 $3,275.00/EA 1 $3,275 $3,686 Previous Study

Totals $41,650 $53,188

Rails & Gates

Lanai Rails - Annual Contingency 1 0 $5,125.00/Total 1 $5,125 $5,125 On File

    Annual repair contingency for the Lanai Rails. Amount to be reviewed annually and adjusted as needed to assure future requirements will be met.

Pool Railings (4') 25 14 $55.25/LF 140 $7,735 $11,700 Inspector

Vehicle Entry Gates (Roll-Up) 25 14 $8,700.00/EA 2 $17,400 $26,319 Inspector

Vehicle Gate - Operator #1 5 1 $4,100.00/EA 1 $4,100 $4,223 Inspector

Vehicle Gate - Operator #2 5 2 $4,100.00/EA 1 $4,100 $4,350 Inspector

Totals $38,460 $51,717
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Detail Comnent Rert
BARRERAAND Palms at Waikiki AOAO Date: Oct 8, 2014

COMPANY
Units: 262Honolulu, HI Fiscal Year End: Dec31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

Component UL RL Cost Per Unit Qty Current Cost Future Cost Source
PBX System 12 9 $59,400.00/Total 1 $59,400 $77,504 Management
Plumbing Repairs - Annual 1 0 $7,675.00/Total 1 $7,675 $7,675 Management
Contingency
Annual contingency for plumbing repairs and replacements. Amount to be reviewed every year and adjusted accordingly to assure future

requirements will be met.

Safe Boxes Maintenance / Operating Management
Unit Slide Doors (IncI. Frame) TBD To be Determined Awaiting

Information
Awaiting additional information regarding timing and costs.

Utilities - Electrical Maintenance / Operating Management
Windows (Common Area) Maintenance / Operating Management

To be handled on an as needed basis and funded from the operating budget.

Totals $67,075 $85,179
Painting & Repairs________________________________________
Ext. Surfaces - Paint/Waterproof 8 0 $432,500.00/Total 1 $432,500 $432,500 Inspector
Includes lanai and exterior building surfaces.

Int. Surfaces (In-House) - Paint 5 2 $15,900.00/Total 1 $15,900 $16,868 Inspector
Spalling Repairs - Contingency I 4 3 $6,250.00/Total 1 $6,250 $6,830 Management
Spalling Repairs - Contingency II 4 0 $70,500.00/Total 1 $70,500 $70,500 Inspector
Contingency for spalling repairs. Costs may vary. For budgeting purposes only. To be reviewed and adjusted annually.

Spalling Repairs - Gar. Major Other Management
(1-Time)
Considered a 1-time needed expense. Not to be included in reserve funding plan.

Totals $525,150 $526,698
Pool
Pool - ADA Chair Lift 14 12 $5,950.00/EA 1 $5,950 $8,483 Inspector
Pool - Chlorinator Maintenance / Operating Management
Pool - Deck Coating/Repairs 2 0 $3,075.00/Total 1 $3,075 $3,075 Inspector
Pool - Deck Leak (1-Time) Other Management
Considered a 1-time needed expense. Not to be included in reserve funding plan.

Pool - Filter
Pool - Furnishings
Pool - Pump/Motor
Pool - Resurface (Tile/Coping)
Pool - Safety Vacuum

10 8 $2,200.00/EA
6 1 $10,750.00/Total

Maintenance / Operating
15 13 $16,400.00/Total
10 4 $3,275.00/EA

1 $2,200 $2,787
1 $10,750 $11,073

Totals
Rails & Gates
Lanai Rails - Annual Contingency 1 0 $5,125.00/Total 1 $5,125 $5,125 On File
Annual repair contingency for the Lanai Rails. Amount to be reviewed annually and adjusted as needed to assure future requirements will be met.

Inspector
Inspector

Management
Inspector

Previous Study
$1 6,400
$3,275
$41,650

$24,084
$3,686
$53,188

Pool Railings (4) 25 14 $55.25/LF 140 $7,735 $11,700 Inspector
Vehicle Entry Gates (Roll-Up) 25 14 $8,700.00/EA 2 $17,400 $26,319 Inspector
Vehicle Gate - Operator #1 5 1 $4,1 00.00/EA 1 $4,100 $4,223 Inspector
VehicleGate-Operator#2 5 2 $4,100.00/EA 1

Totals
$4,100
$38,460

$4,350
$51,717

Inspector
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Detail Component Report  
 Palms at Waikiki AOAO

Honolulu, HI

  Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

Component UL RL Cost Per Unit Qty Current Cost Future Cost Source

Roofing

Roof Hatch (Not Used) Maintenance / Operating Management

Roofing (Rubberized) 20 8 $266,500.00/Total 1 $266,500 $337,594 Inspector

Roofing - Maint./Repairs Maintenance / Operating Management

Totals $266,500 $337,594

Security Systems

Fire - Alarm Control System 20 19 $28,200.00/Total 1 $28,200 $49,449 Inspector

Fire - Door Assemblies 5 4 $4,775.00/Total 1 $4,775 $5,374 Inspector

Fire - Smoke Alarms Maintenance / Operating Management

Security - Cameras 6 0 $5,725.00/Total 1 $5,725 $5,725 Management

Security - Cameras/Monitors 6 5 $5,225.00/Total 1 $5,225 $6,057 On File

Security - Entry System (Gar) 20 11 $6,150.00/EA 1 $6,150 $8,513 Inspector

Totals $50,075 $75,118

Measure key: Bldg = Building(s), EA = Each, LF = Linear Feet, LS = Lump Sum, Unit = Unit(s), SF = Square Feet, SY = Square

Yard(s), SQ = Squares, Total = Total, Place(s) = Place(s)  

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)
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Detail Comnent Rert

OBARRERAAND
COMPANY

Palms at Waikiki AOAO
Honolulu, HI

Date: Oct 8, 2014
Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec31, 2014
Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

RIESEkVJ 5PIECIALIT5

Component
Roofing
Roof Hatch (Not Used)
Roofing (Rubberized)
Roofing - Maint./Repairs

Security Systems________
Fire - Alarm Control System
Fire - Door Assemblies
Fire - Smoke Alarms
Security - Cameras
Security - Cameras/Monitors

Totals $266,500 $337,594

Measure key: Bldg = Building(s), EA = Each, LF = Linear Feet, LS = Lump Sum, Unit = Unit(s), SF = Square Feet, SY = Square
Yard(s), SQ = Squares, Total = Total, Place(s) = Place(s)

UL RL Cost Per Unit

Maintenance / Operating
20 8 $266,500.00/Total
Maintenance / Operating

Qty Current Cost Future Cost

1 $266,500 $337,594

Source

Management
Inspector

Management

20 19 $28,200.00/Total 1
1

1
1

5 4 $4,775.00/Total
Maintenance / Operating

6 0 $5,725.00/Total
6 5 $5,225.00/Total

Security - Entry System (Gar) 20 11 $6,150.00/EA

$28,200 $49,449 Inspector
$4,775 $5,374 Inspector

Management
$5,725 $5,725 Management
$5,225 $6,057 On File

—
1 $6,150 $8,513 Inspector

Totals $50,075 $75,118
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5 Year Disbursement Schedule  
 Palms at Waikiki AOAO

Honolulu, HI

  Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

 

Category Component Replacement Cost Projected Cost

2015

Asphalt & Concrete Surfaces Garage - Concrete Coating $6,560 $6,560

Asphalt & Concrete Surfaces Garage - Patch/Repairs $5,625 $5,625

Asphalt & Concrete Surfaces Garage - Seal & Repair $14,892 $14,892

Common Interior Doors - Lobby Entry Operator $5,125 $5,125

Mechanical Equipment Backflow Preventer (4") $8,200 $8,200

Miscellaneous Plumbing Repairs - Annual

Contingency

$7,675 $7,675

Painting & Repairs Ext. Surfaces - Paint/Waterproof $432,500 $432,500

Painting & Repairs Spalling Repairs - Contingency II $70,500 $70,500

Pool Pool - Deck Coating/Repairs $3,075 $3,075

Rails & Gates Lanai Rails - Annual Contingency $5,125 $5,125

Security Systems Security - Cameras $5,725 $5,725

Total for 2015: $565,002

2016

Common Interior Doors - Locks (Safelok System) $80,500 $82,915

Miscellaneous Plumbing Repairs - Annual

Contingency

$7,675 $7,905

Pool Pool - Furnishings $10,750 $11,073

Rails & Gates Lanai Rails - Annual Contingency $5,125 $5,279

Rails & Gates Vehicle Gate - Operator #1 $4,100 $4,223

Total for 2016: $111,395

2017

Common Interior Washers/Dryers - Guests $8,200 $8,699

Lighting Garage Fixtures - Ceiling (No Cover) $3,280 $3,480

Lighting Garage Fixtures - Wall (Sq) $2,768 $2,936

Mechanical Equipment Booster Pump System (HW) '05 $17,700 $18,778

Mechanical Equipment Dom. Water Pump #2 $5,625 $5,968

Miscellaneous Plumbing Repairs - Annual

Contingency

$7,675 $8,142

Painting & Repairs Int. Surfaces (In-House) - Paint $15,900 $16,868

Pool Pool - Deck Coating/Repairs $3,075 $3,262

Rails & Gates Lanai Rails - Annual Contingency $5,125 $5,437

Rails & Gates Vehicle Gate - Operator #2 $4,100 $4,350

Total for 2017: $77,920

2018

Common Interior Fitness - Step Machine $4,100 $4,480
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5 Year Disbursement Schedule

OBARRERAAND

Palms at Waikiki AOAO
COMPANY Honolulu, HIRIESEkVJ 5PIE(IALI5T5

Date: Oct 8, 2014
Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec31, 2014
Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

DD1JJO

4DDiJOO

3SD1XJO

25C.OOO

2ODYJc1

15o_ooo. -I
2015

Category
2015
Asphalt & Concrete Surfaces
Asphalt & Concrete Surfaces
Asphalt & Concrete Surfaces
Common Interior
Mechanical Equipment
Miscellaneous

Painting & Repairs
Painting & Repairs
Pool
Rails & Gates
Security Systems

2016
Common Interior
Miscellaneous

Pool
Rails & Gates
Rails & Gates

2017
Common Interior
Lighting
Lighting
Mechanical Equipment
Mechanical Equipment
Miscellaneous

Painting & Repairs
Pool
Rails & Gates
Rails & Gates

Component

Garage - Concrete Coating
—

Garage - Patch/Repairs
—

Garage - Seal & Repair
Doors - Lobby Entry Operator
Backflow Preventer (4)
Plumbing Repairs - Annual
Contingency
Ext. Surfaces - Paint/Waterproof
Spalling Repairs - Contingency II
Pool - Deck Coating/Repairs
Lanai Rails - Annual Contingency
Security - Cameras

Doors - Locks (Safelok System)
Plumbing Repairs - Annual
Contingency
Pool - Furnishings
Lanai Rails - Annual Contingency
Vehicle Gate - Operator #1

Washers/Dryers - Guests
Garage Fixtures - Ceiling (No Cover)
Garage Fixtures - Wall (Sq)
Booster Pump System (HW) 05
Dom. Water Pump #2
Plumbing Repairs - Annual
Contingency
Int. Surfaces (In-House) - Paint
Pool - Deck Coating/Repairs
Lanai Rails - Annual Contingency
Vehicle Gate - Operator #2

Replacement Cost

$6,560
$5,625
$14,892
$5,125
$8,200
$7,675

$432,500
$70,500
$3,075
$5,125
$5,725

$8,200
$3,280
$2,768

$17,700
$5,625
$7,675

$15,900
$3,075
$5,125
$4,100

Projected Cost

$6,560
$5,625
$14,892
$5,125
$8,200
$7,675

$432,500
$70,500
$3,075
$5,125
$5,725

$565,002

$82,915
$7,905

$11,073
$5,279
$4,223

$111,395

$8,699
$3,480
$2,936

$18,778
$5,968
$8,142

$16,868
$3,262
$5,437
$4,350
$77,920

$4,480

5 Yr. DIsbLIrsemerlt Chart

I
211

Total for 2015:

Total for 2016:

$80,500
$7,675

$10,750
$5,125
$4,100

2018
Common Interior Fitness - Step Machine $4,100

Total for 2017:
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5 Year Disbursement Schedule  
 Palms at Waikiki AOAO

Honolulu, HI

  Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

Category Component Replacement Cost Projected Cost

Mechanical Equipment Emerg. Generator (120KVA) $87,200 $95,286

Mechanical Equipment Fire Booster Pump (P2) - 1.5hp $2,050 $2,240

Miscellaneous Plumbing Repairs - Annual

Contingency

$7,675 $8,387

Painting & Repairs Spalling Repairs - Contingency I $6,250 $6,830

Rails & Gates Lanai Rails - Annual Contingency $5,125 $5,600

Total for 2018: $122,823

2019

Common Interior Doors - Lobby Entry Operator $5,125 $5,768

Common Interior RR - Refurbish (Fitness) $2,050 $2,307

Common Interior RR - Refurbish (Lobby) $20,500 $23,073

Miscellaneous Plumbing Repairs - Annual

Contingency

$7,675 $8,638

Painting & Repairs Spalling Repairs - Contingency II $70,500 $79,348

Pool Pool - Deck Coating/Repairs $3,075 $3,461

Pool Pool - Safety Vacuum $3,275 $3,686

Rails & Gates Lanai Rails - Annual Contingency $5,125 $5,768

Security Systems Fire - Door Assemblies $4,775 $5,374

Total for 2019: $137,423
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5 Year Disbursement Schedule

QBARRERAAND

Palms at Waikiki AOAO
COMPANY Honolulu, HIRIESEHVJ SPIECDIALISTS

Date: Oct 8, 2014
Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec31, 2014
Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

Category Component Replacement Cost Projected Cost
Mechanical Equipment Emerg. Generator (120KVA) $87,200 $95,286
Mechanical Equipment Fire Booster Pump (P2) - 1 .Shp $2,050 $2,240
Miscellaneous Plumbing Repairs - Annual $7,675 $8,387
_______________________

Contingency
__________________ ____________

Painting & Repairs Spalling Repairs - Contingency I $6,250 $6,830
Rails & Gates Lanai Rails - Annual Contingency $5,125 $5,600

Total tor 2018: $122,823
2019
Common Interior Doors - Lobby Entry Operator $5,125 $5,768
Common Interior RR - Refurbish (Fitness) $2,050 $2,307
Common Interior RR - Refurbish (Lobby) $20,500 $23,073
Miscellaneous Plumbing Repairs - Annual $7,675 $8,638
_________________________

Contingency
_______________________ _________________

Painting & Repairs Spalling Repairs - Contingency II $70,500 $79,348
Pool Pool - Deck Coating/Repairs $3,075 $3,461
Pool Pool - Safety Vacuum $3,275 $3,686
Rails & Gates Lanai Rails - Annual Contingency $5,125 $5,768
Security Systems Fire - Door Assemblies

—
$4,775 $5,374

Total tor 2019: $137,423
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Funding Models: Overview  
 Palms at Waikiki AOAO

Honolulu, HI

  Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

Summary of Funding Models

  Funding

Models

Year 1

Annual

Funding

Year 1

Per Unit

Per Month

Will Meet All

Disbursement

Requirements

20 years

1st Year of

Reserve Deficit

(If Applicable)

Average

Reserve

Balance

20 -Years

Average

Percent

Funded

20 -Years

Current Funding $264,138 $84.01 Yes No Deficit $1,556,665 43%

Cash Flow Plan $251,200 $79.90 Yes No Deficit $1,379,916 37%

Compliance $432,000 $137.40 Yes No Deficit $2,071,960 61%

Chart of Listed Funding Plans

 

Annual Disbursement Chart
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Fundin Models: Overview

OBARRERAAND
COMPANY

Palms at Waikiki AOAO
Honolulu, HI

Date: Oct 8, 2014
Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec31, 2014
Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

RIESEkVJ 5PIECIALIT5

Summary of Funding Models

Chart of Listed Funding Plans

2D1 2D1 2020 2I22 2I24 02 202 2C3J 2032 20B4

201S 2I17 2C1 2cI 2I23

Annual Disbursement Chart

1.&Jo.oUJ.

1.4OO.O(KJ

1.2OO.O(KJ

— —
____I_I—

211 2O1 21D 2122 2O4

Funding Year 1 Year 1 Will Meet All 1st Year of Average Average
Models Annual

Funding
Per Unit

Per Month
Disbursement
Requirements

20 years

Reserve Deficit
(If Applicable)

Reserve
Balance

20 -Years

Percent
Funded
20 -Years

Current Funding
Cash Flow Plan
Compliance

$264,138
$251,200

$84.01 Yes No Deficit $1,556,665 43%
$79.90 Yes No Deficit $1,379,916 37%

$432,000 $137.40 Yes No Deficit $2,071,960 61%

2.OO.O(JJ
2 &IOXJ(JJ

2.4OO.O(JJ
2 2IOXJJJ

2.OOO.O(JJ
IOXJJJ

4IOXJ(JJ

1.2OO.O(JJ
IOXJ(JJ

2025 2c27 2C29 21 20S3

• Current Funding

• Cash Flow Plan

I Compliance Furidiri

2c,15

—I.E
212

217
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Hawaii Current Funding  
 Palms at Waikiki AOAO

Honolulu, HI

  Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

  Current Funding: This option projects the Reserve Fund over the next 20 years based on a funding level

equal to the Association's current assessments for reserve assets. If continued, this option should be

reviewed annually and adjusted accordingly to ensure all future funding requirements will be met.

  

 

Year Annual

Funding

Amount

Avg.

Monthly

Fee Per

Unit

Beginning

Cash

Interest

Earned

Reserve

Funds

Projected

Annual

Disbursements

End Balance Fully Funded

Reserve

Percent

Funded

2015 $264,138 $84.01 $855,151 $7,047 $1,126,336 $565,002 $561,335 $1,459,929 38%

2016 $272,062 $86.53 $561,335 $6,417 $839,814 $111,395 $728,419 $1,673,487 44%

2017 $280,224 $89.13 $728,419 $8,296 $1,016,939 $77,920 $939,018 $1,936,469 48%

2018 $288,631 $91.80 $939,018 $10,219 $1,237,868 $122,823 $1,115,046 $2,169,870 51%

2019 $297,290 $94.56 $1,115,046 $11,950 $1,424,285 $137,425 $1,286,861 $2,404,299 54%

2020 $306,208 $97.39 $1,286,861 $13,588 $1,606,657 $162,242 $1,444,415 $2,629,529 55%

2021 $315,395 $100.32 $1,444,415 $15,427 $1,775,237 $118,808 $1,656,429 $2,915,845 57%

2022 $324,856 $103.33 $1,656,429 $17,844 $1,999,129 $68,959 $1,930,170 $3,272,006 59%

2023 $334,602 $106.43 $1,930,170 $15,941 $2,280,713 $1,006,766 $1,273,948 $2,683,092 47%

2024 $344,640 $109.62 $1,273,948 $12,462 $1,631,050 $400,137 $1,230,913 $2,711,840 45%

2025 $354,979 $112.91 $1,230,913 $13,713 $1,599,605 $74,253 $1,525,351 $3,087,914 49%

2026 $365,629 $116.29 $1,525,351 $15,471 $1,906,451 $322,146 $1,584,305 $3,231,085 49%

2027 $376,598 $119.78 $1,584,305 $16,824 $1,977,727 $180,363 $1,797,364 $3,536,053 51%

2028 $387,896 $123.38 $1,797,364 $19,082 $2,204,342 $166,128 $2,038,214 $3,876,652 53%

2029 $399,532 $127.08 $2,038,214 $13,472 $2,451,218 $1,781,619 $669,599 $2,575,672 26%

2030 $411,518 $130.89 $669,599 $8,306 $1,089,424 $89,430 $999,994 $2,991,157 33%

2031 $423,864 $134.82 $999,994 $7,442 $1,431,300 $935,464 $495,837 $2,560,607 19%

2032 $436,580 $138.86 $495,837 $6,188 $938,605 $190,667 $747,938 $2,897,572 26%

2033 $449,677 $143.03 $747,938 $8,286 $1,205,901 $288,307 $917,594 $3,157,776 29%

2034 $463,168 $147.32 $917,594 $9,935 $1,390,697 $311,379 $1,079,318 $3,416,129 32%

  Inflation Rate: 3.00% Interest Rate: 1.00% Reserve Contribution Increase: 3.00%
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Hawaii Current FundiLII
Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262
Fiscal Year End: Dec31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015
OBARRERAAND

Palms at Waikiki AOAO
COMPANY Honolulu, HIRIESEkVJ 5PIECIALIT5

Current Funding: This option projects the Reserve Fund over the next 20 years based on a funding level
equal to the Association’s current assessments for reserve assets. If continued, this option should be
reviewed annually and adjusted accordingly to ensure all future funding requirements will be met.

• Currrt FundiFl9

Inflation Rate: 3.00% Interest Rate: 1.00% Reserve Contribution Increase: 3.00%

1.OO.O(JJ

4OO.O(JJ

1.2OO.cXJJ

1 oo.ojJ

7
2D1 2O1

- -
222 2D24

- -
2 34

-

2115 2c,1 2O5 2027 212 2O

Year Annual Avg. Beginning Interest Reserve Projected End Balance Fully Funded Percent
Funding Monthly Cash Earned Funds Annual Reserve Funded
Amount Fee Per

Unit
Disbursements

2015 $264,138 $84.01 $855,151 $7,047 $1,126,336 $565,002 $561,335 $1,459,929 38%
2016 $272,062 $86.53 $561,335 $6,417 $839,814 $111,395 $728,419 $1,673,487 44%
2017 $280,224 $89.13 $728,419 $8,296 1,016,939 $77,920 $939,018 $1,936,469 48%
2018 $288,631 $91.80 $939,018 $10,219 1,237,868 $122,823 $1,115,046 $2,169,870 51%
2019 $297,290 $94.56 $1,115,046 $11,950 1,424,285 $137,425 $1,286,861 $2,404,299 54%
2020 $306,208 $97.39 $1,286,861 $13,588 1,606,657 $162,242 $1,444,415 $2,629,529 55%
2021 $315,395 $100.32 $1,444,415 $15,427 1,775,237 $118,808 $1,656,429 $2,915,845 57%
2022 $324,856 $103.33 $1,656,429 $17,844 1,999,129 $68,959 $1,930,170 $3,272,006 59%
2023 $334,602 $106.43 $1,930,170 $15,941 $2,280,713 $1,006,766 $1,273,948 $2,683,092 47%
2024 $344,640 $109.62 $1,273,948 $12,462 $1,631,050 $400,137 $1,230,913 $2,711,840 45%
2025 $354,979 $112.91 $1,230,913 $13,713 $1,599,605 $74,253 $1,525,351 $3,087,914 49%
2026 $365,629 $116.29 $1,525,351 $15,471 $1,906,451 $322,146 $1,584,305 $3,231,085 49%
2027 $376,598 $119.78 $1,584,305 $16,824 $1,977,727 $180,363 $1,797,364 $3,536,053 51%
2028 $387,896 123.38 $1,797,364 $19,082 $2,204,342 $166,128 $2,038,214 $3,876,652 53%
2029 $399,532 127.08 $2,038,214 $13,472 $2,451,218 $1,781,619 $669,599 $2,575,672 26%
2030 $411,518 130.89 $669,599 $8,306 $1,089,424 $89,430 $999,994 $2,991,157 33%
2031 $423,864 134.82 $999,994 $7,442 $1,431,300 $935,464 $495,837 $2,560,607 19%
2032 $436,580 138.86 $495,837 $6,188 $938,605 $190,667 $747,938 $2,897,572 26%
2033 $449,677 143.03 $747,938 $8,286 $1,205,901 $288,307 $917,594 $3,157,776 29%
2034 $463,168 $147.32 $917,594 $9,935 $1,390,697 $311,379 $1,079,318 $3,416,129 32%
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Hawaii Cash Flow Plan  
 Palms at Waikiki AOAO

Honolulu, HI

  Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

 Threshold: $190,000

  Cash Flow Plan: This funding plan follows the definition of the "Cash Flow Plan" meaning a minimum

twenty-year projection of an association's future income and expense requirements to fund fully it's

replacement reserves requirements each year during that twenty-year period, except in an emergency;

provided that it does not include a projection of special assessments or loans during that twenty-year period.

This funding requirement is calculated with the constraint that the ending reserve balance for each year (1

through 20) must be greater than or equal to five percent (5%) of the current replacement cost (see

designated threshold). The calculation takes into consideration only the immediate total annual disbursement

requirements and does not take into account annual funding percentages. Due to this fact, annual allocations

may fluctuate widely from year to year. This option provides a minimal contingency for unanticipated

emergency expenditures. If implemented, funding and required disbursements should be reviewed on an

annual basis and adjusted as required to ensure current and future funding requirements will be met.

  

 

Year Annual

Funding

Amount

Avg.

Monthly

Fee Per

Unit

Beginning

Cash

Interest

Earned

Reserve

Funds

Projected

Annual

Disbursements

End Balance Fully Funded

Reserve

Percent

Funded

2015 $251,200 $79.90 $855,151 $6,983 $1,113,334 $565,002 $548,332 $1,459,929 38%

2016 $258,736 $82.30 $548,332 $6,220 $813,288 $111,395 $701,894 $1,673,487 42%

2017 $266,498 $84.76 $701,894 $7,962 $976,353 $77,920 $898,433 $1,936,469 46%

2018 $274,493 $87.31 $898,433 $9,743 $1,182,669 $122,823 $1,059,846 $2,169,870 49%

2019 $282,728 $89.93 $1,059,846 $11,325 $1,353,899 $137,425 $1,216,474 $2,404,299 51%

2020 $291,210 $92.62 $1,216,474 $12,810 $1,520,494 $162,242 $1,358,251 $2,629,529 52%

2021 $299,946 $95.40 $1,358,251 $14,488 $1,672,686 $118,808 $1,553,877 $2,915,845 53%

2022 $308,944 $98.26 $1,553,877 $16,739 $1,879,560 $68,959 $1,810,602 $3,272,006 55%

2023 $318,213 $101.21 $1,810,602 $14,663 $2,143,478 $1,006,766 $1,136,712 $2,683,092 42%

2024 $327,759 $104.25 $1,136,712 $11,005 $1,475,476 $400,137 $1,075,339 $2,711,840 40%

2025 $337,592 $107.38 $1,075,339 $12,070 $1,425,001 $74,253 $1,350,748 $3,087,914 44%

2026 $347,720 $110.60 $1,350,748 $13,635 $1,712,102 $322,146 $1,389,957 $3,231,085 43%

2027 $358,151 $113.92 $1,389,957 $14,789 $1,762,896 $180,363 $1,582,533 $3,536,053 45%

2028 $368,896 $117.33 $1,582,533 $16,839 $1,968,268 $166,128 $1,802,140 $3,876,652 46%

2029 $379,963 $120.85 $1,802,140 $11,013 $2,193,116 $1,781,619 $411,497 $2,575,672 16%

2030 $391,361 $124.48 $411,497 $5,625 $808,483 $89,430 $719,053 $2,991,157 24%

2031 $403,102 $128.21 $719,053 $4,529 $1,126,684 $935,464 $191,221 $2,560,607 7%

2032 $415,195 $132.06 $191,221 $3,035 $609,451 $190,667 $418,784 $2,897,572 14%

2033 $427,651 $136.02 $418,784 $4,885 $851,320 $288,307 $563,013 $3,157,776 18%

2034 $440,481 $140.10 $563,013 $6,276 $1,009,769 $311,379 $698,390 $3,416,129 20%

  Inflation Rate: 3.00% Interest Rate: 1.00% Reserve Contribution Increase: 3.00%
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Hawaii Cash Flow Plan

OBARRERAAND

Palms at Waikiki AOAO
COMPANY Honolulu, HIRIESEkVJ 5PIE(IALI5T5

Date: Oct 8, 2014
Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec31, 2014
Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

I Threshold: $190,000 I
Cash Flow Plan: This funding plan follows the definition of the ‘Cash Flow Plan’ meaning a minimum
twenty-year projection of an association’s future income and expense requirements to fund fully it’s
replacement reserves requirements each year during that twenty-year period, except in an emergency;
provided that it does not include a projection of special assessments or loans during that twenty-year period.
This funding requirement is calculated with the constraint that the ending reserve balance for each year (1
through 20) must be greater than or equal to five percent (5%) of the current replacement cost (see
designated threshold). The calculation takes into consideration only the immediate total annual disbursement
requirements and does not take into account annual funding percentages. Due to this fact, annual allocations
may fluctuate widely from year to year. This option provides a minimal contingency for unanticipated
emergency expenditures. If implemented, funding and required disbursements should be reviewed on an
annual basis and adjusted as required to ensure current and future funding requirements will be met.

4XJJYJO

• Cash Flow Plan

Reserve Projected
Funds Annual

Disbursements

$1,113,334 $565,002

End Balance Fully Funded Percent
Reserve Funded

Inflation Rate: 3.00% Interest Rate: 1.00% Reserve Contribution Increase: 3.00%

600 .O(JJ

4IOXJ(JJ

1.2OO.O(JJ

1.OOO.O(JJ

_______ I ___.........,. _______ I ____..,

201E 2O1 202 2022 2024 2O2E �02 2OO 2032 2O4
2L1S

Year Annual Avg. Beginning Interest
Funding Monthly Cash Earned
Amount Fee Per

Unit
2015 $251,200 $79.90 $855,151 $6,983 $548,332 $1,459,929 38%
2016 $258,736 $82.30 $548,332 $6,220 $813,288 $111,395 $701,894 $1,673,487 42%
2017 $266,498 $84.76 $701,894 $7,962 $976,353 $77,920 $898,433 $1,936,469 46%
2018 $274,493 $87.31 $898,433 $9,743 $1,182,669 $122,823 $1,059,846 $2,169,870 49%
2019 $282,728 $89.93 $1,059,846 $11,325 $1,353,899 $137,425 $1,216,474 $2,404,299 51%
2020 $291,210 $92.62 $1,216,474 $12,810 $1,520,494 $162,242 $1,358,251 $2,629,529 52%
2021 $299,946 $95.40 $1,358,251 $14,488 $1,672,686 $118,808 $1,553,877 $2,915,845 53%
2022 $308,944 $98.26 $1,553,877 $16,739 $1,879,560 $68,959 $1,810,602 $3,272,006 55%
2023 $318,213 $101.21 $1,810,602 $14,663 $2,143,478 $1,006,766 $1,136,712 $2,683,092 42%
2024 $327,759 $104.25 $1,136,712 $11,005 ‘p1,475,476 $400,137 $1,075,339 $2,711,840 40%
2025 $337,592 $107.38 $1,075,339 $12,070 1,425,001 $74,253 $1,350,748 $3,087,914 44%
2026 $347,720 $110.60 $1,350,748 $13,635 1,712,102 $322,146 $1,389,957 $3,231,085 43%
2027 $358,151 $113.92 $1,389,957 $14,789 1,762,896 $180,363 $1,582,533 $3,536,053 45%
2028 $368,896 $117.33 $1,582,533 $16,839 1,968,268 $166,128 $1,802,140 $3,876,652 46%
2029 $379,963 $120.85 $1,802,140 $11,013 $2,193,116 $1,781,619 $411,497 $2,575,672 16%
2030 $391,361 $124.48 $411,497 $5,625 $808,483 $89,430 $719,053 $2,991,157 24%
2031 $403,102 $128.21 $719,053 $4,529 $1,126,684 $935,464 $191,221 $2,560,607 7%
2032 $415,195 $132.06 $191,221 $3,035 $609,451 $190,667 $418,784 $2,897,572 14%
2033 $427,651 $136.02 $418,784 $4,885 $851,320 $288,307 $563,013 $3,157,776 18%
2034 $440,481 $140.10 $563,013 $6,276 $1,009,769 $311,379 $698,390 $3,416,129 20%
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Hawaii Compliance Funding  
 Palms at Waikiki AOAO

Honolulu, HI

  Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

  Hawaii - Compliance Funding (50%): This option projects the lowest annual funding feasible over

the next 20 years which will meet statutory reserve requirements. This funding level is calculated to

achieve the Statutory Replacement Reserve (50% of the Full Replacement Reserve) by the end of

year one of the report and maintain the minimum 50% funded level throughout the remaining 20

years. This method of funding considers total disbursements one year at a time and annual

requirements may fluctuate widely. If implemented, this allocation should be reviewed on a regular

basis and adjusted as required to ensure future-funding requirements will be met. The annual

percentage funded projections are based on the assumption that reserve components and their

useful lives will remain constant, that the remaining life will decrease by one each year, and that

actual reserve contributions, inflation, and interest will equate to the respective projected values.

  

 

Year Annual

Funding

Amount

Avg.

Monthly

Fee Per

Unit

Beginning

Cash

Interest

Earned

Reserve

Funds

Projected

Annual

Disbursements

End Balance Fully Funded

Reserve

Percent

Funded

2015 $432,000 $137.40 $855,151 $7,887 $1,295,038 $565,002 $730,037 $1,459,929 50%

2016 $299,100 $95.13 $730,037 $8,239 $1,037,376 $111,395 $925,982 $1,673,487 55%

2017 $308,073 $97.99 $925,982 $10,411 $1,244,466 $77,920 $1,166,546 $1,936,469 60%

2018 $317,315 $100.93 $1,166,546 $12,638 $1,496,499 $122,823 $1,373,676 $2,169,870 63%

2019 $326,834 $103.95 $1,373,676 $14,684 $1,715,194 $137,425 $1,577,769 $2,404,299 66%

2020 $336,639 $107.07 $1,577,769 $16,650 $1,931,058 $162,242 $1,768,816 $2,629,529 67%

2021 $346,738 $110.29 $1,768,816 $18,828 $2,134,382 $118,808 $2,015,574 $2,915,845 69%

2022 $357,140 $113.59 $2,015,574 $21,597 $2,394,311 $68,959 $2,325,352 $3,272,006 71%

2023 $367,854 $117.00 $2,325,352 $20,059 $2,713,265 $1,006,766 $1,706,499 $2,683,092 64%

2024 $378,890 $120.51 $1,706,499 $16,959 $2,102,348 $400,137 $1,702,211 $2,711,840 63%

2025 $390,257 $124.13 $1,702,211 $18,602 $2,111,070 $74,253 $2,036,817 $3,087,914 66%

2026 $401,965 $127.85 $2,036,817 $20,767 $2,459,549 $322,146 $2,137,403 $3,231,085 66%

2027 $414,024 $131.69 $2,137,403 $22,542 $2,573,969 $180,363 $2,393,606 $3,536,053 68%

2028 $426,445 $135.64 $2,393,606 $25,238 $2,845,289 $166,128 $2,679,161 $3,876,652 69%

2029 $439,238 $139.71 $2,679,161 $20,080 $3,138,479 $1,781,619 $1,356,860 $2,575,672 53%

2030 $452,415 $143.90 $1,356,860 $15,384 $1,824,659 $89,430 $1,735,229 $2,991,157 58%

2031 $465,987 $148.21 $1,735,229 $15,005 $2,216,221 $935,464 $1,280,757 $2,560,607 50%

2032 $479,967 $152.66 $1,280,757 $14,254 $1,774,978 $190,667 $1,584,311 $2,897,572 55%

2033 $494,366 $157.24 $1,584,311 $16,873 $2,095,550 $288,307 $1,807,243 $3,157,776 57%

2034 $509,197 $161.96 $1,807,243 $19,062 $2,335,502 $311,379 $2,024,123 $3,416,129 59%

  Inflation Rate: 3.00% Interest Rate: 1.00% Reserve Contribution Increase: 3.00%
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OBARRERAAND
COMPANY

Hawaii Comiance FundiLII
Palms at Waikiki AOAO Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262Honolulu, HI Fiscal Year End: Dec31, 2014
Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

RIESEkVJ 5PIE(IALI5T5

Hawaii - Compliance Funding (50%): This option projects the lowest annual funding feasible over
the next 20 years which will meet statutory reserve requirements. This funding level is calculated to
achieve the Statutory Replacement Reserve (50% of the Full Replacement Reserve) by the end of
year one of the report and maintain the minimum 50% funded level throughout the remaining 20
years. This method of funding considers total disbursements one year at a time and annual
requirements may fluctuate widely. If implemented, this allocation should be reviewed on a regular
basis and adjusted as required to ensure future-funding requirements will be met. The annual
percentage funded projections are based on the assumption that reserve components and their
useful lives will remain constant, that the remaining life will decrease by one each year, and that
actual reserve contributions, inflation, and interest will equate to the respective projected values.

2c15 2c5

• CmpIiirice Funding

Reserve Projected
Funds Annual

Disbursements

$1,295,038 $565,002

End Balance Fully Funded Percent
Reserve Funded

Inflation Rate: 3.00% Interest Rate: 1.00% Reserve Contribution Increase: 3.00%

2.OO.O(JJ

2.4OO.O(JJ

2.2OO.cXJJ
2 OO.O(JJ

600 .O(JJ

1.4OO.cXJJ

1.2OO.cXJJ

SFXJUJO

4XJJYJO

_______ ________ _______ _______

211E 212 2022 2C24 2D2 2C2 2030 22 234

Year Annual Avg. Beginning Interest
Funding Monthly Cash Earned
Amount Fee Per

Unit
2015 $432,000 $137.40 $855,151 $7,887 $730,037 $1,459,929 50%
2016 $299,100 $95.13 $730,037 $8,239 $1,037,376 $111,395 $925,982 $1,673,487 55%
2017 $308,073 $97.99 $925,982 $10,411 $1,244,466 $77,920 $1,166,546 $1,936,469 60%
2018 $317,315 $100.93 $1,166,546 $12,638 1,496,499 $122,823 $1,373,676 $2,169,870 63%
2019 $326,834 103.95 $1,373,676 $14,684 1,715,194 $137,425 $1,577,769 $2,404,299 66%
2020 $336,639 107.07 $1,577,769 $16,650 1,931,058 $162,242 $1,768,816 $2,629,529 67%
2021 $346,738 110.29 $1,768,816 $18,828 2,134,382 $118,808 $2,015,574 $2,915,845 69%
2022 $357,140 13.59 $2,015,574 $21,597 $2,394,311 $68,959 $2,325,352 $3,272,006 71%
2023 $367,854 17.00 $2,325,352 $20,059 $2,713,265 $1,006,766 $1,706,499 $2,683,092 64%
2024 $378,890 $120.51 $1,706,499 $16,959 $2,102,348 $400,137 $1,702,211 $2,711,840 63%
2025 $390,257 $124.13 $1,702,211 $18,602 $2,111,070 $74,253 $2,036,817 $3,087,914 66%
2026 $401,965 $127.85 $2,036,817 $20,767 $2,459,549 $322,146 $2,137,403 $3,231,085 66%
2027 $414,024 $131.69 $2,137,403 $22,542 $2,573,969 $180,363 $2,393,606 $3,536,053 68%
2028 $426,445 $135.64 $2,393,606 $25,238 $2,845,289 $166,128 $2,679,161 $3,876,652 69%
2029 $439,238 $139.71 $2,679,161 $20,080 $3,138,479 $1,781,619 $1,356,860 $2,575,672 53%
2030 $452,415 $143.90 $1,356,860 $15,384 $1,824,659 $89,430 $1,735,229 $2,991,157 58%
2031 $465,987 $148.21 $1,735,229 $15,005 $2,216,221 $935,464 $1,280,757 $2,560,607 50%
2032 $479,967 $152.66 $1,280,757 $14,254 $1,774,978 $190,667 $1,584,311 $2,897,572 55%
2033 $494,366 $157.24 $1,584,311 $16,873 $2,095,550 $288,307 $1,807,243 $3,157,776 57%
2034 $509,197 $161.96 $1,807,243 $19,062 $2,335,502 $311,379 $2,024,123 $3,416,129 59%
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Reserve Study Executive Summary  
 Palms at Waikiki AOAO

Honolulu, HI

  Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

Property Information

Number of Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014

Fiscal Year Start: Jan 1, 2015

Location: Honolulu, HI

Age of Project: 46 Years

Financial Information

Projected Reserve Fund Balance: $855,151

Projected Fully Funded Reserve: $1,714,240

Deficit/Surplus vs. Fully Funded Reserve: ($859,089) or ($3,278.95) Per Unit Avg.

Percentage Funded: 50%

Current Replacement Cost: $3,714,004

Current Funding Chart

  Year Annual

Funding

Amount

Average

Monthly Fee

Per Unit

Projected

Annual

Disbursements

Year-End

Balance

Fully

Funded

Reserve

Percent

Funded

2015 $264,138 $84.01 $565,002 $561,335 $1,459,929 38%

2016 $272,062 $86.53 $111,395 $728,419 $1,673,487 44%

2017 $280,224 $89.13 $77,920 $939,018 $1,936,469 48%

2018 $288,631 $91.80 $122,823 $1,115,046 $2,169,870 51%

2019 $297,290 $94.56 $137,425 $1,286,861 $2,404,299 54%

2020 $306,208 $97.39 $162,242 $1,444,415 $2,629,529 55%

2021 $315,395 $100.32 $118,808 $1,656,429 $2,915,845 57%

2022 $324,856 $103.33 $68,959 $1,930,170 $3,272,006 59%

2023 $334,602 $106.43 $1,006,766 $1,273,948 $2,683,092 47%

2024 $344,640 $109.62 $400,137 $1,230,913 $2,711,840 45%

2025 $354,979 $112.91 $74,253 $1,525,351 $3,087,914 49%

2026 $365,629 $116.29 $322,146 $1,584,305 $3,231,085 49%

2027 $376,598 $119.78 $180,363 $1,797,364 $3,536,053 51%

2028 $387,896 $123.38 $166,128 $2,038,214 $3,876,652 53%

2029 $399,532 $127.08 $1,781,619 $669,599 $2,575,672 26%

2030 $411,518 $130.89 $89,430 $999,994 $2,991,157 33%

2031 $423,864 $134.82 $935,464 $495,837 $2,560,607 19%

2032 $436,580 $138.86 $190,667 $747,938 $2,897,572 26%

2033 $449,677 $143.03 $288,307 $917,594 $3,157,776 29%

2034 $463,168 $147.32 $311,379 $1,079,318 $3,416,129 32%
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Reserve Stud Executive Summi
Palms at Waikiki AOAO Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262Honolulu, HI Fiscal Year End: Dec31, 2014
Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

RIESEkVJ 5PIECIALIT5

Property Information
Number of Units:
Fiscal Year End:
Fiscal Year Start:
Location:
Age of Project:

Financial Information

262
Dec 31, 2014
Jan 1,2015
Honolulu, HI
46 Years

Projected Reserve Fund Balance:
Projected Fully Funded Reserve:
Deficit/Surplus vs. Fully Funded Reserve:
Percentage Funded:
Current Replacement Cost:

Current Funding Chart

$855,151
$1,714,240
($859,089) or ($3,278.95) Per Unit Avg.
50%
$3,714,004

Projected
Annual

Disbursements
$565,002
$111,395
$77,920
$122,823
$137,425
$162,242

Year Annual
Funding
Amount

Average
Monthly Fee

Per Unit

Year-End
Balance

Fully
Funded
Reserve

Percent
Funded

2015
2016

$264,138 $84.01
$86.53

$561,335 $1,459,929 38%
$272,062 $728,419 $1,673,487 44%

2017
2018
2019

$280,224 $89.13 $939,018 $1,936,469 48%
$288,631 $91.80 $1,115,046 $2,169,870 51%
$297,290 $94.56 $1,286,861 $2,404,299 54%

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

$306,208 $97.39 $1,444,415 $2,629,529 55%
$315,395 $100.32 $118,808 $1,656,429 $2,915,845 57%
$324,856 $103.33 $68,959 $1,930,170 $3,272,006 59%
$334,602 $106.43 $1,006,766 $1,273,948 $2,683,092 47%
$344,640 $109.62 $400,137 $1,230,913 $2,711,840 45%
$354,979 $112.91 $74,253 $1,525,351 $3,087,914 49%

2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033

$365,629 $116.29 $322,146 $1,584,305 $3,231,085 49%
$376,598 $119.78 $180,363 $1,797,364 $3,536,053 51%
$387,896 $123.38 $166,128 $2,038,214 $3,876,652 53%
$399,532 $127.08 $1,781,619 $669,599 $2,575,672 26%
$411,518 $130.89 $89,430 $999,994 $2,991,157 33%
$423,864 $134.82 $935,464 $495,837 $2,560,607 19%
$436,580 $138.86 $190,667 $747,938 $2,897,572 26%
$449,677 $143.03 $288,307 $917,594 $3,157,776 29%

2034 $463,168 $147.32 $311,379 $1,079,318 $3,416,129 32%
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Reserve Study Executive Summary  
 Palms at Waikiki AOAO

Honolulu, HI

  Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

Reserve Components

Component Useful Life Rem. Life Current Cost

Asphalt & Concrete Surfaces

Garage - Concrete Coating 5 0 $6,560

Garage - Patch/Repairs 5 0 $5,625

Garage - Seal & Repair 5 0 $14,892

Garage - Stripe (In-house) Maintenance / Operating

Garage Deck - Drains (1-Time) Other

Common Interior

Carpeting - Hallways 10 9 $92,250

Doors - Lobby Entry Other

Doors - Lobby Entry Operator 4 0 $5,125

Doors - Locks (Safelok System) 10 1 $80,500

Drop Ceiling - Hallways 20 14 $36,050

Fitness - Bioforce Machine 10 5 $3,075

Fitness - Flooring 12 11 $350

Fitness - Step Machine 7 3 $4,100

Glass Assemblies (by elevators) 20 11 $30,750

Ice Machines I (1) 12 11 $5,150

Ice Machines II (4) 12 6 $24,600

Lobby - Refurbish 6 5 $46,150

Lobby - Tile Surfaces 25 24 $39,950

RR - Hand Dryers Maintenance / Operating

RR - Refurbish (Fitness) 15 4 $2,050

RR - Refurbish (Lobby) 15 4 $20,500

Washers/Dryers - Guests 8 2 $8,200

Elevators

Elevators - Cab Refurbish 12 6 $49,200

Elevators - Testing/Maint. Maintenance / Operating

Elevators - Upgrade Systems 30 24 $615,000

Lighting

Entry Cover (RAB) Fixtures 15 12 $3,328

Garage Fixtures - Ceiling (No Cover) 20 2 $3,280

Garage Fixtures - Ceiling/Wall 20 5 $21,525

Garage Fixtures - Exit 20 7 $2,513

Garage Fixtures - Wall (Sq) 20 2 $2,768

Hallway Fixtures (PH Flr.) 25 9 $2,197

Hallway Fixtures (Recessed) - Allowance 10 7 $3,757

Mechanical Equipment

Air Handler (Mezzanine/Lobby) 20 9 $80,000

Air Handler - Roof/Hallway 20 14 $16,900

Backflow Preventer (4") 15 0 $8,200

Boilers (HW) 25 18 $61,500

Booster Pump System (HW) '05 15 2 $17,700

Chiller #1 (Back-up) - 120 Ton Other

Chiller #2 - 120 Ton (A) 15 13 $65,500

Chiller #2 - 120 Ton (B) 15 14 $164,000

Chiller #2 - 120 Ton (C) 15 14 $117,850
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Reserve Stud Executive Summi
BARRERAAND Palms at Waikiki AOAO Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units.
F1IESLkVk 5PIECIALIT5 OflO U U, Fiscal Year End: Dec31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

Reserve Components

0 $6,560
0 $5,625
0 $14,892

9 $92,250

0 $5,125
1 $80,500

14 $36,050
5 $3,075

11 $350
3 $4,100

11 $30,750
11 $5,150
6 $24,600
5 $46,150

24 $39,950

4 $2,050
4 $20,500
2 $8,200

6 $49,200

24 $615,000

12 $3,328
2 $3,280
5 $21,525
7 $2,513
2 $2,768
9 $2,197
7 $3,757

9 $80,000
14 $16,900
0 $8,200

18 $61,500
2 $17,700

13 $65,500
14 $164,000
14 $117,850
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Useful Life

5
5
5

Rem. Life Current Cost

Maintenance / Operating
Other

10
Other

4
10
20
10
12
7

20
12
12

Component
Asphalt & Concrete Surfaces
Garage - Concrete Coating
Garage - Patch/Repairs
Garage - Seal & Repair
Garage - Stripe (In-house)
Garage Deck - Drains (1-Time)
Common Interior
Carpeting - Hallways
Doors - Lobby Entry
Doors - Lobby Entry Operator
Doors - Locks (Safelok System)
Drop Ceiling - Hallways
Fitness - Bioforce Machine
Fitness - Flooring
Fitness - Step Machine
Glass Assemblies (by elevators)
Ice Machines 1(1)
Ice Machines 11(4)
Lobby - Refurbish
Lobby - Tile Surfaces
RR - Hand Dryers
RR - Refurbish (Fitness)
RR - Refurbish (Lobby)
Washers/Dryers - Guests
Elevators
Elevators - Cab Refurbish
Elevators - Testing/Maint.
Elevators - Upgrade Systems
Lighting
Entry Cover (RAB) Fixtures
Garage Fixtures - Ceiling (No Cover)
Garage Fixtures - Ceiling/Wall
Garage Fixtures - Exit
Garage Fixtures - Wall (Sq)
Hallway Fixtures (PH FIr.)
Hallway Fixtures (Recessed) - Allowance
Mechanical Equipment_______________
Air Handler (Mezzanine/Lobby)
Air Handler - Roof/Hallway
Backf low Preventer (4)
Boilers (HW)
Booster Pump System (HW) 05
Chiller #1 (Back-up) - 120 Ton
Chiller #2 - 120 Ton (A)
Chiller #2 - 120 Ton (B)
Chiller #2 - 120 Ton (C)

6
25

Maintenance / Operating
15
15
8

12
Maintenance / Operating

30

15
20
20
20
20
25
10

20
20
15
25
15

Other
15
15
15



Reserve Study Executive Summary  
 Palms at Waikiki AOAO

Honolulu, HI

  Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

Component Useful Life Rem. Life Current Cost

Chiller #3 (Hallway) 15 9 $55,250

Dom. Water Pump #1 15 13 $5,625

Dom. Water Pump #2 15 2 $5,625

Emerg. Generator (120KVA) 25 3 $87,200

Fire Booster Pump (P2) - 1.5hp 5 3 $2,050

Fire Booster Pump (P2) - 40hp 18 16 $28,200

Risers - Chill Water 25 14 $794,000

Rooftop Exhaust Fans - Lg. 22 16 $20,500

Rooftop Exhaust Fans - Med. 22 16 $6,150

Storage Tanks (2/3) to 5 Tanks 12 11 $35,300

Transfer Switch 30 5 $24,100

Miscellaneous

BBQ Maintenance / Operating

Canopy - Entry Maintenance / Operating

Garage Planter Boxes Maintenance / Operating

PBX System 12 9 $59,400

Plumbing Repairs - Annual Contingency 1 0 $7,675

Safe Boxes Maintenance / Operating

Unit Slide Doors (Incl. Frame) TBD To be Determined

Utilities - Electrical Maintenance / Operating

Windows (Common Area) Maintenance / Operating

Painting & Repairs

Ext. Surfaces - Paint/Waterproof 8 0 $432,500

Int. Surfaces (In-House) - Paint 5 2 $15,900

Spalling Repairs - Contingency I 4 3 $6,250

Spalling Repairs - Contingency II 4 0 $70,500

Spalling Repairs - Gar. Major (1-Time) Other

Pool

Pool - ADA Chair Lift 14 12 $5,950

Pool - Chlorinator Maintenance / Operating

Pool - Deck Coating/Repairs 2 0 $3,075

Pool - Deck Leak (1-Time) Other

Pool - Filter 10 8 $2,200

Pool - Furnishings 6 1 $10,750

Pool - Pump/Motor Maintenance / Operating

Pool - Resurface (Tile/Coping) 15 13 $16,400

Pool - Safety Vacuum 10 4 $3,275

Rails & Gates

Lanai Rails - Annual Contingency 1 0 $5,125

Pool Railings (4') 25 14 $7,735

Vehicle Entry Gates (Roll-Up) 25 14 $17,400

Vehicle Gate - Operator #1 5 1 $4,100

Vehicle Gate - Operator #2 5 2 $4,100

Roofing

Roof Hatch (Not Used) Maintenance / Operating

Roofing (Rubberized) 20 8 $266,500

Roofing - Maint./Repairs Maintenance / Operating

Security Systems
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Reserve Stud Executive Summwp

QBARRERAAND

Palms at Waikiki AOAO Date: Oct 8, 2014
Units: 262COMPANY Honolulu, HI Fiscal Year End: Dec31, 2014RIESEHVJ SPIECDIALISTS

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

Component
Chiller #3 (Hallway)
Dom. Water Pump #1
Dom. Water Pump #2
Emerg. Generator (12OKVA)
Fire Booster Pump (P2) - 1 .Shp
Fire Booster Pump (P2) - 4Ohp
Risers - Chill Water
Rooftop Exhaust Fans - Lg.
Rooftop Exhaust Fans - Med.
Storage Tanks (2/3) to 5 Tanks
Transfer Switch
Miscellaneous
BBQ
Canopy - Entry
Garage Planter Boxes
PBX System
Plumbing Repairs - Annual Contingency
Safe Boxes
Unit Slide Doors (IncI. Frame) TBD
Utilities - Electrical
Windows (Common Area)
Painting & Repairs ________

Ext. Surfaces - Paint/Waterproof
Int. Surfaces (In-House) - Paint
Spalling Repairs - Contingency I
Spalling Repairs - Contingency II
Spalling Repairs - Gar. Major (1-Time)
Pool ________

Pool - ADA Chair Lift
Pool - Chlorinator
Pool - Deck Coating/Repairs
Pool - Deck Leak (1-Time)
Pool - Filter
Pool - Furnishings
Pool - Pump/Motor
Pool - Resurface (Tile/Coping)
Pool - Safety Vacuum
Rails & Gates
Lanai Rails - Annual_Contingency
Pool Railings (4’)
Vehicle Entry Gates (Roll-Up)
Vehicle Gate - Operator #1
Vehicle Gate - Operator #2
Roofing______________
Roof Hatch (Not Used)
Roofing (Rubberized)
Roofing - Maint./Repairs
Security Systems

Maintenance / Operating
Maintenance / Operating
Maintenance / Operating

Maintenance / Operating
To be Determined
Maintenance / Operating
Maintenance / Operating

8
5
4
4

Other

14

10
6

Maintenance / Operating
15
10

25
25
5
5

9 $59,400
0 $7,675

0 $432,500
2 $15,900
3 $6,250
0 $70,500

12 $5,950

0 $3,075

8 $2,200
1 $10,750

$16,400
4 $3,275

0 $5,125

_________
$7,735

__________
$1 7,400

1 $4,100

_____________
$4,100

__________
$266,500

Useful Life Rem. Life Current Cost
15 9 $55,250
15 13 $5,625
15 2 $5,625
25 3 $87,200
5 3 $2,050

18 16 $28,200
25 14 $794,000
22 16 $20,500
22 16 $6,150
12 11 $35,300
30 5 $24,100

12

Maintenance / Operating
2

Other
— __________

Maintenance / Operating

14
14

2

820
Maintenance / Operating
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Reserve Study Executive Summary  
 Palms at Waikiki AOAO

Honolulu, HI

  Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

Component Useful Life Rem. Life Current Cost

Fire - Alarm Control System 20 19 $28,200

Fire - Door Assemblies 5 4 $4,775

Fire - Smoke Alarms Maintenance / Operating

Security - Cameras 6 0 $5,725

Security - Cameras/Monitors 6 5 $5,225

Security - Entry System (Gar) 20 11 $6,150

  

Current Replacement Cost Total $3,714,004
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QBARRERAAND
COMPANY

Palms at Waikiki AOAO
Honolulu, HI

Date: Oct 8, 2014
Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec31, 2014
Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

RIESEHVJ SPIECDIALISTS

Component Useful Life Rem. Life Current Cost
Fire - Alarm Control System 20 19 $28,200
Fire - Door Assemblies 5 4 $4,775
Fire - Smoke Alarms Maintenance / Operating

____________ ___________

Security - Cameras 6 0 $5,725
Security - Cameras/Monitors

—
6 5 $5,225

Security - Entry System (Gar) 20 11 $6,150

Current Replacement Cost Total $3,714,004
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Percent Funded  
 Palms at Waikiki AOAO

Honolulu, HI

  Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

   Percentage Funded: 50%

Component UL RL Calc.

Yrs. in

Service

Current

Replacement

Cost

Projected

Reserve

Balance

Required

Reserve

Funding

Projected

Fully

Funded

Reserve

Annual

Current

Funding

Allocation

A B C D E F G H

Asphalt & Concrete Surfaces

Garage - Concrete Coating 5 0 5 $6,560 $3,272 $1,312 $6,560 $1,292

Garage - Patch/Repairs 5 0 5 $5,625 $2,806 $1,125 $5,625 $1,108

Garage - Seal & Repair 5 0 5 $14,892 $7,429 $2,978 $14,892 $2,934

Total $27,077 $13,507 $5,415 $27,077 $5,334

Common Interior

Carpeting - Hallways 10 9 1 $92,250 $4,602 $9,225 $9,225 $9,086

Doors - Lobby Entry Operator 4 0 4 $5,125 $2,557 $1,281 $5,125 $1,262

Doors - Locks (Safelok System) 10 1 9 $80,500 $36,142 $8,050 $72,450 $7,929

Drop Ceiling - Hallways 20 14 6 $36,050 $5,395 $1,803 $10,815 $1,775

Fitness - Bioforce Machine 10 5 5 $3,075 $767 $308 $1,538 $303

Fitness - Flooring 12 11 1 $350 $14 $29 $29 $29

Fitness - Step Machine 7 3 4 $4,100 $1,169 $586 $2,343 $577

Glass Assemblies (by elevators) 20 11 9 $30,750 $6,903 $1,538 $13,838 $1,514

Ice Machines I (1) 12 11 1 $5,150 $214 $429 $429 $423

Ice Machines II (4) 12 6 6 $24,600 $6,136 $2,050 $12,300 $2,019

Lobby - Refurbish 6 5 1 $46,150 $3,837 $7,692 $7,692 $7,576

Lobby - Tile Surfaces 25 24 1 $39,950 $797 $1,598 $1,598 $1,574

RR - Refurbish (Fitness) 15 4 11 $2,050 $750 $137 $1,503 $135

RR - Refurbish (Lobby) 15 4 11 $20,500 $7,499 $1,367 $15,033 $1,346

Washers/Dryers - Guests 8 2 6 $8,200 $3,068 $1,025 $6,150 $1,010

Total $398,800 $79,850 $37,116 $160,068 $36,558

Elevators

Elevators - Cab Refurbish 12 6 6 $49,200 $12,272 $4,100 $24,600 $4,038

Elevators - Upgrade Systems 30 24 6 $615,000 $61,359 $20,500 $123,000 $20,192

Total $664,200 $73,630 $24,600 $147,600 $24,230

Lighting

Entry Cover (RAB) Fixtures 15 12 3 $3,328 $332 $222 $666 $219

Garage Fixtures - Ceiling (No Cover) 20 2 18 $3,280 $1,473 $164 $2,952 $162

Garage Fixtures - Ceiling/Wall 20 5 15 $21,525 $8,053 $1,076 $16,144 $1,060

Garage Fixtures - Exit 20 7 13 $2,513 $815 $126 $1,633 $124

Garage Fixtures - Wall (Sq) 20 2 18 $2,768 $1,243 $138 $2,491 $136

Hallway Fixtures (PH Flr.) 25 9 16 $2,197 $701 $88 $1,406 $87

Hallway Fixtures (Recessed) -

Allowance

10 7 3 $3,757 $562 $376 $1,127 $370

Total $39,367 $13,179 $2,190 $26,419 $2,157

Mechanical Equipment

Air Handler (Mezzanine/Lobby) 20 9 11 $80,000 $21,949 $4,000 $44,000 $3,940

Air Handler - Roof/Hallway 20 14 6 $16,900 $2,529 $845 $5,070 $832

Backflow Preventer (4") 15 0 15 $8,200 $4,091 $547 $8,200 $538

Boilers (HW) 25 18 7 $61,500 $8,590 $2,460 $17,220 $2,423

Booster Pump System (HW) '05 15 2 13 $17,700 $7,652 $1,180 $15,340 $1,162
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Percent Funded
BARRERAAND Palms at Waikiki AOAO

COMPANY Honolulu, HI
Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262
Fiscal Year End: Dec31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

I Percentage Funded: 50% I
Component UL RL Caic. Current Projected Required Projected Annual

Yrs. in Replacement Reserve Reserve Fully Current
Service Cost Balance Funding Funded Funding

Reserve Allocation
A B C D E F G H

Asphalt & Concrete Surfaces
Garage - Concrete Coating 5 0 5 $6,560 $3,272 $1,312 $6,560 $1,292
Garage - Patch/Repairs 5 0 5 $5,625 $2,806 $1,125 $5,625 $1,108
Garage - Seal & Repair 5 0 5 $14,892 $7,429 $2,978 $14,892 $2,934

Total $27,077 $13,507 $5,415 $27,077 $5,334
Common Interior
Carpeting - Hallways 10 9 1 $92,250 $4,602 $9,225 $9,225 $9,086
Doors - Lobby Entry Operator 4 0 4 $5,125 $2,557 $1,281 $5,125 $1,262
Doors - Locks (Safelok System) 10 1 9 $80,500 $36,142 $8,050 $72,450 $7,929
Drop Ceiling - Hallways 20 14 6 $36,050 $5,395 $1,803 $1 0,815 $1,775
Fitness - Bioforce Machine 10 5 5 $3,075 $767 $308 $1,538 $303
Fitness - Flooring 12 11 1 $350 $14 $29 $29 $29

$1,169 $586 $2,343 $577Fitness - Step Machine 7 3 4 $4,100
Glass Assemblies (by elevators) 20 11 9 $30,750 $6,903 $1,538 $13,838 $1,514
Ice Machines 1(1) 12 11 1 $5,150 $214 $429 $429 $423
Ice Machines 11(4) 12 6 6 $24,600 $6,136 $2,050 $12,300 $2,019
Lobby - Refurbish 6 5 1 $46,150 $3,837 $7,692 $7,692 $7,576
Lobby - Tile Surfaces 25 24 1 $39,950 $797 $1,598 $1,598 $1,574
RR- Refurbish (Fitness) 15 4 11 $2,050 $750 $137 $1,503 $135
RR- Refurbish (Lobby) 15 4 11 $20,500 $7,499 $1,367 $15,033 $1,346
Washers/Dryers - Guests 8 2 6 $8,200

Total $398,800
$3,068 $1,025 $6,150 $1,010
$79,850 $37,116 $160,068 $36,558

Elevators
Elevators - Cab Refurbish 12 6 6 $49,200 $12,272 $4,100 $24,600 $4,038
Elevators - Upgrade Systems 30 24 6 $615,000 $61,359 $20,500 $123,000 $20,192

—
Total

-
$664,200

Lighting
$73,630 $24,600 $147,600 $24,230

Entry Cover (RAB) Fixtures 15 12 3 $3,328 $332 $222 $666 $219
Garage Fixtures - Ceiling (No Cover) 20 2 18 $3,280 $1,473 $164 $2,952 $162
Garage Fixtures - Ceiling/Wall 20 5 15 $21,525 $8,053 $1,076 $16,144 $1,060
Garage Fixtures - Exit 20 7 13 $2,513 $815 $126 $1,633 $124
Garage Fixtures - Wall (Sq) 20 2 18 $2,768 $1,243 $138 $2,491 $136
Hallway Fixtures (PH FIr.) 25 9 16 $2,197 $701 $88 $1,406 $87
Hallway Fixtures (Recessed) - 10 7 3 $3,757 $562 $376 $1,127 $370
Allowance

Total
—

$39,367 $13,179 $2,190 $26,419 $2,157
Mechanical Equipment
Air Handler (Mezzanine/Lobby) 20 9 11 $80,000 $21,949 $4,000 $44,000 $3,940
Air Handler - Roof/Hallway 20 14 6 $16,900 $2,529 $845 $5,070 $832
Backflow Preventer (4) 15 0 15 $8,200 $4,091 $547 $8,200 $538
Boilers (HW) 25 18 7 $61,500 $8,590 $2,460 $17,220 $2,423
Booster Pump System (HW) 05 15 2 13 $17,700 $7,652 $1,180 $15,340 $1,162
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Percent Funded  
 Palms at Waikiki AOAO

Honolulu, HI

  Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

Component UL RL Calc.

Yrs. in

Service

Current

Replacement

Cost

Projected

Reserve

Balance

Required

Reserve

Funding

Projected

Fully

Funded

Reserve

Annual

Current

Funding

Allocation

A B C D E F G H

Chiller #2 - 120 Ton (A) 15 13 2 $65,500 $4,356 $4,367 $8,733 $4,301

Chiller #2 - 120 Ton (B) 15 14 1 $164,000 $5,454 $10,933 $10,933 $10,769

Chiller #2 - 120 Ton (C) 15 14 1 $117,850 $3,919 $7,857 $7,857 $7,739

Chiller #3 (Hallway) 15 9 6 $55,250 $11,025 $3,683 $22,100 $3,628

Dom. Water Pump #1 15 13 2 $5,625 $374 $375 $750 $369

Dom. Water Pump #2 15 2 13 $5,625 $2,432 $375 $4,875 $369

Emerg. Generator (120KVA) 25 3 22 $87,200 $38,280 $3,488 $76,736 $3,436

Fire Booster Pump (P2) - 1.5hp 5 3 2 $2,050 $409 $410 $820 $404

Fire Booster Pump (P2) - 40hp 18 16 2 $28,200 $1,563 $1,567 $3,133 $1,543

Risers - Chill Water 25 14 11 $794,000 $174,279 $31,760 $349,360 $31,283

Rooftop Exhaust Fans - Lg. 22 16 6 $20,500 $2,789 $932 $5,591 $918

Rooftop Exhaust Fans - Med. 22 16 6 $6,150 $837 $280 $1,677 $275

Storage Tanks (2/3) to 5 Tanks 12 11 1 $35,300 $1,468 $2,942 $2,942 $2,897

Transfer Switch 30 5 25 $24,100 $10,018 $803 $20,083 $791

Total $1,595,650 $302,015 $78,803 $605,420 $77,619

Miscellaneous

PBX System 12 9 3 $59,400 $7,408 $4,950 $14,850 $4,876

Plumbing Repairs - Annual

Contingency

1 0 1 $7,675 $3,829 $7,675 $7,675 $7,560

Total $67,075 $11,237 $12,625 $22,525 $12,435

Painting & Repairs

Ext. Surfaces - Paint/Waterproof 8 0 8 $432,500 $215,753 $54,063 $432,500 $53,250

Int. Surfaces (In-House) - Paint 5 2 3 $15,900 $4,759 $3,180 $9,540 $3,132

Spalling Repairs - Contingency I 4 3 1 $6,250 $780 $1,563 $1,563 $1,539

Spalling Repairs - Contingency II 4 0 4 $70,500 $35,169 $17,625 $70,500 $17,360

Total $525,150 $256,461 $76,430 $514,103 $75,282

Pool

Pool - ADA Chair Lift 14 12 2 $5,950 $424 $425 $850 $419

Pool - Deck Coating/Repairs 2 0 2 $3,075 $1,534 $1,538 $3,075 $1,514

Pool - Filter 10 8 2 $2,200 $219 $220 $440 $217

Pool - Furnishings 6 1 5 $10,750 $4,469 $1,792 $8,958 $1,765

Pool - Resurface (Tile/Coping) 15 13 2 $16,400 $1,091 $1,093 $2,187 $1,077

Pool - Safety Vacuum 10 4 6 $3,275 $980 $328 $1,965 $323

Total $41,650 $8,717 $5,395 $17,475 $5,314

Rails & Gates

Lanai Rails - Annual Contingency 1 0 1 $5,125 $2,557 $5,125 $5,125 $5,048

Pool Railings (4') 25 14 11 $7,735 $1,698 $309 $3,403 $305

Vehicle Entry Gates (Roll-Up) 25 14 11 $17,400 $3,819 $696 $7,656 $686

Vehicle Gate - Operator #1 5 1 4 $4,100 $1,636 $820 $3,280 $808

Vehicle Gate - Operator #2 5 2 3 $4,100 $1,227 $820 $2,460 $808

Total $38,460 $10,937 $7,770 $21,924 $7,654

Roofing

Roofing (Rubberized) 20 8 12 $266,500 $79,766 $13,325 $159,900 $13,125

Total $266,500 $79,766 $13,325 $159,900 $13,125

Security Systems
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Percent Funded
BARRERAAND

COMPANY
Palms at Waikiki AOAO
Honolulu, HI

Date: Oct 8, 2014
Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec31, 2014
Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

5PIECIALIT5

Component UL RL Caic. Current
Yrs. in Replacement
Service Cost

Projected
Reserve
Balance

Required
Reserve
Funding

Projected Annual
Fully Current

Funded Funding
Reserve Allocation

Chiller #2 - 120 Ton (A)
A B C D
15 13 2 $65,500

E
$4,356

F
$4,367

G H
$8,733 $4,301

Chiller #2 - 120 Ton (B) 15 14 1 $1 64,000 $5,454 $1 0,933 $1 0,933 $1 0,769
Chiller #2 - 120 Ton (C) 15 14 1 $117,850 $3,919 $7,857 $7,857 $7,739
Chiller #3 (Hallway) 15 9 6 $55,250 $11,025 $3,683 $22,100 $3,628
Dom. Water Pump #1 15 13 2 $5,625 $374 $375 $750 $369
Dom. Water Pump #2 15 2 13 $5,625 $2,432 $375 $4,875 $369
Emerg. Generator (12OKVA) 25 3 22 $87,200 $38,280 $3,488 $76,736 $3,436
Fire Booster Pump (P2) - 1 .Shp 5 3 2 $2,050 $409 $410 $820 $404
Fire Booster Pump (P2) - 4Ohp 18 16 2 $28,200 $1,563 $1,567 $3,133 $1,543
Risers-Chill Water 25 14 11 $794,000 $174,279 $31,760 $349,360 $31,283
Rooftop Exhaust Fans - Lg. 22 16 6 $20,500 $2,789 $932 $5,591 $918
Rooftop Exhaust Fans - Med. 22 16 6 $6,150 $837 $280 $1,677 $275
Storage Tanks (2/3) to 5 Tanks 12 11 1 $35,300 $1,468 $2,942 $2,942 $2,897
Transfer Switch 30 5 25 $24,100

Total $1,595,650
$10,018
$302,015

$803
$78,803

$20,083 $791
$605,420 $77,619

Miscellaneous
PBX System 12 9 3 $59,400 $7,408 $4,950 $14,850 $4,876
Plumbing Repairs - Annual 1 0 1 $7,675 $3,829 $7,675 $7,675 $7,560
Contingency

—
Total $67,075 $11,237 $12,625 $22,525 $12,435

Painting &_Repairs__________________________
Ext. Surfaces - Paint/Waterproof 8 0 8 $432,500 $215,753 $54,063 $432,500 $53,250
Int. Surfaces (In-House) - Paint 5 2 3 $15,900 $4,759 $3,180 $9,540 $3,132
Spalling Repairs - Contingency I 4 3 1 $6,250 $780 $1,563 $1,563 $1,539
Spalling Repairs - Contingency II 4 0 4 $70,500

— —
Total $525,150

$35,169 $17,625 $70,500 $17,360
$256,461

$424

$76,430

$425

$514,103 $75,282
Pool
Pool - ADA Chair Lift 14 12 2 $5,950 $850 $419
Pool - Deck Coating/Repairs 2 0 2 $3,075 $1,534 $1,538 $3,075 $1,514
Pool-Filter 10 8 2 $2,200 $219 $220 $440 $217
Pool - Furnishings 6 1 5 $10,750 $4,469 $1,792 $8,958 $1,765
Pool - Resurface (Tile/Coping) 15 13 2 $16,400 $1,091 $1,093 $2,187 $1,077
Pool - Safety Vacuum 10 4 6 $3,275

Total $41,650
$980

$8,717
$328

$5,395
$1,965 $323
$17,475 $5,314

Rails & Gates
Lanai Rails - Annual Contingency
Pool Railings (4)
Vehicle Entry Gates (Roll-Up)
Vehicle Gate - Operator #1
Vehicle Gate - Operator #2

Roofing
Roofing (Rubberized)

Security Systems

1 0 1 $5,125 $2,557 $5,125 $5,125 $5,048
2514 11 $7,735 $1,698 $309 $3,403 $305
25 14 11 $17,400 $3,819 $696 $7,656 $686
5
5

1 4
2 3
Total

$4,100 $1,636 $820 $3,280 $808
$4,100
$38,460

$1,227
$10,937

$820
$7,770

$2,460
$21,924

$808
$7,654

20 8 12 $266,500 $79,766 $13,325 $159,900 $13,125
Total $266,500 $79,766 $13,325 $159,900 $13,125
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Percent Funded  
 Palms at Waikiki AOAO

Honolulu, HI

  Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

Component UL RL Calc.

Yrs. in

Service

Current

Replacement

Cost

Projected

Reserve

Balance

Required

Reserve

Funding

Projected

Fully

Funded

Reserve

Annual

Current

Funding

Allocation

A B C D E F G H

Fire - Alarm Control System 20 19 1 $28,200 $703 $1,410 $1,410 $1,389

Fire - Door Assemblies 5 4 1 $4,775 $476 $955 $955 $941

Security - Cameras 6 0 6 $5,725 $2,856 $954 $5,725 $940

Security - Cameras/Monitors 6 5 1 $5,225 $434 $871 $871 $858

Security - Entry System (Gar) 20 11 9 $6,150 $1,381 $308 $2,768 $303

Total $50,075 $5,851 $4,498 $11,729 $4,430

Totals $3,714,004 $855,151 $268,166 $1,714,240 $264,138
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Percent Funded
BARRERAAND

COMPANY
Palms at Waikiki AOAO
Honolulu, HI

Date: Oct 8, 2014
Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014
Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

5PIECIALIT5

Component UL RL Caic. Current
Yrs. in Replacement
Service Cost

Projected
Reserve
Balance

Required
Reserve
Funding

Projected Annual
Fully Current

Funded Funding
Reserve Allocation

Fire - Alarm Control System
A B C D
20 19 1 $28,200

E
$703

F
$1,410

G H
$1,410 $1,389

Fire - Door Assemblies 5 4 1 $4,775 $476 $955 $955 $941
Security - Cameras 6 0 6 $5,725 $2,856 $954 $5,725 $940
Security - Cameras/Monitors 6 5 1 $5,225 $434 $871 $871 $858
Security - Entry System (Gar) 20 11 9 $6,150

Total $50,075
$1,381
$5,851

$308
$4,498

$2,768 $303
$11,729 $4,430

Totals $3,714,004 $855,151 $268,166 $1,714,240 $264,138
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Percent Funded Information  
 Palms at Waikiki AOAO

Honolulu, HI

  Date: Oct 8, 2014

Units: 262

Fiscal Year End: Dec 31, 2014

Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

Column A - Service Life: Normal time period the association reserve component can be expected

to remain in functional or useful condition.

Column B - Remaining Life (B): An estimate of years remaining before repair, replacement or

refurbishment will be necessary.

Column C - Calculated Years In Service (C): A calculation derived by subtracting Remaining Life

from Service Life. (Note: Years In service is a calculated value, not necessary the actual age of the

component.) Calculation: (A) - (B) = (C).

Column D - Current Replacement Cost (D): The current cost of repairing, replacing or

refurbishment a component.

Column E - Current Actual Reserve Funds (E): Current Amount of reserve funds available for ech

component. This is calculated by: (Individual component Fully Funded Reserve) / (the total Fully

Funded Reserve for all components) * (the Total Current Actual Reserve Balance for all reserve

components). Calculation: G / G (Total) * E (Total) = (E) Individual Component Current Actual

Reserve Balance.

Column F - Required Reserve Funding (Annual) (F): The annual amount of reserve funding

requires as of the Fiscal Year End which, when Fully Funded from the first year of service for all

components will achieve full funding. This annualized value is calculated by dividing Current

Replacement Cost by the Useful Life. this funding level makes no adjustment to elminate any current

reserve deficits. Calculation: (D) / (A) = (F).

Column G - Fully Funded Reserve (G): This value is calculated by multiplying the Calculated Years

In Service by the Required Reserve Funding Amount. If an association is 100% funded, this number

will be equal or less than the Current Allocated Reserve Fund Balance for each component.

Calculation: (C) * (F) = (G)

Column H - Annual breakdown of the current contribution into the reserve fund by component.
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OBARRERAAND

Palms at Waikiki AOAO
COMPANY Honolulu, HIRIESEkVJ 5PIECIALIT5 Fiscal

Date: Oct 8, 2014
Units: 262

Year End: Dec31, 2014
Start Date: Jan 1, 2015

Column A - Service Life: Normal time period the association reserve component can be expected
to remain in functional or useful condition.

Column B - Remaining Life (B): An estimate of years remaining before repair, replacement or
refurbishment will be necessary.

Column C - Calculated Years In Service (C): A calculation derived by subtracting Remaining Life
from Service Life. (Note: Years In service is a calculated value, not necessary the actual age of the
component.) Calculation: (A) - (B) = (C).

Column D - Current Replacement Cost (D): The current cost of repairing, replacing or
refurbishment a component.

Column E - Current Actual Reserve Funds (E): Current Amount of reserve funds available for ech
component. This is calculated by: (Individual component Fully Funded Reserve) / (the total Fully
Funded Reserve for all components) * (the Total Current Actual Reserve Balance for all reserve
components). Calculation: G / G (Total) * E (Total) = (E) Individual Component Current Actual
Reserve Balance.

Column F - Required Reserve Funding (Annual) (F): The annual amount of reserve funding
requires as of the Fiscal Year End which, when Fully Funded from the first year of service for all
components will achieve full funding. This annualized value is calculated by dividing Current
Replacement Cost by the Useful Life. this funding level makes no adjustment to elminate any current
reserve deficits. Calculation: (D) / (A) = (F).

Column G - Fully Funded Reserve (G): This value is calculated by multiplying the Calculated Years
In Service by the Required Reserve Funding Amount. If an association is 100% funded, this number
will be equal or less than the Current Allocated Reserve Fund Balance for each component.
Calculation: (C) * (F) = (G)

Column H - Annual breakdown of the current contribution into the reserve fund by component.
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PROPERTY INFORMATION FORM RR105c
Condominium, Co-op, PUD, and other Homeowner Organizations

Hawaii Association of REALTORS Standard Forms
Completion Date:
Name of Property: Unit/Lot #:

All references to the word "Property" shall refer to the above.

Property Address:
Property Tax Map Key:

This property is managed by a licensed real estate broker. If a licensed real estate broker, is managing agent
registered with the Real Estate Commission as a Condominium Managing Agent?

Name of Managing Agent:
Managed by this Managing Agent since: 
Managing Agent provides (check those services that apply):

 Administrative Managing Services
 Fiscal Management Services
 Physical Management Services
Other Management Services -

This Property is self-managed since:

A. GENERAL & LEGAL

Total number of apartments: Number of guest parking stalls available:
If applicable, what percentage of Condominium Apartments has been sold and conveyed (excluding to the Developer)?

If applicable, what approximate percentage of Condminium Apartments is owner-occupied?
Approximately how many foreclosures have been filed by the Board of Directors during the past twelve (12) months?

What approximate percentage of owners is more than one month delinquent in maintenance fees?
**If answer is “Yes”, using the SAME number below, describe in the space provided.**
Yes No NTMK (not to my knowledge)

(1) Within the past year, has the Board of Directors had discussions with the lessor
regarding the purchase of the leased fee interest in the land?

(2) Is this Property subject to phasing or development of additional increments?
(3) Has the Owners Association or Corporation been in control of the operations of the

Property for less than two (2) years?
(4) Are there any lawsuits, arbitration or mediation actions affecting this Property and/or

Association other than delinquent owner maintenance fees?
Attorney for Association of Apartment Owners: 
NOTE: Any attorney fees or other costs incurred for further answering this
inquiry shall not be at the expense of the Association of Apartment Owners,
nor of the Managing Agent.

(5) If property is a Condominium, does any single entity, individual or partnership own
more than 10 percent of the common interest of this property?

(6) Are any Association or Corporation approvals required for transfer of Ownership?
(7) Is a resident manager’s apartment a part of the common elements, or is one owned

by the Association or Corporation (does not apply to Planned Unit Development)?
(8) Is a time share operation existing at this Property?

Name of operator:
(9) Is there a hotel, transient vacation rental operation, or other organized rental program

at the Property?
Name of Operator:

(10) Have any of the following items been discovered by the Association or Corporation
at the Property?

(11) Are there commercial apartments, lots or commercial use of the common areas or
common elements at the Property?

Buyer’s Initials & Date Seller’s Initials & Date

Property Address:
Number of Question answered "YES" and Explain:

Yes No
Yes No

%
%

%

Formaldehyde Radon Gas Lead-Based PaintAsbestos

Page 1 of 6

See Comments

1850 Ala Moana Blvd Honolulu, HI. 96815

✔

✔
✔

Aqua-Aston Hospitality

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

1.12

3
100

268

✔

✔

✔

2005
Aqua Hotels & Resorts, LLC

✔

✔

1850 Ala Moana Blvd Honolulu, HI. 96815

324AOAO Palms At Waikiki
1966



B. INSURANCE
Name of Insurance Company: 
Name of Insurance Agent: Phone:

**If answer is “Yes”, using the SAME number below, describe in the space provided.**
Yes No NTMK Note: In case of Planned Unit Development, questions #14 to #17 apply to common areas only.

(12) Is the Property located in a designated Flood Hazard Zone?
(13) Is this Property covered by Flood Insurance?
(14) Is this Property located in a tsunami inundation area?
(15) Has there been any substantial damage to this Property due to earthquake, fire,

floods, winds, landslides, tsunami, or violence activity within the last five years?

Number of Questions answered "YES" and Explain:

C. FINANCIAL
1. What do the Apartment maintenance fees include?

Water & Sewer
Hot Water
Electricity
Gas
Air Conditioning
Cable TV Signal
Parking
Recreation/Community Association Dues
Lease Rent
Real Property Tax
Other:

2. Other:
There are master association dues. Check with listing broker

How frequently is a financial statement prepared? Quarterly
Specify:  Accrual Basis

Buyer’s Initials & Date Seller’s Initials & Date
Property Address:

**If answer is “Yes”, using the SAME number below, describe in the space provided.**

Yes No NTMK
(16) Has the Association or Corporation Board of Directors approved a maintenance fee

increase, special assessment, or loan?
(17) Are any special assessments or loans in effect at this time?
(18) Are any assessments required to be paid in full at the time of conveyance of

ownership?

Number of Questions answered "YES" and Explain:

D. PROPERTY CONDITION

**If answer is "Yes", using the SAME number below, describe in the space provided.**
Are there any major repairs required or planned within the next 12 months with respect to the following common
elements/common areas of the Property?

Yes NTMK
(19) Exterior Walls
(20) Plumbing
(21) Foundations
(22) Wall(s)/Fences
(23) Water Features
(24) Security Systems
(25) Elevators
(26) Slab(s)

(27) Trash Chutes
(28) Drainage
(29) Sauna
(30) Barbecue Facilities
(31) Lanai Decks/Railings

Cash Basis
Monthly

Yes NTMK

(32) Electrical Systems
(33) Walkways

Page 2 of 6
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✔

✔

✔

✔

(16) In January 2016 maintenance fees will increase 6.91%

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔ Local phone service and PBX Equipment, High speed internet

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

See Comments 

✔

✔

✔

✔

Sue Savio 808-526-9271

Insurance Associates



(34) Swimming Pool
(35) Spas
(36) Pool Deck/Railings
(37) Sewage Treatment Plant

(40) Tennis Court
(41) Rec. Room Equipment
(42) Roofing
(43) Paint
(44) Other:Yes No NTMK

(45) Are lanai enclosures presently permitted by the Association or Corporation Board
of Directors?

(46) Do you know, within the past year, ofthe presence of live infestation, wood boring
insects/termites in the common elements/common areas of the Property?

(47) Do you know, within the past year, of leaks and/or water damage in the common
elements/common areas of the Property?

(48) Are you aware, within the past year , of any structural problems in the common
elements/common areas caused by water, settling, sliding, subsidence, filled land,etc.?

Number of Questions answered “YES" and Explain:

E. DISCLAIMER

While not guaranteed, the information contained in this Property Information Form is based on information reasonably
available to the Managing Agent at the time this form was completed. It has been provided by the Managing Agent at
Owner/Seller’s request and is believed to be current and co rrect to the best of the Managing Agent’s knowledge at the
time this form was completed. All persons relying upon the information contained herein are advised that the
information provided cannot be considered a substitute fo r a careful inspection of the Property and the Property’s
governing documents, meeting minutes, financial documents and other documentation; and that they should refer to
qualified experts in the various professional fields, includingbut not limited to attorneys, Certified Public Accountants,
architects, engineers, contractors and other appropriate professionals for detailed evaluation of areas where additional
clarification or information is desired. The person orentity completing the form is doing so only as an accommodation
to the parties and shall not be held liable for any errors or omissions whatsoever. The person or entity completing this
form is not required to and has not completed any special investigation, and is only reporting facts already known to that
person or entity or readily available. Specifically and without limitation, the person or entity completing the form has
not reviewed any records except official records of meetings in the possession of that person or entity and only for the
current and prior year. Where the answer to a question isnot applicable, unknown or is otherwise unanswerable, it has
been marked "NTMK". Where the Managing Agent has marked "NTMK" or "NO" in response to a question concerning
property condition, it must be recognized that this does not mean there may not be a defect which an expert could
discover or the passage of time would reveal. Likewise, a problem could be more serious than the Managing Agent, the
Association, the Corporation or its Board of Director s knows. All such persons having access to this Property
Information Form understand and acknowledge that this Property Information Form is not a warranty or guaranty of any
kind by the Managing Agent, the Association or its Board of Directors.

Person completing this form

 

Name: 

Title: 

Company: 

Address:

Phone No. Fax No. 

Buyer’s Initials & Date Seller’s Initials & Date

Property Address: :

Yes NTMK Yes NTMK
(39) Sprinkler System

(38) Driveways/Parking Areas
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808-947-7002808-952-8383

1850 Ala Moana Blvd., Honolulu, HI 96815

Palms at Waikiki

General Manager

Patty Maher, Property Manager, for  Palms at Waikiki

11-18-2015

See Comments

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔



ADDENDUM TO REQUEST FOR DOCUMENTS FORM RR105C
AND PROPERTY INFORMATION FORM RR105C

DATE OF FORMS:

The above-identified forms are modified as stated herein. I/We understand and agree that:

(i) the information requested is being provided as an accommodation only and that the Managing Agent and
the Association and their respective officers, directors, employees and agents shall have no liability
whatsoever for any errors or omissions with respect thereto;

(ii) the Managing Agent and the Association are not required to make any special investigations as to any
matters for which information is requested and shall report only facts already known or readily available to
the Managing Agent; and

(iii) the documents and information provided shall relate only to the community association for which
information is requested and shall not include documents or information related to other community
associations or master associations which may affect the property being sold.

I/We agree to indemnify and hold harmless the Association and the Managing Agent from All Costs for any Injury
consequent upon or arising from:

(i) the use or distribution of the documents or information provided by the Association or Managing Agent on
Forms RR105B and/or RR105C, as amended;

(ii) any allegation that said documents or information provided by the Association or Managing Agent
adversely affected any real estate transaction or violated any law, statute, ordinance or regulation now or
hereafter in force of the United States, the State of Hawaii or any city or county; and

(iii) any allegation that the documents or information provided by the Association or Managing Agent caused
damage to Me/Us or to any third party.

If any lawsuits, arbitration or other proceedings shall be brought against the Association or the Managing Agent for any
of the foregoing reasons, I/We will defend the same and will pay whatever judgements which may be recovered against
the Association or the Managing Agent. The obligation to defend shall include the obligation to pay all costs and
expenses of the lawsuit, arbitration or proceeding and any appeal thereof, including attorneys, fees, incurred by the
Association or the Managing Agent. As used herein:

All Costs shall include every and all cost, loss, damage, liability, expense, demand, penalty and fine whatsoever,
which may arise from or be claimed against the Association or the managing Agent, by any person or entity.

Injury shall include all injuries to person or property, or damage of whatever kind or character suffered or
sustained.

The acceptance of any of the documents or information as provided on form RR105B and/or RR105C and the use or
distribution of those documents or information to any third party for any purpose whatsoever, including without
limitation, compliance with Chapter 508D, Hawaii Revised Statutes, constitutes the agreement of the Seller (s) to all of
the terms and provisions of this Addendum including without limitation the obligation to defend and indemnify the
Association and the Managing Agent.

Buyers Initials & Date Sellers Initials & Date

Property Address:
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1850 Ala Moana Blvd Honolulu, HI. 96815

11-18-2015



Comments Addendum Form RR105c

Buyer’s Initials & Date
Property Address: 

Seller’s Initials & Date

Page 5 of 6

(write comments, if any, below and refer to question number)

(write comments, if any, below and refer to question number)

A)  General & Legal

B)  Insurance

1850 Ala Moana Blvd Honolulu, HI. 96815

#19, 21, 31, 36 & 43 - Paint and spall repair of building, pool deck and lanai rails
#20 Annual Contingency Plumbing
#12 Grand Fathered Flod Zone B
#13-14 Flood Policy with Selective Insurance Co/National Flood Insurance Program
Policy number: FLD1298475
Coverage Period: 12/15/14-12/15/15
Coverage Amt.: $44,488,000



(write comments, if any, below and refer to question number)

(write comments, if any, below and refer to question number)

Buyer’s Initials & Date
Property Address: 

Seller’s Initials & Date

Page 6 of 6

1850 Ala Moana Blvd Honolulu, HI. 96815

#8 Aqua Hotels & resorts, LLC manages an on-site rental program for over 85% of the units.
#9 Developer has completed remediation work to remove or otherwise deal with asbestos at the project in accordance with the
recommendatios of their consultants. Certain toxic molds have previously been detedted at the project and the seller has completed mold
remediation which included replacement of all drywalls in apartments and portion of hallways.
#10 back of the house storage areas, locker rooms and lunch room facilities are leased on an annual basis to the rental program operator. 
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PALMS AT WAIKIKI  
A FEE SIMPLE CONDOMINIUM PROJECT 

 
PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 
 THIS PURCHASE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made by and between LAEROC WAIKIKI PARKSIDE, LLC, a 
Hawaii limited liability company, having its principal place of business and post office address at 1334 Park View Avenue, 
Suite 240, Manhattan Beach, California 90266 (the "Seller"), and the "Purchaser" named in Section B. below, and shall be 
effective upon the date of its execution by the Seller.  Note that capitalized terms used herein shall have the meaning set 
forth in Section D.31 of this Agreement.  The purchase and sale transaction described in this Agreement is to be 
administered by Fidelity National Title Insurance Company, Inc., a Hawaii corporation ("Escrow"), and is made with 
reference to the following facts: 
 
A. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY COVERED BY THIS AGREEMENT: 

1. Location:  1850 Ala Moana Boulevard, Honolulu, Hawaii 96815; 
TMK No.:(1) 2-6-012:003. 

2. Project:  The Project consists of the land as described in Exhibits “A” to the Declaration and any 
improvements thereon to be known as “Palms at Waikiki,” as submitted to a condominium property regime by the 
Declaration pursuant to Chapter 514 of the Hawaii Revised Statutes, as amended. 

3. Apartment:  Apartment No. __________ as shown on that certain Condominium Map No. 1674 the 
Project filed in the Office of the Registrar of the Land Court of the State of Hawaii, as supplemented or amended from time 
to time, together with an undivided ______________________________ percent (_________________________%) 
interest in the common elements (“Common Interest”) of the Project.  The Common Interest is subject to adjustment in 
accordance with the Condominium Documents.  Net Area of the Apartment:  ___________ Net Area of lanai: 
___________.   

4. Limited Common Elements:  Exclusive easement to use those certain Limited Common Elements which 
are designated as appurtenant to such Apartment, as shown on the Condominium Map and as further described in the 
Declaration. 

5. Personal Property.  A list setting forth all items  of personal property to be conveyed to Purchaser shall be 
provided at closing. 

 
Together with certain other easements to be described or reserved in Purchaser’s Apartment Deed, Encumbrances, 

Reservations of Rights and Special Power of Attorney for Palms at Waikiki. 
 
B. INFORMATION CONCERNING PURCHASER:  (Include all persons or entities who are to hold title) 

INDIVIDUAL PURCHASER(S) 

1. Full name (if no middle name, state "NMN", do not use initials): 

     
 ( ) Single  ( ) Married  ( ) Trustee-indicate full legal name of trust  Social Security Number 

 Address:     

                    

 Office Telephone:________________________        Home Telephone:    

 Fax No.:_________________________  E-mail:     

 Spouse’s Full Name:      
      Social Security Number 
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2. Full name (if no middle name, state "NMN", do not use initials): 

     
 ( ) Single  ( ) Married  ( ) Trustee-indicate full legal name of trust  Social Security Number 

 Address:    

                    

 Office Telephone:________________________        Home Telephone:    

 Fax No.:_________________________  E-mail:     

 Spouse’s Full Name:      
      Social Security Number 
 
ENTITY PURCHASER(S) 
 
3. Full legal name and type of entity (i.e., Corporation, Partnership, Limited Partnership or Limited Liability 

Company) 

   

 Business Address:    

   

 Office Telephone:     Office Fax:  

 Email:         

 Representative authorized to sign, and title or position:  

   

4. Full legal name and type of entity (i.e., Corporation, Partnership, Limited Partnership or Limited Liability 
Company) 

   

 Business Address:    

   

 Office Telephone:     Office Fax:  

 Email:         

 Representative authorized to sign, and title or position:  

   

5. NATURE OF VESTING OF TITLE: Purchaser shall advise Seller and Escrow as soon as possible, but no 
later than by Preclosing (as defined in Section D.6. below) of how Purchaser will take title to the Apartment. 

6. RECEIPT OF PUBLIC REPORT.  THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BECOME BINDING WHEN (I) A TRUE 
COPY OF THE FINAL PUBLIC REPORT, TOGETHER WITH THE RECEIPT FORM REQUIRED BY HAWAII 
REVISED STATUTES SECTION 514A-62, AS AMENDED, IS DELIVERED TO PURCHASER; (II) PURCHASER 
HAS HAD AN OPPORTUNITY TO READ SAID REPORT(S), AND A DEEMED ACCEPTANCE OF THE REPORT(S) 
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SHALL HAVE TAKEN PLACE; AND (III) WHEN THE PURCHASER AND SELLER EXECUTE AN AFFIRMATION 
INSTRUMENT AGREEING TO RENDER THE PURCHASE AGREEMENT A BINDING CONTRACT. 

7. AGENCY DISCLOSURE.  IN CONNECTION WITH THE SALE OF THE APARTMENT PURSUANT 
TO THE PUBLIC REPORT(S), PURCHASER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT COLDWELL BANKER PACIFIC 
PROPERTIES, LTD. AND ALL OF ITS SALESPERSONS AND BROKERS (“Project Broker”), REPRESENT THE 
SELLER AND NOT THE PURCHASER, UNLESS THE PROJECT BROKER IS ACTING AS A DUAL AGENT 
(REPRESENTING BOTH SELLER AND PURCHASER) AND HAS SO ADVISED SELLER AND PURCHASER.  
PURCHASER ACKNOWLEDGES THAT WRITTEN DISCLOSURES RELATING TO AGENCY HAVE BEEN 
PROVIDED BEFORE SIGNING OF THIS OFFER. 

________ Purchaser is represented by the Project Broker, and a Dual Agency Addendum is attached. 

________ Purchaser is represented by a broker other than the Project Broker, and a Cooperating  
Broker Addendum is attached. 

8. CLOSING DATE.  The Closing Date shall be determined in accordance with Section D.7. below. 

C. SPECIFIC TERMS AND CONDITIONS .  In consideration of the foregoing and the respective covenants and 
agreements contained in this Agreement, Seller and Purchaser agree as follows: 

1. PURCHASE PRICE, TIMING OF PAYMENTS , ASSOCIATION START-UP FEES , FINANCING OF PURCHASE 
AND PURCHASE AGREEMENT. 

a. PURCHASE PRICE.  The Purchase Price for the Apartment, including $ _____________ for the 
purchase of _____ parking stall(s) is: $_________________. 

b. TIMING OF PAYMENT.  Purchaser shall pay to Seller the Purchase Price as follows: 

1. $   Due upon signing this Agreement (this is the Earnest Money 
Deposit). 

 
2. $   Additional deposit of ten percent (10%) of the Purchase Price 

(less the Earnest Money Deposit) due fifteen (15) days after 
Purchaser’s delivery of the Purchase Agreement to Seller. 

 
3. $   Balance of the Purchase Price due two (2) days prior to the 

scheduled or anticipated Closing Date by ___ cash and/or ___ 
mortgage. 

 
NOTE:  NO RECEIPT BY A SALESPERSON, EMPLOYEE OR AGENT OF THE SELLER OF THE 
DEPOSIT HEREINABOVE SET FORTH OR ANY OTHER SUMS FROM THE PURCHASER 
SHALL CONSTITUTE APPROVAL BY, OR BIND THE SELLER, NOR SHALL ANY SUCH 
SALESPERSON, EMPLOYEE OR AGENT BE AUTHORIZED OR BE EMPOWERED TO BIND THE 
SELLER TO THIS AGREEMENT.  SELLER IS ONLY BOUND TO THE AGREEMENT WHEN 
SELLER SIGNS IT AND DELIVERS IT OR A COPY THEREOF TO PURCHASER AND ESCROW. 

 
NOTE:  IF PURCHASER DOES NOT MAKE PA YMENT ON TIME, MEANING ON THE DUE 
DATES SET FORTH IN SECTION C.1.b. ABOVE, SELLER AT ITS OPTION MAY CANCEL THIS 
AGREEMENT AND EXERCISE ITS REMEDIES AS SET FORTH IN SECTION D.15. BELOW, OR 
MAY CHARGE PURCHASER A LATE CHARGE OF EIGHT PERCENT (8%) PER ANNUM, 
PRORATED DAILY, BASED ON THE AMOUNT OF SUCH PAYMENT. 

 
c. ADDITIONAL SUMS TO  BE PAID.  Purchaser agrees to pay association  start-up fees in an amount 

equal to two (2) months of the estimated maintenance fees and the sum of $1,000.00 as an 
additional payment towards reserves, the closing costs provided for in Section D.9. and 
prorations.  All such additional sums are due and payable to Escrow in cash, by way of bank 
wire transfer, or by cashier's check two (2) days prior to the scheduled or anticipated Closing 
Date, along with the balance of the Purchase Price. 
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d. FINANCING OF THE PURCHASE OF THE PROPERTY.  If the Purchaser has indicated that a 
portion of the Purchase Price is to be financed (by entering a mortgage amount in Section 
C.1.b.3 above), then the provisions of this Section C.1.d. shall be applicable and this Agreement 
shall be subject to the condition of Purchaser being able to obtain a conditional loan commitment 
issued by a lending institution of not less than the amount set forth in Section C.1.b.3.  Purchaser 
will exercise its best efforts to close at the date set by the Seller in accordance with the Closing 
Date specified herein, and will pay all fees and costs imposed or charged by the lender, and 
execute and deliver to Escrow a promissory note, mortgage and all other documents required to 
consummate the loan at the time of Closing.  In connection with such loan, Purchaser shall 
permit the proposed lender to make credit inquiries regarding Purchaser.   

Seller shall have no obligation to arrange for Purchaser's mortgage financing.  Evidence of 
Purchaser’s loan prequalification, based on a full credit report, must be provided to Seller within 
fifteen (15) days of Purchaser’s delivery of this Agreement to Seller.  A final loan commitment 
must be obtained and delivered to Seller and Escrow within forty-five (45) days of Seller’s 
acceptance of this Agreement.  If Purchaser fails to provide evidence of final loan approval 
within the time period set forth above, then Seller may, in its sole discretion, cancel this 
Agreement. 

Purchaser represents that the financial data to be submitted in connection with this Agreement to 
Seller or any prospective mortgagee shall be true and accurate and that Purchaser is financially 
capable of making all required payments at the required time set forth herein.  Purchaser agrees 
to notify Seller immediately of any material change that occurs in the Purchaser's financial 
condition prior to the Closing.  Presentation of the loan prequalification approval by Purchaser to 
Seller and Seller's acceptance of this offer shall constitute an agreement by Purchaser that 
Purchaser will perform all of the terms, conditions and agreements contained therein.  Seller 
shall have the right, at any time after this Agreement shall have become binding, to cancel this 
Agreement and hold Purchaser in default if any material discrepancies are discovered between 
the financial information furnished and the Purchaser's actual financial status.  It is expressly 
understood and agreed that, notwithstanding Seller's acceptance of this offer, if Purchaser's loan 
prequalification or loan commitment is subject to any contingency whatsoever and if it 
reasonably appears that Purchaser will not be able to satisfy such contingency on or before the 
Closing Date, Seller may, at its discretion and at any time, and without limitation to any other 
remedies available to Seller, elect to cancel this Agreement and retain Purchaser's deposit and all 
interest earned thereon as liquidated damages. 

At any time after this Agreement shall have become binding, if Purchaser shall fail to obtain 
final loan approval within the time period set forth above, fail to keep any loan commitment in 
force and thereby fail to close, fail to remove any contingency from its loan commitment by the 
Closing Date, or fail to close on the Closing Date, such failure shall constitute a default 
hereunder and Seller shall be entitled to cancel this Agreement and retain Purchaser’s deposit 
and all interest earned thereon as liquidated damages as provided in Section 18 below.  In order 
to facilitate Seller's awareness of Purchaser's progress in obtaining a mortgage loan, Purchaser 
hereby authorizes Purchaser's prospective lender to transmit to Seller or Seller’s agents any and 
all information necessary for this purpose, including, but not limited to copies of all 
correspondence between Purchaser and Purchaser's prospective lender. 

e. CASH PAYMENT AT CLOSING.  A Purchaser paying cash at closing pursuant to Section C.1.b.3 
above shall also, within fifteen (15) days after Purchaser’s delivery of this Agreement to Seller, 
give Seller such written evidence (hereinafter the "Cash Evidence") from Purchaser's bankers or 
accountants, or others, as Seller may require, of Purchaser's ability to make the cash payment 
due at Closing. 

f. PURCHASE AGREEMENT.  Seller agrees to sell and the Purchaser agrees to buy the property 
described in Section A. above and Section D.1. below (collectively the “Apartment”), subject to 
all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
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PURCHASER ACKNOWLEDGES HAVING READ THIS AGREEMENT IN FULL AND IS AWARE OF AND 
ACCEPTS THE DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES DESCRIBED IN SECTION D.13. AND ACKNOWLEDGES THAT 
THIS AGREEMENT AND THE ATTACHED ADDENDA CHECKED BELOW: 
¨ COOPERATING BROKER ADDENDUM    ¨  DUAL AGENCY ADDENDUM     LEAD BASED PAINT 
ADDENDUM     FLOOR PLAN ADDENDUM  PARKING STALL ADDENDUM  BACK-UP OFFER 
ADDENDUM  OTHER ___________________________________________________________________________                                                                      
(check applicable box(es), if any) CONSIST OF THE ENTIRE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES. 
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PURCHAS ER 

INDIVIDUAL PURCHASER: 

  
Print Name 
 
  Date of Execution by Purchaser:  
Signature 
 
  
Print Name 
 
  Date of Execution by Purchaser:  
Signature 
 
 
ENTITY PURCHASER: 
 
  
Print Entity Name 
 
  
Print Name of Authorized Signatory 
 
  Date of Execution by Purchaser:  
Signature 
 
  
Print Entity Name 
 
  
Print Name of Authorized Signatory 
 
  Date of Execution by Purchaser:  
Signature 
 
SELLER 
 
LAEROC WAIKIKI PARKSIDE, LLC, 
a Hawaii limited liability company 
 

    
By       Date of Execution by Seller:    
       Its Manager 
 
 
Receipt of Purchaser’s Earnest Money Deposit pursuant to Section C.1.b. above is hereby acknowledged this ___ day of 
________________, 20______. 
 
  PROJECT BROKER 
 
  COLDWELL BANKER PACIFIC PROPERTIES, LTD. 
 
    
  By (Salesperson) 
 
    
       By (Broker in Charge) 
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D. ADDITIONAL GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS . 

1. PROJECT INFORMATION. 

a. PROJECT LOCATION.  Palms at Waikiki condominium project (the “Project”) is located 
at 1850 Ala Moana Boulevard, Honolulu, Hawaii 96815 and is directly accessible from 
Ala Moana Boulevard.  It is contemplated that the Project will consist of two hundred 
sixty two (262) hotel apartments, and six (6) commercial apartments, common areas and 
amenities, as more particularly described in the Declaration and the Condominium Map. 

b. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY.  The property shall consist of the apartment and its 
appurtenant undivided interest in the common elements (subject to adjustments as 
provided for in the Condominium Documents) as described in Section A. above, together 
with rights and easements, including any limited common element rights, and subject to 
all of the applicable terms, covenants, provisions and easements contained in this 
Agreement, the Declaration of Condominium Property Regime of Palms at Waikiki 
("Declaration") and other Condominium Documents, as identified in Section D.1.c. 
below.   

Purchaser shall acquire a fee simple interest in and to the Apartment by way of an 
Apartment Deed, subject, however, to all encumbrances of record upon filing of the 
Apartment Deed, except for blanket encumbrances prohibited by Section 514A-18 of the 
Hawaii Revised Statutes. 
 

c. CONDOMINIUM DOCUMENTS .  This purchase and sale involves a number of documents 
relating to the Project and to the Apartment (the "Condominium Documents") which the 
Purchaser should review.  The Condominium Documents include, but are not limited to, 
the initial documents for the Project and their respective amendments, if any, identified 
as:  the Declaration; Bylaws of the Association of Apartment Owners of Palms at Waikiki 
("Byla ws"); Condominium Map; Palms at Waikiki House Rules; Apartment Deed, 
Encumbrances and Reservations of Rights of Palms at Waikiki (“Apartment Deed”); 
Management Agreement; Escrow Agreement; the Preliminary and Final Public Reports, 
and any Supplementary Public Report that may be issued for the Project.  Copies of these 
documents have been or will be presented to the Purchaser, or, if not so presented, are or 
will be on file with the Real Estate Commission of the State of Hawaii (the "Real Estate 
Commission").  Copies are also available for inspection at the Project Broker's office.  
The form of these Condominium Documents may change from time to time as set forth in 
Section D.4. below. 

The provisions of the Escrow Agreement described in Section D.3. below shall become 
binding upon the Purchaser upon acceptance of this Agreement by Seller.  The failure of 
Purchaser to cancel this Agreement in accordance with Section D.10. below shall 
constitute an approval and acceptance of the Condominium Documents by the Purchaser.  
It is agreed and understood that Purchaser’s ownership of the Apartment is in all respects 
subject to said Condominium Documents. 

 
d. SELLER IS AUTHORIZED TO  ACT ON BEHALF OF THE ASSOCIATION.  Purchaser 

authorizes Seller to exercise all rights and powers of the Association, the Board of 
Directors and officers, including voting, until the first meeting of the Association.  
Purchaser further authorizes the Seller to exercise all rights and incidents of membership 
attributable to the Apartment which is the subject of this Agreement until the recordation 
of the Apartment Deed transferring title to the Apartment to the Purchaser. 

2. PURCHASE PRICE AND TERMS. 

a. PAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS .  All payments of the deposits as shown in Section C.1.b. 
above shall be made in cash to Escrow as specified in Section C.1.b. above.  Although 



 

347381.9 8 Purchaser’s Initial:  _____________ 
  Date:  _____________ 

this sale is not subject to Purchaser obtaining a loan, if Purchaser elects to do so, 
Purchaser also authorizes Purchaser’s lender(s) (if any) to pay the proceeds of any 
mortgage loan(s) to Escrow when due by the terms of this Agreement, as set forth in 
Section C.1.b. above. 

b. APARTMENT DEED.  Subject to Purchaser signing the Apartment Deed, Seller agrees to 
provide Purchaser, after payment of the full Purchase Price, and any other sum due under 
this Agreement, a duly executed Apartment Deed conveying the Apartment to Purchaser, 
in fee simple. 

3. ESCROW AGREEMENT; INTEREST.  Seller has entered into an escrow agreement dated May 11, 
2004 ("Escrow Agreement") with Escrow, which Escrow Agreement is by this reference 
incorporated herein and made a part hereof, covering the deposit with Escrow of all funds paid by 
Purchaser under this Agreement and the disbursement of such funds by Escrow.  All payments to 
be made hereunder shall be paid by Purchaser to Escrow pursuant to the Escrow Agreement and 
this Agreement.   

Except as otherwise provided herein, Purchaser further agrees that all funds received by Escrow 
may be held together with other monies received by Escrow.  All such funds may be deposited by 
Escrow into an interest bearing account or accounts in a federally insured bank or savings and loan 
institution.  Any interest earned on Purchaser’s deposit shall accrue to Seller.  Purchaser shall have 
no right to direct Escrow as to how or where the funds received hereunder by Escrow from 
Purchaser shall be deposited or otherwise invested. 

Alternatively, upon Purchaser’s execution of this Agreement, Purchaser may, for a set up fee of 
$25.00 payable to Escrow, elect to have Escrow place Purchaser’s deposit in an interest-bearing 
account with interest accruing to Purchaser.  If Purchaser does not specify that the deposit be 
placed in such an interest bearing account, any interest accrued on Purchaser’s deposit shall accrue 
to Seller. 

No interest will be payable upon Purchaser’s deposit where Purchaser’s deposit is either refunded 
by Seller or returned by Seller except pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement. 

4. ACCEPTANCE OF CHANGES TO  DOCUMENTS OR PROJECT.  Prior to closing, Purchaser 
authorizes Seller to make, and Purchaser hereby approves, all changes to the Condominium 
Documents and to the Project as may be required by law, any title insurance company, 
institutional mortgage lender or other mortgage lender, including Seller’s lender, or governmental 
or quasi-governmental agency, and any other changes the Seller may make in the Project or the 
Condominium Documents, provided only that such changes shall not substantially impair the 
prospective use of the Apartment, materially alter the floor plan of the Apartment or substantially 
reduce the usable space within the Apartment, substantially increase the Purchaser's share of 
common expenses, or increase the Purchase Price.  No taking by eminent domain (or other transfer 
by the Seller) of an easement or other limited right or of a portion of the common elements of the 
Project that does not substantially interfere with or diminish the practical enjoyment and use by 
the Purchaser of the common elements shall be deemed to be grounds for cancellation of this 
Agreement.   

5. RESERVED RIGHTS , PROJECT AMENDMENTS , PURCHASER'S CONSENT AND 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT.  Purchaser specifically acknowledges and agrees that the Declaration 
contains reservations of certain rights in favor of Seller and certain other provisions under which 
the Purchaser consents to.  These reserved rights are also summarized in Exhibit A to the Public 
Report(s).  It is incumbent upon Purchaser to read the Declaration and all Public Report(s) with 
care to be aware of such reserved rights. 

6. PRECLOSING.  Purchaser acknowledges that Seller intends to and agrees that Seller may preclose 
this sale by having all documents necessary for closing executed and funds deposited with Escrow 
prior to the time of closing, but no earlier than that date which is thirty (30) days prior to that date 
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selected by Seller as the estimated or anticipated Closing Date (which date is identified in the 
following section); provided that any required deposits must be made in accordance with the 
timing set forth in Section C.1.b.  This procedure, as set forth in this Section, shall be referred to 
as “Preclosing.”  To accomplish this, any time after the effective date of this Agreement, and upon 
receiving written notice to preclose from the Seller, Purchaser's lender(s), if any, or Escrow, 
Purchaser agrees to deposit with Escrow all payments specified in Section C.1.b. above (at the 
times set forth in said Section) and to take and complete any other action that may be necessary to 
enable closing to occur, and Purchaser will execute during this period all documents required for 
closing including, without limitation, the Apartment Deed and any promissory notes, mortgages 
and other loan documents necessary for Purchaser's financing of the purchase (if financing is 
pursued by Purchaser, it being understood that this sale is not subject to or conditioned on 
Purchaser obtaining a loan), the conveyance tax certificate, and a closing statement based on 
Seller's estimate of the date the Apartment will be available for occupancy.  Purchaser shall, upon 
written notice from Escrow, confirm with Escrow the names and addresses of all owners of the 
Apartment and the manner ("tenancy") by which the owner(s) shall hold title.  If Purchaser fails to 
select a form of tenancy when requested to do so, Seller may complete the Apartment Deed with 
such tenancy as Seller, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate.  Escrow shall be entitled to charge 
an additional documentation charge in the event of any changes to the Apartment Deed or other 
documents requested by Purchaser later than fifteen (15) days prior to the estimated or anticipated 
Closing Date.  This Agreement shall constitute Seller's and Purchaser's written authority to Escrow 
to date all documents, to add recording information and to adjust the estimated prorations in 
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. 

NOTE:  If Purchaser is an entity, the following documents shall be delivered to Seller during 
Preclosing or at such other date as determined by Seller:  (i) if Purchaser is a corporation, a 
resolution of the board of directors of such corporation authorizing the purchase hereunder and 
declaring which officer(s) is (are) authorized to execute this Agreement and all documents in 
connection herewith; (ii) if Purchaser is a foreign (non-Hawaii) corporation, a copy of its license 
to do business in the State of Hawaii or other evidence that it has registered to do business in the 
State of Hawaii; (iii) if Purchaser is a partnership or limited partnership, a copy of the Partnership 
Agreement or Limited Partnership Agreement (as applicable) and a copy of the partnership or 
limited partnership registration statement filed with the Department of Commerce and Consumer 
Affairs of the State of Hawaii (“DCCA”); (iv) if Purchaser is a limited liability company, a copy 
of the Operating Agreement and a copy of the Articles of Organization filed at the DCCA; and (v) 
if Purchaser is a trustee, a copy of the trust instrument or short form thereof.) 

7. CLOSING.  The "Closing Date" shall be that date selected by Seller to consummate the sale of the 
Apartment from Seller to Purchaser.  On the Closing Date, Seller and Purchaser shall be required 
to perform their respective obligations to purchase and sell the Apartment under this Agreement.  
The parties agree that the Closing Date may be extended by Seller in its sole discretion.  All 
payments that have not been previously made during Preclosing shall be due and payable in full 
on the Closing Date, and, if not paid on said date due to Purchaser's failure to act in a diligent 
manner in order for said payment to be made on said date, then such nonpayment shall result in a 
default under this Agreement.  In the event of failure of Purchaser to actually close on the Closing 
Date scheduled by Seller, and in the event Seller waives its right to claim a default as provided in 
this Section D.7. and in Section C.1.d. above, Purchaser agrees to pay, in addition to all other 
amounts due, a late charge of one percent (l%) per month, based on the amount of the total 
Purchase Price, prorated on a daily basis, to accrue commencing on the Closing Date and 
continuing until all payments required under this Agreement, together with such late charges, are 
paid.  Seller's failure to exercise any right or remedy under this Agreement shall not constitute a 
waiver of any of such defaults or of any of such rights, including, without limitation, the right to 
cancel this Agreement, and will not constitute a modification of this Agreement.  Escrow shall not 
record Purchaser's Apartment Deed until Escrow has received a certificate from a title company 
authorized to do business in the State of Hawaii and approved by Seller stating that, upon 
recordation of such Apartment Deed, the Apartment is free and clear of all liens, encumbrances 
and assessments whatsoever other than those permitted by law and this Agreement.  Real property 
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taxes, maintenance fees, and other prorations shall be made, and risk of loss shall transfer from 
Seller to Purchaser on the Closing Date.   

8. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE.  Time is of the essence of this Agreement.   

9. CLOSING COSTS .  Purchaser will pay all closing costs associated with this purchase and sale, 
including: the escrow fee, cost of a preliminary title report, cost of preparation of the Apartment 
Deed, real property tax prorations and other customary prorations, all acknowledgment fees, 
conveyance taxes, title insurance, if requested by Purchaser, cost of any lender's title insurance, 
appraisal fees, costs for drafting of any notes and mortgages, all recordation costs or fees, loan 
fees, credit report costs and all other applicable mortgage costs, provided that it is understood that 
this sale is not subject to or conditioned upon Purchaser obtaining a loan.  Purchaser shall also pay 
a start-up fee equal to two (2) months of the estimated maintenance fees in advance, and an 
additional fee equal to two (2) months of the estimated reserves.  

10. DELIVERY OF PUBLIC REPORT(S); PURCHASER’S RIGHT TO CANCEL; WAIVER.  
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, this Agreement shall become binding when (i) a 
true copy of the Final Public Report, together with the Receipt Form required by Hawaii Revised 
Statutes Section 514A-62, as amended, is delivered to Purchaser; (ii) Purchaser has had an 
opportunity to read said report(s), and a Deemed Acceptance of the report(s) shall have taken 
place; and (iii) when the Purchaser and Seller execute an affirmation instrument agreeing to render 
this Agreement a binding contract. 

The date this Agreement shall become binding as a contract for the purchase and sale of the 
Apartment as set forth above shall be the Effective Date.  Until the Effective Date, this Agreement 
may be unilaterally canceled at any time by either Seller or Purchaser by written notice to the 
other party, and upon such cancellation by either party, Seller shall direct Escrow to refund to 
Purchaser all Deposits paid hereunder by Purchaser, without interest.  Upon the Effective Date, 
both Seller’s and Purchaser’s right of cancellation under this Section D.10 and under said Hawaii 
Revised Statutes Section 514A-62, as amended, shall lapse and any subsequent attempt at such 
cancellation shall have no force or effect. 

11. NO  ASSIGNMENT BY PURCHASER.  Purchaser may not assign this Agreement, or sell the 
Apartment, or advertise the Apartment for sale prior to closing under this Agreement, and any 
assignment or sale or attempted sale by Purchaser prior to closing is void.  Any attempt to assign 
the Agreement or sell the Apartment (including any advertising of the Apartment whatsoever) 
prior to closing shall be a material breach of this Agreement, and, in such event, Seller may 
exercise its remedies pursuant to Section D.15. below, including, without limitation, compelling 
the forfeiture of any of Purchaser’s deposits held by Escrow.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
Purchaser may, with the prior approval of Seller, assign this Agreement for estate planning 
purposes or to an entity owned and controlled by Purchaser; provided that upon any such 
assignment, Purchaser shall remain liable under this Agreement, and shall be responsible to 
perform all of the obligations of the “Purchaser” hereunder. 

12. NO  PRESENT TRANSFER; SUBORDINATION.  This Agreement shall not be construed as a present 
transfer of any interest in the Property.  It is, rather, an agreement to transfer in the future.  
Purchaser acknowledges that Seller has entered into or may enter into an agreement with one or 
more lenders (the "Lenders") pursuant to which the Lenders may loan monies to Seller upon terms 
acceptable to Lenders and to Seller.  To secure the loan, Seller may grant to the Lenders security 
interests covering the Seller’s interest in the Project, including the Property covered by this 
Agreement.  Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that all security interests obtained by the Lenders 
in connection with such loan as well as any extensions, renewals and modifications thereof shall 
be and remain at all times, until the recordation of the Apartment Deed, a lien or charge on the 
Project, including the Property covered by this Agreement, prior to and superior to any and all 
liens or charges on the Project arising from this Agreement or any prior agreement.  THE 
PURCHASER HEREBY INTENTIONALLY WAIVES, RELINQUISHES AND 
SUBORDINATES THE PRIORITY OR SUPERIORITY OF ANY LIEN OR OTHER LEGAL 
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OR EQUITABLE INTEREST ARISING UNDER THIS AGREEMENT IN FAVOR OF THE 
LIEN OR CHARGE ON THE PROJECT OF THE SECURITY INTERESTS OF THE 
LENDERS, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO ANY LIEN, MORTGAGE OR CHARGE 
SECURING A LOAN MADE TO FINANCE THE ACQUISITION OF THE LAND AND 
OTHER COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE SALE OF THE PROJECT AND ANY AND ALL 
ADVANCES THEREFOR, WHETHER CONTRACTUAL OR VOLUNTARY, UNTIL THE 
RECORDATION OF THE APARTMENT DEED.  The Purchaser further undertakes and agrees 
to execute any further documentation or subordination agreement required by the Lenders to 
evidence this subordination and hereby irrevocably appoints Seller as Purchaser’s attorney-in-fact 
to execute any such instrument on behalf of Purchaser, should Purchaser fail or refuse to do so 
within ten (10) days after request is made or mailed.  Said power of attorney is coupled with an 
interest, shall be irrevocable, and shall not be affected by the disability of the Purchaser.  
Purchaser also consents to Seller’s assignment by way of security of Seller’s interests in this 
Agreement and in Purchaser’s escrow deposit to the Lenders and agrees that in the event of 
passage of Seller’s interest therein pursuant to said assignment, that Purchaser will, at Lenders’ 
option, perform to, attorn to and recognize Lenders (and their successors in interest, if any) as the 
Seller hereunder, with all of the rights of the Seller hereunder, all as if the Lenders were the 
original Seller hereunder.  Purchaser further understands and agrees that the Lenders have the right 
under certain circumstances set forth or to be set forth in the mortgage instrument, the security 
agreement and any other loan documents pertaining to said agreement between Seller and Lenders 
to foreclose their mortgages and/or enforce their other remedies thereunder or under such other 
loan documents or possessed at law, and Purchaser hereby agrees in such connection that:  (a) the 
managing agent of the Project is hereby irrevocably appointed by Purchaser as Purchaser’s agent 
for acceptance of service of process during the term of this Agreement (which power is coupled 
with an interest and shall not be affected by the disability of the Purchaser), and any service of 
process upon said Managing Agent shall be deemed to be effective service of process upon 
Purchaser as though Purchaser has been personally served therewith; and (b) the rights of 
Purchaser hereunder are purely contractual in nature, enforceable only against Seller and its legal 
successors and assigns and not against the real property, improvements and/or appurtenances 
thereto which are the subject of said mortgage instrument, security agreement or other loan 
documents, and Purchaser expressly acknowledges and agrees that Purchaser need not be named a 
party defendant or plaintiff in any cause of action or suit by Lenders to foreclose and/or otherwise 
enforce their rights under said mortgage instruments or security agreements or other loan 
documents, nor does Purchaser have any right to be served with process in connection therewith or 
to be notified of the pendency thereof. 

13. NO  WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS AS TO  THE PROPERTY OR THE PROJECT. 

a. SELLER MAKES NO  WARRANTIES OR PROMISES .  PURCHASER ACKNOWLEDGES 
THAT ALTHOUGH SELLER HAS UNDERTAKEN CERTAIN RENOVATIONS TO 
THE APARTMENTS AND COMMON ELEMENTS OF THE PROJECT, SELLER IS 
NOT THE ORIGINAL DEVELOPER OF THE PROJECT AND WAS NOT 
INVOLVED IN (AND IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR) THE ORIGINAL PLANNING 
OR CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROJECT.  PURCHASER FURTHER 
ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE PROJECT WAS SUBSTANTIALLY COMPLETED 
IN THE LATE 1960s AND HAS BEEN USED OVER THE YEARS PRIMARILY FOR 
HOTEL PURPOSES.  PURCHASER UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES THAT THE 
APARTMENT IS BEING SOLD "AS IS, WHERE IS" WITH ALL FAULTS  AND 
THAT SELLER DISCLAIMS AND MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR PROMISES OF 
ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, ABOUT THE APARTMENT, THE LAND 
UNDERLYING THE PROJECT (THE "LAND") OR THE PROJECT (INCLUDING 
THE COMMON ELEMENTS OF THE PROJECT), OR ABOUT ANY FURNISHINGS, 
FIXTURES, APPLIANCES OR OTHER CONSUMER PRODUCTS, MECHANICAL 
SYSTEMS, PLUMBING SYSTEMS, ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS, COOLING OR 
HEATING SYSTEMS OR ANYTHING ELSE INSTALLED, ATTACHED, AFFIXED 
OR OTHERWISE CONTAINED IN THE APARTMENT, THE LAND OR THE 
PROJECT (INCLUDING THE COMMON ELEMENTS OF THE PROJECT), 
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INCLUDING ANY WARRANTIES OR PROMISES OF "HABITABILITY", 
"MERCHANTABILITY", "WORKMANSHIP" OR "FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
USE OR PURPOSE". 

WITHOUT LIMITING THE GENERALITY OF ANY OF THE FOREGOING, 
SELLER DISCLAIMS AND MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR PROMISES: (A) THAT 
THE PROJECT OR ANY IMPROVEMENTS IN THE APARTMENT, THE LAND OR 
THE PROJECT (INCLUDING THE COMMON ELEMENTS) WILL BE FREE FROM 
CRACKS IN, OR OTHER DAMAGE TO, THE CONCRETE OR OTHER BUILDING 
MATERIALS; (B) REGARDING THE VALUE, QUALITY, GRADE OR USEFUL 
LIFE OF THE APARTMENT, THE PROJECT OR ANYTHING INSTALLED, 
ATTACHED, AFFIXED OR OTHERWISE CONTAINED IN THE APARTMENT, 
THE LAND OR THE PROJECT (INCLUDING THE COMMON ELEMENTS OF THE 
PROJECT); (C) REGARDING THE STRUCTURAL, PHYSICAL OR 
ENVIRONMENTAL HISTORY OR CONDITION OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING, 
WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY DEFERRED MAINTENANCE AT THE PROJECT; 
OR (D) REGARDING THE SUITABILITY, CONFORMANCE, COMPLIANCE OR 
LACK OF COMPLIANCE OF THE PROJECT WITH ANY STATE, FEDERAL, 
COUNTY OR LOCAL LAW, CODE, ORDINANCE, ORDER, PERMIT, 
ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENT, OR REGULATION, INCLUDING, WITHOUT 
LIMITATION, THOSE RELATED TO THE CONSOLIDATION AND SUBDIVISION 
OF LAND, THE OPERATION AND USE OF THE PROJECT AND ACCESSIBILITY 
OF THE PROJECT BY PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES.  IN OTHER WORDS, 
SELLER MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR PROMISES AT ALL. 

PURCHASER FOR ITSELF AND ITS SUCCESSORS, HEIRS AND ASSIGNS, 
RELEASES SELLER AND ITS AFFILIATES, AND EACH OF THEM AND THEIR 
RESPECTIVE PAST, PRESENT AND FUTURE MEMBERS, MANAGERS, 
DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, SHAREHOLDERS, EMPLOYEES, PROPERTY 
MANAGERS, AGENTS, VENDORS, CONSULTANTS, CONTRACTORS AND 
EACH OF THEIR RESPECTIVE SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS (HEREAFTER THE 
"RELEASED PARTIES") FROM (AND WAIVES ANY CLAIM, ACTION OR 
LIABILITY WHICH ARISES FROM OR RELATES TO) ANY LATENT OR PATENT 
DEFECT IN ANY PART OF THE PROJECT OR THE APARTMENT, KNOWN OR 
UNKNOWN, WHICH EXISTS NOW OR IN THE FUTURE, OR WHICH ARISES 
FROM OR RELATES TO ANY LACK OF COMPLIANCE OF THE PROJECT WITH 
ANY STATE, FEDERAL, COUNTY OR LOCAL LAW, CODE, ORDINANCE, 
ORDER, PERMIT, ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENT, OR REGULATION, THAT 
PURCHASER MAY HAVE AGAINST SELLER UNDER ANY FEDERAL, STATE 
OR LOCAL LAW, ORDINANCE, RULE OR REGULATION NOW EXISTING OR 
HEREAFTER ENACTED OR PROMULGATED, INCLUDING, WITHOUT 
LIMITATION, THOSE RELATED TO ASBESTOS, ASBESTOS-CONTAINING 
MATERIALS, LEAD-BASED OR LEAD-CONTAINING PAINT, HAZARDOUS 
MATERIALS AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS OR MATTERS 
(INCLUDING THE PRESENCE OF MOLD OR MILDEW) IN, ON, UNDER, ABOUT 
OR MIGRATING FROM OR ONTO OR INTO THE PROJECT, OR BY VIRTUE OF 
ANY COMMON LAW RIGHT RELATING TO ASBESTOS, ASBESTOS-
CONTAINING MATERIALS, LEAD-BASED OR LEAD-CONTAINING PAINT, 
HAZARDOUS MATERIAL AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS OR MATTERS 
(INCLUDING THE PRESENCE OF MOLD OR MILDEW) IN, ON, UNDER ABOUT 
OR MIGRATING FROM OR ONTO OR INTO THE PROJECT.  SELLER AND 
PURCHASER AGREE THAT THIS RELEASE FROM LIABILITY HAS BEEN 
SPECIFICALLY NEGOTIATED BETWEEN SELLER AND PURCHASER. 

PURCHASER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES THAT SELLER'S DISCLAIMER 
OF WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS CONTAINED IN THIS SECTION a. 
IS AN ESSENTIAL ELEMENT IN SELLER’S DETERMINATION OF THE 
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PURCHASE PRICE FOR THE APARTMENT BEING SOLD TO PURCHASER.  THIS 
MEANS THAT THE APARTMENT WOULD NOT HAVE BEEN SOLD TO 
PURCHASER FOR THE AMOUNT OF THE PURCHASE PRICE STATED IN THIS 
AGREEMENT WITHOUT SELLER'S DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES AND 
REPRESENTATIONS. 

b. PURCHASER’S INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE APARTMENT.  On a date 
specified by Seller, Purchaser (or Purchaser's agent or representative) may inspect 
Purchaser's Apartment.  Such inspection may include evaluation and testing by licensed 
professionals with respect to the physical and environmental conditions in the Apartment 
and the Project, provided such inspection does not cause unreasonable interference with 
the use and enjoyment of the Project by the occupants or cause any property damage.  
Purchaser gives up all rights to inspect if Purchaser (or Purchaser's agent or 
representative) does not inspect Purchaser's Apartment on the date and at the time set by 
Purchaser and Seller. 

An inspection sheet will be provided at the inspection on which Purchaser may list any 
defects or damages to the Apartment.  Seller shall cooperate with, and assist Purchaser in 
having listed defects or damages corrected or repaired.  Purchaser agrees to close the sale 
of the Apartment on time and accept possession of the Apartment even if there are 
defects or damages to the Apartment or anything in it, as long as the Apartment is not 
rendered uninhabitable thereby.  Purchaser agrees that inspection of the Project, the Land 
or the Apartment (including its furnishings, fixtures or appliances) is not required for 
closing to take place. 

Purchaser shall have ten (10) days from Seller’s Execution Date of this Agreement to 
perform or engage a professional consultant to inspect the common elements of the 
Project at Purchaser’s option and expense.   

Purchaser promises to protect Seller from any loss or damage, including interest and 
attorneys' fees, resulting from Purchaser's failure to close the sale of the Apartment or to 
accept possession of the Apartment as required above.  If Purchaser refuses to close the 
sale of the Apartment or to accept the Apartment as required by this Agreement, 
Purchaser will be in default under this Agreement and Seller may, in Seller’s sole 
discretion, (a) cancel this Agreement and refund the Purchaser's deposit, or (b) charge a 
late fee of one percent (1%) per month on the total Purchase Price, or (c) exercise any of 
Seller's rights described in Section 15 of this Agreement. 

c. SELLER MAKES NO  PROMISES OR WARRANTY ABOUT THE CONDOMINIUM MAP.  The 
Condominium Map for the Project which is recorded in the Office of the Registrar of the 
Land Court of the State of Hawaii is intended to show only the layout, location, 
apartment numbers and approximate dimensions of the apartments and the elevations of 
the Building.  PURCHASER AGREES THAT NEITHER THE CONDOMINIUM MAP 
NOR THE BUILDING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR THE PROJECT ARE 
INTENDED TO CONSTITUTE ANY WARRANTIES OR PROMISES BY SELLER. 

d. SELLER MAKES NO  PROMISES OR WARRANTY ABOUT THE AMOUNT OF MONTHLY 
MAINTENANCE FEES .  Purchaser has examined and approved the estimate of monthly 
maintenance fees and assessments for the Project prepared by the Managing Agent and 
shown in the Public Report.  Purchaser is aware that such amounts are only estimates and 
may change for reasons beyond the control of Seller, and Purchaser hereby specifically 
accepts and approves any changes in such estimate made by Seller or the Managing 
Agent.   PURCHASER AGREES THAT SUCH ESTIMATES ARE NOT INTENDED 
TO BE AND DO NOT CONSTITUTE ANY WARRANTY OR PROMISE BY 
SELLER, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ANY WARRANTY OR PROMISE 
AS TO THE ACCURACY OF SUCH ESTIMATES. 
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e. SELLER MAKES NO  PROMISES OR WARRANTY ABOUT THIRD-PARTY REPORTS .  Seller 
makes no warranty or representation whatsoever that Seller has provided all studies, 
reports, tes ts or other written investigations that may pertain to the condition of the 
Apartments and the other areas of the Building, Land or the Project.  To the extent that 
Seller may have hired or commissioned any study, test or other investigation of the 
condition, useful life, legal compliance or any other matter relating to the Apartments, the 
Land, the Project, or any furnishings, fixtures, appliances or other consumer products or 
anything else installed, attached, affixed or otherwise contained in the Apartments, the 
Land or the Project, and to the extent Seller may make the results of any such study, test 
or investigation available to Purchaser in connection with the offer or sale of the Project, 
Seller disclaims and makes no warranty or promise regarding the accuracy, reliability or 
value of any statement or opinion expressed by such third-party.  PURCHASER 
AGREES THAT PURCHASER’S USE OR CONSIDERATION OF ANY SUCH 
INFORMATION IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFER OR SALE OF THE 
APARTMENT SHALL BE AT PURCHASER’S SOLE RISK. 

f. SELLER MAKES NO  PROMISES ABOUT RENTALS OR OTHER ECONOMIC BENEFITS .  
PURCHASER AGREES THAT NEITHER SELLER NOR ANY SALESPERSON, OR 
OTHER PERSON AFFILIATED WITH OR IN ANY WAY RELATED TO SELLER 
HAS TALKED TO PURCHASER AT ALL ABOUT ANY RENTAL INCOME OR 
RENTAL, MANAGEMENT OR SALES SERVICES FOR PURCHASER'S 
APARTMENT.  IF PURCHASER WANTS TO RENT OR SELL THE APARTMENT, 
HOW PURCHASER DOES IT WILL BE UP TO PURCHASER.  PURCHASER ALSO 
AGREES THAT NEITHER SELLER NOR ANY SALESPERSON OR OTHER 
PERSON AFFILIATED WITH OR IN ANY WAY RELATED TO SELLER HAS 
TALKED TO PURCHASER AT ALL ABOUT INCOME FROM THE APARTMENT 
OR ANY OTHER ECONOMIC BENEFIT TO BE DERIVED FROM THE PURCHASE 
OR OWNERSHIP OF THE APARTMENT OR ABOUT THE TAX EFFECTS OF 
BUYING THE APARTMENT.  PURCHASER IS ADVISED TO CONTACT HIS OR 
HER OWN ADVISERS ON ALL SUCH MATTERS. 

g. SECURITIES AND DISCLOSURE LAWS OR REGULATIONS .  PURCHASER AGREES 
THAT SELLER MAY, AS A REQUIREMENT FOR CLOSING, REQUIRE 
PURCHASER, ANY SALESPERSON, OR ANYONE ELSE CONNECTED WITH 
THE OFFER TO SELL AND THE SALE OF THE APARTMENT, TO SIGN AND 
DELIVER TO SELLER ADDITIONAL DOCUMENTS, INCLUDING, WITHOUT 
LIMITATION, WAIVERS, AFFIDAVITS OR OTHER DOCUMENTS AS MAY BE 
REQUIRED BY SELLER FROM TIME TO TIME, TO SATISFY SELLER THAT THE 
OFFER TO SELL AND THE SALE OF THE APARTMENT IS NOT IN VIOLATION 
OF ANY FEDERAL OR STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR REGULATIONS. 

PURCHASER AGREES THAT IF SELLER DETERMINES IN ITS SOLE 
DISCRETION THAT THERE HAS BEEN A VIOLATION OR AN ALLEGED 
VIOLATION OF ANY FEDERAL OR STATE SECURITIES LAWS OR 
REGULATIONS (WHETHER BY PURCHASER, SELLER OR ANY THIRD 
PARTIES), SELLER'S INJURY CAUSED BY SUCH VIOLATION OR ALLEGED 
VIOLATION WILL BE UNCERTAIN AS TO NATURE AND AMOUNT AND WILL 
BE DIFFICULT AND EXPENSIVE TO DETERMINE.  BECAUSE OF THIS, 
PURCHASER AGREES THAT SELLER MAY OBTAIN AN INJUNCTION (IN 
OTHER WORDS, A COURT ORDER) FROM A COURT PROHIBITING ANY ACTS 
BY PURCHASER WHICH GIVE RISE TO SUCH VIOLATION.  SELLER MAY 
ALSO TAKE ADVANTAGE OF ANY OF SELLER'S RIGHTS DESCRIBED IN 
SECTION 15 OF THIS AGREEMENT.  ALL OF SELLER'S COSTS, INCLUDING 
REASONABLE ATTORNEYS' FEES, INCURRED BECAUSE OF PURCHASER'S 
ACTIONS IN VIOLATION OF ANY FEDERAL OR SECURITIES LAWS OR 
REGULATIONS, WILL BE PAID BY PURCHASER.  
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PURCHASER ALSO AGREES THAT IF PURCHASER CLAIMS THERE HAS BEEN 
ANY VIOLATION OF ANY FEDERAL OR STATE SECURITIES OR DISCLOSURE 
LAWS OR REGULATIONS (INCLUDING THE CONDOMINIUM PROPERTY ACT) 
CONNECTED WITH THE OFFER OR SALE OF THE APARTMENT, THE INJURY 
CAUSED BY SUCH VIOLATION WILL BE DIFFICULT AND EXPENSIVE TO 
DETERMINE.  BECAUSE OF THIS, PURCHASER AGREES THAT PURCHASER'S 
ONLY REMEDIES WILL BE (1) TO SUE FOR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE, WITH A 
FULL WAIVER OF ANY DAMAGES, OR (2) TO SUE FOR A REFUND OF THE 
TOTAL PURCHASE PRICE AND CLOSING COSTS ACTUALLY PAID, PLUS 
INTEREST AT THE RATE OF EIGHT PERCENT (8%) PER YEAR FROM THE 
FINAL CLOSING DATE UNTIL THE DATE OF REPAYMENT.  IF PURCHASER 
ELECTS TO SUE FOR A REFUND AND ESTABLISHES SELLER’S LIABILITY 
UNDER THIS PARAGRAPH, SUCH REFUND WITH INTEREST AS PROVIDED 
HEREIN WILL BE LIQUIDATED DAMAGES AND NOT A PENALTY; SELLER 
AND PURCHASER HEREBY AGREE (i)  THAT ANY ACTUAL DAMAGES 
SUFFERED BY PURCHASER WOULD BE DIFFICULT AND IMPRACTICABLE TO 
DETERMINE, (ii) THAT THE AMOUNT OF THE REFUND IS NOT LESS THAN 
THE BEST ESTIMATES OF THE PARTIES OF PURCHASER’S ACTUAL 
DAMAGES; AND (iii) SELLER HEREBY WAIVES ANY DEFENSE OR 
OBJECTION TO THE ENFORCEABILITY OF SUCH LIQUIDATED DAMAGES BY 
PURCHASER.  FURTHER, THE PARTIES AGREE, STIPULATE AND 
ACKNOWLEDGE THAT ANY ADDITIONAL AMOUNTS PAID BY PURCHASER 
FOR THE APARTMENT (SUCH AS MAINTENANCE CHARGES AND OTHER 
COMMON EXPENSES INCLUDING LIMITED COMMON EXPENSES, REAL 
PROPERTY TAXES, MORTGAGE LOAN FEES AND INTEREST, AND THE 
START -UP FEE) ARE NOT MORE THAN THE  REASONABLE VALUE OF USE OF 
THE APARTMENT FROM THE FINAL CLOSING DATE UNTIL THE DATE OF 
REPAYMENT. 

Purchaser agrees that the terms of this Section g. will continue after the closing and will 
apply to Purchaser as well as to anyone claiming by, through or under Purchaser or the 
Apartment, notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary. 

h. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES .  Purchaser acknowledges receipt of notice that: 

1. USE OF APARTMENTS .  The Declaration of Condominium Property Regime of 
Palms at Waikiki (the "Declaration") provides that the Apartments in the Project 
may be used for hotel purposes.  The Project is subject to the Declaration, the 
Bylaws and the House Rules, as the same may be amended from time to time. 
FOR INFORMATION REGARDING OWNERS’ RIGHTS AND 
OBLIGATIONS REGARDING, AMONG OTHER THINGS, THE USE, 
DECORATION AND OWNERSHIP OF THE APARTMENT, PURCHASERS 
SHOULD READ THE CONDOMINIUM DOCUMENTS, INCLUDING THE 
DECLARATION, BYLAWS AND HOUSE RULES.  There are also other 
restrictions that may apply.  Purchasers should refer to the condominium public 
report for particulars. 

2. DISCLOSURE OF NON-CONFORMING CONDITIONS .  The Seller has obtained a 
letter from the Department of Planning and Permitting of the City and County of 
Honolulu dated September 17, 2004 confirming that the Project met all 
applicable code requirements when constructed in 1968.  Since 1968, the Project 
has been operated for many years as a legal non-conforming hotel.  Generally, 
this designation means that, although in compliance with the zoning and 
building code effective when the structure was built, some aspects of the 
building do not meet the requirements of the current Land Use Ordinance 
("LUO") and Uniform Building Code ("UBC") adopted by the County.  These 
aspects are generally "grandfathered" and treated as legal, but (among other 
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risks) legal non-conforming status can be lost if the use of the building changes 
or for other reasons, and Seller can give no assurances that the Project will not 
hereafter be required to conform to such requirements now in force or hereafter 
imposed. 

Generally, the existence of nonconforming conditions in the Project means that 
in the event of a major casualty, which causes the destruction of the building to 
an extent of more than fifty percent (50%) of its replacement cost at the time of 
destruction, the building cannot be reconstructed except in conformity with the 
then current and applicable provisions of the LUO and UBC.  Certain exceptions 
to the general development standards applicable to nonconforming uses and 
structures in the apartment-mixed use precinct of the Waikiki Special District, in 
which the Project is located, are set forth in Section 21-9.80-4(e) of the LUO.  
Also, the recent passage of Bill 63 (2003), CD 2 amends the LUO to provide 
greater flexibility in development standards applicable within the Waikiki 
Special Dis trict to encourage revitalization, redevelopment and renovation of 
nonconforming properties in the district.  However, Seller makes no 
representations or promises regarding the possible benefits to Purchaser or the 
Association under the provisions set forth in Section 21-9.80-4(e) of the LUO or 
Bill 63 (2003), CD 2. 

PURCHASER AGREES, BY THE ACCEPTANCE OF AN OWNER’S 
APARTMENT DEED IN THIS PURCHASE TRANSACTION, TO ACCEPT 
THE NONCONFORMING CONDITIONS DESCRIBED ABOVE, AND 
FURTHER AGREES THAT THE PURCHASERS OF CONDOMINIUM 
APARTMENTS IN THE PROJECT ARE ASSUMING ALL 
RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY CHANGES TO THE PROJECT THAT MAY 
BE REQUIRED WITH RESPECT TO  ANY NONCONFORMING 
CONDITIONS. 

3. PENDING LITIGATION.  The Project is presently the subject of litigation by the 
Seller against the former owners from which the Seller purchased the Project 
and their affiliates, and the former hotel management company engaged by 
Seller to operate the Project as a hotel.  This litigation does not involve 
Purchasers nor is Seller aware of any reason why any Purchaser could or would 
become a party to this litigation, and the description provided below is solely for 
Purchaser’s informational purposes. 

The litigation is being conducted in three related actions in the Circuit Court of 
Honolulu, Hawaii, entitled respectively  LaeRoc Waikiki Parkside, etc. vs.  KSK 
(Oahu) Limited Partnership, etc., et al. (Civil Case No. 02-002013), Resortquest 
Hawaii LLC, etc., et al.  vs.  LaeRoc Waikiki Parkside, LLC, etc.  (Civil Case No. 
02-2695) and LaeRoc Waikiki Parkside, LLC  vs. K.S.K. (Oahu) Limited 
Partnership, etc., et al. (Civil Case No. is  04-1-0564 (BIA)).  The pleadings and 
papers on file, and the documents and discovery developed in this litigation, are 
too voluminous to characterize here, but generally the litigation involves the 
Seller’s claims against the former owners for concealed and undisclosed 
physical conditions of the Building, and against the former management 
company for failure to make required monthly guaranteed payments to Seller, 
and breach of its duties to properly maintain and operate the Project.  Seller’s 
counsel in this litigation is as follows: 

Glenn K. Sato, Esq. 
220 S. King St., Ste. 600 

Honolulu, HI 96813 
Ph: 808-537-1625    Fx: 800-256-9480 
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Purchasers may contact Seller’s counsel for access to copies of the pleadings 
and papers on file in the litigation and the discovery which has thus far been 
done by the various parties. However, Purchasers are cautioned that the 
litigation is ongoing and the posture of the case and the matters developed in 
discovery are subject to change.  Moreover, because the matter is presently in 
litigation Seller’s counsel is not at liberty to discuss the status or progress of the 
case with Purchasers or their representatives, and cannot provide any 
information other than access to copies of the pleadings and papers on file in the 
litigation and the discovery which has been done with adverse parties. 

4. CONDITION OF PROJECT.  PURCHASERS ARE AGAIN ADVISED THAT 
THE PROJECT WAS ORIGINALLY CONSTRUCTED IN THE LATE 1960s 
AND NOTWITHSTANDING CERTAIN RENOVATION WORK DONE BY 
THE SELLER, PURCHASERS SHOULD NOT EXPECT THAT THE 
APARTMENTS BEING OFFERED FOR SALE NOR ANY COMPONENTS 
OF THE PROJECT WILL BE LIKE NEW.  PURCHASERS ARE FURTHER 
ADVISED THAT NOT ALL POTENTIAL UPGRADES TO THE PROJECT 
CONSIDERED DURING THE COURSE OF THE SELLER’S RENOVATION 
WERE ADOPTED BY THE SELLER.  PURCHASERS WILL, THEREFORE, 
BE ACQUIRING APARTMENTS AND APPURTENANT LIMITED 
COMMON ELEMENTS AND UNDIVIDED INTERESTS IN THE COMMON 
ELEMENTS OF THE PROJECT IN "AS IS" CONDITION, WITH ALL 
FAULTS.  PURCHASERS, AS THE OWNERS OF APARTMENTS IN THE 
PROJECT COMPRISING THE ASSOCIATION OF OWNERS WILL BE 
RESPONSIBLE FOR FUNDING THE COSTS TO REPAIR, MAINTAIN 
AND REPLACE ALL COMPONENTS OF THE PROJECT, THROUGH THE 
GENERAL OPERATING BUDGET OR BY SPECIAL ASSESSMENT MADE 
TO ALL OWNERS. 

ACCORDINGLY, PURCHASERS SHOULD READ THE RESERVE STUDY 
PREPARED BY ARMSTRONG CONSULTING, INC., A COPY OF WHICH 
PURCHASER HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIVING, CAREFULLY TO 
UNDERSTAND THE CONDITION OF THE PROJECT AND VARIOUS 
COMPONENTS THEREOF AS WELL AS THE ANTICIPATED 
REPLACEMENT COSTS FOR SUCH COMPONENTS BEFORE DECIDING 
TO PURCHASE AN APARTMENT IN THE PROJECT.  PURCHASERS ARE 
ALSO REFERRED TO THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE 
ITEMS:   

(i) GENERAL CONDITION DISCLOSURE.  The Project may be subject to 
exterior spalling and weathering, rust, earthquake, fire, floods, erosion, 
high water table, dangerous underground soil conditions and similar 
occurrences or conditions which may alter the Project’s condition or 
affect its suitability for any proposed use.  Seller shall have no 
responsibility or liability for or with respect to any such occurrence or 
condition. 

(ii) AIR CONDITIONING COMPONENTS .  The air-conditioning system and 
components thereof were originally installed when the Project was 
constructed over thirty (30) years ago.  Purchasers are advised that 
although various components of the air-conditioning system for the 
Building have been repaired or replaced over time, including extensive 
repairs by Seller to elements of the system and replacement of 
individual air handling units in the Apartments, the air-conditioning 
system as a whole is not new and therefore, Purchasers should 
anticipate that there will be costs incurred by the Association to repair, 
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maintain, replace and/or upgrade various components of the air-
conditioning system in the future. 

(iii) BALCONIES AND SLIDING DOORS .  As part of the Seller’s repairs and 
renovations of the Building, the balcony decks are receiving new color 
and sealer applications, and local repairs of certain areas of spalling 
have been made on some balconies.  However, the Seller has not 
undertaken general repairs of all of the balconies, and due to the age of 
the Building, Purchasers should anticipate additional repairs as 
necessary in the future.  The Seller’s renovation also includes some 
maintenance and repairs to a number of the sliding doors from 
Apartments to their balconies, but the sliding door installations have 
not been replaced and are not new, and Purchasers should be aware that 
such installations are vulnerable to leakage. 

(iv) CONCRETE SPALLING.  The Seller’s repairs and renovations include 
new painting of the Building exterior and related cosmetic repairs.  
However, due to the age of the Building and prevailing climate, the 
exterior of the Building may experience cracking and spalling in certain 
areas, and particles of paint and cement from the exterior of the 
Building may fall onto the balconies of Apartments.  As indicated in 
the Reserve Study, the occurrence of concrete spalling from the exterior 
of the Building cannot be predicted with certainty and is therefore, not 
budgeted in the Reserve Study.  Repair to any future spalling will 
accordingly, be an expense of the Association. 

(v) ELECTRICAL.  The electrical system in the Building is being repaired 
due to damage incurred during the demolition and abatement work 
which has been part of the current renovation and repairs, and 
additional outlets in a number of Apartments are being provided to 
service appliances, without increasing overall electrical capacity in the 
Building or on individual floors.  The existing capacity is anticipated to 
be adequate for expected normal usage, although there is an unlikely 
possibility that occupants could simultaneously overload existing 
outlets and cause interruption of electrical service on one or more 
floors.  As noted in the Reserve Study, it has not been determined if the 
utilities supplying electrical service own the Building transformers, so 
no funds are reserved for repair, maintenance or replacement of them.  
In the event that the transformers are deemed property of the Project, 
these costs will be a common expense to be shared by all owners. 

(vi) PLUMBING REPAIRS.  Extensive repairs to elements of the Building 
drains and related plumbing installations are being made as part of 
Seller’s current renovation of the Building on a number of floors (not 
including portions of the lobby, mezzanine and parking levels).  
However, because of the age of the Building additional elements of the 
plumbing, for individual Apartments or the Building systems generally, 
are anticipated to require repairs from time to time. 

PURCHASERS SHOULD CAREFULLY REVIEW THE RESERVE STUDY 
AND ALL OTHER PROPERTY CONDITION INFORMATION PRIOR TO 
SIGNING THIS AGREEMENT.  SELLER MAKES NO REPRESENTATIONS 
OR WARRANTY WHATSOEVER THAT THE INFORMATION 
CONTAINED IN ANY STUDIES OR REPORTS PROVIDED TO 
PURCHASERS OR THE USEFUL LIVES AND REPLACEMENT COSTS OF 
THE COMPONENTS LISTED IN THE RESERVE STUDY ARE COMPLETE 
OR ACCURATE. 
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5. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT ("ADA").  Prior to Seller’s acquisition 
of the Project, the former owners entered into a Settlement Agreement, General 
Release and Waiver of Claims in March, 1997, which resolved an action brought 
against the prior owner for alleged ADA violations relating to the Building, and 
which provided for certain remedial work to be done to bring the Project into 
agreed-upon compliance with various ADA requirements.  The Seller as part of 
its renovation and repair upon acquiring the Project has undertaken to complete 
the work provided by the 1997 settlement.  However, the possibility of future 
complaints based on alleged ADA noncompliance other than the matters 
previously remedied is always present, and Purchasers must recognize the 
potential for future expenses for additional ADA compliance work on the 
Building. 

PURCHASER ACKNOWLEDGES AND AGREES, FOR HIM OR HER SELF 
AND HIS OR HER SUCCESSORS, HEIRS AND ASSIGNS, THAT 
PURCHASER ACCEPTS THE CONDITION OF THE PROJECT GIVEN THE 
ADA REMEDIATION WORK DONE BY SELLER, AND HEREBY 
RELEASES SELLER AND ITS AFFILIATES, AND THEIR AND EACH OF 
THEIR RESPECTIVE PAST, PRESENT AND FUTURE MEMBERS, 
MANAGERS, DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, SHAREHOLDERS, EMPLOYEES, 
PROPERTY MANAGERS, AGENTS, AND EACH OF THEIR RESPECTIVE 
SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS FROM, AND WAIVES ANY CLAIM, 
ACTION OR LIABILITY WHICH ARISES FROM OR RELATES TO, SUCH 
CONDITIONS.  PURCHASER FURTHER ACKNOWLEDGES AND 
AGREES, FOR HIM OR HER SELF AND HIS OR HER SUCCESSORS, 
THAT PURCHASER HAS CONSIDERED THE POTENTIAL FOR 
FURTHER ADA REMEDIATION OBLIGATIONS IN CONNECTION WITH 
THE OFFER OR SALE OF THE APARTMENT OR PROJECT, AND 
ACCEPTS THAT ANY SUCH OBLIGATIONS SHALL BE AT 
PURCHASER’S SOLE RISK. 

6. FLOOD ZONE.  County records indicate that the Project is located in Flood 
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) Zone AO.  The current Managing Agent for the 
Project has obtained or will obtain flood insurance for the Project, however, 
Seller disclaims and makes no promises as to the adequacy of such insurance 
coverage. 

7. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS.  Seller has undertaken remediation work to remove 
or otherwise deal with asbestos at the Project, in accordance with the 
recommendations of Seller’s consultants.  Seller has made no independent 
investigation, however, as to other hazardous substances in the Apartments or in, 
under or around the Project, including, but not limited to, radioactive materials, 
organic compounds known as polychlorinated biphenyls, chemicals known to 
cause cancer or reproductive toxicity, pollutants, contaminants, hazardous 
wastes, toxic substances, and any and all other substances or materials defined 
as or included in the definition of "hazardous substances," "hazardous wastes," 
"hazardous materials" or "toxic substances" under, or for the purposes of, 
hazardous materials laws.  In light of the age of the Project, there may be other 
hazardous substances in the Apartments or in, under or around the Project.  
Because of the possible presence of such substances, Purchasers should have 
their respective Apartments inspected to determine the extent (if any) of such 
contamination and any necessary remedial action.  Seller will not correct any 
defects in the Apartment or in the Project or anything installed or contained 
therein and Purchaser shall expressly release Seller from any liability if any 
hazardous materials are discovered.  Purchaser shall have ten (10) days from the 
date of Seller’s Execution Date of this Agreement to perform a risk assessment 
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or inspection, at Purchaser's option and expense, for the presence of hazardous 
materials in the Apartment or Pro ject. 

8. LEAD-BASED OR LEAD CONTAINING PAINT.  Seller’s current renovation of the 
Building includes extensive painting of exterior and interior surfaces, with non-
leaded paints.  However, all Purchasers are hereby notified that the Project may 
nonetheless present exposure to lead from lead-based or lead-containing paint 
that may place young children at risk of developing lead poisoning.  Lead 
poisoning in young children may produce permanent neurological damage, 
including learning disabilities, reduced intelligence quotient, behavioral 
problems, and impaired memory.  Lead poisoning also poses a particular risk to 
pregnant women.  Seller has provided Purchaser with a lead paint addendum to 
this Agreement which has been acknowledged by Purchaser.  Purchaser shall 
have ten (10) days from Seller’s Execution Date of this Agreement to perform a 
risk assessment or inspection, at Purchaser's option and expense, for the 
presence of lead-based paint and/or lead-based hazards in the Apartment. 

9. MOLD/MILDEW .  Purchaser is advised that certain toxic molds have previously 
been detected at the Project, and the Seller has engaged the services of mold 
remediation contractors to conduct extensive mold remediation work at the 
Project, which have included replacement of all of the drywall walls for the 
Apartment interiors and substantial additional portions of the hallway drywall.  
However, Purchaser acknowledges that Seller cannot guaranty that mold, 
mildew, fungus and other types of bacterial growths will not recur.  Tropical 
climates with warm temperatures, high humidity and frequent precipitation are 
generally conducive to the propagation of mold, mildew, fungus and other types 
of bacterial growths.  Though the Building, deck surfaces and other 
improvements that are a part of the Project may be cleaned to satisfactory 
appearance, Purchaser acknowledges that Seller cannot guaranty mold, mildew, 
fungus and other types of bacterial growths can be eliminated.   Purchaser 
should be aware that, as with all properties, the Building may have hidden, 
enclosed and unreachable areas where growths can occur and cannot be detected 
or completely removed, and that there may in the future be mold and mildew 
growth in the Project if the Association and occupants of the Apartments do not 
properly maintain the Project.  If Purchaser, any member of Purchaser's family, 
or any person who will inhabit the Apartment has respiratory, skin or other 
health ailments or conditions that can be affected by mold, mildew, fungus or 
other types of bacterial growths, they should seek professional advice before 
completing this purchase.  It is agreed that Seller does not undertake to provide 
counsel as to the effect that any mold, mildew, fungus and other type of bacterial 
growths in the Project may have relating to the health, welfare and continued 
enjoyment of the Apartment and the Project by Purchaser or any particular 
individual.  Purchaser shall have ten (10) days from Seller’s Execution Date of 
this Agreement to perform or engage a professional consultant to perform a risk 
assessment or inspection in the Apartment and the Project, at Purchaser’s option 
and expense, for the presence of mold, mildew, fungus or other types of 
bacterial growths in the Apartment and the Project. 

10. FLOOR LEVELING.  The floors of certain Apartments may not be exactly level.  
In most instances, floor coverings will render such leveling discrepancies 
unnoticeable.  Some purchasers, may, however, notice such floor conditions 
notwithstanding floor coverings. 

11. CONSTRUCTION ON PROPERTY IN CLOSE PROXIMITY TO PROJECT.  
Purchasers are advised that one or more new towers may be constructed on the 
Hilton Hawaiian Village property situated across Ala Moana Boulevard from the 
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Project, or potentially in other locations near the Project, that may adversely 
impact view channels from the Project. 

12. TRAFFIC SIGNALIZATION.  Traffic signalization may be altered on Ala Moana 
Boulevard due to future improvements on the Hilton Hawaiian Village property, 
thus impacting traffic flow and possibly, ingress and egress from the Project. 

13. SALE OF APARTMENT 105.  The Seller intends to sell Apartment 105, which 
comprises the front desk of the Project, to Aqua Hotels and Resorts, LLC.  In the 
event that Aqua Hotels and Resorts, LLC ceases to be the hotel operator for the 
Project, it has agreed to reconvey Apartment 105 to the Association. 

14. REAL PROPERTY TAXES .  The Apartments are not yet separately assessed for 
property tax purposes and at closing the Seller will allocate property taxes 
among the Apartments based on the ratio of their gross list prices. 

15. POOL SAFETY.  Purchaser is aware that there is no lifeguard on duty at the pool 
within the Project.  Accordingly, Purchaser acknowledges that Purchaser’s 
safety as well as the safety of Purchaser’s children, tenants and guests are 
Purchaser’s own responsibility while using the pool.  Children must be 
accompanied by an adult while using the pool and there is no diving permitted.  
Purchaser is directed to the House Rules for more information regarding the use 
of the pool.  All residents and guests swim at their own risk. 

16. NUISANCE AND NATURAL OCCURRENCE DISCLOSURES .  The following is a 
partial list of potential items which Apartment owners or occupants may find 
objectionable: 

(i) AIRFLOW AND WIND.  Air flow in, around and through the Building, 
the Project, and the Apartment resulting in smoke (from tobacco or 
other smoking substances), barbeque odors, other cooking odors, 
perfumes, and other odors being transmitted to the Apartment or the 
Project and wind or wind-related noises or nuisances that may result 
therefrom. 

(ii) BUILDING AND HOTEL OPERATIONS .  Noises, odors, chemical odors 
or fumes from Building or hotel operations, including janitorial, maid, 
elevator and mechanical equipment operations, and landscape 
maintenance, repair and replacement activity. 

(iii) NEIGHBORS .  Neighbors, including adjacent apartment owners, their 
guests and invitees, whether below, above or on the side of the 
Apartment and their respective behaviors and idiosyncrasies, whether 
occurring in an apartment or the common areas of the Project. 

(iv) ADJACENT PROPERTIES .  Nuisances arising from adjacent properties 
and their respective operational issues, such as trash pickup, deliveries, 
guests, tenants, clients and invitees, and any construction work they 
may perform from time to time. 

(v) PEDESTRIANS.   Nuisances arising from pedestrian traffic. 

(vi) TRAFFIC.  Nuisances arising from traffic, including dust, sounds 
(alarms, engines, screeching tires, etc.), and exhaust fumes. 
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(vii) NATURAL OCCURRENCES .   Earthquakes, tsunamis, volcanic ash or 
haze, animals , insects, pestilence, drought, and other natural 
occurrences. 

(viii) CONDOMINIUM LIVING.  The Building is multi-storied. As such, there 
are other apartments located adjacent to, above and/or below the 
Apartment.  There is some possibility of sound transmission, smells, 
smoke, and other possible nuisances between apartments. 

This is not a complete list of all potential objectionable matters, and Purchaser 
acknowledges there may be others.  Purchaser releases and indemnifies Seller, 
its agents, consultants, contractors and employees from any and all liability or 
claims made by Purchaser, any successor or assigns of Purchaser, or any tenant 
or guest of Purchaser, arising from all such matters, whether listed above or 
otherwise. 

EACH PURCHASER AGREES TO ACCEPT EACH CONDITION, CIRCUMSTANCE AND RISK 
DESCRIBED ABOVE OR IN ANY OF THE REPORTS OR INFORMATION PROVIDED BY 
SELLER, AND FURTHER AGREES THAT NEITHER SELLER, NOR ANY OF THE 
"RELEASED PARTIES" DESCRIBED IN SECTION 13.a. ABOVE, SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE 
FOR CORRECTING ANY S UCH CONDITIONS. 

14. OCCUPANCY.  Purchaser shall not be entitled to possession of the Apartment as the Owner thereof 
until Purchaser has completed all payments set forth above and has executed all documents 
relating to the purchase, and Purchaser has performed the remaining terms and conditions of this 
Agreement which are to be performed as of the Closing. 

15. SELLER'S REMEDIES .  Following Deemed Acceptance of the Final Public Report as described in 
Section 10 above, if the Purchaser shall default in making any payment when required, or fail to 
perform any other obligation required of the Purchaser hereunder, this Agreement may, at Seller's 
option, be terminated by written notice to Purchaser.  The Seller and Purchaser hereby 
acknowledge that they understand and have agreed that in such event the injury to Seller will be 
difficult and expensive to measure in view of:  Seller's financial commitments with respect to the 
Project; the connection between sale, cancellation or default with respect to one apartment and 
sale, cancellation or default with respect to other apartments in the Project; and the nature of the 
real estate market in Hawaii.  As a reasonable estimate of Seller's fair compensation for any 
damages resulting from such default, the parties agree that the sums paid by the Purchaser 
hereunder as a deposit shall belong to Seller as liquidated damages.  Seller shall also have the right 
to pursue any remedies available to it in law or in equity, including, without limitation, the right to 
sue for specific performance. 

16. NOTICES .  Notices to either party may be delivered personally or mailed, postage prepaid, 
addressed to such party at its address set forth above (or such more recent address of which the 
mailing party may have given notice in writing) and shall be deemed to be given when so 
delivered or mailed.  If more than one person is listed as a Purchaser, delivery or mailing made to 
any one of them shall be deemed delivery as to all.  Delivery or mailing may also be made to any 
officer of a corporate party. 

17. PURC HASER'S DEATH .  If Purchaser, or any one or more of the Purchasers, if there is more than 
one Purchaser listed above, should die prior to Closing, Seller reserves the right to return 
Purchaser's payments (including payments to all parties if there is more than one Purchaser listed 
in this Agreement) without interest and less any cancellation costs and fees and this Agreement 
shall then be deemed to have been cancelled and both Seller and Purchaser shall be released from 
all obligations and liability hereunder. 

18. MEDIATION; ARBITRATION.  Any dispute by or between the Association, and/or any Purchaser 
and/or any tenants or occupants of the Project, on the one hand, and Seller, its, architect, designers, 
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consultants, sales agents, lenders, and their respective predecessors and/or successors -in-interest, 
on the other hand, arising out of or incident to the operation of the Project or the sale of any 
Apartment or any other aspect of the relationship between such entities regarding the Project shall 
first be submitted to mediation pursuant to the commercial mediation rules of the American 
Arbitration Association (hereinafter referred to as the "AAA") then in effect.  Should such 
mediation fail to resolve the matter in dispute, any person that desires to submit any issue or 
dispute to arbitration shall promptly submit the matter to arbitration pursuant to the commercial 
rules of arbitration of the AAA and shall so notify the other party in writing.  Claims or disputes 
shall be heard by a single arbitrator.  The arbitrator shall be selected by the AAA upon receiving 
notice from either party that a dispute exists.  The decision of the arbitrator shall be final, 
conclusive and binding on the parties hereto.  All proper costs and expenses of such arbitration 
including, without limitation, witness fees, attorneys’ fees and the fees of the arbitrators shall be 
charged to the party or parties in such amounts as the arbitrator shall determine at the time of the 
award.  In the event of the failure, inability or refusal of the arbitrator to act, a new arbitrator shall 
be appointed in his stead by the AAA.  An award so rendered shall be binding in all aspects and 
shall be subject to the provisions of Chapter 658A, Hawaii Revised Statutes, as the same may be 
amended from time to time.  In the resolution of any dispute or controversy as set forth in this 
Section D.18., each party hereby irrevocably waives any right and claim to exemplary or punitive 
damages in any jurisdiction.  Any documents of assignment, lease or conveyance of any 
Apartment or other interest in the Project shall be deemed to incorporate those provisions for 
arbitration of disputes set forth in this Section D.18., as if the same were fully set forth in any such 
document.  Any person who is injured by reason of the fact that a dispute subject to the provisions 
of this arbitration provision is resolved other than by arbitration may recover as damages the cost 
and expense incurred by reason of the fact that the dispute was not submitted to arbitration for 
resolution.  Any arbitration proceedings under this Section D.18. will be submitted to arbitration in 
the City and County of Honolulu, State of Hawaii. 

19. TITLE INFORMATION.  The information appearing in Section B. hereof and any vesting 
information provided to Escrow by Purchaser will be used for preparing the Apartment Deed.  
Purchaser affirms that the information is correct and complete and agrees to inform the Seller 
immediately if any of those details are changed.  If, as a result of incorrect information provided 
by Purchaser or a change in the identity of the Purchaser, the Apartment Deed is prepared 
incorrectly and must be redrawn, the Purchaser agrees to pay all costs involved in such redrafting. 

20. UNCLAIMED REFUNDS.  Except as otherwise provided by law, Escrow shall give each Purchaser 
entitled to a return of funds notice thereof by certified or registered mail, addressed to such 
Purchaser at the address shown in Section B. above or any address later made known in writing to 
Escrow by such Purchaser.  IF PURCHASER SHALL NOT HAVE CLAIMED SUCH REFUND 
WITHIN ONE HUNDRED TWENTY (120) DAYS, ESCROW SHALL THEREAFTER 
DEPOSIT SUCH FUNDS INTO A SPECIAL ACCOUNT IN A BANK OR OTHER 
DEPOSITORY SELECTED BY ESCROW, IN THE NAME OF SELLER, AS TRUSTEE FOR 
THE BENEFIT OF SUCH PURCHASER.  After having sent the Seller written notice of the 
foregoing acts, Escrow shall thereupon be released from further liability with respect to such funds 
and such Purchaser. 

21. OTHER ACTIVITIES .  Purchaser specifically acknowledges that Seller has reserved the right for 
itself, its sales representatives and prospective purchasers to utilize the common elements of the 
Project for ingress and egress, parking, marketing operations and events, and to show the common 
elements to prospective purchasers.  Purchaser hereby accepts the foregoing conditions set forth in 
this section as well as any inconvenience or annoyance which Purchaser may experience as a 
result of such conditions, and hereby expressly waives any rights, claims or actions which 
Purchaser might otherwise have against Seller as a result of such circumstances. 

22. MANDATORY SELLER DISCLOSURE.  The Seller is exempt from the provisions of Chapter 508D 
of the Hawaii Revised Statutes, as amended, regarding mandatory Seller disclosures regarding 
sales of residential real property.  Information pertaining to the Project is contained in the 
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Preliminary Public Report, the Final Public Report and/or Supplementary Public Report, if any, 
for the Project. 

23. CONTINUATION OF OBLIGATIONS . Provisions of this Agreement that clearly apply to 
circumstances or events that will or may occur after the execution and filing of the Purchaser's 
Apartment Deed shall survive the execution and filing of such Apartment Deed. 

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and 
supersedes and cancels all prior negotiations, representations, understandings and agreements, 
both written and oral, of the parties hereto.  No fact sheets, informational material, advertising 
material or other documents which purport to describe the Apartment or the Project in any manner 
beyond or different from the description set forth in the Condominium Documents and the 
Declaration, Bylaws and the Real Estate Commission's Public Report(s) shall be valid or 
enforceable against the Seller unless signed by the Seller.  No variation of this Agreement shall be 
valid or enforceable unless approved by the parties in writing and attached hereto as an addendum. 

25. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be invalid or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of this Agreement and 
the application of such provision to other persons or circumstances shall not be thereby affected. 

26. CAPTIONS .  The captions of the sections of this  Agreement are for convenience only and do not 
amplify or limit in any way the provisions hereof. 

27. DEFINITIONS GENERALLY.  The terms "Purchaser" and "Seller" include the persons named and 
their respective heirs, successors, personal representatives, adminis trators or permitted assigns.  
The singular includes the plural and vice versa and the use of any gender includes the other as 
common sense shall require.  If this Agreement is signed by more than one person as Purchaser, 
the Purchaser's obligations set forth in this Agreement shall be joint and several. 

28. GOVERNING LAW .  The laws of the State of Hawaii shall govern all matters with respect to this 
Agreement. 

29. EXECUTION BY SELLER.  This Agreement shall not be binding upon Seller until executed by 
Seller. 

30. MARKETING MATERIALS PROPRIETARY.  All sales and marketing material provided to Purchaser 
in connection with the sale of the Apartment or otherwise are the property of the Seller, and may 
not be used by Purchaser in any fashion whatsoever.  Any use of such material in any way by 
Purchaser will entitle Seller to enjoin such use and to pursue other remedies against Purchaser, 
independently of the obligations set forth in this Agreement.  Purchaser will be responsible to pay 
for all costs incurred by Seller in enforcing its proprietary rights in and to such material, including 
any and all attorneys’ fees and costs incurred by Seller.  This right will survive closing of the sale 
of the Apartment to Purchaser. 

31. ACT 119 OF THE STATE OF HAWAII 2004 LEGISLATIVE SESSION CONTAINS 
IMPORTANT REQUIREMENTS PURCHASER MUST FOLLOW BEFORE PURCHASER 
MAY FILE A LAWSUIT OR OTHER ACTION FOR DEFECTIVE CONSTRUCTION 
AGAINST THE CONTRACTOR WHO DESIGNED, REPAIRED, OR CONSTRUCTED 
PURCHASER’S APARTMENT.  NINETY DAYS BEFORE PURCHASER FILES 
PURCHASER’S LAWSUIT OR OTHER ACTION, PURCHASER MUST SERVE ON THE 
CONTRACTOR A WRITTEN NOTICE OF ANY CONSTRUCTION CONDITIONS 
PURCHASER ALLEGES ARE DEFECTIVE.  UNDER THE LAW, A CONTRACTOR HAS 
THE OPPORTUNITY TO MAKE AN OFFER TO REPAIR AND/OR PAY FOR THE 
DEFECTS.  PURCHASER IS NOT OBLIGATED TO ACCEPT ANY OFFER MADE BY A 
CONTRACTOR.  THERE ARE STRICT DEADLINES AND PROCEDURES UNDER THE 
LAW, AND FAILURE TO FOLLOW THEM MAY NEGATIVELY AFFECT PURCHASER’S 
ABILITY TO FILE A LAWSUIT OR OTHER ACTION. 
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32. GLOSSARY OF DEFINED TERMS.  The terms listed below are defined here for convenience.  If 
there is a conflict between the definition given below and the definition elsewhere in the text of 
this Agreement, the latter will control. 

“Agreement” shall mean this Purchase Agreement made by and between LaeRoc Waikiki 
Parkside, LLC, a Hawaii limited liability company, and Purchaser. 

“Apartment” shall mean a part of the Project as described in the Declaration and in this Agreement 
in Section A.3., and as shown on the Condominium Map. 

“Apartment Deed” shall mean the Apartment Deed, Encumbrances and Reservations of Rights for 
Palms at Waikiki issued or to be issued to each purchaser of an Apartment in the Project. 

“Association” shall mean the Association of Apartment Owners of Palms at Waikiki. 

“Bylaws” shall mean that certain Bylaws of the Association of Apartment Owners of Palms at 
Waikiki. 

“Closing Date” shall mean that certain date that Seller selects to close the acquisition of the 
Apartment by Purchaser. 

“Condominium Documents” shall mean those documents relating to the purchase and sale of the 
Project and to the Apartments, which the Purchaser should review. 

“Condominium Map” shall mean that certain Condominium Map which is filed in the Land Court 
as the Condominium Map for the Project, as the same may be duly amended from time to time. 

 “Cooperating Broker Addendum” shall mean that certain Cooperating Broker Agreement between 
Project Broker and another broker (if any) that is attached to this Agreement and incorporated by 
reference into the Agreement. 

“DCCA” shall mean the Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs of the State of Hawaii. 

“Declaration” shall mean that certain Declaration of Condominium Property Regime of Palms at 
Waikiki, as the same may be amended. 

“Deemed Acceptance” shall mean the Seller’s right to determine that Purchaser has received the 
required Public Report(s) and has waived the Purchaser’s right to cancel the purchase in 
accordance with Section D.10. of the Agreement. 

“Dual Agency Addendum” shall mean that certain Dual Agency Consent Agreement, if any, 
between the Project Broker, the Purchaser and the Seller, that is attached to this Agreement and 
incorporated by reference into the Agreement. 

“Effective Date” shall mean that date specified in Section D.10 above. 

“Escrow” shall mean Fidelity National Title & Escrow of Hawaii, Inc., a Hawaii corporation. 

“Escrow Agreement” shall mean that certain Escrow Agreement by and between Seller and 
Escrow. 

“Final Public Report” shall mean that certain report covering the Project, an effective date for 
which has been issued by the Real Estate Commission of the State of Hawaii in accordance with 
Section 514A-40 of the Hawaii Revised Statutes, as amended. 
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“Financial Data” shall mean personal and financial information from Purchaser’s bankers, 
accountants, or others, as Seller may require, to prove Purchaser’s ability to make cash payments 
due at the times and in the amounts required by the Agreement. 

“Land” shall mean the real property described in Exhibit "A" of the Declaration, and shall include 
any additional lands annexed to the Condominium Property Regime by the Developer in the 
future, but shall exclude any land that may be withdrawn after the filing of this Declaration.  
Developer has the reserved right as set forth in the Declaration, to substitute the description of the 
real property in said Exhibit “A” to accurately reflect the land that is subject to this Declaration.  
Developer also has the reserved right to subdivide and withdraw portions of the Land, as set forth 
in the Declaration. 

“Lender” shall mean that certain financial entity or those financial entities designated by the Seller 
as its lender(s) and which Seller may enter into an agreement with and grant a security interest in 
and to the Apartment covered by the Agreement and other interests Seller may have in the Project. 

“Management Agreement” shall mean that certain instrument entered into between the 
Association of Apartment Owners of Palms at Waikiki, and Paulin Group, LLC, as the same may 
be amended. 

“Preclosing Date” shall mean that date up to and including that day which is thirty (30) days prior 
to that date selected by Seller as the estimated or anticipated Closing Date, at which time Seller 
may preclose the sale by having all documents necessary for closing executed and the necessary 
funds deposited with Escrow. 

“Preliminary Public Report” shall mean that certain report covering the Project, an effective date 
for which has been issued by the Real Estate Commission of the State of Hawaii in accordance 
with Section 514A-37 of the Hawaii Revised Statutes, as amended 

“Project” shall mean the condominium project established pursuant to the Declaration, including 
the land and improvements.  The Project has been submitted to a condominium property regime 
by the Declaration and shall include any additional lands and/or improvements annexed to the 
condominium property regime by the Developer. 

“Project Broker” shall mean Coldwell Banker Pacific Properties, and all of its salespersons and 
brokers. 

“Public Report(s)” shall mean that (these) certain report(s) required to be filed with the 
Commission in accordance with Section 514A -36 of the Hawaii Revised Statutes, as amended.  
The reference may include the Preliminary Public Report, Final Public Report and/or any 
Supplementary Public Report. 

“Purchase Price” shall mean that certain amount in United States dollars designated in 
Section C.1.a. of this Agreement for the purchase of the Apartment. 

“Purchaser” shall mean that certain individual or those individuals, or entity or those entities, 
designated and described in Section B. of this Agreement. 

“Real Estate Commission” (or “Commission”) shall mean the Real Estate Commission of the State 
of Hawaii. 

“Receipt and Notice Form” shall mean that certain form confirming the Purchaser’s receipt of the 
Public Report and containing Seller’s notice advising the Purchaser of Purchaser’s right to cancel 
the Agreement. 

“Seller” shall mean LaeRoc Waikiki Partners, LLC, a Hawaii limited liability company. 
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Item Description Order
Date

Payment
Due Cost Status

1 CondoCerts Service Fee 11/18/2015 Up Front $29.00 Paid

2

Document Package for Full Resale Disclosure Pack

Bylaws and Amendments

Budgets

Annual Association Meeting Minutes

House Rules

Insurance Summary

Reserve Study

Annual Audit

Declarations and Amendments

Board Meeting Minutes

Sales Package

Financial Statement

Declaration checklist

11/18/2015 Up Front $0.00 Paid

3 Resale Disclosure Document 11/18/2015 Up Front $175.00 Paid

Total:   204.00

Paid:   204.00

Due now:   0.00

Due at close:   0.00

Order Receipt
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